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To leverage our
expertise and
experience to
secure sustainable
returns and mitigate
risk for our clients in
the volatile worlds
of shipping and
energy.
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To enable more
prosperous, secure
and sustainable
global trade within
the shipping and
energy industries.

We are a leading provider
of expert advice in shipping
investment, chartering and

risk management.
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Highlights
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51% increase in revenue from continuing operations to
F1829rm (FY22: £101.3m)

100% increase in underlying operating profit to £201m
(FY22:101m)

Cashflow from operating activities in the year
increased by 8% to £220m (FY22: £205m)

Reported profit after tax for the year down by 67% to
£48m (FYZ22: £139m)

Underlying earnings per share increased by 85% to
46.22 pence (FY22: 2795 pence}

Final dividend of 80 pence per share. Total dividend
for the year of 120 pence per share (FY22: 90 pence)

Successful implementation of shipbroking-focused
growih strategy

Acguired two new tanker desks: in Madrid, Spain, and
in Florida, USA

Launched new Natural Gas derivatives and Oil
derivativee desks

Opening of Corporate Finance desk in Athens, Greece
Launch of our inaugural Trainee Shipbroker Scheme
in London

On track to double the Group’s FYZ1 underlying
operating profit by FY25

Braemar Plc Annuaal Repot and Accounts 20232
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Braemar at a Glance

YE . .
PEFE [T I

Braemar provides expert
advice in investment,
chartering, and risk
management to enable its
clients to secure sustainable
returns and mitigate risk

in the volatile worlds of
shipping and energy.
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Qur experienced brokers work in tandem
with specialist professionals to form teams
tailored to our customers’ needs, and
provide an integrated service supported by a
collaborative culture

b S
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Global offices

Governance Financial Statements

The business is structured in three divisions,
reflecting our operations

Investment Advisory

The global shipping market 1s a volatile and cyclical business.
Evolving regulations combined with an increased focus on
compliance and accountabllity means that shipping companies
are under more pressure than ever before We help them to make
careful, Informed and justinable decisions.

Chartering

Our specialists pool resources, knowledge and industry-leading
expertise to build long-term relationships between shipowners and
charterers. Heavy investment in technology and datatcases allows
us to provide customised, cost-saving solutions that create and
protect the best deals for our clents.

Risk Advisory

Our integrated corporate inance and brokerage teams help protect
our clents against the turbulent price movements and cyclical
liguidity crunches that are commonplace in shipping markets

Ermployees

We operate 24/7 across the world, covering
ah of the major shipping hubs 1o provide
our customers with unique opportunities in
both established and emerging markets.

Braemar Plc Annuaal Report and Accounts 2023

Australia

Aberdeen Houston Perth

. . FPaooles Ran Caina
Athens London Shanghai
Beijing Madrid Singapore
Bubai Melbourne Southport
Geneva Mumbai
Hamburg New Delhi
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Investment Case

By strearmlining our key services towards our core expertise, shipbroking, we have, over the last two years, transformed the
Group’s balance sheet and delivered strong posttive cashflow, with £6 3 million net cash at 28 February 2023, compared to net
bank debt of £93 millon at 28 February 2022,

We are investing for growth, and we remain on track 1o achieve our stated goal of doubling the Group's FY21 underlying
operating profit by FY26 Braemar 1s led by an experisnced board and management team who are well positioned to continue

the execution of our growth strategy and each bring a wealth of expensnce to the board

Braemar has a clear and focused growth strategy that is orientated around organic and acguisitive expansion, and we have a
strong platform to act as a consolidator in a fragmented shipbroking market,

Unique proposition

As one of only two shipbroking
companies listed on the London
Stock Exchange, Braemar offers an
aftractive, diversified opportunity to
mvesh i e shipping indusl y, vwill ot
the need to invest directly In vessels.
Qur proven, future-facing strategy 1s

delivering sustainable profit and growth,

progressive dividends, and we remain
focused on delivering quality returns for
our shareholders

Global, diversified
operations

With offices in 12 countries, iIncluding the
pivotal locations of London, Singapore
and Athens, Braemar is well-positioned
Lo serve key indusliy players globally,
aciwss miany different e zomcs and
cuttures. Qur operations are diversified,
nctuding Tankers, Dry Cargo, Saie &
Purchase, Securities, Corporate Finance,
and Offshore, supporting our goal

of creating a scalable business, with
resihent prefit and cash flow generation
across the econarmic cycle.

Braemar Plc Anrual Report and Accounts 2023

Facilitating climate-

smart shipping

Our global teams have proven track
records, delivering expert advice

in Chartering, Corporate Finance,
Research and Analytics. Operations,
and Mgk Management We loverago
our strong networks to secure the best
prices and performance for our chents
Ir line with our commitrment to UN SDG
84 - decoupling econcmic growth
from environmental degradation - the
Group 1s endeavourng to promaote
nclusive and sustanable economic
growth across the ndustry by
incorporating chmate-smart expertise
nto ts cllent services In Aprd 2023,

the Group's ESG efforts and future
cormmitments were recognised by

the Financial Times and Statista, who
named Braemar one of ‘Eurape’s
Climate Leaders’ This titie reflects the
progress Braemar has made to reduce
its Scope 1and 2 emissions
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Governance Financial Statements

Chairman’s Statement

The markets in which the Group
operates were generally favourable
during this financial year. While the Group
15 cautiously optimistic about market
conditions in its key sectors in the years
ahoad and hag taken numerniie steps
to make the business more resilent,

as shipping 1s an inherently volatile

and cyclical business. Factors such as

a weaker global economy, increased
environmental regulation, or commodity
export bans could dampen dermand for
seaborne trade, whereas geopaolitical
tensions and conflict can increase
market prices leading te higher revenus.

| was appointed in May 2021 with

a mandate to help Bragmar's new
management team in two areas: to
streamiine and simplify the Group's
operations and to develop and execute
an ambitious, shipbroking-focused,
growth strategy

| am pleased to report that we have
made strong progress on both objectives
The smplification of the Group 1s now
complete: we have disposed of all
non-core businesses and assets, and
have transformed the Group's balance
sheet from net debt of £8.3 million on

28 February 2022 to a net cash position
of £689 millon as at 28 February 2023

Staff numbers and transaction volumes
ncreased in line with our expectations,
augmented by several bolt-on
acqguisitions, and the develocpment

and execution of our growth strategy

Is also progressing well During this

past inancial year, the Group acquired

a leading US shipbroker in Scuthport
Maritime Inc in Florida, USA, a 10-strong
tanker desk in Madrid, Spain and a
Natural Gas desk, and an Ol Dervatives
desk in London | am pieased to report
that the Group’s clients have responded
positively to the services we have added
1o our operations and all of the additional
services are performing wel.

Our targeted hinng strategy alsc proved
successful In the year. The total number
of people working at Braemar increased
by 6% to 384 (28 February 2022 362),
with an increase in fixtures of 18% It

13 mportant to note that this growth

In fixtures was proportionately much
greater than the increase n the Group's
broker headcount, and demoenstrates
the Group's ability to achieve non-linear
growth, with average revenue per head
increasing by 42% to £398000

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Strong trading performance

It is well reported that the period
corresponding to FY23 was one of
strong trading in the global shipping and
energy ndustrnes. Trading in both sectors
s prednminantly in LS dollars bt the
Group's major costs are in sterling

This meant that the Group reaped the
rewards of a well-structured FX hedging
strategy as well as benefiting from
favourable foreign exchange rates

Revenue from continuing operations rose
by 51% to £162.8 milion {2022 F1013
million), generating a 100% increase

in underlying operating profit from
continuing operations of £201 million
(2022 £101 million) Primarly as a result
of specific tems, including £21 million

of goodwill impairment, reported profit
after tax decreased by 67% to £46
million {2022 £139 million) Underlying
earnings per share iNncreased by 65%

to 46 22 pence (2022: 2795 pence), and
the Group's repcrted earnings per share
decreased by 65% to 15.85b pence (2022:
45586 pence).

Progressive dividend policy

In my statement last vear, | was
pleased to announce the introduction
of a progressive dividend policy to
supplement the Group's growth
strategy The introduction of this policy
demonstrated the board’s confidence
in the growing financial strength and
prospects of the Group, its belief

In the iImportance of dividends for
shareholders, and its intention to include
the payment of progressive dividends in
the Group's growth agenda

As a result of the exceptional cash-
generation by the Group's activities in the
year, ! am pleased to announce that the
board 1s recemmending a final dividend
for FY23 of 80 pence per share for
approval by shareholders at the Group's
reconvened AGM on 18 December 2023,
to e pad on & February 2024 This

final dividend together with the intenm
dividend already paid of 40 pence per
share, represents a total dividend for the
year of 120 pence. an increase of 33%
over last year (2022 90 pence per share).

I am also pleased to report that

the Capital Reduction process was
completed as planned on 5 June 2023,
addressing the histonc payment of
unlawfui dvidends and increasing the
Group’s capacity to pay future dividends
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Chairman’s Statement continued

The final dividend will be paid on

9 February 2024 to shareholders who
are on the register at the close of
business on 5 January 2024, with a
carresponding ex-dividend date of

4 lanuary 2024. | ne last date for
Dividend Reinvestment Plan ("DRIP™)
elections will be 19 Jarwary 2024

Enabling climate-smart shipping

| am proud to be the Chairman of a
business which believes that taking care
of the environment, treating colleagues
and clents fairly, and maintaining ethical
business practices is not only the nght
thing tc do, but is also good for business

Qur corporate operations have been
globally carbon neutral for six years This
has, to date, been achieved by investing
in offset programmes | am pleased to
report that the Group made continued
progress in the year by further reducing
1ts carbon footprint and adepting more
environmentally friendly practices across
s operations. In April 2023, the Group's
ESG efforts and future cornmitments
were recognised by the Financial Times
and Statista, who named Brasmar

one of ‘Europe’s Climate Leaders’. This
title reflects the pregress Braemar has
already achieved to reduce its Scope
1and 2 emissions There 1s more to

be done to enhance the Group’s
measurement and reduction of Scope 3
emissions, and | look forward to
reporting on progress in this area in

the coming years.

Bragmar is incorporating climate-
smart expertise throughout its client
service offering, and, as a business,
we are committed 1o explonng new
ways to enable our clients to achieve
their sustainability ambitions, Over

the last year, we have developed cur
sustainability offering further. As well
as being able 10 service the voluntary
carbon market via Braemar Offset, the
Group I1s now providing clients with
the access to the mandatory carbon
credits they need to fulfil their oblgaticns
under the EU's Emissions Trading
System ("ETS")

The Braemar board

The Braemar board is functioning well.
We have a well-balanced team of
executives and non-executives, with
wide ranging expertence, skills and
expertiss from diverse scetors, who are
united N therr approach to the business.

On 31 January 2023, Stephen Kunzer,
non-executive director, stood down from
the board to take up the position of Chief
Executive Officer of Lila Global Stephen
played a supportive role in developing
the Group's new growth strategy and we
wish him well in his new executive role In
the industry

Cat Valentine joined the board, as an
independent non-executive director,
with effect from 16 May 2023 She is

a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and Audit & Risk Committee
Cat 15 a communications professional
with extensive knowledge of the
small-cap growth companies’ market
and considerable M&A transaction
expenence. As the Group continues to
develop and mplement its expansion
and growth agenda, her expertise will
add considerable value to the board and
will help the Group to further deliver on
tts strategic ampitions

Grant Foley joined the board as Group
Chief Financiat Officer on 1 August
2023. Grant has more than 25 years’
experience In leading public and private
financial services and technology
businesses, and joined the Company
from ClearScore, the UK's |leading credit
marketplace, where he served as Chief
Financial Officer. At ClearScore, Grant
drove significant improvements across
the finance function, implermenting new
systems, processes and reporting as
the business scaled. Grant also brings
additional transaction experience to the
board, and his other roles have included
CMC Markets Plc where, as Group Chief
Financial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer, he was instrumental in the
company’s successful IPC The board
thanks Nick Stone, who stepped down
as Group Chief Financial Officer on

31 July 2023, for his contributions durnng
his four years at Braemar

Braemar Plc Annuaal Report and Accounts 2023
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| am proud to be

the Chairman of

a business which
believes that

taking care of the
environment, treating
colleagues and
clients fairly, and
maintaining ethical
business practices is
not just the right thing
to do, but is also good
for business.

Nigel Payne

Cha'man

Photo: {c) MRL and Louis Dreyfus
Corpoeration, all rights reserved




Internal independent investigation
As announced on 28 June 2023,

the board commenced an internal
independent investigation into an
historical transaction dating back to
2013 As a result, the publication cof these
financial results was delayed, and the
Group was nat able to publish its FY23
results by 30 lune 2023 as required
under the Financial Conduct Authority's
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules Consequently, the Campany
requested that trading in its ordinary
shares pe suspended, this request was
granted and suspensicn in the trading
of the Company's ordinary shares took
effect on 3 July 2023 The investigation
was overseen by an Investigation
Committee, chaired by miyself and solely
comprising the independent non-
exacutive diectors The irvestigat-on
was conaucted by FRP Adwisory
Trading bimited. an independent
specialst forensic accounting firm,

and ndepenacnt oxternal counsel

“he Investigation was complex, it was
comprehensive and ultimately focused
on areview cf several fransactions
between 2006 and 2013

Braemar Plc Annal yort ane

Governance

The investigation has now been
completed. The beard and the Group
have acted promptly to address the
process and control areas that were
identified as requiring improvement,
including taking key remedal actions and
the necessary steps to comply with the
Group's legal and regulatory obligations.
The board is committed to mantaning a
high standard of corporate governance
and will ensure the remedial actions

are tracked through to completion

The Group has recognised a provision

in refation to these transactions,

which s primarily historical unsettled
commissicns payable and is treated as a
balance sheet reclassification as detailed
in the Financial Review, which the board
considers appropriate at this time.

Our most valuable assets

On behaff of the board, | would lke

to thank every one of the Group's
employees for their hard work and
dedication, our chents for therr trust and
support; and ow shareholders for therr
continued confidence in our Cempany

Over the past year, the Group cont nued
o invest N its poople Wo expanded our
tearns acioss the globe, mplemaented
new programmies to attract and retan
top talent. and our srong perfermance
15 due to thelr hard work and creativity

Financial Statements

As a result of their successes, the
Braecmar brand continues to nse. This is
now beginning to create a virtuous circle,
inwhich, as our reputation grows, we are
better able to attract high performers,
who further enhance Bracmar's
performance, working environment,
brand and overall client offering to the
benefit of all stakeholders.

There is a renewed energy within
Braemar, and the business is in a geod
place, led by our excellent Group CEQ,
James Gundy, and his experienced
executive management team The
energy, drive and focus within the
business is there to be seen.

Qutlook

The market conditions in the Group's
core sectors, shipping and enerqy,
generally remain healthy, and the
long-term autlcok for the Group
remains favourable

Trading in FY24 to date has been

good (and in line with the board's
expectations), as the benefits of
Braemar's increased breadth, depth,

and scale continue te compound. As
expected, the investments made in

the last year have increased the cost
base for the new financial year, but also
provide a platform for further growth in
future years The Group remains on-track
1o double FY21's operating profit by FYZ2b,
delivering strong retums and creating
long-term value tor our stakeholders

Wh this growth-focused strategy
delverng strong results, the board looks
to the future with contaence

Nigel Payne
Charman
15 Novemnber 2023




08

Business Model and Strategy

Strategic direction

Focused on
shipbroking

Our business model

[ W B et oo 5 -

Expert advisers in PR R TR T Y UL P
investment’ chartering To leverage our expertise and experience The right vessels, at the right price, at

. 10 secure sustainable returns and mitigate the right time. Our tearn combines years
and I'ISk management nsk in the volatile worlds of shipping of commercial, financial, technical and
for the sh|pping and and energy. operational expertise with the most

comprehensive market analytics in the
energy markets' | T industry to create investment opportunities

that are both protected and maximised for

Experienced brokers work in tandem )
sustainable returns.

Qur integrated teams deliver creative with specialist professionails to offer
soluticns and tailored support for an |ntegrate_d service supported by -
customers arcund the world, placing a collaborative culture

Customised chartering solutions built
P . EEEE I around the specific needs of our clients.
By invacting in cutting-erige technningy
and bespoke databases, our brokers and
analysts create innovative strategies that
deliver long-term gains over short-term
fixes.

Braemar at the forefront of the
shiplreking industry.
Our learn draws on a wealth of diverse
sector experience to provide the most
advanced market inteligence in the
shipping industry.

To enable more prosperous, secure and
sustainable global trade within the shipping
and energy industries

Volatile price movements are
commonplace in shipping markets Qur
Securities desk helps our clients manage
their exposure by providing a iguid
marketplace, while our Corporate Finance
desk assists those facing quidity crunches
with loan portfolio pricing, management
and restructuring

Braemar Plc Annal Foport and Accounts 2022
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Our strategic
priorities will
enable us to
ake advantage
of future growth
opportunities.

Information can empower - but only when
you know how to use it. Our specialists
know exactly how market inteligence

can be applied to give our clents the

best advantages

i

We draw on in-depth knowledge and a
widle breadth of coverage to help clients
navigate a complicated landscape.

Braemar Pl Annual Report and Accounis

We are committed to proactive, measurable
Ervironmental, People, Social & Governance
{"EPSG") initatives and the facilitation

of climate-smart shipping. We set high
standards for our team and give them

clear frameworks and policies within

which to cperate.

By sharing knowledge and resources
across desks, our team can anticipate
our clents' needs and provide prompt,
informed solutions

2023

o Governance

Financial Statements
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Strategy in Action
O1

- | A new chapter
== for Braemar

Wy wTE A vour

-

There are clear synergies for
Natural Gas with our shipping
desks. We have similar client
bases, and there are big
opportunities to expand the
breadth of activities.

Marc Jarvis
Head of Natural Gas,
Braemar Securities

Enhancing our Securities offering
and diversifying into the energy
broking space

In Jate 2022 Braemar acquired a
talented and resourceful Natural Gas
dervatives team with a long track record
of success.

The acquistion wag a regponse to
a clear need in the energy market
for assistance navigating volatile
rate changes and price fluctuations,
and, the Nat Gas desk addmonally
complements our market-leading
Risk Adwisory function

Nat Gas fits with our profile of seeing
the synergies with the products that our
clients are transporting. and capitahsing
on the opportunities provided by the
overlap with our Charternng operations.

. —
‘ L o
N . £ w; ‘_ﬁ

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accourts 2023



The desk is primarity dealing n EU gas.
UK Naticnal Balancing Point (‘NBP™) gas,
and LNG. They are also able to broke EU
Allowances {“EUAs"), which are carbon
credits used in the European Union's
Emissions Trading Scheme (“EU ETS”)

From 2024 all ships greater than bO0UGT
transporting cargo or passengers ful
commercial purposes will be subject to
these rules, and the vessels” owners will
be reqguired to account for their carbon
ermissions. Due to the partnership
between our Chartenng and Energy
Denvatives desks, we're uniquely able

in the shipbroking ndustry to help our
clhents manage ther EU ETS complance
via physically delivered, and exchange
Cleared EUAS

Governance Financial Statements

The desk serves a sophisticated and
demanding clent base, including many
of Europe’s leading energy companies
as well as banks and hedge funds,

and we are pleased to see that it has
become profitable for Braemar ahead
of our expectations

Braemar Plc Aniual Report and Accounts 2023
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Strategy
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Technology-
driven
innovation

However, due to ships transporting
approximately 90% of global trade, the
industry is cumulatively responsible

for 3% of worldwide greenhouse

0as emissions

As a Company which 1s primarily a
shipbroker, Braemar's ervironmental
footprint 1s a tny percentage of the
shipping Industry’s emissions However.
we work in an ndustry that 1s not
currently on course to meet its 2050 and
‘Net Zero’ commitments. As an adviser,
this presents a huge cpportunity for us
to provide access to solutions that help
our clents Lo achieve heir sustanabilily
arnbions We want to be a driver ana
influencer of that change, and over the
last year we have invested further in
expanding our sustainability offering

Further details on what this means for
our business are as follows

Neutralising our
historical emissions
via carbon offsets

We recognise that there are steps
which we can take to remediate our
historical emissions from our operations.
Through Braemar Offset and our
partner, CHOOOQSE, we have completely
offset our reported corporate carbhon
footprint since 2017 We are pleased

to be continuing to Invest In projects
which bring substantial benefits to
under pnvileged communities, protect
fragile ccosysterns, and create more
diverse and inclusive workforces

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Developing a
“green” mindset

As a business, we are committed to
reducing our carbon feotprint ana
playing our part in the shipping industry’s
drive 10 ‘Net Zera” We are doing this by
becoming more energy efficient, making
greener commercial choices, and
incorporating sustanability into our client
services and our decision making at a
desk and Group level,



Providing access

to voluntary and
mandatory emission
reduction solutions

We have invested in solutions that
enable our clients to fulfil ther voluntary
ambiticns, as wel! as to ensure their full
cormpliance with the Eurcpean Union's
ETS ("Emissions Trading Scheme”).

Braemar Offset enables our clients

to fulfil therr voluntary sustainability
ambitions, by directly connecting them
with some of the most mpactful and
verilied Climale proects avalable today.
In partnering with Bragmar Cffest,
companies can proactively play a role
N improving their green credentials and
helping to accelerate climate action

Through cur new Natural Gas denvatives

desk, we can offer direct access to
Furopean Union Allowances ("EUAS™.
The EU ETS 18 a cornerstone of the
EU's policy to combat chmate change,
and from 20241t will apply to ships
caling at EU ports above 5000 GT
transporting cargo or passengers for
commercial purposes.

Enhancing our
renewables
offering

We are investing In our renewables
offering. as part of cur overall growth-
onentated strategy. We are positioning
the business to support the transition
to a low carbon econormy and for
future growth In renewable energy
and low carbon fuels.

While transporting fossil fuels i1s a key
part of our clients’ businesses today,
we expect and are planning for major
change on this front as the industry
Lransitions to ‘Net Zero’

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Helping our
clients navigate
new regulations

Braemar sees ships throughout ther
lifecycle, and this presents opportunities for
collaboration and value creation. We see
thern when they start life on our Newbuilding
desk, through changes of ownership via

our Sale & Purchase desk, as they voyage
around the glkebe under instructions from
our Chartering desks, and finally, as they
reach the end of therr working lives, with our
Recycling desk By working in partnership
with our clients, we use our expertise

and experience to maximise that vessel's
potential, while minimising its aggregate
environmental footprint

The rules which govern shipping are
ncreasing year-on-year, and the prmary
focus 1s environmental improvernent
Regulations. such as the EU ETS, as well
as major new techrical measures such as
the Energy Efficiency Existing Ship Index
{"EEXI"Y and the Carbon Intensity Indicator
(“CII"}, are changing the way ships trade
and making it much less viable to operate
Inefficient ships. Across our Chartering and
Shipping Investment desks, we are focused
on helping our clients to ensure that ther
assets and future iInvestments are cleaner,
safer, and more productive
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

My key focus upon becoming CEO
was 1o return 1o our core expertise,
shipbroking, as this has always been

at the centre of our success We have
sirnplfied the business and returned

it to growth, which in turn has placed
Braemar firmly back on a growth
trajectory We have achieved this by
capitalising on strong markets, seling
non-core businesses, reducing our debts
and subsequently investing in the long-
term resilience of the Group

The successful implementation of this
strategy has achieved excellent resulfts
for the Group n FY23. Underlying
operating profit rose by 100% to £201
millon (FY22 £101 millon), and revenue
increased by B1% from £101.3 million

to £1529 milllon, as revenue and

fixture volumes Increased on almost
avery Shipbroking desk it 15 worth
emphasising that the growth the Group
has achieved in terms of revenue and
profit are from a business that has a
much lower headcount (compared with
the headcount prior to the Cory Brothers
sale n March 2022) and has been hugely
simplifed since | became CEO 1n 2021
Average revenue per head for FY23 was
£398000 an increase of 42% on the
prior year

We have a deeply experienced
leadership team that knows this ndlustry
inside and out, and a strong balance
sheet that 1s bullt for growth

Together they are enablng us to be

a platform for consolidation In the
fragmented shipbroking market, and

we expect to continue diversification
within shipleroking, in addition 1o growing
nroanically and through ME&A

As part of the execution of ocur
shipbroking-focused growth strategy we
achieved significant milestones in FY23
including the acquisitions of Southport
Maritime in the US, and a new tanker
desk in Madrid We also continued to
enhance our Securities offering with the
launch of new Oil derivatives and Natural
Gas dernvatives desks, which strongly
complement our existing Tanker and

Dry Cargo FFA desks Our chents are
responding favourably to our enhanced
and diversified affering and the synergies
which they provide.

Internal independent investigation
As detaled in the Charnman's Staterment,
the internal Independent investigation
commenced In late June 2023 has

now besn completed. It was time
consuming and complex and | would like
to thank the Independent Investigation
Committee for overseeing the process

| would also like to thank our chents

and shareholders for therr patience

and understanding dunng this period
Braemar and its people have shown
considerable resilience throughout

this period, and | want to thank all our
employees for their hard work and focus.

Braemar’s growth and achievements this
year would not have been possible without
the relentless hard work and dedication

of our glokzal team, whose cornmitment

to excellence continues to drive our
pertormance and inspires rme every day.

Building on strong foundations
Throughout a year ot many challenges
for the global economy, we remaned
firmly focused on delivering value to all
our stakeholders Our commitment to
Innovation and operational excellence
has enabled us to remamn agle and
responsive IN the constantly evolving
shipping and energy landscapes

As | outlined last year, our main ambition
over the medium-term is to achieve a
sustanable annual underlying operating
profit. that regardless of market factors,
1s double the £82 milhon underlying
operating profit in FY21

In FY23, we achieved 51% revenue growth
and increased our underlying operating
rnargin from 10% to 13% over FY22 Inthe
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year under review, we delivered further
gains in revenue and profitability Net
bank cash at 28 February 2023 was £6.9
millen, helped by the initial proceeds of
the sale of Cory Brothers (£65 millon)
in March 2022 but after cash outflows
for acquisitons totalling £73 million
{Southport for £6.3 million, and a new
tanker desk n Macind for £13 million
upfront) — a substantial improvement
on the net bank debt of £93 millon at
28 February 2022 Profit after tax was
£46 milion (FY22. £139 million), largely
lower due to the impairment of goeodwaill
relating 1o the Corporate Finance
business.

Over this inancial year, trading has been
good across our Chartering and Sale

& Purchase desks, as well as on our
investment and Risk Advisory desks
Chartering fixture volumes were up 18%
across all desks, Risk Advisory revenues
increased 42%, and Sale & Purchase
transactions volume grew 23%

Buoyant shipping and

energy markets

In our INdustry, earnings are determined
by the relationship between the supply
of ships and the demand for ships At
its simplest, shipping is ‘Economics 101
While there are variations from sector to
sector, the key positive supply factors
were shared across the industry: longer
voyage distances. minimal fleet growth,
and supply-chan inefficiencies All these
factors will remain in FY24 although they
are likely to moderate and the demand
picture In most sectors supports a
positive rate floer.

Qi demand growtn i1s back to where it
was pre-Covid, and the IEA predicted
in May 2023 that global ol demand

in 2023 would be two milion barreis
per day higher than in 2022 Despite

oil companies wanting newer ships

to reduce the risks of accidents, the
average age of the global fleet 1s
becomng much older than it has been
historically. Low scrapping and an
unusually low orderbook 1s expected 1o
further shrink the availabiiity of modem
ships over the next few years This puts
a hugh floor under tanker rates durng a
penod when energy security concerns
have Increased voyage distances and
tanker dermand growth has accelerated
relative to ol export volume.

The average age of the bulk carrier fleet
is also increasing, while the orderbook
for new ships 1s very small by historical
standards — and 1t I1s a similar story in
sectors such as Cffshore



With demand for green energy and dry
cargo commodities growing globally,
combined with increased consumer
dermand now that China’'s Zero Covid
policy has been revoked, we can
expect to see positive returmns over the
medium term

It is worth noting that nct all markets
are strong at the same ttime, and
events impact shipping sectors in
different ways For example, in broad
terms, Covid was geod for dry carge,
and bad for tankers. This 1s why we
are pricrtising diversification in our
shipbroking operations: and this 1s a
key strength of the Group Resilence
through diversification is what will enable
Braemar to be successful throughout
the business and shipping cycles

Investing in our EPSG

As | said in my report last year and

Have gtniphiasisedd 3iMce, we reman
cutnimlled W deliverng suotainablo
growth and value to our sharehoiders
and contributing to the communities
and envirconments in which we operate
We are proud of the positive mpact that
our business has, and it will always be a
Group prority to operate ethically.

Our sustainability strategy focuses on
minimising cur envircnmental impact.
encouraging diversity and inclusion.
and supporting local ntiatives that
drive positive change. We believe that
shipping has a critical role to piay in
shaping a more sustanabie world, and
we are committed to doing our part

Governance

Outlook: A stronger, more
resilient business

Our resilence and adaptabiity have
been tested over the last year, but our
commitment to our strategic vision and
values enabled us to emerge stronger
than ever A year on since my first CEQC
staterment, | am delighted to be able to
say that we have achieved the results
we promised across every metric, and
now we are a much more diversified and
reslient shipbroking business

We have invested in our people,
expanded our product portfolio, and
entered new markets and locations

to diversify our revenue streams and
mitigate risk The investments that we
have made, as we implemented our
growth strategy, have enabled us to stay
ahead of the curve in a rapidly changing
industry, and will provide the foundations
for an even stronger business N the
YOare tn enme

It 15 an exciting time to be at Braernar.
Shipping 1s undergoing huge changes:
in fuels, In trade patterns, and in the
global regulations that govern how

we operate. Thanks to these types of
developments, the markets in which we
operate are facing major volatility, and

to achieve success in them requires the
highest levels of expertise and practical
experence. The investments that we
have made since | became CEO have all
been In the service of ensunng that we
are able to continue to be able to delver
best-in-class advice, and to maximise
the value we create for our clients

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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The Group has traded well in FY24 to
date and we are on track to achieve the
sustainable doubling of FY21's underlying
operating profit by FY26 Given our
investrments, costs will be higher n FY24
and we have incurred non-recurring
costs of c£285m in relation to the
nvestigation However, we have built
strong foundations in my first twao years
as CEO and there 15 much more work

to be done to achieve the Group's Tull
potential | look forward with confidence
to the remainder of the year, as we
relentlessly continue to execute our clear,
growth-focused strategy.

| would ke to express my gratitude to
our shareholders, employees, clients,
and partners for their continued support
Our successes would not have been
possible without the hard work and
dedication of our talerted teams, or
the trust and loyalty of our clients and
partnere | look forward to another
successful year ahead and remai
committed to delivering exceptionat
results for all our stakeholders

James Gundy
Group Chief Executive Officer
15 November 2023



Shipbroking
breadth and
market share

These combined locations provide the ideal
platform for us to fully penetrate the North and
South American markets and add beneficial
scale to the Group’s activities.

Tris Simmonds
Group Chief Operating Officer
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Southport Maritime increases
Braemar’s presence in the
Americas

Enhancing Braemar's coverage in
the Americas has been an important
strategic geal of Braemar, since the
board launched its growth agenda in
Novermnber 2021

In Southpert, we have acquired one
of the leading tanker shipbrokers in

the USA, and strongly enhanced our
presence n the Amencas.

. P [ S, -

Scuthport Maritime Inc. is recognised
as a sperialist for crude and refined
products in the North American export
tiatkel. ds well as i the Latin Amerioan
and Caribbean markets

With a particular focus on spot tanker
fixtures, Southport's 18-strong team

has a reputation for high performance
within the industry Since it was founded,
Sauthport has enabled its clients to
transport billions of barrels of liquid
petroleum and ol products worldwide,
helping them to benefit from both
short-term volatility and long-term
inclustry trends.
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Working from offices in Flonda, the
Southport team complements Braerar's
existing Tanker desks in London,
Singapore, Macnd, Honistan and Geneva,
as well as significantly enhancing
Braemar's presence in the Americas.

These combined locations provide the
ideal platforrm for us to fully penetrate
the North and South American markets
and add beneficial scale to the

Group's activities.




Enhancing Braemar’s Security Offering

Building on
five years of
progress

Cver the last year, Braemar has
continued to buid its Securties offerng
with the armval of a ten-strong Natural
Gas derivatives desk, and a new Oil
Derivatives desk.

These desks are complementary
additions to Braemar's Securities
offering, which has substantially grown
revenue and market share In recent
years Braemar's Securities desks now
employ almost 40 people.

The new Natural Gas dervatives and Oil
derwatives desks follow the successful
acquisition and integration of Atlantic
Brokers — which Tris Simmonds led — n
2018, the launch of BraemarScreen in
2020 that brought new leveis of price
transparency to dry freight dervatives,
and a highly successful two-decade
Tanker FFA partnership with GFI.

Tris Simmonds began his career as an
oil broker at Spectren Energy, before
moving to GFl and co-starting its Oll
Derivatives desk, as well as subsequently
helping to launch ts European Power,
Gas and Coal desks, and helping to set
up Braemar's Tanker FFA IV with GFI.
Between 2001 and 2012, Tris was the
Head of Coal and the Head of EMEA
Physical Commodities at GFI In 2013, Tns
co-founded Atlantic Brokers, a business
that he subsequently scld to Bragmar

in 2018 Tns has been an Executive
Committee Member of Bragmar for five
years, and Braemar's Chief Operating
Officer since 2021

Braemar Plc Annual Repor! and Accounts 2022



19

Why did Braemar choose to invest
more in its Securities offering?

A — Providing access to more energy
products was always part of cur growth
strategy. There are clear synergies with
our chartering desks, and many of our
clients have told us that they need better
market access

When | worked at GFI, it was clear that
their Coal desk existed because of therr
European Power and Gas desks, and
that, in turn, supported the work of their
EU Allowances (“EUA")/EU Emissions
Trading System (“EU ETS"} desk

There's a complementary crossover of
dervatives traders in shipping and the
kind of products they trade Not only are
they trading freight, but because of the
nature of how freight prices are dictated
they're often trading the underlying
products as well,

The most notable ones have historically
been iron ore and coal and we've seen
consistently strong value from our

Coal desk and our Dry Cargo desks,

50 we recognised that there were

clear opportunities for us to develop
similar synergies across our Investment
Advisory and Chartering operations

What are the benefits to having
greater access toc a derivatives
offering for Braemar’s clients?

A — We're smplifying the process

of execution, and we're providing
intelligence value well beyond just
providing a screen to check on prices
and execute a deal.

We've been aple to do this because
we've brought in talented teams with
goud track records, strong customer
bases, and deep product knowledge
They're natural collaberaters that work
rlnsely with our Chartering desks This
makes them more attractive brokers
because of how their knowledge and
understanding of their market — whether
1t's price, volume flow. or cargo volumes
- is improved

PR Governance

Over the last five years, Securities’
share of Braemar’s revenue has
quadrupled. Why have these desks
been so successful?

A - In Sander Bots and Andy Hill, Michael
Griffin, and, latterly, lay Lovell we've had
strong, capable desk leaders who have
bullt very talented teams. Marc Jarvis and
Rebecca Reed-Sperrin are at different
stages of ther desks’ development,

but | expect to see them grow In a
simifar way

Qur Tanker FFA desk s a strategic
agreement with GFI that's more than 20
years old, and the value that it creates for
Braermar continues to compound year
after year.

On our Dry Cargo FFA desk, we have
found a niche by supplying products to
a marketplace that - for all ntents and
purposes — didn't exist. There have been
attempts to create a trading screen for
the dry FFA market, but they provided
incomplete soluticns Braemar Screen
has enabled customers to simplify ther
internal workflows, and the provision

of lquidity, coverage, and pricing
removed the friction from therr ability to
execute trades

What can Braemar’s clients expect
from its Securities desks in the
coming years?

A - In the coming years there will be
substantial change in how shipping
must account for its greenhouse gas
emissions. The Furopean Union's
Ermissions Trading Systern {"EU

ETS™) is one of the first to attempt

thus, but it won't be the last We're
Investing in the solutions and expertise
required to enable our clients to
achieve their regulated and voluntary
sustainahility ambitions

To date, the only option that charterers
and owners had for managng ther EU
ETS nsk was to go 1o a specialst EU ETS
provider. However, we can now provide
that access directly, via our new Natural
Gas desk They've been executng clean
spark spreads (this is the difference
between the wholesale market price

of electncity and its cost of production
using natural gas) - buying natural gas
as well as the required number of carbon
allowances to offset the gas’'s emissions
- for ther customers using EU ETS for
several years
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This I1Is going to be particularly attractive
because most of our Chartenng clients
dor't want 1o have 1o execute a futures
contract every time they fix a ship. If

you do that in-house you then have

to deal with the inttial margining and

the vanation margmning challenges In
addition, the physical charter versus the
possible hedge that you're doing with
your EU ETS can become two totally
different risks to control. Managing
these challenges requires very specialist
skillsets as well as large balance sheets,
because If you execute your own futures
contracts they will quickly become
capital Intensive

EU ETS 1s a complex mecharism, and
1t carnes nsks that are not correlated
to shipping. If you don't have the nght
experience to manage s challenges,
you're going to struggle tc handle it
efficiently and cost-effectively.

rd /

The Natural Gas desk
is another addition to
our Securities offering,
which has substantially
grown revenue and
market share in

recent years.

Tris Simmonds
Group Chief Operating Officer
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Key Performance Indicators

Exceedin
expectati
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The performance of our Shipbroking
hiisiness was very strong, with revenue
and profit well ahead of our expectations

and the preceding financial year’s results.

The success we have realised this year
is due in large part to our decision to
divest non-core assets and streamline
our operations in FY22 Thanks to our
greater focus on Shipbroking, we were
able to capitalise more effectively on
the opportunities in the market and to
create substantially enhanced value for
our clients.

We have realised total revenue growth
of 40% in Investment Advisory, 57% in
Chartering, and 42% in Risk Advisory,
as well as an 8% increase in cash
generated from operations.

All KPIs relate to continuing operations.

Cash generated
from operations

PR T
£20.5m

:
H

2022

+8%

P
: -
é

2022: £206m

Number of coffices

14

2022

2022:14

Governance Financial Statements

Revenue Number of employees
(average across the year)
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2022: £101.3m 2022: 362
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2022: 4656 pence 2022: 9 pence
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Market Review

During FY23, shipping markets
performed well. Earnings across the
Cortainer, Gas, and Tanker markets were
some of the highest recorded in the last
20 years, and Dry Cargo revenues were
close behind.

As we look ahead, we are cautiously
optimistic. Sentiment in the short and
medium terrn, as measured by time
charter rates, is broadly positive, and
the vessel supply and freight demand
pictures for the shipping markets look
promising in our two biggest markets
— Tankers and Dry Cargo - over the
foreseeable future.

The delvery schedule of ships in almost
all sectors remains manageable; many
inefficiencies in global supply chains
remain post-Covid; large parts of the
tanker and dry cargo fleets are traveling
much longer voyage distances due to
sanctions; and vessel scrapping 1s likely
to pick up ahead of a stricter regulatory
ervironment and an increased focus on
ESG-criteria for investments.

We now present a FY23 summary of our
three business segments: Investment
Advisory, Chartering, and Risk Advisory.
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Operating Review

Investment
Advisory

Photo: (c) Big Lift Shipping,
all rights reserved

Corporate Finance

Strong earnings in 2022 and the start of
2023 across most sectors have meant
that many shipowners have achieved
signihcant profits and accumulated
[argge cash reserves Many mamears
decided 1o use ther profits 1o opt for
more conservative financing structures
As aresult, the diversity of Corporate
Finance’s mandates has varied
censiderably. These diverse projects
have ncluded the disposal process for
the Cruise Ship Global Class One out of
the insolvency of the German yard MV
Werften, restructuring in the Offshore
space, disposals In the Container market
and inland waterway M&A advisory
Despite these successes, revenue

and profits were down compared to
the previous year Corporate Finance
successfully launched a new office

in Athens. Greece, and expanded 1ts
Singapore office.

Ly
.‘-----

3

Sale & Purchase/Newbuildings
Sale and Purchase activity has remaned
strong with & record number of second-
hand sales across all sectors and

desks The strong spot tanker market
has contributed huaely to a significant
nse In tanker asset pnces, and the
tall-end of the strongsst container
rarket in decacdes has created many
high asset value transactions, The

desk has continued to grow its forward
orderbook In many sectors, Including
LNG, Bulkers and Tankers Newbulding
berths have been at a premium, and the
desk’s strong relationships with leading
shipyards have reaped benefits for its
clents However, with strong freight
markets across the board, ship recycling
volumes have rermained light The desk
is optimistic about the cutlock for the
wet and dry freight markets in FY24 and
expects this to continue to translate nto
a good volume of transactions.

Braemar Ple Annual Report and Accourts 2023
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Operating Review continued

Tankers Supply chain challenges prompted
Vessel earnings increased across all by the pandemic and a resurgence of
classes of Decp Sco Tankers. Tho interest in nearshnring and renvigorating
increase N long-haul voyages because American manufacturing put the Jones
of changes to crude trade flows was Act in the spotlight this year Demand is
the rrgor driver for Aframaxes and likely to remain strong, and further use of
Suezniaxes, and VLCC waitings were ita watcrways to trancport freight looks
driven by increased activity in the US increasingly likely. The US Flag desk

Gulf However, VLCC demand was imited  has seen strong rates in FY23 which

by the economic restrictions in China look likely to continue, and recently
which were removed only recently launched an Inland desk to capitalise on
The acquisitions of Southport and opportunities In that market. The desk
the new desk in Madnd have already worked with three oll majors for the first
created several productive cross-office time last year, and the desk I1s currently

collaborations, and further enhanced and  on track for 30% revenue growth.
complemented the guality of Braemar's

global coverage, particularty for the

Spanish clean markets and US Gulf's

crucdles and ol products

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accourts 2023

Dry Cargo

Coal was the major theme of the year as
natural gas prices scared and countries
sought less expensive energy sources
The orderbook remains historically

low, and new environmental regulaticn
arrving In 20223-24 — with more: on the
horizon - 1s likely to set the tone for

a favourable vessel supply/demand
balance Inthe coming years Dry Cargo
has continued to strengthen its presence
in strategic bases such as Athens,
Greece, and 5a0 Paulo. Brazil The desk
has already seen positive results from its
abilty to leverage those enhanced local
relationships In Australa, mayer gamns
have been seen in the grans market,
and sold Contract of Affreightrment
(“COA") cover — an agreement to
transport a given guantity over a fixed
penod - for 2023 has strengthened
relationships with key charterers
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The Dry Cargo desk has also been
nstrumental In helping the United
Kingdom's Ministry of Defence
department fulfil its multipurpose
vessel ("MPP"} reguirements, and it
worked closely with the UN's World
Feod Programme te help ship fertiliser
to Malawi to help it reduce the costs of
crop production

Offshore Energy Services

The Renewables and Oil & Gas markets
delivered growth throughout the year.
Vessel supply was insufficient 1o meet
demand, and charter rates increased
substantially A lack of newbuilcing
orders in recent years Increases the
likelhood that these rate levels are going
to remain elevated for a prolonged
period This shortage of vessels has led
to substantially increased S&P activity
for the desk, particularly in the Platform
Supply Vessels {("PSV") and Subsea
sectors The desk’s forward order book
growth to March 2023 was double that
of March 2022, and the outlook for the
year ahead 1s positive with the volume
of term fixtures Increasing, and spot and
term rates likely to continue to mprove.

b, R Governance

Specialised Tankers

FY23 saw the strongest chemical and
European coastal products tanker market
for many years. This was pnmarly caused
by reduced ship supply — Increasing ton-
miles, swing tonnage exitng chemicals,
and a reduced order bock -, and these
tailwinds are unlikely to completely
disappear in FY24 The desk contnuead
to grow, and it 15 capitalising on its
nvestrment in research, and geographical
expansicn to Dubai, Houston, and
Melbourne which strongly complement
the main desk in London. This growth has
enabled Specialsed Tankers to expand
its reach and market share, and tc realise
further intra-desk synergies.

The elimination of Russian pipeline gas
supply to Europe, n large part because of
the war in Ukraine had profound effects
on the LNG market Long established
trade routes switched from West to East
as US gas volumes were directed to
Europe 10 replace Russian volumes. Gas
prices soared and with it demand for
rmedium and long-term LNG shipping,
with rates for certan vessels peaking

at approximately USD 500k per day. In
line with Braemar's growth strategy, the
LNG desk has grown to six pecple, split
between Londen and Geneva Revenue
continues to be well diversifed across
the desk’s activities, and there 1s further
growth planned into in FY24

Braemar Plc Annual Repon and Accounts 2023
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Prospects for the freight market look
positive as Very Large Gas Carrier
{"VLGC") shipowners expect increased
vessel demand, despite the current
forward order book of approximately
20% of the existing fleet Similarly, in the
Mediurn Gas Carrier ('MGC”) market the
cutlook remains good, mostly due to the
projected expansion N klquid ammonia
shipments In the near future. From a
shipping parspective the Petrochemical
segment had a reasonably strong year,
and the Pressunsed segment had a
solia year with improved results from
both spot and time charter coverage
Braemar's LPG & Petrochemicals desk
has enhanced its MGC and VLGC
presence with the recruitment of an
ex-bunker broker, and concluded two
new long-term petrochemical COAs as
well as renewing another The desk has
realised increased time charter coverage
and grown Its customer base this

year, with several promising long-terrm
orojects on the honzon for FY24

-

Phota: {c) Kyklades Maritime Corporation,
all rights reservad
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Operating Review continued

Risk Advisory
(Securities)

Photo: (c) Global Class One,
Global Dream, all rights reserved

Braemar’'s Securities business consists of four derivatives markets: Dry Cargo, Natural Gas, Qil, and Tanker.

Dry Cargo Derivatives

The FFA market reflected the volatility

of the Dry Cargo market over the last 12
monthg, but the outloclk for the next yvear
and beyond iz lncking lilkely tn he ferfie
Volurmes across the market have grown
dramatically, and continue to increase,
with more non-traditional inancial capial
Increasingly finding its way nto the FFA
market The Dry Cargo FFA desk has also
started to reap the benefits of Braemar's
nvestrment In its Securties businesses,
including through the launch of Dry Cargo
FFA operations for Asia in Singapore. as
well as hinng severat brokers The addition
of the Natural Gas ang Ol Derivatives
desks has led to cross-desk synergies as
the business Is able to service customers
across asset classes, and Brasmar
Screen continues to provide the market's
leading technology platform

Natural Gas Derivatives

The Natural Gas market is retuming to
price normalty after the major shock it
enciured whean Russia invaded Ukrane m
2022, Substantial pressure on Nat Gas
avallability led 1o record high spot prices,
and gas import markets remain sensitive
to further supply restrictions. Brasmar's
Natural Gas desk started operations in
January 2023, and 1s already profitable It
has successfully launched a new product
- Trade At Heren ("TAH") - that the market
hasn't previcusly traded. and the desk is
receiving significant interest in its ability

to broker European Union Allowances
("EUA) for complance with the EU's
Emissions Trading System ("ETS")

Braemar Plc Arnual Feport and Accounts 2023
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Qil Derivatives

In the oil markets the last 12 months
have been marked by high volatility and
low trading volumes In swap markets
Afthough these trends have been
sullened Ly vear i Ukraine and tho
post-Covid recovery of global demand.
2023 has brought rensewed activity, and
traded volumes are steadly increasing
The desk's inital focus on fuel oIl and
middle distillates 1s progressing steadily,
and Braemar's new ability to help its
clents hedge ther bunker fuel exposure
through swap and option markets has
been warmly received.

Governance

Tanker Derivatives

The Tanker FFA market was extremely
volatile throughout 2022, primarily
because of the Russia-Ukraine conflict
That volatility led to a historicat dealing
high arrnss the Nirty Clean and LPG FFA
sectors This year has contnued n a
similar fashien with growing requirements
to hedge and opportunities 1o speculate
on prices As a result, the Tanker FFA
rmarket is expected to continue to thrive
In FY24 The acquisition of Southport has
enabled the desk to create a stronghold
on US Guif FFA routes, and the desk
remains the leading global faciitator of
Clean, Dirty and LPG FFAs

Financial Statements

HAYE MANX

DOUBLAS

Photo: (c) Mayes Manx, all

wgs e

ez,

Braemar Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023



28

Financial Review
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Summary Income Statement FY23
The strong trading and higher revenues have delivered signiicant increases across all
continuing proht measures

- Statutory operating profit increased by 22% to £117 millon (FY22 £95% million)
- Underlying operating profit increased by 100% to £201 million (FY22. £1C1 million).
- Statutory profit before tax increased by 11% to £95 millon (FY22: £8.5 million).
— Underlying profit before tax increased by 103% to £180 million (FY22 £89 million).

Statutory profit n FY23 was impacted by the mpairment of the goodwill on
acquisition of Naves (now Braemar Corporate Finance), which was completed by
the previous management team in 2017

Underlying Statutory

FY23 Fy2z % Inc/ FY23 Fy22 % Inc/

£'000 £000 (Dec) £'000 £'000 {Dec)

Revenue 162,911 101310 oi% 152,91 101,310 5%
Operating profit 20,076 10,060 100% 11,669 9,546 22%
Profit before tax 18,040 8,885 103% 9,451 8543 1%
Profit 13,399 8,639 57% 4,596 13,219 B7)%
Earnings per share 46.22p 2/95p 6b% 16.85p 4556p (B5)%

Grant Foley

Group Chief Financial Officer N .
Continuing operations

Revenue from continuing operations
grew by 51% from £101.3 muilhon to

F152.9 million, as revenue and fixture
volumes across aimost every Shipbroking
desk increased, with the exception of
Corporate Finance

The US dollar exchange rate moved
from US$134/£1 at the start of the year
to USS121/£1 at 28 February 2023 with
an average of USS121 A significant
proportion of the Group’s revenue is
sarned in US dollars Revenue growth
was postively Impacted by the strong
US dollar, which contributed around 24%
nf the overall increase US dollar revenue
creased by 487 in e pened.

To protect the future sterling value of
those revenues. at 28 February 2023, the
Group held forward currency contracts to
sell USS123 million at an average rate of
USS1 22/£1

Braemar Ple Annaal Repoit and Accounts 2023

Due to the substantial Increase n
revenue and the considerable hard work,
which was put Into its generation, there
was a corresponding increase in profit-
related bonuses pad to the brokers. This
was the main contributor to the increase
in operating costs, compared to the
prior year As planned, salary costs also
increased, due to the investrent In new
brokers and desks, the new office In
Madrid and the acquisition of Southport
in the US Traveling and entertaining
expenditure increased to £64m from
£21m, as a result of a full year largely
free from Cowvid restrictions As a result
of all these factors, underlying operating
costs increased by 46% from £20.5m to
£1326m

Central costs increased In total by 49%
from £42 milion to £682 milion. This
was the result of increased share-based
payment charges, inked n part to the
improved performance in the year and
rugher levels of expected vesting of
awards, higher staff costs and non-
recurring costs related to the delayed
year-end audit process
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Net inance costs for the year

increased by 123% to £2 2 million

(2022 £10 millon) The cost has three
eternents the revolving credit facility
provided by HSBC, which provides (e
working capital needed by the business
as well as the core indebtedness; the
convertible loan notes associated

with the acquistion of Braemar Naves,
and the interest charge on the labiity
associated with right-cf-use assets
accounted for under IFRS 18 Average net
debt improved versus FY22 and average
borrowing is largely in line with FY22, byt
costs have increased inthe year as a
result of the increases in INterest rates
with average SONIA increasing from
C1% N FY22 to 19% in FY23. in addition,
there has been an adverse movement
N foreign exchange rates, causing

an increase of £05 milion to finance
costs largely In relation to the euro
denominated Naves habilities.

Included within the net finance costs

in FY22 is a credit of £02rm, which did
not recur in FY23 This was in respect of
the accounting for the restructurng of
deferred consideration owed in relation to
the acquisition of Braemar Naves

Fnance income includes a credrt of

£01 rmilhon, relating to the revaluation of
armounts due for the sale of Cory Brothers
that took place in the previous year,

Governance

Underlying operating profit before specific items

Financial Statements

Specific items - Acquisition and disposal-related

axpenditure
Specific tems — Other operating costs
Specific tems - Cther Income

Operating profit

Specific items and discontinued
operations

In FY22, the board successfully executed
several transactions with the am of
simplifying the Group's operations te
concentrate on a new growth strategy
centred around Shipbroking As a

result, the financial results of Wavespec,
AgualisBraermar and Cory Brothers,
which were disposed of during the year,
have been presented as discontinued
operations, together with the profits and
losses on their disposal In aggregate, ali
these rtems total a profit of £72 millien

Specific items

4
}

Braemar uses APMs as key financial
indicators to assess the performance
of the Group Management considers
that the APMs used by the Group help
to provide an alternate assessment of
business performance, by excluding
iterms which management doss not
beleve relate to business performance
N the period, and provide useful
infermation to investors and other
nterested parties. We have separated
the impact of indvidually materal capital
transactiong, such as acquisitions

and disposals, from ongoing trading
activity to allow a focus on ongoing
vperational performance Qur APMs
incude underlying oporating proft and
underlying earnings per share

lterns that are not considered to be
part of the ongoing trade of the Group
have been presented as specific
These items are matenal in both size
and/cr nature and we beleve may
distort understanding of the underlying
performance of the business If not
identified separately Detals of these
tems can be found in Note 10 to these
Financial Statements
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FY23 Fvaz
£000 £'000
20,075 10,060
(1,999) (122)
(10,253) (202)
3,846 0
11,669 0,646

The most significant of these items is

an imparment of goodwill As a result of
a weaker performance in FY23, a more
negative outlook for the business and
challenging market conditions, the Group
has recognised an impairment of £91
millon 1o the Goodwill which arose on
the acquistion of Naves Further details
can be found in Note 15.

As a result of accounting requirements,
a gan on bargain purchase on the
acquistion of Scuthport of £3.6 million
was recagrised in the Group's lncome
Statement This gain anses due to the
recognition of acquired net assets,
while for accounting purposes the
consideration is treated as a post-
acguisition employee expense

Balance Sheet

Net assets at 28 February 2023 were
£767 millon (FY22 restated. £715
rmilllon). The year saw an increase In
gross trade receivables of 28% to £320
million from £250 million, due to the 1%
revenue growth in shipbroking during the
period. Despite this nse N gross trade
receivables, the provision for mparment
of trade receivables only increased

by 18%, reflecting strong working

capital management and control over
recelvables ageing. A recevable of £560
milion (FY22. £4.8 million) 1s included In
other leng-term racevables in respect of
the VertornCory deferted anid conilingert
constcderation

Capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure was £17m
(FY22: £2 3mj}. The most significant item
of capital expenditure relates to the
treatrnent of office leases under IFRS

16 whereby the lease 1s treated as an
asset addiion These lease additions
were £09m in the year (FY22 £10m) and
do not relate to cash payments in the
year. The balance relates to capitalised
expenditure on computer equipment/
software of £0Bm (FY22- £08m) and
other expenditure on fixtures and hitings
of £03m (FY22 £03m)
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Financial Review continued

Provisions (internal

independent investigation)

In June 2023, the board commissioned
an internal independent investigation
inte an historical transaction orgnating
in 2013 The rvestigaton was overseen
by an Investigation Committee chared
by the Group's non-executive Chairman
and was conducted by an independent
specalist ferensic accounting firm and
independent external counsel The
investigation was comprehensive and
complex and ultimately encompassed
several transactions between 2006 and
2013, which required further investigation

As a result of the investigation, the

Group has recognised a provision

of £20m in relation to the uncertan
obligations connected to a number of the
transactions and commission obligations
identified as part of the Investigation

Of the £20m, F17m relates to historical
unsettled commission payable, which
was recorded n 2017 upon completion of
the relevant contracts, which crignated in
2013 This balance has been reclassified
from trade payables to provisions

during the year While the board cannot
forecast with certanty final ocutcomes

in respect of these obligations, based

on the Group's current information, the
amaount recognised is the current best
estimate of the amount reguired te settle
the obligations at the balance sheet

date, taking into account the risks and
uncertanties surrounding the cbligations,
including interpretation of specific laws
and likelihood of settlement Non-
recurrng cests of cE25m will be reported
in FY24 regarding the investigation

As the ultimate potential obligations and
outcomes N relation to the transactions
subject 1o the internal Nndependent
investigation arc uncertain, there
remains a risk that the final outcomes
could marenally impact lhe recognised
balance. It 1s impracticable to provide
sensitivity estimates of potential
downside variances at this tme

Borrowings and cash

At the Balance Sheet date, the Group

had a revolving credit facility with HSBC

of £300 milion The facility also provides
access to a global cash pooling facility in
the UK, Germany and Singapore, which
enables efficient management of liquicity
between its man regional hubs The
Group operates a poolng arrangement for
cash management purposes and at the
end of the year the Group had net cash of
£89 milion (2022 net debt £23 milion)

Retirement benefits

The Group has a defined benefit pension
scheme, which was closed to new
members durng FY18 The scheme has
a surplus of £11 million (FY22- deficr

£21 milion), which 15 recorded on the
Balance Sheet as at 28 February 2023
The agreed annual scheme-speciic
funding, since the trennial valuation as at
March 2020, was a cash contribution of
FOL milllon per annum. As a result of the
net asset position, these contributions
were stopped from March 2023,

Taxation

The Groug's underlying effective tax rate
N relation 1o continuing operations In
FY23 was a charge of 26% (FY22: 21%),
which is broadly in ine with the UK tax
rate In the current year. The increase was
largety driven by a benefit In the prior
year relating to a change in applicable
tax rate tc an overseas entity, and
additional non-deductible costs n the
current year.

Capital management

The Group manages s capital structure
and adjusts it in response to changes

N economic conditions and its capital
needs To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or 1ssue new
shares and debt instruments The Group
has a policy of maintaning poesitive cash
balances, whenever possible, which

can be supported by short-term use of
its revolving credit facility. This 1s drawn
down as required, to provide cover
against the peaks and troughs In our
working capital requirements

ESOP Trust

During FY23, the Company reguested
that $G Kieinwort Hambros Trust
Corriparty (C) Lid, as Trustee of tho
Cornpariy's CSON Trust, purchage sharcs
in Braemar Shipping Services Ple. During
the year a total of 2795000 shares

in the Company were purchased by

the Trustee and 1877473 shares were
released, as a result. at 28 February
2023, the ESOP held 3572630 shares
(FY22 2669603 shares) The total

cash outflow as a result of these share
purchases was £80m (FY22 £70m)

At FY23 year end, the ESOP contained
sufficient shares as are expected to be
needed tc cover all current share awards
described in Note 31 of the Financial
Statements
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Dividend

The directors are recommending for
approval at the reconvened AGM on

18 December 2023, a final dividend of
80 pence per share, to be paid on

@ February 2024. The intenm dividend
of 40 pence per share in respect of the
six months to 31 August 2022 was paid
4 January 2023. The total dwvidend of
120 pence for the year 1s covered 36
times by the underlying earnings per
share from continuing cperations of 4319
pence. The total cash cutflow N respect
of dividends paid dunng the year ended
28 February 2023 was £3 2m (2022
£21m)

Following a project started during the
year to improve the level of distributable
profits of the Company, it was
discovered that certan dividends paid
between 2016 and 2023 were pad by
the Company without having sufficient
distributable reserves from which to
lawfully pay them. Having identified these
Issues, to rectify the gap in retained
earnings and the urlawful payment

of dividends, after the balance sheet
date the Company completed a Capital
Reduction and entered releases from
llability for the benefit of shareholders
and directors. For further details see
Note 12

Going concern

The strong trading cash flows generated
ouring the year, combined with the
cash consideration received for the
sale of Cory Brothers on 2 March 2022
nave placed the Group in a strong cash
position, with a net cash position at the
year end The Group will maintan its
prudent approach to working capital
forecasting and credit controls. The
Group's revolving credit facility was
renewed In November 2022 on largely
simitar terms tn the previous one il
replaced and provides the seasonal
working capital that is required
Accordingly, the accounts have been
prepared on a going concern basis

Grant Foley
Group Chief Financial Officer
15 November 2023
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The board I1s pleased to confirm that
during the year ended 28 February
2023, the directors have discharged
their duties 10 act in a way they beleve
promotes the long-term success of the
Company for the benefit of ts members
as a whole This statement sets out
how the directors have done this whilst
having regard to the matters set out In
section 172 of the Companies Act 2006

The board s responsible for ensuring
that the principal decisions it takes
promote Braemar's kong term success
for its members and in doing so, they
must have regard to the:

— likely conseguences of any decision
in the long term,

interests of the company's
employees.

need to foster the company’s
business relationships with suppliers,
custorners and others;

impact of the company’s operations
on the community and the
environment;

desirability of the company
maintaining a reputation for high
standiards of business conduct; and
need to act farly as between
rmembers of the company

The board has determined the
Company's key stakeholders are its
employees, clents and shareholders
The views of these stakeholders

are considered by the boarg when
principal decisions are taken, The

board understands the importance of
effectively engaging with the Company’s
key stakeholders, to better understand
ther views and interests, and 1o better
consider the potential impact of the
Directors’ decisions on them information
on how lhe Cunmpany engaged with
velluus slakelolders dunng the yoar can
be found in the EPSG Report on pages
34 t¢ 4b and the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 54 to 57 of this

Annual Report.

The directors’ duties under Section 172 of
the Companies Act 2006 are embedded
in alt the decisions that the board and

its Committees make, as are a range of
other factors. including alignment with
the board's strategy and values

Principal decisions of the board:

Decision

Acguisition of Southport Maritime Inc. +

+

Hiring of the tanker desk, in Madrid, -+
Spain .

Enhanced Securities offering with -
new Natural Gas and Ol dervatives -
desks

Recommended a final dividend of .
8 pence per share for approval by .
sharehoiders at the 2023 AGM .

Change of Audit & Risk Committee -
name .

Board decision making in action

— In December 2022 the Group

announced the strategic acquisition
of leading US shipbroker Southport
Maritime Inc. The acguisition
enhanced the Group’s coverage in
the Americas, which has been an
important strategic objective since the
beard launched s growth agenda

in Novernber 2021 in considering the
acquisition, the board considered

the lkely impact on all stakeholder
groups. The Southport team
complements Braemar's existing
Tanker desks in London, Singapore,
Madrid, Houston, and Geneva as well
as significantly enhancing Bracrmar's
presence in the Americas The
acquisition also enhanced the Group’s
existing coverage in Houston and
Sao Paulo, these combined locations
provide the ideal platform for the
Group to penetrate the North and
South Amencan markets and add
further scale to the Group's activities
Additionally, the board considered
that the transaction was expected to
enhance earnings for the year ending
February 2024 More detall on this
acqusition can be found on pages

16 to 17 of this Annual Report.
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A summary 1s provided below of the principal decisions taken by the board dunng
the year and how key stakeholders and other matters set out In section 172 were
considered by the board In making these decisions:

Section 172 and stakeholders

consequences of decisions In the long term
interests of all stakeholder groups

consequences of decisions in the long term
interests of all stakeholder groups

consequences of decisions in the long term
interests of all stakeholder groups

conseguences of decisions in the long term
interests of stakeholders: shareholders

the need to act farly as between members
of the Company

consequences of decisions in the long term
reputation for high standards of business
conduct

- In December 2022, Braemar recruited
a new tanker broking team, based
in Madrid The highly expenenced
team of ten brokers is renowned
within the international tanker
market having previously worked for
Medco Shipbrokers SL. The teamn
specialses in crude, dirty products,
clean products, and period chartering.
This new desk offering and client
base complemented Braemar’s
existing tanker desks in London and
Geneva, strengthened Braemar's
global coverage and brought new
commercial relationships to the
Group Expanding into new markets
is a care tenat of the Group's strateqgy
and the recrutment of this tearm was
another step Ih the execulion ul Lhe
Group's growth plan
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In Nevember 2022, Braemar faunched
a ten-strong Natural gas desk, the
step was taken inresponse to a

clear need in the Energy market for
assistance nawvigating volatile rate
changes and price fluctuations

The Natural Gas desk was another
addition to Braemar's Securities
cffering and providing access

to more energy products is a
component of Braemar's growth
strategy Additionally, there were clear
synergies with our shipping desks

and there was client demand for
greater market access A talented
team with a strong track record would
provide a strong platform to add more
products More detall on this launch
can be found on pages 10 to 11

PP IR P S e

In March 2023, the board agreed
to recommend a well-covered final
dividend of 8 pence per share for
approval at the forthcoming AGM. The
board is mindful of the iImportance

of dividends to sharehoiders and this
decision 1s in line with the Company's
stated progressive dividend policy.
Together with the intenm dividend

of 4 pence per share, this equates

to total dividends per share for the
year of 12 pence, a 33% increase over
the prior year dividend of 8@ pence

per share.

SIS B
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- During the year, the board approved

the proposal to change the name

of the Audit Committee to the Audit
& Risk Committee This step was
taken to recognise the Committee’s
responsibilties with respect to risk
rmanagement and to demonstrate the
Company’s continued commitment
to strengthening risk oversight and
internal control The decision also
supports our strategy which is aimed
at long-term sustainable growth and
development of the business. Further
detall on the Group's corperate
governance arrangements, the wark
of the Audit & Risk Committee and
the Principal nsks can be found on
pages 60 to 64 and 47 to 63
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Environmental, People, Social and
Governance (“EPSG”) Report

ey A
JR.

At Braemar, we recognise the
importance of sustainability to cur
success as a business and we are
committed to being a sustanable
business, delivering growth whilst
creating a positive impact on society.
The environmental, social, and
governance elements of tradiional ‘ESG’
criteria help us to measure, manage, and
demonstrate cur contributions to fairer,
more prospercus, and maore sustanable
way of doing business However, we
believe that because of the importance
of people to our business, we need to
explicitly recognise their contribution in

EPSG Framework

H

4

envireonment

Reduc e operational emissions.,
Achieve net zero emissions

by 2060

Giving our people’s time,
passion and experience
T to benefit society and the

Targets
6.3,6.6

S,

e G
e
U—
U

the tile of our Framewaork and te ensure
we maintain equal focus on our most
important asset

We are a pecple-focused Company,
and without our pecple we would not
have a sustainable business. Therefore,
we place cur pecple front and centre
within our EPSG strategy to demoenstrate
the importance we place on them, and
tec ensure ther continued growth and
success This year we have invested in
our people, developing oth ther skills
and capacity to enable our business to
thnve We report further on this in the
People section below.

Facilitating climate-smart shipping

+ A 4

Giving a percentage of
our profit to support cur
ESG work

a DECENT WO AND
ECOMONIC GROWTH

o

Targets
8.4,8.6

Think glcbally to activate
One Braemar

Activate gloebal programmes

Incorporating climate-
smart expertise into our
client setvices

<&

Think alobally actlecally
to drive benefit for our
communities

PR

As a business within an industry that's
responsitle for between 2-3% of the
world's GHG emissions we recognise
that we can play a part in helping the
ndustry with the green transition. We
reman true to our EPSG purpose to
facilitate climate-smart shipping and
discuss in detal how we are daing that
throughout our Repaort

Ensuring effective governance and
managing our business ethically are
guiding principles for Braegmar Through
our EPSG strategy we are committed to
increasing the maturity and transparency
of our reporting and strengthening board
oversight in this area.

o We believe it takes expertise and experience to secure sustainable returns and mitigate
g i risk in a volatile shipping world

.

Collaborating with the
maritime industry to
achieve shared ESG goals

Target Targets
13.3 14.1,14.2
Cellvet data wndreport

on ESG metrics aligned
to strategy

Piote ot 10,000km? of marine
biodiversity areas by 2030

Facibtate responsible and

sustainable shipping within
the industry

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

for bringing diverse talent
into the workplace
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Future Plans

H R P AP Governance Financial Statements

In addtion to the climate-smart iNtiatives already instigated, we are committed to implementing these plans by 2025:

@)

Strengthen our existing charity

partnerships to focus on the
key social issues affecting
the countries In which

we operate.

Collaberate with expert
organisations te protect
marine biodiversity.

A7
/ T\ -

Develop a strategy for
transiticning toc net-zero
carbon emissions.

e

Collaborate with industry
intiatives to expedite our
environmental objectives

ldentify new beneficiaries
with a focus on the
neecs of maritime and
seafaring communities

A4 D

Develop a clear set of reportable
metrics to evaluate cur activities
and show the progress of our
ESG commitments for all our
stakeholders, including employees,
chents, communities and investors

Strengthen our Executive
and board supervision for
all aspects of governance
relating to our ESG work

We have built the foundations we need to deliver cur EPSG strategy Gong forward, we will start to deliver on activities to reach the
commitment we have made to reach our goals

Target 6.3

Target 6.6

OECENT WORK AND
ECONDNIC GROWTH

Target 8.4
Target 8.6

Target 13.3

Target 141
Target 14.2

Clean water and sanitation
Ensure availability and sustainable management of water and sanitation for all

Improve water quality by reducing pollution .. minimising release of hazardous chemicals
and materials .. and substantially increasing recycling and safe reuse globally

Protect and restore water-related ecosystems, Including mountains, forests, wetlands,
rivers, aguifers and lakes

Decent work and economic growth
Promote sustained, inclusive and sustainable economic growth, full and productive
employment and decent work for all

Endeavour to decouple ecocnomic growth from environmental degradation
Reduce the proportion of youth not in employment, education or training

Climate action
Take urgent action to combat climate change and its impacts

Improve education, awareness-raising and human and institutional capacity on climate
change mitigation, adaptation, impact reduction and early warning

Life below water
Conserve and sustainably use the oceans, seas and marine resources for
sustainable development

Prevent and significantly reduce marine poliution of all kinds

Sustanably manage and protect marine and ceastal ecosystems to avoid signiicant
adverse iImpacts, including by strengthening their resilience, and take action for ther
restoration in order to achieve healthy and productive oceans

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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EPSG Report continued

Our enwronmental

Nevertheless, the international shipping
industry accounts for approximately 2-3%
of worldwide greenhouse gas emissions
and faces signfficant challenges in the
transition tG a green econcmy. However,
efforts to reduce shipping’s greenhouse
Yo 2rmussions have picked up pace in the
last twelve months

The International Mantime Organisation
(“IMO™} introduced regulations targeting
emissicns of existing ships In January
2023, the Carbon Intensity Indicator
("CII" and the Energy Efficiency Existing
Ship Index ("EEXI") The EEX| s a one-
time reguirermment for existing vessels to
demonstrate that they are as technically
efficient as therr new-buld counterparts
The ClII, on the other hand, looks at
operational efhciency, with each vessel
recenving an A-E efficiency rating based
on therr performance in the previous
yeal

The European Union is also bringing
in its own rules targeting intemational
shipping The past year has seen
preliminary deals reached on the EU
Emissions Trading Scheme ("EU ETS™)
and FuelEU Maritime

Alongside 1hese regulations, companies

are facing growing financial pressurc
to decarbonise This 1s now translating
nto early adoption of alternative

fuels, production is Increasing, and
infrastructure is being put In place in
large EU ports. Methanol has emerged
as a fuel option, and the first armmaonia
engines are expected by the end of
2024 or early 2025,

Developing an affordable and
sustainable global supply of these
fuels remains a momentous challenge.
however. Efficiency improvements will
therefore be key to meeting mmediate
ermissions geals A range of emissions
saving devices are being used, with
some even turning back to wind.

Braemar Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Optimising operations by taking
advantage of the latest gata and
Al technologies can also offer
considerable savings

While there 1s a long road ahead, shipping
15 now taking solid steps towards a

green energy transiion, and we are well
positiored to helps our chents to achieve
several of ther sustainability ambitions

Our direct impact

As a broker we seek to faciltate chmate-
smart shipping, aiming te reduce nisk
and seek opportunities to aid our clients
N therr green transitions

We take care to reduce our carbon
footpnnt. which 1s a result of energy use
from our cffices and business travel

In Aberdeen, for example, we have
relocated to more energy efficent offices
which have car chargers for electric
vehicles. and we continue to work
toward reducing the amount of paper
we use in our offices
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As with the prior year, we have continued
ta offset our reported footprint through
the purchase of carbon credits through
Braemar Offset We have invested

in offset schemes that include wind
power, solar photovoltaic projects,
conservation intiatives, and bicmass/
landfill gas projects

Streamlined Energy and Carbon
Reporting ‘SECR’

We measure and monitor our energy
and calculate our greenhcuse gas
emissions based on the use of gas

and electricity in our offices, car use for
business purposes. and corporate travel,
as shown In the table below. The data
in this table represents the Group's GHG
emissions and excludes associate- and
joint ventures

Scope 1 covers direct emissions from
owned or controlled sources.

Scope 2 covers indirect emissions from
the generation of purchased electricity,
steamn, heating and cooling consumed
by the Group.

Scope 3 ncludes the following indirect
emissions from the Group’s value chain
most material to our business: business
travel, empltoyee commuting and
working from home, and transmissicon
and distribution of electricity. Scope

2 omissions do not currently include
purchased goods and services, waste
disposal, investrments, or leased assets

Qur carbon footprint has been
calculated using the GHG Protocol
Corporate Standard guidelnes,

using the UK emission conversion
factors produced for 2022 by the

UK Department of Business, Energy
and Industnal Strategy (‘BEIS”) and
Department for the Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs (‘DEFRA"). The
model used to calculate the Group's
GHG emissions was developed by an
independent consultant however the
data used to populate this model has
not been independently verified

The Group's total emissions have
increased by 564% to 830.72tC0O.e

(2022 4G CO.c conlinuing operations
only) This is mainly due to increases

In corporate travel, specifically fights
which have returned to the pre-Covid
level Other areas of energy and carbon
ermissions have remained on a level with
the prior year except for a decrease in
emissions related 1o employees working
from home as they retum to working in
the offices We continue to improve our
management and reporting of emissions,
as cur systems develop and reporting
accuracy increases. this may highlight a
greater level of emissions— such as that
seen In the iINncrease N reperting Scope 1
gas emissions

Scope 1,2 and 3 emissions

3%

® scope i
Scope 2

Scope 3
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In hne with the SECR reguirements, we
have calculated our Intensity Ratio based
0N our emissions per employee, an
appropnate measure for a people-based
business Our carbon intensity for the
repotting year 15 2tCC, e per FTE (2022
13tC0O,e/fte), with the increase related to
corporate travel. This 1s a material aspect
of our carbon footprint and we aim to
reduce and mamntan this at lower levels
over the long term

The Group are committed to reaching
the UK’s net zero goal by 2050 and will
set out our transition plan in the next
reporting penod.

Scope 3 emission sources

® Transportation and distribution {(*“T&D"}
of electricity

® Employees working from home:

& Business travel in rental cars or
employee-owned vehicles

Ernissions from flights
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Braemar Plc — Group energy usage and associated GHG emissions
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Year ended 28 February 2023 Prior year
UK RoW Total UK Row Total

Energy consumption (kWh)
Gas 31,760 68,610 90,370 - 10,000 10,000
Electncity 377,581 210,762 588,343 313,063 263,338 576,401
Mileage 644 131,003 131,647 - 56,064 56,064
Total energy consumption 409,985 400,375 810,360 313,063 329,402 642,465
GHG Emissions (tCOze)
Scope 1
Emissions from combustion of gas 6.80 10.70 16.60 - 200 200
Emissicns from combustion of fuel
for the purposes of owned transport 0.16 8.76 8.e1 - Q00 .00
Scope 2
Ermissions from purchased electricity
{location-based) 73.02 83.77 166.79 66 00 126 00 18200
Scope 3
Emissions from transportation and
distrbution ("T&D"} of electricity 7.09 1.66 8.76 6 00 500 OO0
Emissions from employees working
from home 510 14.61 19.71 4000 4900 8000
Emissions from business travel in rental
cars or employee-cwned vehicles - 25.27 25.27 - 500 5.00
Emissions from flights 352.92 234.30 587.22 7000 9100 168100
Total gross emissions 444.09 3898.06 83315 18300 28600 468.00
FTE 138 248 384 174 188 382

3.22 1.57 216 110 160 130
Carbon intensity per FTE tCOeffte 1CO_e/fte tCOe/fte (COe/fte tCOe/fte  tCOe/fte
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Facilitating climate-smart shipping
The Group is ¢lear that its EPSG purpose
15 to facilitate clmate-smart shipping.
Thus is the primary way that we can
support our clents in navigating both the
nsks and opportunities associated with
chmate change

Over the years we have developed
several products and services to support
our clients” transition ta the green
economy These nclude our newbuild
and ship recycling advisory services,
which help shipowners to maximise

the green potential of therr vessels

at the beginning and the end of their
working lives.

Cur Research desk provides analysis for
our cllents on the transiticn to the green
economy In the reporting vear this has
mcluded topics such as green fuels,
methanol and slow steaming

Braemar’s representatives speak
regularly at industry events on issues
related to the green transitions. For
example, Braemar's fan Metzger was the
lead presenter at TradeWinds's Green
Seas Fuels Forum in March 2023

Braemar Offset, our platform to

enable carbon offsetting of our clents’
corporate and operational emissions,

1S now 1IN Its second year Braemar
Offset directiy connects our clients with
impactful and verified climate projects
which helps them play a proactive role to
improve their sustainability and posrtively
accelerate climate action The Group

15 developing metrics to report on the
success of Bragmar Offset from FY23.

Governance

The Eurcpean Union is bringing in rules
which target the GHG emissions of
international shipping The past year
has seen preliminary deals reached on
the EU Emissions Trading Scheme
(“EU ETS") and FuelEU Maritime.

The EU ETS will introduce what is
effectively the world's first carbon tax
for international shipping, requiring
companies to purchase and annually
surrender allowances for emissions on
EU voyages from 2024

FuelEU Martime will bring further
challenges from 2025, setting imits
on the carbon intensity of marine
fuels used on EU voyages and
chargng a monetary penalty for
underperformance

Braemar Plc 2Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Targets ramp up every five years,
starting at -2% in 2025 (compared

to 2020) and working up to -80% by
2050, phasing out most fossil fuel use
on EU routes.

These rules and increased legislation
bring challenges Hut also opporturities
to develop green products to develop
the carbon transition market
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Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures Report

The Group recognises thal e international shipping industry in the table below, we have stated where we are fully, partially

accounts for approximately 2—-3% of world-wide greenhouse or nat yet compliant aganst each disclosure

gas emissions which presents significant nsks and opportunities

for our business The following summary sets out how the Group incorporates
climate-related risks and opportunities into the four pillars set

We seek to incorporate the Task Force on Climate-related out by the TCFD: governance, strategy, risk management, and

Financial Disclosures (“TCFD) recommendations into our strategic metrics and targets.
decision making going loiward, This 1s our second year of TCFD
reportng, where we have buit on the solid foundation of the first This summary includes references to other sectivng of this

year and started to analyse the impacts of chmate change on Annual Report where further disclosures are provided, and an
our business. While we are not yet fully compliant with the TCFD explanation 1s given where the Group's compliance with TCFD
recommendations we are bullding towards full complance with disclosures is partial or omitted

TCFD-recommended disclosures in future years

i

Describe the board’s oversight Full The board has overal responsibility and oversight of cimate-related risks and

of climate-related risks and opportunties. It is informed by the Audit & Risk Committee of risks and opportunities in
opportunities relation to climate change.
Principal risks and uncertainties The Audit & Risk Commitiee reviews the impact of cliimate-change risks and
D;J on pages 47 to 53 opportunities and incorporates these risks and oppertunites nte the Group's Risk
Audit & Risk Committee Report on Managernent Framework.
pages 60 to 64

The Risk Comrrittee reports to the Audit & Risk Committee via the Group Chief Operating
Otficer and the Group Chief Financial Officer, the latter having executive responsibility for
this area. Further cetads on the rofes and responsibiities of these two Commitees can be

found on page 48.
Describe management’s role in Fuil Bunng FY23, the Group Chief Financial Officer {with the support of the Risk Committee)
assessing and managing cimate- had overall responsibility for assessing and managing cimate-related risks and
related risks and opportunities uncertainties. With the support of external consultants and internal industry experts

the management team is kept updated on climate change risks and opportunties
throughout the year. Going forward, once the scenario analysis i complete, management
teams will discuss the likely climate risks and opportunities to decide those most material
to the business

Principal nsks and uncertainties
on pages 47 to 53

v . R

Describe the climate-related risks Partial The Risk Committee has considered the Group's clirmate-related nsks and opportunities

and opportunities the organisation and has identified the folkawing relevant timeframes
has identified over the short, Short term: 0-2 years
medium and long term - -
"9 Medium term. 3-10 years
~  Principal nsks and uncertainties Long term. Beyond 10 years
ﬂ on pages 47 to 53

Ervironment and Climate Change has been identified as a principal nsk, atthough it is not
expected to have an impact on financial performance in the short term

The Group has commissioned an external ESG agvisory firm to support the Cornpany
10 better weritify chmate-related nisks and opportunities on the organisation’s business,
strategy and hinancial planning.

Further detaled nsks and opportunitos will be presented on completion of the scenario
analysis work in time for reporting in the FY24 Annual Report

Describe the impact of climate- Non- The commissioned external ESG advisory firm will also help gquantify the irnpact of

related risks and opportunities compliant Climate-related risks and opportunities on the organisation’s business, strategy and
on the organisation’s businesses, financial planning.

trategy and financial plannin ]
strategy P 9 The Risk Committee has been tasked with ensunng that the impacts of cimate-related

nsks and opportunities are assessed in the Group's business, strategy and financial
planning We will continue to develop this area throughout the year and provide updates
in future reports

Describe the resilience of the Non- The Group has started to model climate-related scenanos and to assess the resilence
organisatior’s strategy, taking into compliant of the organisation's strategy to these scenanos [1is considered that there 1s Ittle or no
consideration differant climate- negative impact in the short term, and this is balanced with possible opportunities.

related scenarios, including a 2°C or

lower scenario The Group incorporates vanous financial scenarios in its strategic modelling, ncluding

freught rates, commodity prices, and foreign exchange rates In FY24, work will commence
to Incorporate climate change scenanocs INto the Group's financial modeling and expects
10 continue this work in future reporting years.

When this inbal work s complete the Groun wall be able to better quantfy the impacts and
assess the resilence of the Group's strategy. Updates will be provided in future reports

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Describe the organisation's pracesses
for identifying and assessing climate-
related risks

Partial

Describe the organisation’s processes Partial

for managing climate-related risks
Describe how processes for Full
identifying, assessing and managing
climate-related risks are integrated

into the organisation’s overall

risk management

L1

Principal nsks and uncertainties
on pages 47 to 63

Disclose the metrics used by the
organisation to assess climate-related
risks and opportunities in line with its
strategy and risk management process

Non-
compliant

Disclose Scope 1, Scope 2, and, it Partial
appropriate, Scope 3 greenhouse gas
(“GHG”) emissions, and the related

risks

Describe the targets used by the
organisation to manage climate-
related risks and opportunities and
performance against targets

Non-
compliant

As we journey through this process, we are hecommny mwore
aware of both the risks associated with climate change, in
terms of the physical and regulatory effects and, also, the

opportunities this presents for a business like ours.

On the one hand, we know that climate change regulation will
impact the seling and transportation of some of the goods
that we help our clients ship around the world, such as coal.
Qver time some nations will ban this fossil fuel from entering
ther country, and we expect a downturn of the amount that will

need to be transported over the long term

Sai Governance Financial Statements

Durng FY23 the Audt & Risk Committee, with support from the Risk Committee,

had responsibility for identifying, assessing and managing climate-related risks and
opportunities. The Audit & Risk Committee has responsibility for rmonitoring this as an
oONgOIng risk

The Audit & Risk Committee, with support from the Risk Committee, is responsible for
identifying, monitoring and managing chmate-related risks.

The processes described above are fully integrated inte the Group’s overall risk
management processes.

Throughout FY24 we are working to develop a set of metrics to dernonstrate how we
will assess our climate-related risks. An update on this work will be published in future
Annual Reports. These metrics wil be aligned to the Group's specific cimate-related
nsks as well as the Environment pillar of the Group's EPSG Framework.

The Group has disclosed all mandatory Scope 1 and Scope 2 GHG emissions.

The Group has also disclosed certain voluntary Scope 3 emissicns, including the GHG
emissions due to employees working from home

Tre Group has committed to reach net zero by 2050 in Ine with the UK's objective for
doing so

The Group continues to offset its carbon footprint on an annual basis through our
Braermar Offset platform in partnership with CHOOOSE.

Throughout FY24, we will develop the targets that will be used to manage clirmate-
related risks and opportunities and performance against targets. An update on this work
will be published in future Annual Reports.

In its EPSG framework, the Group has committed to akgning its chmate-related targets to
certain references in the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”").
The references that are relevant to climate-related risks and opportunities are

SDG 8.4 improve Resource Efficiency in Consumption and Production.
The Group is developing targets to improve the energy-efficiency of its offices

SDG 13.3 Improve education, awareness—ralsing and human and institutional
capacity on climate change mitigation, adaptation, impact reduction and early
warning.

The Group is developing targets to raise awareness of chmate change and mitigations in
our Industry amongst both our team and our clients.

The recent change to regulation with shipping now included
in the Eurmpean market Emissions Trading Scherne ("EU ETST)
precents hoth a short-term nsk and offers opportunites to
the market.

On balance, we feel well prepared for both the possible nsks
and opportunities for the business Over the next reporting
year, we are developing climate scenarnos and analysis based
on the short, medium and long term and according to the
Paris aligned commitmenits of both 15 and 2 degree scenarios
Further detall on our cimate-related financial risk will be
disclosed as a result of this ongoing work.

On the other hand. we are presented with opportunities to

broker ships that directly support the transition to green energy
as well as for atternative goods needed for the green transition,
the increase N the renewables markels and auxilkary services
required to facilitate that, and chartenng voyages via zero
shipping routes, among others We currently operate an offset
provision service via Braemar offset.

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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EPSG Report continued

[

f* OO

We continue to create
one global Braemar
experience across all
our departments and
offices by introducing
new, more agile,
systems, impeccable
operations, and a
balanced corporate
structure. This will
support growth

and make us

more competitive

A

SRS I IS TFRTTTRTEREN

AR ST S

S T A R in retaining and

e Ty I \ rewarding our current
é e I e, talent, as well as
s [T attracting talent for
- o S the future.

: T e ) Becki Mackay

! . : , Group Head of HR
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Diverse talent development

We retam cur strategic focus on
recrutment and retention as well as
mitigating the nsk of losing highly
specialised people within a relatively
small ndustry. Shipbroking can be a job
for life, and we are proud that so many of
our people choouse Lw stay with Bracme
for sigrificant parts of their career

Our strategy 15 1o mantan a compelling
value proposition for our employees, and
tc be the employer of choice for top
talent and the talent of the future This
approach is already enabling us to hire
leading brokers from the industry Cur
EPSG strategy, focused on faciltating
climate-smart shipping, is creating
opportunites to hire and train new talent
We know we need to attract the talent
of the future, and we have created

a Tranee Broker Scheme 1o provide
opportunities for the next generation

of shipbrokers and attract a greater
diversity of people; many of whom might
not have considered shigbroking as

a career

Kay Woods

LPG & Petrochemicals
desk for 35 years'

Kay initially joined a team of 10
on the LPG & Petrochemicals
desk, one of two women, and
she has seen many changes
over the years. ‘The sector

is far more regulated and
professional, and there are
many more women coming into
the industry, both in operations
and as brokers’

While the LPG & Petrochemicals
Desk is a smaller part of

the shipping world it can be
stressful. If something goes
wrong with a ship, such

as it running late, it can be
worth millions of dollars, sc
relationships and trust are
critical, and Kay has built these
over many years.

1 Kay nitially joined Burbank, which was
later acquired by Bragmar

The Trainee Broker Srheme s opento
anyone with the dnve and curiosity to
start a career in shipbroking we are not
an industry which only hires graduates
or pecple with previous experience. We
want to give jobs, traning, and support
to people of any age or background with
the chararter, tenacity, and capability

to benefit from the job satisfaction,
personal growth, and long-term rewards
that come from being a shipbroker

Employee engagement

Our pecple have largely returmned to
working In our offices, and we continue
to focus on creating a safe, healthy
working ervironment Our offices are
increasingly environmentally fnendly, with
many of our teams engaging N recycling
waste and energy reduction activities.
We continue to support employees

with therr mental health and overall
well-beng The ongoing exercise to
benchmark employee remuneration and
review employee incentive packages

will be more easlly achieved with the
increased visibilty of global pay and
benefits afforded by our new HR system

“It’s vital to be personable, to make
connections and find commeonalities
with all kinds of people, to be
solutions-focused, and to gain

the trust of the charterers so you
can ring them in the middie of the
night to negotiate a compromise,
solve an issue, or deliver bad news.
It's the relationships which make
things happen smoothly and keeps
bringing clients back to Braemar —
and leads to the mega-deals”

She uses her experience to support
trainees as they learn about the
worlcl markets and how theyTe
connected which, she says, often
changes their view of the world.
Covid was an eye-opener for many
with the realisation of just how many
products arrive by sea and the
impact of delays to shipping.

If Kay could have known 35
years ago what she knows now,
she would have told herself she
was going down the right path:

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Governance

Financial Statements

Gender diversity

As at 21 Decernber 2022 waornen
accounted for 23% of our global
waorkforce (2022 23%), with 2 female
and 4 male directors on the board.

We remain committed to addressing
the gender mbalance across our
organisation, an integral part of our
EPSG strategy, and we look forward

to reporting our progress In this area
We are seeing more women joining
the industry, and women are among
Braemar’s longest-retained emplayees.
Our Trainee Broker Scheme is one of
the first actions we have taken to attract
more diverse talent to the industry

“Shipping is dynamic, youre a
critical part of the world market,
working with different people in
many places. You're never bored,
there’s always something to do or

m

solve, or new projects toc work on’,

Kay Woods
LPG & Petrochemicals desk
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EPSG 1s overseen at the board level by
Elzabelh Gooch, senior independent
non-executive director. Managing the
business in an ethical manner 1s an
essential part of the elhus uf Bragmar
driven by boty vun CEO, Jarnes Gundy,
and our Charman, Nigel Payne, both
refer to our EPSG commitments in ther
respective reports on pages 5 to 7 and
14 to 156 of this Annual Report

We set high standards for cur team and
give them clear frarmeworks and policies
within which to operate, as set out In cur
Employee Handbook. This is supported
by an externally provided telephone

ine to repnrt any iNciclents under cur
whistleblowing policy, and by the Group's
nternal training programme which
covers key polcies.

Braemar Plec Arnual Report and Accounts 2023
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Our Anti-Money Laundering ("AML")
and Know Your Custormer ("KYC”)
pelicies and procedures form a key
component of Braemar’s governance
framework Our Compliance team
provides a Group-wide training
program to help ensure our employees
are aware and comply with all relevant
legal and regulatory obligations
including our AML and KYC policies
and procedures.

We are committed tc protecting
human nghits and ensuring there is
no slavery or human trafficking in our
business or supply chan There 1s a
clear staternent of our intent on ow
website www braemar.com.
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Non-Financial Information Statement

Environmental matters

Our employees

Social matters

Human rights

Anti-bribery and corruption

Our business model

Principal risks — Risk
management

Non-financial key performance
indicators

o A

- Healfth, safety and environmental

Employee handbook
Whistleblowing
Health and safety

Anti-slavery
GDPR

Ant-Bribery and Corruption

Ant-Tax Evasion

Anti-Fraud

Anti-Money Laundering/Know Your Customer
Ertertainment, Meals and Gifts

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Doy vy o

the EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45

Refer to
Refer to the EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45

Refer to the EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45
Refer to the EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45

Refer to the EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45

For more information, refer to pages 8 to ©

For more information, refer to pages 47 10 53

Refer to page 21 for the non-financial key
performance indicators
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk management

Effective risk management forms an
integral part of how we operate. Itis
essential for delivering our strategic
objectives as well as protecting our
elatiorships and reputation

. .
[ O P B AT

Risk awareness is a key element of
Braemar's organisational culture at all
levels and is key in managing risks 1o our
business, helping to ensure the process
of nsk identification, assessment and
response is embedded within dally
operational and functional activities
across the Group

The beard is responsible for managing
the Group's risk, overseeing the internal
contrael framework, and determining

the nature and extent of the principal
risks the Company 1s willing to take to
achieve its long- term cbjectives. The
Group's nsk managerment and internal
cantrol frarmeworks are continually
monitored and reviewed by the board
and the Audit and Risk Committee,

with support from the Risk Committee.
The board 1s commutted to maintaining
the highest standards of conduct in all
aspects of its business. Group policies
and procedures have been designed to
ensure that the feve! of risk to which the
Group is exposed is consistent with the
Group's nsk appetite and aligned with
the Group's long-term strategy

Reporting to the Chair of the Audit and
Risk Cormmittee and administratively
to the Group Chief Financial Officer,
the Head cf internal Audit and Risk
lcads the Internal Audit and Risk
Managerment function

R N O v

The Group's Risk Management approach
or framework Incorporates both
bottom-up and top-down identification,
evaluation, and management of risks
Wilhin our framework:

- Senjor management have initiai
responsibility for identfying,
moenitoring, and updating business
risks, while

- Group IT, HR, Legal, Compliance
and Finance management also
assess therr respective functions for
operational and functional risks

The Group’'s Risk Management
framework is managed via an online
system which is accessible to the senior
management team and operational and
functional management teams globally.
The system’s functionalty has allowed
for enhanced monitoring and reporting
autornation. The system allows for:

— Group-wide real-time updating,

- Distribution and completion of
penodic Internal control self-
assessment surveys,

— Ongoing monitoring of risks and
mitigation activities at Group,
Operational, and Functional levels; and

— Risk Management reporting at
Group, Regional, and Company
location levels.

The Group's risk management framework
considers both the lkelhood and the
impact of identified nsks materialising
Risks are mitigated, where possible, by
the implementation of contrel activities,
which are evaluated as part of the risk-
based internal audit plan 1o determine
therr effectiveness in mitigating or
reducing nsk to acceptable levels

Al identifiod riskn are aggregated and
reviewed to assess ther impact on the
Group's strategic objectives and the
resources reguired 1o manage them
effectively. Principal risks are aggregated
together with associated issues or areas
of uncertainty The extent of controls and
ritigation as well as the potental for a
raterial effect on the market value of
the Group are then assessed Inherent
risks can be significant, but our control
processes and management actions
reduce the risk level.
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The nsk management process evaluates
the timescale over which new or
emerging risks may occur. The risk
management process also considers
the potential iImpact and likelihood of
risks, as well as the timescale in which
risks may occur. The outcome of this
process is then reviewed with further
consideration and assessment provided
by the Risk Committee, the Audit and
Risk Committee, and the beard

Cversight and evaluation of the
effectiveness of Braemar’s risk
management framework is led by

the Group Chief Financial Officer,
supported by the Risk Committee whose
membership includes the Group Chief
Operating Officer, Company Secretary,
Head of Internal Audit and Risk, Head of
Compliance, and representatives of other
functions and lecations of the business
The Risk Commitiee monitors risks
regularly, taking into consideration the
appetite, tolerance, and potential impact
for specific risks on the Group.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Principal risks

The principal risks which may impact the
Group's ability to execute its strategic
objectives have changed since 2022
Three nsks previously disclosed as
principal nukes have been remaved with
twe emerging risks added to the 2023
disclosure. The risks that follow, whilst
not exhaustive, are those principal

nsks which wa believe could have the
greatest iImpact on our business and
have been discussed at meetings

of the board, the Risk Committee

and the Audit and Risk Committee

The board reviews these nsks in the
knowledge that currently unknown,
non-existent or immaternat nsks could
turn out to be significant In the future
and confirms that a robust assessment
has been performed The Audit and
Risk Committee review and approve
the principal risks and any related
rnitigation plans

<

Fr,-

Exacerbated by the ongong conflict

in Ukraing, the increased significance
and prominence of sanctions and trade
restrictions have been assessed as
necessary to disclose separately as a
principal risk N its own right

As outlined in the 2022 Annual Accounts.
Braemar’'s primary medium-term
ambition 1s, through strategic hires and
acquisitions, to increase the size of the
business. This mrans that integrating
and aligning new acguisitons is an area
of iIncreased focus of the operaticnal and
financial functions of the Group

Siiee -

Three principal risks disclosed in

2022 have been omitted from the
current year's disclosure. Whilst the
related nsk has not been mitigated

in its entirety. they no longer reflect
the most significant nsk tc which the
board considers the Group 1s exposed
to. These nisks are namely ‘Change
Management), ‘Financial capacity’ and
‘Major business disruption.

Risk mitigation

The Group takes vanous measures

to mitigate risk Key steps in our risk
rmanagement process throughout the
year included

— Ongoing pericdic review and updating
of policies and procedures, including
AML and KYC, to enhance/strengthen

Group risk governance

Top-down

Board of Directors

the Group's governance framework,
with ongoing monrtoring of employee
complance by the Head of Internal
Audit & Risk and Head of Complance
A system of Internalf checks and
authorisations, complemented by
independent assurance activities.
Usage of common finance, HR and
operations systems across the Group
supported by our IT team.
Succession planning and strategic
recruitment supported by the Group
HR team.

Establishrent of board-approved
Group budgets with ongoing
perfoarmance moniaring against
budgets/reforecasts and independent
investigation of signihcant variances
Regular reporting of Treasury
management activity to the board

by the Group Chief Financial Officer.
{Note' the Group does not enter
speculative treasury transactions.)
Ongoing monitoring of contractual
nisk by the Group legal team.
Operation of the Group’s
whistleblowing procedure
Maintenance of appropnate

insurance cover

— Reviews and approves risk management and internal control systems.

— Determines the nature and extent of principal risks

— Monitors exposures to ensure their nature and extent are aligned with Braemar's goals
and strategic objectives.

— Sets the tone for developing and embedding a risk-aware mindset into Braemar's
organisational cuture.

Cversight, identification,
assessment, and mitigation
of risk at Group level.

;
i
|
i

Bottom-up i
Identification, assessment r
and mitigation of risk across |
Braemar’s operational and i
functional areas. i

Operational and functional business areas

- Performs risk identification and assessrnent across operational and functional areas.

- Embeds risk mitigation and intermnal controls monitering acrass functional areas and regions.
~ Ermbeds risk awareness culture in day-to-day processes and operations.

Risk governance includes principal, operational and emerging risks.

Braernar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Group Risk Governance

Principal Risks
The directors have cammed out an assessment of the principal and emerging nsks facing the Company The most significant risks
to which the board considers the Group is expoesed, based on the evaluation process described n the Group's Risk Management
Framewul k are sel uul below

Sanctions and trade restrictions

Braemar operates in a
global landscape of trade
and financial sanctions
with a variety of associated
compliance requirements.

This has been assessed as a
new Principal Risk for the 2023
financial year.

Integration risk

As outlined in the 2022 Financial
Year, Braemar’s primary medium-
term ambition is, through strategic
hires and acquisitions, to increase
the size of the business.

Integrating and aligning any
new acquisition with the Group
poses various challenges

from an operational and
financial perspective.

This has been assessedas a
new Principal Risk for 2023
financial year.

Conducting business with sanctioned
entities, through sanctioned regions

and faciltating transport of sanctioned

goods will lead te non-compliance
with sanctioned regimes resulting
in financial penatties/fines and
reputational damage

Note.

Increased scrutiny from regulatory
bodies and nsing geopolitcal and
MACroecoNOMIC Issues, Inciuding the
continued Russia/Ukraine conflict, has
increased the potential mpact of risks

associated with breaches of sanctions

and trade restnction requirements

Inefficiencies and/or reduced
expected synergies realised after
Iintegrating new acquisitions inte the
Group and aligning them with the
respective Group strategies

- Enhanced KYC procedures performed and
specialsed iegal team engage In constant
monitoring of updates to applicable sanction
regmes and regulations

- Technology solutons used ta optimise the
efficiency of sanction screening performed

- Externa assurance providers performing nternal
audit reviews over the sanctons process and
providing recommendations which managernent
ntend to implement in the current financial year

—  Performance of new business is monitcred through

regular dialogue with relevant business leaders

An Integration strategy 1s montored throughout the

various stages of an acguistion
- Complance and legal mechanisms in place to

ensure the purchase meets any relevant regulatory

reguirements and the target company aligns
appropriately with the relevant Group values

- Pnoritisation of identfied growth opportunities
to ensure resources are appropriately aliocated
to opportunties with the best potential retumn
on Investment

Loss of key personnel and weak organisational culture

Braemar is a people-based
business and people are vital to
its success.

Inadaquate policies and reward
structures could incentivise
negative behaviours, create
internal conflict, lead to
reputational damage, and
contribute to failure in attracting
and Jor retaining skilled personnel.

Failure to adapt to, or align with,
market expectations, including

the offering of flexible or hybrid
working arrangements, could result
in the inability to attract and retain
skilled personnel.

Lack of appropriate consideration
of environmental and wider social
issues could also contribute to
the inability to attract and retain
skilled personnel.

Ermployee relations clams/itigation/
rbhunals attnbuted to negative
hehaviours or actions, increases the
potontial for reputational clamage
because of negative publicrty n the
public domath

Loss of key staff could result in
reduced revenue If former staff
attempt to take contacts and
business with them The restrictive
covenants ncluded in employment
contracts help to mitigate this nsk

Strategic growth objectives may not
be achieved If Braemar fals to attract
and retan skilled personne
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Ongoing review of policies including Confiicts

of Interest. Code of Conduct, and the Emplovee
Handbook, to ensure behaviourai expectations and
employment practices for managers and employees
are clearly dehned

Organsaton structure changes included the creation
of asscoate drrector roles to identify key emnployees
and to better define progression opportunities

Ongoing development of a culture of engagement and
professional development, including implementation of

performance management sbjectives, clearly defined
pathways for career progression, and SUccession
planming at senicr management levels

Annual review of cornpensation with external

henchmarking helps to ensure remuneration packages

continue to he approprate and competitive

Ongoing consideration of roles potentially surtable for
hybind and flexible working arrangerments

Financial Statements

NEW

NEW
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Compliance with laws and regulations

Braemar generates revenues from
a global business that exposes
the Group to risks associated with
legal and regulatory requirements
in multiple jurisdictions.

Currency fluctuations

The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk because of a large
proportion of its revenue heing
generated in US dollars while the
cost base is in multiple currencies.

Cybercrime/data security

Cybercrime could result in joss

of business assets or disruption

to the Group’s IT systems and its
business. Lack of appropriate data
security could result in loss of data.

Disruptive technology

Shipbroking is still largely a
business that is transacted via
personal relationships dependent
on quality service. Hence the

risk ot technological change,
“disintermediation and increased
customer demands for enhanced
technological offerings could
render aspects of our current
services obsolete, potentially
resulting in loss of customers.

Legal and regulatery breaches
cauld reault in fincs. sanctions being
Irmposed on our business, and the
loss of Braemar's ability 1o continue
operating

Failure to meet all reporting obligations
could lead to reputational damage
which could then lead to loss of
reverue and staff

A change n exchange rates could
result In a hnancial gan or loss

Loss of service and associated loss
of revenue Reputational damage
Potential for loss of cash due to fraud
or phishing

Relztionships could be devalued and
replaced by disruptive technology
platforrms. resutting in increased
competition consequent price
ieductions, and loss of revenue
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Group-wide traning program to help ensure employee
awareness of and compliance with, all relevant legal [
and regulatory oblgations

- Braemar corporate governance frarnework,
— Braernar nsk management methodology,

- Complance with our poiicies, including our AML/
KYC pchcies’ (enhanced) customer due diigence
regurements, and

- Complance wih relevant laws & regulations,
including anti-bnbery and corruption regulations.

Enhanced KYC procedures and ongomng monitonng
of compliance with governance policies and legal/
regulatory requirements across the Group

Ongoing monitonng to ensure INsurance cover 15
mamtaned at adeguate levels.

The board sets the treasury polcy which detads

the level of exposure the board 1s comfortable with
and the Group hedges to the level stipulated in the
treasury policy Forward currency (US $) contracts are
entered INto to mitigate the nsk of adverse currency
rmovernents

Globally, eyber-attacks increased significantly during
and post the COVID pandemic To address the
persistent threat, and to enhance securly measures
already in place, Braemar has embarked on a global
Cyber Security programme  This prograrmime includes
the mplcrmentation of the NIST Cyber Securty
Framework and ISO 27001 as Braemar's controls
catalogue Cur Securty Operations Centre 1s fully
operational with 24/7 monttoring and coverage

Imvestrnent in technology thiough partnenng with best-
in-class providers, such as Zurna Labs has effectively
differentiated Braemar

Ongoing modermisation of our Infrastructure 10 allow
for focus on nnovation and strategic direction
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Environment and climate change

Seaborne transportation is
estimated to create approximately
3% of the worlds carbon emissions
and there will be increased
pressure to reduce that in future
years. Failure to monitor and
address the risks associated with
that reduction process could resuit
in loss of revenue for Braemar and
its customers and counterparties.

The Group's P&L and liquicity could
be negatively impacted if custormers
are lost as a result of Brasmar not
keeping pace with our peers and
industry best-practce

Non-comphance with regulations or
disclosure recuirements could result in
fines or penaltes

Failure to appropriately monitar
and mitigate these nsks could
lead to Bragmar suffering senous
reputational damage

Note:

Managernent does not expect
clmate-related nsks 1o have a matenat
impact on the Group's short-term
firancial performance

Geopolitical and macroeconomic

Braemar's business is reliant on
global trade flows and as such

may be negatively impacted by
geopolitical and/or macroeconomic
issues, such as changes in crude
oil price, restrictions in global trade
due to pandemics such as COVID,
sanctions, and changes in supphy
and demand.

A downturn in the world econamy
could affect transaction volumes,
resutting N reduced revenue

Changes in shipping rates and/

or changes in the demand or
pricing of cormmoedites could affect
supply activity

Note:

The continued conflict between
Russia and Ukrame and refated global
sanctions has increased the potential
impact of risks associated with both
geopolucal and/or macreeconomic
issues and complance with relevart
laws and regulations

Braemar Plc Annual Repoit and Accourts 2023

Governance

Investrment In the offshore renewables market and
technology to alow the Gioup and s chents to offsct

carbon emissions

Ongoing development of the EPSG strategy
which allows the Group to monitor and report on

anvironmental and chmate-related risks

Diversihcation on a sector and geographic basis
reduces dependency on individual business areas

Cngoing monitoring to ensure the Group 15
approprately resourced across 1ts activities and

geographies

Ongoing manragement of costs based on current and
reasonably foreseeable market conditions

Enhanced KYC procedures and ongoing monitoring of
compliance with governance poiicies, sanctions, and
other legalfreguiatory requirernents across the Group
to help ensure laws and regulations are not breached

Braemar's diverse service offering, led by experts n
therr fields. means the Group s in the best pasition to
find new opportunities in volatle market conditions and
able to take advantage of market turnarounds

Financial Statements
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Internat audit

The Group's Internal audit function 18
monitored and reviewed by the Audit
Committee, to ensure that the Group's
rsk management and internal controls
processes are working effectively.

A detailled description of the Group's
internal audit function can be found on
page 64 of this Annual Report.

The Group generated strong underiying
operational cash flow in the year of
£221m, up from £205m in FY22, and has
continued to do so n the first months of
trading in the current year The Group's
Balance Sheet has strengthened
significantly due to the strong trading
and cash recepts and is In a stronger
position than at February 2022, with

net bank cash of £69m (2022 net
bank debt £23m} This is despite the
investments that were made towards
the end of the year in the new office in
Madrid and the acquisition of Scuthport
Maritime In the US that total £73m -
£13m upfront for the new Madnd desk,
and £6m for Southport Therefore, the
directors believe that the Group 1s well
positioned to manage its risks. Whilst
there are stilt uncertanties facing the
business INncluding those related to the
conflict in the Ukraine, they are nothing
ke those that were the case n the
previcus two years due to the Covid
disruptions

A more detalled analysis of the nisks
facing the business is outined In

Note 1({see pages 104 to 108). The
analysis concludes that there 1s no
materal uncertanty relating to going
concern, based on cash flow forecast
for a 15-month pericd from the signing of
these accounts to 28 February 2025 The
dircctors have a reasonable expectation
that the Company and Group have
adequate resources to continug to trade
for twelve months from the date of the
approval of these Financial Statements
and for this reason they continue to
adopt the going concern basis N
preparing the Financial Staterments.

In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the directors have
assessed the prospects of the Group
over a period of four years, which they
belgve 15 an appivpnals pened baced
on the Group's current financial position,
banking facilibes, budgets and forecasts,
strategy. principal nsks, and exposure to
potentially volatile market forces

In recent years and particularly dunng the
COVID pandemic, the Group’s bankers,
HSBC, have been highly supportive and
aliowed relaxations of covenants to give
the board the time to make altermative
plans to ensure sufficient lquidity 1s
available to continue the Group's plans.
Those relaxations of covenant levels
were never in fact required and the
Group traded comfortably within the
covenants relating to the faciity durng
the last financia! year and 1s confident
that it will continue to do so

During the year, the directors were
sticcessful in renewing faciities with
HSBC with very similar terms to the
previous one that expires in the first
nstance N Novermnber 2025 but that
may be extended with lender approval
by a further one or two years gving a
rmaximum duration untii Novermber 2027,
Mare detail can be found in Note 1to the
Financial Statements on pages 104 1o
106 of this Annual Report. The viabiity
assessment has been cammed out over a
four-year perod from the balance sheet
date t0 28 February 2027, by which time
new banking facilites will need to have
been concluded It therefore assumes
that similar banking facilities will be made
avallable to the Group for the whole of
this time The directors’ assessment
considers those current facllity terms
and includes a review of the financial
impact of significant adverse scenarios
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In generating those scenarios,
consideration was also given to the risks
to the business that have been identfied
in this Annual Report on pages 47 to &1
ag new or Increasing:

Sanctions and trade restrictions —
Braermar operates in a global landscape
of International and financial sanctions
with a vanety of associated complance
requirernents. This has been assessed
as a new Principal Risk for 2023
financial year. Although the degree of
due dilgence and legal reviews has
increased N the period due to the
enhanced sanctions regme resulting
from the Ukraine war, there Is little
evidence of reduced volumes or values
of commissions as a result

Integration risk — the business made
an acquisition N the US dunng the year
and set up a new office in Madrid, in
Spain toward the end of last year. K is
still early days but there is no evidence
currently of weaker revenues and profits
from those offices than forecast, indeed
both have traded well since coming into
Braemar ownership,

Compliance with laws and
regulation - the risks to the business
caused by the increasing degree of
sanctions resulting from the conflict

in the Ukraine have clearly increased
over the last six months but have yet
to marufest itself in reduced revenues
Exposure to sanctioned business isn't
rnatenat to the Group and experience
to date suggests that atthough freight
patterns are changing as a result,
overall volurmes are not declining. The
Group also has a number of reporting
oblgations that musl be met During
2023, the Group was late in gelivering
its Annual Report and accounts,
however, this has not led (0 a mialerial
loge of reveriie nr staff The Group is
rmplementing measures o prevent any
delays recccurring and acknowledges
that any future delays could have an
impact on the reputation of the Group.
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Environment and climate change —
environmental and climate change
factors will have a significant long-term
Impact on the Shipping industry and
pose a risk to the Group If they aren't
recognised and adapted Lo, I the short
to medium term, these changes will
also provide opportunities to provide
additional support to the industry and
for additional revenue generation The
longer-terrn risks are not expected to
have an impact on the business during
the pertod under reviewy.,

Geopolitical and macroeconomic -
similar te the compliance with laws

and regulation risk the conflict in the
Ukraine war raised the risk level due

tc geopoltical and macroeconomic

risk with a resuttant global downturn

or recession lkely to have a negative
impact en the business. Heightened
tensions In other parts of the world such
as Taiwan could also lead to further
disruption, however the experience to
date is that the shipping market volatility
has if anything increased revenue
generation rather than reduced it

Revenue was chosen as the main
variable in generating the adverse
scenaros as there are no costs of sale
within the business and the remaining
costs are largely fixed or made up of
bonus pocls which will vary n ine with
the levels of revenue. Set against those
falls In revenue 1s the ilkely effectiveness
of potential mitigations that are
reasonably beleved to be avallable to
the Group over this pericd

in considering these potential
mitigations, the board was rmindful

of its duties under Section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006 and considered
the polernlially cornpsting interests of
different stakeholder groups and the
potential long-term consequences of
the actions, Including the use of funds
for employee remuneration {(and the role
this plays In the retention of staff}, paying
dividends, making investrments and
repaying debt.

H e Governance

The assessment involves the production
of cash flow forecasts designed to
assess the ability of the Group to
operate both within the banking facility
covenants and liquidity headroom The
man downside sensinvities ysed were
annual revenue reductions of 756% and
16% frorm October 2023 to December
2024 and stabilised thereafter Under the
75% cases the board concluded that
with only very minor cost-saving or cash
management mitigations avallable to i,
the Group could continue to operate
under the current banking facilities over
the three- year period Under the 15%
case certain additicnal cost saving and
cash mitigation acticns were reguired to
allow the Group to continue 1o cperate
within the current banking facilities, all of
which were within the board's control

The assessment also Incorporated a
‘reverse stress test” which was designed
to identrfy scenarios under which the
Group’s banking facilities would be
inadequate to continue as a going
concern despite using all the mitigating
options avallable. The result of this test
shows that all avallable mitigations
would be exhausted, and facilities
breached if there was approximately

a 3b% decrease In forecast revenue
from Octeber 2023 through to
December 2024

The directors have concluded that whilst
future outcomes cannot be guaranteed
or predicted with certanty the revenue
and operating margin scenarios that
would lead to such a failure are highly
unlikely This 1s especially so In the kght
of current trading where revenues are
running in Iine with forecasts They also
noted that the facilty headroom in terms
of Iiquidity remained adequate even
Lnider the reverse stress test conditions
and that it was the leveraye covenant
which Would be bieadl ed if revenuo

fell by more than 35% and then only
during 2024.
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There is no evidence indicating that
revenues will fall to levels indicated in this
test and that the likelihcoed I1s therefore
remote and that there is therefore no
materal uncertainty in this regard, nor
any impact on the basis of preparation
of the Financial Statements. ihere is also
a reasonable expectation that the Group
will be able to continue In operation and
meet its habillites as they fall due over the
next three financial years.

This Strategic Report was approved on
behalf of the board on 15 November 2023

Grant Foley
Group Chief Financial Officer
15 November 2023
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Strategic Report .

Corporate Governance Report

Dear shareholder

On behalf of the board of directors,

| am delighted to present the Corporate
Governance Report which details the
Company's governance armrangerents,
the operation of the board and its
Committees and how the board
discharged its responsibilities during
the year

Braemar maintains a robust governance
framework, designed to support the
Company's long-term strategy and be

in akgnment with the Company’s values
and cufture The board remams highly
engaged in fulfiling ts role of leading

the Company and overseeing the
governance arrangements across the
Group and continues to be commitied to
maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. Throughout the financial year
ended 28 February 2023, the Company
fully compled with all the provisions of
the UK Corporate Governance Cade
{“Codie”), except for provision 11 and we
have provided a full cxplanation in the
bearg composition and changes section
below, the board 1s now fully compliant
with provision 1

Governance 1s a key pillar of our
Erwironment, Pecple, Social and
Governance “EPSG" framework and a
high standard of corperate governance
1s essential for the Group to succeed In
delivering its strategy and 1s integral to
enhancing its reputation and mantaining
the trust of its sharehaolders, clients,
employees and other stakehoiders More
nformation on our EPSG framework

can be found on pages 34 to 45 of this
Annual Report

This Corporate Governance report
comprises this introduction {pages 58 to
7). the Audil & Rigk Cormmittee Repaort
on pages 60 to 64, the Nomination
Committee Report on page 65, together
with the Diectors’ Remuneration Report
on pages 60 to 85, describes how the
bhoard and its Committees operate and
how the Company has appled the Code
durnng the year ended 28 February 2023

Board composition and changes
The beard consists of the non-executive
Chairman, the Group Chief Executive
Officer, the Group Chief Operating
Officer, the Group Chief Financial Officer
and three Independent non-executive
directcrs The Chairman leads the

board and 15 responsible for its overal
effectiveness in directing the Company,
taking Into account the INterests of

the Company's vanous stakeholders
The Group Chief Executive Cfficer

leads the executive management in

the development of strategy and the
management of all aspects of the
performance and operations of the
Company and its subsichares We

have a strong board who bring diverse
experence and personal skillsets,
please refer to the skills section in the
director bicgraphies for more detaill on
each director’s skilis and experience An
internal board performance review was
undertaken in 2022 which concluded that
the board continues to cperate effectively
with each drector contributing positivety
to the board's overall effectiveness

Lesley Watkins stepped down from the
board with effect from 31 March 2022
Stephen Kunzer stepped down from the
poard with effect from 31 January 2023
to take up a CEU position al Lila Globsal it
Lubar 1 he board was pleased o welcut e
Cat Valentne as a non-executive director
with effect from 16 May 2023 Catis a
communications professional with over
25 years’ expenence, advising gquoted
and privately-owned companies on
investor and corporate communications
She has extensive knowledge of the
srmall-cap growth companies’ market
and considerable M&A transactional
experience, having advised a broad range
of clents on both AlM and the Main
Market Cat's extensive experence has
added considerable value to the board
On Cat's appointment to the board. she
was alsc apponted to the Rernuneration
Committee and Audtt & Risk Committee.
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+ Financial Statements

Provision 11 of the Code states that at
least half of the board, excluding the char,
shov el be independent non-executive
directors As the board had [ittle prior
notice of Stephen's departure to take up
a CEO posticn at Lia Global in Dubay,
for a short time between Stephen's
departure and Cat's appaintment,

while the recrutment process was
underway, the board was not compliant
with provision 11 though this was swiftly
rectified following Cat’s appontmenit
Further detail on the appointment
process can be found n the Nomination
Committee Report

Further to the announcement on 20
June 2023, Grant Foley joined the board
as Group Chief Financial Officer with
effect from 1 August 2023, more detall
on his appontment can be found In my
Statement on pages bto 7

The board has decided to voluntarily
disciose aganst the targets set out In the
new Listing Rule requirerments. the targets
dictate that:

- at least 40% of the beard should
be women;

— at least one of the senior board
positions (Charr, Chief Executive
Officer, Chuef Financial Officer or senior
independent drector) should be
a woman, and

- at least one memiber of the board
should be from an ethnic minority
background, excluding white ethnic
groups (as categonsed by the Office
for National Statistics)

The beard currently meets the first two
targets, with 42% of the directors being
wornen and Flizabeth Gooch as the
senior Independent director
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Corporate Governance Report continued

The non-executive directors, none of
whom has ever fulfilled an executive

role within the Company, are apponted
for an initial three-year term subject to
annual re-election at the Annual General
Meeting in accardance with the Code
Prior to making director appointments.
the board (supported by the Nomination
Committee) considers other significant
director appointments to assess whether
the candidate will have sufficient time to
undertake their role effectively The board
has considered the other commitments
of the non-executive drrectors and

the board continues to believe that all
non-executive directors have sufficient
time to continue undertaking their roles
effectively. The non-executive drectors
are responsible for constructively
challenging and scrutinising the strategies
and performance of the executive
directors using their independence and
perspectives gamned from their diverse
expenences, as well as having broader
oversight of the Group through the work
of the board and its Committees

Biographies of current board members,
together with information on therr

skills, expenence and therr external
appointrments, are INcluded in this
Corporate Governance Report. In
January 2023, the board appointed
Rebecca-loy Wekwete as Company
Secretary. All directors have access to
the Company Secretary for advice on al
governance matters to help ensure that
the board 1s able to discharge ts duties
and function effectively and efficiently
The Company Secretary ensures that
the board receives the financial and
operational INnformaticn they require to
enable them to approprately discharge
thelr duties and responsibilties and
crculates board papers electrenically

in advance of meetings. Directors may
also scck independent advice at the
Company's oxpense where neadad.

The board met 15 times during the year
{FY22 15} and the attendance by each of
the Directors is set out below

Attended
Non-executive Directors
Elzabeth Gooch 15/15
Stephen Kunzer' 1213
loanne Lake’ 14/15
Nigel Payne 13/46°
Lesley Watkins* iA
Executive Directors
Nicholas Stone 16116
James Gundy 15/15
Tris Simmonds 12/15

1 Stephen Kunzer lett tre board on
3t January 2023

2 Joanne Lake oined the board with effect trom
1 March 2022

3 In N gel's absence, the mestings were chared
by loanne Lake

4 Lesley Watkins left the board or 31 March 2022

Board committees

The board has three standing
Committees. Audit & Risk, Nomination
and Rermuneration. Each of the board
Committees comprises solely of
independent non-executive directors.
The composttion and responsibilities

of the board Committees are set out

in each of the Committee reports, on
pages 80 to 85 of this Annual Report
The Remuneration Committee Report
on pages 66 to 85 of this Annual Report
15 Incerporated into this Corporate
Governance Report by reference The
terms of reference for each of the
Committees can be found in the Investor
section of the Company's website.

The Group also has an Executive
Committee tc support the Group
Chiel Execulive Officer walty e day-
lu-day 1ianaye et of the CGroup
and the develcpment and execution
of the Group's strategy The Executive
Cormmittee comprises the three
executive directors
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The Group alsc has a Risk Commitiee.
The Risk Committee reports to the
Audit & Risk Committes on matters
including the nsk management
activities, nsk appetite. emerging nsks
and other changes to the risk matrix,
the work of the internal audit function,
and the day-to-day monitoring of the
Group's nsk management framewaork

It comprses the Group Chief Financial
Officer, Group Chief Operating Officer.
Company Secretary, Group Financial
Controller, Group Head of HR, Managing
Director (Singapore), Group Director

of Dngital Transformation & IT and the
Group Head of Compliance The Chair
of the Audit & Risk Committee has a
standing nvitation to attend meetings
of the Risk Committee and other
colleagues are invited from time to time
to provide additional input on the Groug's
operations and potential nsk exposure
where considered approprate.

Risk management, compliance
and effective controls

The drrectors have a duty to the
Company's shareholders to ensure that
the information presented to them is fair,
balanced, understandable, and provides
shareholders with the necessary
information to assess the Company’s
position, performance, business maode|
and strategy. Further details of the
directors’ responsibilities for preparing
the Company's Financial Statements
are set out In the statement of directors’
responsibilities on pages 88 to 82 of this
Annual Repart

In fulfiling its responsibilities, the

board has established procedures for
identifying and evaluating any risks
associated with its strategic objectives
{including both emerging and principal
nsks) and considering how those rnisks
can be managed effectively. |he Aucit
& Risk Committee 18 responasible frr
the independent review and challenge
of the adeguacy and effectiveness

of the Company's approach to risk
management and reports its indings to
the board.
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The Audit & Risk Committee 1s
supported by the Risk Committee

and the Internal Aucht function More
information on the work of the Audit &
Risk Committee and the Internal Audit
funclion can be found in the Audd & Risk
Committee Report on pages 60 to 64 of
this Annual Report, and more information
on the Company s risk management
processes, Including a summary of the
prnncipal nsks facing the Group and the
procedures N place to identfy emerging
nsks, 1s set out on pages 47 to 53 of this
Annual Report.

Culture and values

The Company's EPSG framework
recognises the three pillars of
environmental, social, and governance
that have become the widespread
definiton of ESG, with the addition of a
fourth pillar to recognise the people that
are the foundation of our business and
are integral to the communities we live
and work in. As part of this framework,
Braemar rermains cormmitted to providing
its services to the highest standards
and operating ethically, lawfully and with
professional Integnty at all tmes. The
framework enables the Company to
foster a culture and operating practices
that incerporate our values We believe
that this will support the Group with its
strategy to grow the Braemar brand in
an increasing numper of global markets.
Mere information on our cutture and
values, what acticn has been taken
during the year to ensure that policies,
practices and behaviour across the
Group are aligned with them, how we
engage with, invest in and reward our
workforce, and our cormmitment to
diversity and inclusion can all be found
in the EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45
of this Annual Report,

Strategic Report 3

Shareholder relations

The board recognises the importance
of maintaining good cornmunication
with key stakeholders of the Company’s
business and taking the interests of
thase stakeholders into consideration In
s decision-making Key stakeholders of
the Company Include its shareholders,
with whom the board secks to engage
with regularly in order te fulfil its duties
under Section 172 of the Companies Act
2008. The Company follows an active
investor relations programme carried
out mostly through regular meetings of
the Group Chief Executive Officer and
the Group Chief Financial Officer with
existing and potential investors following
the announcements of the nterim and
oreliminary full year results of the Group

The Company has also organised
various opportunities and forums
throughout the year to enable exsting
and prospective investors to hear more
from the executive directors on the
business and its strategy. From tme to
time, the non-executive directors and the
neon-executive Chairman will also consult
with the Company’s major shareholders
Feedback frcm the Company's
shareholders is also received through the
Group's corporate broker and corporate
affarrs team

in accordance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the Company ensures
that shareholders are kept updated on
rmaterial information, especially that of a
potentially price sensitive nature, as soen
as possible This is done via corporate
announcernents which are made
avalable on the Company’s website and
through announcements to the market
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The Company encourages participation
at its AGM where each resolution is
separately put to the meeting for a vote.
The Company notes that at last year's
AGM, all resolutions proposed were
passed with the requisite majorties

of votes. The Directors’ Remuneration
Report receved more than 20% of

the votes against, detail on the action
taken to understand the reasons behind
the result are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report.

Internai independent investigation
As announced on 26 June 2023, the board
commenced an Internal Ndependent
nvestigation into an histoncal transaction
dating back to 2013 The investigation was
overseen by an Investigation Cornmittee
chaired by myself and comprised the
independent non-executive directors

The investigation was conducted by FRP
Advisory Trading Limited, an iIndependent
specialist forensic accountng firm, and
independent external counsel, Atthough
the nvestigation was complex, it was
comprehensive and ultimately focused on
a review of several transactions between
2006 and 2013.

The independent investigation has now
been completed The board and the
Group have acted promptly to address
the process and control areas that were
dentified as requiring /mprovemennt,
including taking key remedial actions and
the necessary steps 1o comply with the
Group’s legal and regulatory obligations.
The board 1s committed to maintaining a
high standard of corporate governance
and will ensure the remedial actions are
tracked through to completion

Nigel Payne
Chairman
15 November 2023
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James Gundy
Group Chief Executive
Officer
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Grant Foley
Group Chief Financial
Officer

Sk

olt

Tris Simmonds

Group Chief Operating
Officer

Appointment date

1 January 2021

1 August 2023

1 August 2021

Background and
relevant expenence

James has over 35 years’
Shipbroking experience
speciaising in Tankers and
Sale and Purchase/New
bulding projects He joned

the Company in 2014 as

Chief Executive Officer of
Shipbroking following the
merger of Braemar Pic and
ACM Shipping Group Plc, where
James was the Chief Executive
Officer of ACM Shipping
James was an ntegral part of
the successful integration of
the two businesses which led
1o his appointment as Group
Chief Executive Officer in

Grant has over 25 years’
experence In leading public
and private financial services
and technology businesses

He joined the Company from
ClearScore As Chief Financial
Officer at ClearScore, he drove
significant improvements
across the finance function,
implementing new systems,
processes and reporting as

the business scaled Grant

also has additional transaction
experience, and his other roles
have included CMC Markets Pic
where, as Group Chief Financial
Officer and Chief Operating

Tris has over 30 years’
expetience In the commodities
industry nckuding 14 years

at GF) Group where he
pecame Head of European
Commodities Tris founded
Atlantic Brokers in 2013 which
was sold to Braemar Ple in
2018 Since the acquisition N
2018, Tris held the position of
Managing Dwector of Braemar's
derivative brokerage business
and he was appointed as
Group Chief Operating Cfficer
in August 2021

January 2021 Officer, he was instrumental in
the company’s successful IPO
Committee None None None

Memberships

Skills Shipbroking, ieagership, mergers Finance, investor relations, Mergers & acquisitions,
& acquisitons, business mergers & acquisitions, strategy business developrent,
development, sales, marketing, and nsk management complance and sales
Investor relations, strategy

External None Nene None

appointments
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Financial Statements

The Chairman leads the board and is responsible for its overall effectiveness in directing the
Company, taking into account the interests of the Company’s various stakeholders. The Group
Chief Executive Officer leads the executive and divisional management in the development of
strategy and the management of all aspects of the performance and operations of the Company

and its subsidiaries.

Nigel Payne
Chairman of the Board

Elizabeth Gooch MBE
Non-executive Director
& Senior Independent
Director (rom1 April 2022)

Joanne Lake
Non-executive Director

Cat Valentine
Non-executive Director

1May 2021

1 August 2021

1 March 2022

16 May 2023

Nigel jcined the Cormpany as
nor-executive Charrman in May
2021 Nigel has a proven record
of enhancing shareholder value
with over 30 years’ experence
on internaticnal public and
private boards both as an
executive and non-executive
director Nigel's board roles
include orgarisations such

as Sportingbet ple, Gateley
Holdings plc, Sun Internationat
(JSE), BlueBet pty {ASX),
GetBusy plc, Ascot Racecourse
Betting and Gaming limited, EG
Solutions ple, Stride Gaming
plc, Hangarg plc, Kwalee ttd
and Green Man Gaming hd.
Nigel 1s a gualfied Chartered
Accountant

Eizabeth has over 18 years'
experience In governance,
complance and financial
reporting of publicly ksted
companes, having founded
and run EG Solutions plc

Elzabeth works with founders
of UK Tech Startups and
Scalkeups to help them grow
and scale ther businesses.
She s an angel invester, non-
executive director and Mentor
1o tech companies in a wide
range of sectors including
secure messaging, cyber
securty, artificial intelligence,
robotic process autormation
and e-commerce.

Joanne has over 3¢ years'
experence in financial and
professional services — both n
investment banking, with firms
including Parmure Gordon,
Evolution Securties and
Williams de Broe, and in audit
and business advisory services
with Prnice Waterhouse Joanne
1s a chartered accountant and
fellow of the Chartered Insttute
for Secunties & Investment

Cat was appointed to

the board in May 2023

She 1s a communications
professional with over 25
years' experence, advising
small cap growth companies
on Investor and corporate
communicatons She joned
the strategic communications
advisory business, Belvedere
Communications, In 2017, where
she 1S director and co-owner.

Char of the Nomination
Committee

Char of the Remuneration
Commyttee

Member of the Nomination and
Audit & Risk Committees

Charr of the Audit & Risk
Committee

Memier of the Normination and
Remuneration Committees

Member of the Audit &
Risk Committee and the
Remuneraucn Committee

Leadership, strategy, business
development, mergers and
acquisitions, iInvestor relations,
finance and governance

Governance, compliance,
financial reporting, Investor
relations, equity fundraising

Capital markets, equity
fundraising, mergers &
acquisitions, strategy and
growth companies

Corporate communications,
rwestor and media relations,
equiky caprtal markets, and
orgarisational development

Non-executive Chairman of
Gateley Holdings Pic and Green
Man Gaming Ltd

Non-executive drector of Sun
International Ltd, GetBusy pic,
Ascot Racecourse Betting
and Gaming Ltd, Kwalee Ltd
and Blue Bet pty

Director of Turnkey Group

(UK Holdings) Limited and
Howarths HR and Empleyment
Law Limited
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Non-executive Char of Made
Tech Group Pic

Non-executive director and
Senior Independent director
of Henry Boot Plc

Non-executive directer

of Gateley (Holdings) Pic, Pollen
Street Plc and Morson Group
Lirnitex

Director of Belvedere
Communications
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Report of the Audit & Risk Committee

The Committee narme was changed

to the ‘Audit & Risk Committee’ to
explicitly reflect the Committee’s risk
management oversight respensibilibes
The Cormmittee compnses three
indepenaent non-executive directors
and its terms cf reference can be

found in the Investors section of the
Company’s website The Committee

is charred by non-executive directer
Joanne Lake. who was apponted tc the
hoard with effect from 1 March 2022
and succeeded Lesley Walkins as Chair
of the GCommittee, following Lesley's
departure on 31 March 2022 Joanne s a
highly expenenced chartered accountant
with a strong financial background and
with the complementary skils of the
other members, continues 1o ensure
that the Committee has a sufficient
level of both financial and relevant
sector experience With respect to other
mempership changes, Stephean Kunzer
left the Committes on 31 January 2023
Cat Valentine joined the Committee upon
her appointment to the board on 16 May
2023 The gualfications and expenence
of the members of the Committee can
be found In the drector biographies on
pages 58 to 59 of this Annual Report

The overall role of the Audit & Risk
Committee (the “Committee™) during
the financial year was largely
unchanyed from previous years.

Only members of the Committee had
the nght to attend meetings however,
standing invitations were extended to
the Chairman, Group Chief Executive
Officer, Group Chief Operating Officer.
Group Chief Financial Cfiicer, Company
Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and
Risk Management and representatives
of the external auditor. The Company
Secretary acted as secretary to the
Cornmittee. The internal and external
auditors attended Committee meetings
and penodically met in private with the
Committee Charr to discuss matters
relating to the Committee’s remit and
1Issues arising from therr work The
Committee held nine meetings during
the year, the attendance of which can
be found tc the feft

The key function of the Committee

1s to address the following specific
responsbilites, while adapting its
activities as appropriate to address
changing priorties within the business:

- Financial reporting reviewing the
published half-year and annual
Financial Statements and reports,
and any cther formal announcement
relating to the Group's financial
performance, and advising the
board on whether such information
represents a farr, balanced and
understandable assessment
of the Company’s position and
prospects, monitoring compliance
with relevant statulory reporting
and listing requirements, reviewing
and considering any changes
in accounting standards., and
congidering the suitability of, and any
changes to, accounting policies used
by the Group. Including the use of
estimates and judgements.

- Internal control and risk managerment
reviewing the adequacy of the
Group's internal controls; assisting
the beard In conducting a robust
assessment of the Company’s
emerging and principal risks;
and monitoring the scope and
effectiveness of the activities of the
Group's internal audit activibes N the
context of the Group's overall nsk
management framewark.
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- As part of this responsibility, the
Committee receves reparts from the
Risk Committee and regularly reviews
the Group's compliance policies and
procedures, including those relating
to whistleblowing, the prevention of
bribery, corruption and fraud, and the
Group's KYC processes

- Reviewing and monitorning the
effectiveness of the external audit
process and the Independence of
the external auditor: conducting the
tender process tc appeoint an externat
auditor and making recommendations
to the board on the appontment,
reappointment and remaoval of the
external audrtor; planning with the
external auditor the half-year review
and full-year audit prograrmme,
ncluding agreement as to the nature
and scope of the external audit as
well as the terms of remuneration In
the context of the overall audtt plan;
monitoring the ongoing effectiveness
of the external auditor, monitoring the
objectiveness and independence of
the external auditor, and approving
and montorng any non-aucht
services undertaken by the external
auditor, together with the level of non-
audit fees

The followng secticns describe the work
of the Committee during the year ended
28 February 2023

Review of Financial Statements
Ihe Commitfee monitors the ntearnity
nf the Company’s Financial Statements
and has reviewed the presentation of the
Group's interim and annual results As
part of this review, it considered matters
rased by the Group Chief Financial
Officer, together with reports presented
by the external auvditor summarising

the findings of their annual audit and
nterim reviews.
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The key areas of estimates and
Judgements considered for the year
ended 28 February 2023 are-

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is
impaired requires an estimation of the
value-in-use of the cash-generating
units to which these assets have been
aliocated The value-in-use calculation
estimates the present value of future
cash flows expected to arise for the
cash-generating unit The key estimates
are therefore the selection of sutable
discount rates and the estimation

of future growth rates which vary
between cash-generating units {"CGU"
depending on the specific nsks and

the anticipated economic and market
conditions related to each cash-
generating unit. Climate change risk has
been taken Nto account In determining
the underlying iInputs used In calculations
used for iImpairment reviews and 1s not
considered to have a materal impact on
the value-in-use calculations

The Committee considered the work
done to support the discount rate, the
growth assumptions and the potential
impact of climate change and are
satisfied these estimates are appropriate
The result of this work indicated that the
Goodwill relating to the acauisition of
Naves in 2017 was impaired and further
work was carried out to determine the
extent of that Impairment

Following the completion of this work,
the Committee concluded that an
impairment of £91 millon was required to
bring the carrying value into Ine with the
value in use This work 1s descrnbed in
Note 10 to these Financial Staternents

Acquisition accounting

Fallowing the acquisition of Southport
Maritme in December 2022, the farr
values of the assets and liabilties
acqurred at the acquisition date were
estimated with the suppert of a third-
party expert valuer This valuation

of acquired intangibles 1s subject to
estimation of future cash flows and
the discount rate applied to them
Determination of the useful economic
Iives of intangible assets requires
assumptions about future market
trends and future risk of replacement or
obsclescence of those assets

Strategic Report ;

The Committee reviewed the work of the
third-party expert, the forecast cashfiows
and the discount rate applied and are
satisfied that they are appropnate The
consideration is being treated as post
combination remuneration expense due
to the requirement for the recipients

to continue working for the business

for a 3-year period As a result of the
purchase price not being treated as
consideration, the Committee was
satisfied that the appropriate treatment
was to recognise a gan on bargan
purchase ansing from the recognition of
the net assets acquired

Fair value of VertomCory

contingent consideration

The estimate at the balance sheet date
of the far value of the earncut payments
15 £14 milicn, an increase of £01 millicn
frorn the estimate in the previous year
The far value of the earnout payments
involves two critical estimates, the

future profitability of the combined
business and the discount rate used

to calculate the net present value The
future profitability forecasts are based
on an updated business plan prepared
by the combined VertormCeory business
following the first ten months of trading
as a combined entty The discount rate
was used to calculate the net present
value which was based on the credlit risk
of Vertom Agencies BV following a crecht
check performed by management

The Committee reviewed the
assumptions on future profitability and
considered the most recent budget
provided by the combined VertomCory
business. The Committee concluded
that management’s estmates are
appropriate and that the carrying value
of the earncut payment is reasonable

Recoverabiiity ot deferred tax assets
The carrying armount of deferred tax
assets 1s reviewed at each reporting
date and reduced to the extent that ts
no longer prebable that sufficient taxable
profits will be availlable to allow ail or part
of the asset to be recovered

The Committee considered the
expected future taxable profits of the
Group and are satisfied that these are
sufficient to allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.
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Share option vesting

The far value determined at the grant
date of the equity-settled share-based
payments 1s expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting pericd, based on
the Greup's estmate of the number of
equity Instruments that will eventually
vest At each reporting date. the Group
revises ts estimate of the number of
eguity Instruments expectedto vest as a
result of the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions

The Committee is satisfied that the
processes to determine the effect of
non-market based vesting conditicns
are appropriate.

Provision for impairment of trade
receivables and accrued income

The provision for impairment of trade
receivables and accrued income
represents management’'s best estimate
at the Balance Sheet date. Several
Judgements are made in the calculation
of the provision, primanty the age of the
invoice, the existence of any disputes,
recent histoncal payment patterns and
the debter’s financial pesition. Further
details can be found in Note 22 to the
Financial Statements

The Group reviewed the impact of the
conflict In the Ukraine on the Financial
Statements at 28 February 2023 to
ascertain if there was any evidence

to suggest that the Group's trade
receivables may be at a higher rnisk of
becoming credit mparred as a result of
the conflict There was no evidence of
any material impact and therefore, no
imparment allowance was made.

The Committee reviewed management’s
process for determining the provision
and considered the lkelihood of the
confict In the Ukraine impacting the
collection of trade recervable and

werte satishied that the judgements

are appropriate

Valuation of defined benefit

pension scheme

The Group uses an Independlent actuary
to provide annual valuations of the
defined benefit pension scheme The
actuary uses a number of estmates in
respect of the scheme membership, the
valuation of assets and assumpticns
regarding discount rates, inflation rates
and mortality rates.
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The membership detals are prowided
by an ndependent trustee while

the valuation of assets I1s vernfied

by an ndependent fund manager.
The discount rates, inflation rates

and mortality rates are reviesyad hy
management for reasenability Further
detalls can be found in Note 29 to the
Financial Staterments

The Committee considered the review
work performed by rmanagerment in
respect of the estimates made by the
independent actuary and the information
provided by the independent trustee and
are satished with the process

Revenue recoghition

IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts

with Customers” requires Juggement

to determine whether revenue 1s
recognised at a "point in trme” or “over
trme”, as well as determining the transfer
of control for when performance
obligations are satished

The Committee considered the work
done to validate the accuracy of
revenue transactions and i satisfied
that rmanagement’'s jJudgement on
the tming of revenue recognition 1s
matenally correct

Classification and recognition of
specific items

The Group excludes specific tems
from 1ts underlying earnings measure;
management judgement is required
as to what items gualfy for this
classification. Each item reported as
specific 1s either directly related to
acquisitions or not expocted 1o be
ncurred on an ongoing basis. Further
detals can be found in Note 10 to the
Financial Stalements

The Committee reviewed the
terms for reasonableness and
consistency and are satished with
management’s classification.

Recoverability of defined benefit
pension scheme net asset

As a result of actuanal movements during
the pericd. including an increase in the
discount rate from 265% at 28 February
2022 to 420% at 28 February 2023

the UK defined benefit scheme is in an
actuanal surplus position, net of tax, at 28
February 2028 {(measured on an 1AS 18
"Employee Benefits” basis) of £11 milion
{28 February 2022 habilty of £21 rmillion)

The surplus has been recognised

on the basis that the Group has an
unconditional nght to a refund, assuming
the gradual settiement of Scheme
habilities over time until all mermbers have
ieft the Scheme.

The Committee reviewed the terms

of the scheme and the discount rate
used to estimate the value of the assets
and habilities of the scheme and have
concluded that the recogrition of the
surpius was reasonable

Assessment of business
combinations

During the vear, the Group acguired
the entity Madnd Shipping Advisors
SL Management concluded that the
transaction did not meet the definition
of a business cembination, and as a
result, treated the transaction as the
recruitment of a team of brokers with
associated sign on bonuses

The Cormmittee considered the key
terms of the transaction and the
nature of the arrangement as a whole
As part of the transaction, no assets
were acquired, nor were any habilities
assurmed The Committee agreed
with management’s view that the
transaction did not meet the definition
of a business combination because
the acquired entity only held service
contracts for key employees and was
a newly Incorporated company, set up
speciically for the acquisition

Climate-related risks

Management have considered the
impact of climate-related risks in
respect of impairment of gooawill. and
recoverability of recevables in particular
and do not consider that climate-related
rieks have a materal mpact on any key
judgements, estimates or assumptions
in the consolidated Financial Statements
The potential mpact of clmate

change has been reviewed by the Risk
Committee and has been identified as
an emergng risk for the shipping and
energy sectors within which the Group
operates, but not one which is ikely to
have an impact on the business In the
short to medium term

The Cormmittee has also assessed the
short-to-medium-term impact relating
to chmate change nsks and It is not
expected that cimate-related risks will
have a material impact on the Group’s
short-term financal performance
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Going concern and viability

The Group has drawn up its accounts on
a going concern basis and the directors
have assessed the viahility of the Group
over a four-year penocd Four years 1S
usad hecause the Group's revolving
credit facilty will need renewing after this
four-year period

The Cormmittee receved reports {o
support these matters and considered
the assumptions made, the sources

of iquidity and funding, the nsks and
sensitivities to the forecasts and the stress
tests used, Ncluding the potential impact
from the independent iInvestigation. The
Committee concluded that the applcation
of the going concern basis for the
preparation of the Financial Statements

15 approprate More detal can be found

N the Principal risks and uncertainties
section of this Anhual Report

In June 2023, the board commissioned
an intermal iIndependent nvestigation
nto an historical transaction from 2013
The investigation was overseen by an
Investigation Committee chaired by the
Group's non-executive Chairman and
was conducted by an independent
specialst forensic accounting firm,
and independent external counsel.
The nvestigation was comprehensive
and complex and ultimately focused
on a review of several of transactions
between 2006 and 2013,

As a result of the investigation, the Group
has recognised a provision of £2.0 million
in relation to the uncertan obligations
connected to a number of the
transactions and commission obligations
reviewed as part of the Investigation

Of the £20 million, £17 million relates

to histarical unsettled commission
payable, which has been reclassified
from trade payables to provisions

during the year While the board cannot
forecast with certanty inal outcomes

in respect of these oblgations, based

on the Group's current information, the
amount recognised is the current best
estimate of the armount required to settle
the oblgations at the balance sheet
date, taking into account the risks and
uncertanties surrcunding the chiigations.
including interpretation of specific laws
and likelihood of settlerment
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Capital reduction and dividend
rectification process

In December 2022, the Company
commenced a project to research
options for increasing the distributable
reserves available o the Company In
order to support the Group's stated
progressive dvidend policy The inmial
focus was on short term options that
would merease the distnbutable reserves
as at 28 February 2023 in order to allow
a final dividend recommendaticn with
the publication of year end results later
N 2023 A review of these short-term
options identihed that charges taken

to retaned earnings in recent years for
the iImpairment of the value of certan
preference shares held by the Company
represented unrealised losses and could
therefore potentally be excluded from
the calculation of distrbutable reserves
Whilst reviewing the possibility that the
impairment losses could be determined
as unrealised losses for the purpose

of measuring districutable reserves, a
broader review of other gains and icsses
that had been recorded in retained
earnings In recent years was carried out

This review identified certain gains that
had been recorded regularly relating to
share-based payments charges The
gains in question arose when shares
were awarded to employees of other
Group companies and the cost of those
shares increased the cost of iInvestment
of those Group companies and retaned
earnings. This review led the Company
to identify that a significant balance
within retained earnings {that was not
previously identified as created by
unrealised gains) was incorrectly used
by the Company in the calculaton of its
cistributable reserves. This meant that
the Company paid several dividends
hetween 2016 and 2023 without having
sufficient distnbutable reserves from
wihich 1o lawfully pey such drvidends, Tull
details of the histonc relevant diviclends
are set out In the circular posted to
shareholders dated 28 March 2023

The Cornpany convened a General
Meeting which was held on 18 April
2023 where shareholders voted In
favour of all the capital reduction and
dividend rectification special resolutions
put forward by the board With the
confirmation of the Court, the Company
cancelled its share premium accourt
and caprtal recemption reserve The
Company then applied the sums
resulting from this cancellation reduction
to its distributable reserves

Strategic Report T

Review of the control environment
and financial processes

The audtt for the previous year
highlighted weaknesses in some of
the Group's accounting processes and
resources The Committee reviewed
the causes of the weaknesses and
the associated control environment
and concluded that the Finance Team
did not have sufficient gualified and
experienced members. A plan was
therefore developed to strengthen the
rescurces in the Finance team and to
make the changes reguired to ensure
the weaknesses do not re-occur.

The plan 1s in the process of being
implernented and addttional rescurces
have been recruited into Finance tearm.
including a new expenenced Group
Financial Controller and additional
qualfied accountants In different areas
within the team. Work 1s ongoing to
strengthen the regular review and
financial control processes and Improve
the use of the financial systems avalable.
A particular focus I1s kbeing given to the
consoldation system as several of the
weaknesses identified related to the
consoldation of the Group's results In
the context of disposals and acquisitions
rather than engong trading.

This work has identified additional

prior period adjustments reguired

in the current year to the Finarcial
Staterments as are described in Note 36
and the Committee has reviewed the
reasons why they were not identified
previously. This review has provided the
Committee with stronger assurance and
confidence that the improved control
envirenment will reduce the risk of similar
adjustments in the future. The Audit &
Risk Committee 1s keeping under review
the further process of improvement to
ensure that the plan is continues to be
appropralaly progreccod.

internal independent investigation
The internal independent Investigation
referenced in the Charman’s Statement
on pages b to 7 highighted improvements
that were required in the Compliance
function. particularly around ‘Know Your
Customer’ ("KYC") checks and ongoing
monrtenng The Group has acted promptly
to address the weaknesses identified and
has implemented new procedures and

an ongoing improvernent plan
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External audit

BDO LLP was reappointed as external
auditor at the 2022 AGM for therr fifth
year as audtor to the Group. The lead
audit partner at BDO LLP responsible
for the external audit is Olver Chinneck
Oliver was a key audit partner in the
previocus four years but has taken over
the lead role in the current year and has,
therefore, served five years following the
conclusion of the 2023-year end audit.

In ine with the Independence
requirernents Oliver should rotate after
five years However following the matters
arising n the current year audit and

the change in Chief Financial Officer,

to maintain audrt quality, the Audit &

Risk Committee wrote to BDO's ethics
partner to request that Oliver’s tenure as
lead audt partner be extended by a year
Following review, BDO agreed to the
one-year extensron for the FY24 audit
and put In place effective safeguards to
maintain Independence,

The Group has a clear polcy for the
approval of non-audit services, which
sets a limit on the level of fees for
non-audit services at 70% of the
external audn fee. The external auditor
1S only appointed to perform a non-
audit service when doing sc waould

not compromise the independence
and effectiveness of the external

audit function, and when its skills and
expertise make 1t the most suitable
supplier The Group policy for the
approval of non-audit services requires
the Committee’s prior approval of

all non-audit services This year, the
external audit fee represents 81% of the
total fee pad to BDO LLP (FY22 1%}
The Committee also continues 1o agree
the scope and related fee for the annual
external audit The non-audit services
performed dunng the year related to the
half-year review

The Committee addtionally monitors
the Independence of the external

audit function, as well as its objectivity
and effectveness, through the annual
schedule of meetings (at which it
discusses the auditor's reports and
performance), through nviting feediback
from those involved with the external
auditor's work across the business. and
through additional meetings between
the Char of the Comrittee and the lead
audit partner
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Review by the Financial

Reporting Council

The Financial Reporting Council {“FRC™)
carred out a review of Braemar’s imnterim
results for the six months to 31 August
2022 in accordance with Part 2 of

the FRC Reporting Review QOperating
Procedures Based on ther review,

there were no questions or queries

they wished to raise with the Company.
They did however highlight items

where they believed that the readers

of the accounts would benefit from
improvements N disclosure which, to the
extent applicable, have been addressed
in the year-end Financal Statements

Internal audit

Internal audit 15 an independent
assurance function which supports
Bragmar in improving its overall control
framework. The work of the internal
audit function supports Braemar to
evaluate and improve the design and
effectiveness of the nsk managernent
framewaork, internal control, and
governance processes The Audit & Risk
Cornmittee defines the respensibility and
scope of the internal audit function and
approves its annual plan Reporting to
the Chair of the Audrt & Risk Committee
and adrministratively to the Group Chief
Firancial Officer, the Head of Internal
Audit and Risk leads the Internal Audit
and Risk Management function.

The Audlt & Risk Commitiee monitors
the delivery of the internal audit plan
throughout the year and provides
chalienge toc ensure that management
15 sufficiently responsive to any

audrt findings.

Business functions, processes and areas
forming part of the rolling three-year
nsk-based Group internal audit plan are
based on assessment of risks 1o the
business. as described on pages 47

to 63 of this Annual Report. The plan is
reviewed and updated at least annually
to help ensure key Group and new or
emerging risks receive appropriate and
timely audit focus Updates or changes
1o the audt plan, and internal audit
reports, are reviewed by the Audt & Risk
Committee during the year

The Group's operational and functional
management teams are engaged

and Involved In the nsk assessment
process and in the development of
the internal audit plan by way of the
fallowing activities:

- Risk Committee meetings to agree
and coordinate compliance, risk
management, and to provide input
nto internal audit activity,

- submission of operational and
financial senior managerment
cenfirmations that the results of
ther respective business areas are
accurate, that stated levels of debitors
and accrued mcome are recoveraple,
adequate provisions have been
made for uncollectible amounts, and
that the business camplies with the
Group's position on the UK Bribery Act
and there have been no breaches of
appicable sanctions;

- completion of sermi-annual control
self-assessment questionnares
by all Group entities tc help ensure
that adeguate controls are In place
Completed questionnarres are
reviewed and discussed with senior
management for their respective
business areas, and

- suggestions for internal audit activity
are socught from each business
area, and operational and functional
departrments.

Audits were conducted this year on
sancticns, Braemar Corporate Finance
and employee expenses. Management
action plans were developed and agreed
with acticn implerentation dates for
identified control gaps or deficiencies.
Progress against agreed managerment
actions from audits is monitored

through regular updates to the Audit

& Risk Currnnittee

Risk and internal control
framework

During the year, the Audit & Risk
Committee continued its focus on review
and enhancement of the Group's risk
and internal control framework. Brasmar
Is cornmitted to the highest standards of
conduct in all aspects of its business.
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In reviewing and improving this
framework of policies, processes and
procedures, the directors remaned
mindful of the potentally competing
interests of the Company's stakeholders,
particularly the need to balance

cost, resource, and the interests and
perspectives of clients and other market
participants with the need to maintan
its reputation for integrity and to comply
with international laws and best practice
This review, and the Audit & Risk
Committeg’'s ongoing responsibilities

In this area, saw the Audit & Risk
Committee involved in:

- reviewing the work of the Risk
Committee, particularly on matters
such as the regular reviews of the
Group’'s emerging and principal nsks
and the development of its enhanced
Risk Management Framework;

- reviewing and improving the Group's
framework of complance policies
and procedures, including in relation
to sanctions, bribery and corruption.
conflicts of INterest, know your
customer, entertainment, meals, gifts,
tax evasion, and whistleblowing;

- reviewing the design of a
comprehensive programme of
compliance training for all staff,

- reviewing the financial reporting
framework and improving the
processes for regular reporting of key
financial judgements and estimates,
as well as other elements of nsk
management acress the business,

- reviewing the Group's IT cyber
secunty monitoring and planning
programme,

- reviewing the Group's Insurance
coverage. and

- reviewing the Group's foreign
exposure and hedging strategy

More information on the Group's
emerging and principal risks, including
a summary of the principal risks facing
the Group and how these are managed
can be found on pages 47 to 53 of the
Annual Report

Joanne Lake

On behalf of the Audit & Risk
Committee

15 November 2023
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Report of the Nomination Committee

The primary responsibilities of the
Normination Committee are to ensure
that the beard and its committees
have the right composition, to lead the
process for appointments 1o the board.
and to ensure that the Comparny has
appropriate plans in place for succession
to the board and senicr management
roles The Committee’s terms of
reference can be found in the investors
section of the Company’s website

The Nomination Committee comprises
three Independent non-execulive
directors and is chaired by the
Company’s non-executive Chairman,
Nigel Payne Following on from an
extensive recrganisaton of the board and
the board committees in the previous
financial year and with the present
board being therefore largely new in
therr roles, aside from the appcintment
of Joanne Lake or 1 March 2022 (which
the Nomination Committee had met and
approved In the previous financial year),
it was not deemed necessary to hold
any revicw meetings during this financial
year The Nomination Commitiee did
meet in February 2023 to discuss the
appotrent of a new non-cxcoutwve
director 1o replace Stephen Kunzer

Board changes

Lesley Watkins stepped down as a
Director with effect from 1 March 2022
and was replaced by Joanne Lake.
Stephen Kunzer also stepped down from
the board with effect from 31 lanuary
2023 When Stephen stepped down
from the board, the Committee (ed

the search tc appoint a non-executive
director to the toard. This search
comprised a review across a wige-
ranging number of Industry sectors from
both mternal and external sources

In censidering the optimum crntena and
attributes for this role, the Committee
considered the existing structure

and diversity of the board and senior
management, the culture of the
organusation and the focus of the
Group's future strategy. The Committee
agreed that 1 was important to add
incremental skills to the board. In May
2023, the Committee was delighted

to recommend Cat Valentine for
appointment to the board, Cat was duly
appointed to the board for a three-year
term subject to annual re-election by
shareholders with effect from 16 May
2023 In June 2023, the Committee was
pleased to recommend the appomtment
of Grant Foley as Group Chief Financial
Officer. Grant joned the board with
effect from 1 August 2023, more detall
on his appointment can ke found in my
Staternent on pages 5 to 7 Nick Stone
left the business on 31 July 2023 and on
behatf of the board, we thank Nick Stone
for his contributions and wish hirm weli
for the future

Succession planning

The Nomination Committee’s succession
planning has two key areas of focus
firstly, to ersure that the board has the
nght combination of skills, experience,
knowledge and independence; and
secondly, to ensure that the Company
has plans in place for orderly succession
This includes the developrnent of a
diverse talent pipeline for the Company’s
senior management and maore broadly
across the Group. The Committee
manages the former through its ngorous
and formal approach to new board
appointments and regularly challenges
the directors to consider the size and
composition of the board and the
appropnate range of skills and balance
between executive and non-exacutive
directors through an evaluation procoss

The Committee manages the second
area through the review of the succession
plans in place for senior management
across the Group. As part of this. the
Committee challenges the executive
directors and senior management across
the busness to present detalled insights
into the organisational structures and
personnel profiles of the businesses and
how they look to develop key talent and
rmigate succession nsk.
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More Information on how the Company
invests in the traning and development
of its people can be found on pages

34 to 45 of this Annual Report Where
necessary, the Company also considers
how best to il potential vacancies with
external candicates.

In both of these areas, the Committee
ensures that the directors and senior
rnanagement remain mindful of the
Group's dversity policy Brasmar
recognises the Importance of diversity n
all respects. including (but not imited to)
gender, skils, age, experience, ethnicity
and background. The Committee believes
that diversity and an inclusive culture are
important contributors to a company’s
ability to achieve its strategic objectives
and deliver long-term, sustanable
success. As at the date of this Report,
approximately 26% of the Group’s
Executive Committee and ts members’
direct reports are female (FY22- 10%) and
three of the seven board positions are
occupled by female board members.
More information on the Group's policies
and approach on diversity can be found
In the “Culture and values” section earher
In this Corporate Governance Report and
In the EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45 of
this Annual Report.

Board evaluation

The board carries out regular self-
evaluations to monitor and improve

on its performance and address any
weaknesses. As with the prior year, it was
decided that the formal annual evaluation
could be effectual wathout the need for
any external facilitation, with the process
being led by the Chairman with the
assistance of the Company Secretary. An
impoertant component of this process was
the completion of a set of questionnarres
by the drecters to record their views on a
range of matters and to act as a catalyst
for broader feedback The Committes
has considered the actions from the
evaluation exercise conducted in 2022 At
the time the evaluation was carried out.
most of the directors were new to the
board and it was therefore agreed that
an evaluaticn should be carned out the
followang year once the board had been
working together for a substantive period
tme The Charrman continues to work
with the other directors and the Company
Secretary to improve the effectiveness of
the board and its Committees.

Nigel Payne
On behalf of the Nomination Committee
15 November 2023
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

On behalf of the board, | am pleased to
introduce the Directors’ Remuneration
Report for the year ended 28 February
2023 As in past years, the first section
of this introductory statement details
the work of the Committee together
with cur remuneration philoscphy, which
remains unchanged | will then go on

to describe how we paid our exacutive
directors in the year In the context of
Company performance, and to introduce
the remuneration items for which we
are seeking shareholder approval at cur
2023 AGM This year this includes the
three-yearly renewal of our Direclors’
Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Committee
and its work

The Remuneration Committee 1s
appointed by the board and comprises
three Independent non-executive
directors. The non-executive Chairman
15 not a member of the Committee.
The Cormmittee is chaired by Elizabeth
Gooch and its terms of reference can
be found in the investors section of the
Company's website. The Committeg’s
main responsitilities are to:

— determine the policy and framework
for executive remuneration,

— set the remuneration for the executive
directors, the Chairman and the
Group's senior management,

- review rernuneration and related
policies for empioyees across the
Group; and

— approve the design of, and determine
targets for, performance-related
incentive schemes and/or equity
participation schemes across
the Group.

In discharging these responsibilities,
the Committee may call for informaton
and advice from adwvisers inside and
outside the Group. During the year,

the Committee took advice from the
Chairman of the board, the Group
Chief Executive Officer, the Group Chief
Operating Officer, the Group Chief
Financial Officer and the Company
Secretary, who all attended various
meetings at the invitation of the
Cermmittee, but did not participate in any
decision making, nor were they present
for any discussions, regarding

or affecting their own remuneration.

The Commiillee receved ndepenidertt
remuneration advice from FIT
Rermuneraton Consultants LLP “FIT” an a
range of matters within the Committee’s
remil, for which lees of £32879
{excluding VAT and disbursements

and calculated on a tme-spent basis)
were charged during the year FIT

are members of the Rernuneration
Consultants Group and, as such.
voluntarly operate under the Code

of Conduct in relation 1o executive
remuneration consulting in the UK

FIT was also engaged to provide

advice in relation to the operation of

the Company’s share plans, and the
Committee is comfortable that the FIT
tearm continues tc provide objective and
independent advice
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Remuneration philoscphy

The Committee’s approach 1o executive
remuneration remains unchanged,

The pay structures in cur sector are
atypical compared with the norm

of executive pay. However, they are
proven to work within Braemar as well
as being accepted practice across

the shipbroking sector and other
commission based businesses. The
board carefully analysed whether the
business would be better served by a
non-shipizroking CEC and CCG and
unanimously concluded that it would not

The Committee is focused on retaning
our executive directors and appropriately
incentivising them te deliver shareholder
value, whilst also being mindful of best
practice and market trends (including
the guidelines of investor bodies). In
FY23 the Committee worked within the
existing shareholder approved pohcy to
reward our executive directors

Our framework 1s based on five
core principles:

-y the
success of our business 1s entirely
dependent upon the experience
and skills of our employees and
management tearn, the specialist
advice they offer. and the relationships
that they develop with cur clents
The structures, designs and gquantum
of our remuneration arrangements
must be sufficient to aliow us to retan
our team and compete in highly
competitive global talent markets

c- we seek to pay no
more than is necessary and also
ensure that a substantial portion of
executive reward is aligned to both
profitability and delivery of strategy.

In fine with cur competitors, we
nparnte prafit shanng arrangements
for those individuals engaged in
broking activities

- . : - oour
executive rermnuneration structures
must be clear and understandable for
participants and other stakeholders

- we
align long-term rewards with the
long-term value of our shares through
share ownership guidelines and
share-based remuneration
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we ensure that
remuneration drives the nght
behaviours to support our strategy
and reflects our values, Nncluding
the identification ang mitigation of
any nsks that could anise from our
incentive plans

Our performance ih FY23 and
our review of the Directors’
Remuneration Policy

[

As mare fully detaled in the Charman’s
introduction to this Annual Report, FY
2022/23 was a second year of very
strong performance for Bragmar

- We achieved record revenue
(£152 9 million) and record
profitability (£201 millon underlying
operating profit}

-~ The Group’s cash generation has
also been strong.

- We maintained our progressive
divicend policy with total dividends
per share for the year of 12 pence,
a 33% increase over the prior year
divicdend of 9 pence per share.

- Qur share price performance
remained strong in FY23, our TSR
grew by 251%, which compares
favourably to the performance of the
FTSE SmallCap (ex [T} in the same
period (minus 41%).

The Committee believes that the
performance of the Company 1s
testament to the strong execution of
our clear strategy which i1s focused on
our core shipbroking activities. This has
been the strategy of the business since
January 2021 when our Group Chiel
Executive Officer, James Gundy was
appontad, with hie cocmbined role as
hoth leader of our shipbroking business
and LU

Performance and reward in FY23
Given the positive Graup performance
and shareholder expenence In the year,
the Committee approved bonuses for
our CEC of £2.95 miillon and for our
COO of £125 milkon.
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FY23 was also the end of the three-year
performance period for the Long Term
Incentive Plan “LTIP" awards granted in
July 2020 These awards vested in full
as the relevant performance measures
were satisfied The underlying operating
profit for the previous Shipbroking
Division and Group EPS reported for the
penod to 28 February 2023 were higher
than the maximum target as explained
further Iin this Report.

Before confirming the outcomes

for FY23 annual bonuses and the

LTIP vesting referred to above, the
Commitiee considered the nature of
the matters which were investigated
following the financial year end and
which necessitated the delay of the
Annual Report publication and the
related suspension of the Company's
shares from trading The Committee
deterrnined that the nature of the
matters investigated should not impact
incentive plan outcomes given both their
historical nature and the steps taken by
the current management team to rectify
and resolve these issues when they
became apparent.

Review of our Directors’
Remuneration Policy

in preparing for the renewal of our
Directors’ Remuneration Policy by
shareholders at the 2023 AGM, the
Committee reviewed the operation of the
policy and its continued ability to support
the Company (n executing its strategy
and to drive performance which will
benefit our shareholders.

The Committee acknowledged that the
structure of remuneration packages
designed in this way differs fram the
norm for most UK PLCs However, the
Committee also concluded that the
mpact of the policy, which reflects the
nonms and practices of the shiplrokingg
ndustry, had been significantly

to shareholders’ benefit since the
appoirtment of cur CEC and COO and
therefore it was unanmously agreed that
the policy should be continued
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In short, the rationale for mantaning the
current remuneration package structures
for our executive drectors Is that

- The model whereby our CEO and
CQOO are paid on a continuing
basis for thew shipbroking business
activities has served the Company
well since James’ appomntment
as our CEO in January 2021 and
Tns' appointment as our COO In
August 2021

- The board believes it 1s In the interest
of all stakeholders to retain the
services of James and Tris.

- By maintaining the current pay
arrangements for James and Tris, we
are maintaining the integrity of their
packages from before they joined the
board and honouring commitments is
at the core of Braemar's values

For completeness, we are making

two changes to the operation of

James’ benus which we consider to

be appropriate following the last two
years demonstration of his combined
PLC CEO and leading broker role These
changes have clarified that the initially
expressed annual cap for James’ brokers’
bonus (E4 million per annum) 1s not
relevant (this 15, we beleve, 1s shown

to be the case by this year's bonus
outcome which 1s beneath this level
despite the strong performance). We will
alse remoeve the underpin requirerment
on the first £425000 of bonus which
required specific consideration of Group
performance before that amount could
be paid Our practical expenence of

the way James approaches his role has
demonstrated that he appropriately
balances both overall Group activities
and personal front-line broking work to
the benefit of all stakeholders

Other changes to our policy arc
highhghtod in the introduction to the
remuneration policy section of this
Report. These include certain changes in
remuneration practice previously advised
to shareholders (for example, changes in
our policy of having a pertion of bonus
cutcomes deferred into shares)
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Implementation of our policy

in FY24

In short, our Intention 1s for our Directors’
Remuneration Policy to continue to apply
consistently In FY24 This wall involve

the following

- [ the base salanes of
our CEC and COO will remain frozen
at the same levels as appled N FYZ23
C our CEQ and COO will
again particitate In the brokers' bonus
which 1s driven by the profitability
of the broking desks and their
respective contrnibutions towards this.
In addition, part of the COO's bonus
will be Judged aganst non-financial
metrics (relating to his leadership
of Group central functions and
leadership on acquisitions and other
strategic projects), the weighting of
non-hnancial metrics for the COO
will likely vary year to year depending
on the needs and prorities of the
business Our COO plays a key role in
ientifying, developing and delivering
opportunities for the business to
grow through strategic hires and
team acquisitions which complement
our core busingss Successful and
prudent pursuit of such opportunities
will benefit our shareholders in the
long-term by adding further resilience.
strength and depth to our business.
- U we will again operate our
LTIP plan in FY24, with each of our
executive Directors receving an LTIP
award over shares worth up to 100%
of base safary,

Applying a consistent approach to our
pay arangements provides clarty to our
executive directors and has over time

led to both our CEQ and COO building
significant shareholdings in the Company
{shares worth almost five-times salary

for Lhe CEQ and shares worth almost
three-times s&fary for the COO, reflecting
FY23 year-end share prices). This
provides very Clear alignment of interests
between our executive drectors and

our shareholders

In early 2023, following a benchmarking
exercise, the Chairman's fee was
reviewed and from 1 March 2023
ncreased to £135000 (£108000 in FY232)
This was the first increase of the Chalr's
fee since 2019 and no other changes
are proposed to NED fees for FY24

Asg announced on 20 June 2023, Grant
Foley joined the Company on 1 August
2023 as Group Chief Financial Officer,
with Nicholas Stone standing down on
31 July 2023, Details of the new package
arrangements for Grant and of Nick’s
leaving terms are summarised later in
this Report

Format of the Report and matters
to be approved at our 2023 AGM
The remainder of this Report comprises
two sections

1 Our proposed new Directors’
Remuneration Policy. This is
being proposed for approval by
shareholders at the recorvened 2023
AGM and if approved will take effect
from the date of the reconvened 2023
AGM and may apply for a period of
up to three years, unless a different
policy 1s approved by shareholders in
the interim, and

2. The Annual Report on Remuneration,
which sets out the details of how
our policy was mplemented
during FY23 and the decisions
taken in relation to the prospective
application of the policy In FY24
The Directors’ Remuneration Report
{comprsing both the annual report
on remuneration and this introductory
statement) will be subject to an
acivisory vote by shareholders at
the AGM.
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We trust that our shareholders will
recognise the outstanding year of
performance celivered by cur executive
team and vote in favour of the
resolutions to approve the new Directors’
Remuneration Policy and the Directors’
Remuneration Report at our 2023 AGM

Finally, the Committee would ke to

put on record its thanks to our former
Committee memiber, Stephien Kunzer.
for his work and his contrnibution to the
business of the Committee. Stephen
stepped down as a member of the
Committee on 31 January 2023, With
respect 1o other membership changes,
| am delighted tc welcome Cat Valentine,
who was appointed to the beard In
May 2023 and to the Committee at
the same time More detadls on Cat's
appointment can be found in the
corporate governance statement on
pages b4 to 57

Elizabeth Gooch

On behalf of the Remuneration
Committee

15 November 2023
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Remuneration Policy

This part of the Report sets out the Directors’ Remuneration
Policy (the “Policy”) as determined by the Remuneration Committee.

The Policy will be submitted 1o the 2023 AGM for shareholder approval If approved by shareholders, the Polcy will formally take
effect from the date of the reconvened 2023 AGM and will apply for three years beginning with the date of its approval, unless a
new policy is presented in the interim.

How the Policy was determined and changes from the 2020 Policy

In preparing the Policy for approval at the 2023 AGM, the Comimittee has approved a number of changes These all reflect the
reality of changes In remuneration practices at the Company since the approval of the previous Directors’ Remuneration Policy at
the 2020 AGM, together with matters that have been advised to our shareholders in subsequent Directors’ Remuneration Reports
The changes accordingly reflect the following

- : - James Gundy, our CEQO, took up his role In January 2021 and Tris Simmonds,
our COO tock up hls role IN August 2021 These executives perform dual roles as both (i) the typical roles of a listed company
executive director, and (1) being leading operational executives In the core shipbroking business James and Tris have held these
roles in the core shipbroking business for several years. In line with the Directors’ Remuneration Policy in force at the time of
their appointment as executive directors and as both James and Tris were internal appointments, they have maintained the pay
structures which they participated in prior to their appointments to the board. The proposed new Policy therefore includes these
structures, prmmpally the “Brokers’ Bonus”, iIn which both James and Tris will continue to participate

- aE - — As we explained n the 2022 Directors’ Remuneration Report, during the
pnor year we rewewed our pohcy on deferral of variable remuneration for brokers in which relatively high amounts of total annuat
bonus outcomes were being deferred into shares each year resulting in a negative impact on the liquidity of the Company’s
stock. Whilst still recognising the benefits of alignment to the longer-term experience of shareholders, we reduced bonus
deferral requirements across shipbroking in order to address this liguidity 1ssue. The policy was amended to defer 5% of brokers’
annual bonus outcomes as opposed to the previous 10%. However, we maintaned the 10% deferral for our executive team.
These ongoing deferral requirements will be reflected in the new Policy.

The Committee is satisfied that all of the proposed changes in the Policy continue to align with our remuneration philosophy,
as set out on pages 66 to 67

Braemar Plc Annual Repart and Accounts 2023
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Remuneration Policy continued

Policy table for Executive Directors

[ 'ktp‘strjategy

Base Salary

To provide an
element of fixed
remuneration as
part of a market-
competitive
remuneration
package to attract
and retain the
calibre of talent
redquired to defiver
the Group's
strategy.

Benefits

To provide

a market-
competitive
benefits package
for the nature and
location of the role.

Base salanes are determined
by the Committee, taking into
account

- skills and expenence of the
incwvicual,

- size, scopc and complexity
of the role,

- market competitiveness
of the overall remuneration
package,

- performance of the mdividual
and of the Group as a
whole, and

- pay and conditions
elsewhere In the Group

Base salanes are normally
reviewed annually with changes
effective from the start of the
financial year

Incorporates vanous cash/
non-cash benefits which are
competitive N the relevant
rmarket, and which may include
such benefits as a car (or car
allowance), club membership,
healthcare, Ife assurance,
income protection msurance, and
rembursed busincss CXPCNses
Incluchng any tax lability)

Where relevant, other benefits
on broacdly the same terms as
provided 1o the wider workforce
or to reflect spechic ndradual
clrcumstances, such as housing,
relocation, travel, or other
expatnate allowances may also
be provided

Any reasonable business-related
expenses can be rermbursed
{and any tax thereon rmet if
determined to be a taxable
beneht}

Executive directors may also
participate in the Company’s
Save As You Eam ("SAYE"}
scherme on the same basis as
other employees and subject to
statutony imnits
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While there 1s no defined None
maximum, salary increases are

normally made with reference to
ncreases for the wider employee
population

The Committee retains discretion
to award larger increases where
considered appropriate, to reflect,
for example

- Where an executive director
has had an increase In
responsibiity

-~ Where an executive director
has been promoted or has
had a change in scope

- An indradual's development
or performance In role (eg
to align a newly appointed
executve director’s salary with
the market over time)

- Where an executive drector’s
salary 1s no longer market
compettive (eg due to an
increase i size and complexity
of the business)

Increases may be implemented
over such time perod as the
Committee deems approprate

Benefit provision, for which None
there 1s no prescnibed monétary
maximurm, 1s set at an appropriate

level for the specihc nature and

location of the role

No matenal
changes

No matenial
changes
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Pension

~To provitie & post=

retirement benefit
to attract and
retain talent.

Annual Bonus

Te incentivise and
reward annual
perfermance
aligned with

the long-term
objectives of
individuals and
the delivery of
strategy.

Deferral

into shares
strengthens long-
term alignment
with shareholders.

The Committce may offer
partcipation In a defined
contrbution pension scheme
or provide a cash allowance

Executive directors are eligble
to parucipate in the annual
bonus at the discretion of the
Committee each year

Where executive drectors
undertake broking activities
they may, at the discretion of
the Committee, be eligible to
participate in the Brokers' Bonus
arrangements

The Braokers’ Bonus is non-
contractual and 1s currently
calculated as a percentage
of profits from either personal
and/or desk revenues
depending on the role fufilled

Whoere excoutive directors

do not undertake broking
activites, they may participate

1 an annual bonus for which
appropnate performance targets
are set at the outset of the year
In accardance wih this policy

Payout levels for all executive
drectors are determined by
the Committee after year-end

A porton of the annual bonus
will be deferred into shares
under the Deferred Bonus Plan
(“DBP"}, described in more detall
N tha gectinn helrw

Clawback provisions will also
apply, as explaned on page 74
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1He naxiry Ui Lotuiuulion fur
any executive director will be in
ne with the level avatlable for the
majorty of UK employees at any
given time {currently 5% of salary)

In Ine with market practice for
the Company’s peers, there is no
cap on individual Brokers’ Bonus
awards However, the Brokers’
Bonus 1s funded by broking
profitability, and therefore any
armount is capped by the prohts
generated by broking actibes,
as well as the profitabiity and
financial position of the Group as
awhole

Where executive drectors do
not undertake broking activities.
the maximum annual bonus
opportunity 1 100% of base
salary pa

Financial Statements

T e

Where executive directors
participate In the Brokers'
Bonus, this 1s currertly
calculated as a percentage of
profits which, depending on
the Individual's role may reflect
either personal broking and/or
desk revenues

However, the Committee may
also make a portion of the
Brokers' Bonus for executive
directors subject to the
attainment of specific non-
financial or personal metrics

Where executive directors do
not parbicipate N the Brokers'
Bonus, the performance
measures appled may be
financial or non-financial,
corporate or individual, and

N such proportions as the
Rermuneration Cornmittee
considers appropnate for ary
financial year

For al executive directors, the
Committee retains discretion
to overnde any formulaic
bonus outcome, if it considers
it appropriate to do so, to

take account of overall or
underlying Group or personal
performance or cuch ather
factors as it considers relevant
The Committee may also set
‘gateways” or “underpins”

tor elements of an executive
directora bonus which muct
be attaned before that part
of the bonus 1s paid, should
the Committee consider

this appropriate

Mo matenal
changes

Clarfied the
continued
participation N the
Brokers' Bonus for
those executive
directors who
undertake broking
activities

Clarfied that during
the life of this
Policy, non-financial
rmetrics may be
appled for part of
the Brokers' Bonus

Clarfed that where
executive directors
do not undertake
broking actwvities,
they will continue
to participate In a
normal executive
Directors’ annual
bonus, with a range
of performance
measures set
annually.

The Committee has
the ability to overnde
forrmulaie bonus
outcomes far all
executive directors
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Remuneration Policy continued

b

'

Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”)

To provide a
variable element
which aligns

the reward of all
executive Directors
with long-term
performance
delivered for
sharehoklers.

Awards are made under the
2014 Long-Term Incentive

Plan ("LTIP") as approved by
shareholders at the 2014 Annual
General Meeting

Awards vest subject to
perfermance measured over a
pened of at least three years

Vested awards are subject to
an additional holding penaod,
which unless the Committee
determines otherwise will run
up to the fith anniversary of
the date of grant

All executive directors are eligible

to participate each year at the
chiscretion of the Committee

The Committee retains the
discration to overnde formulaic
vesting cutcornes downward, If
it considers it appropriate to do
50, to take account of overall or
underlying Group or personal
performance or such other
factors as it considers relevant

Awards are subject to clawback

provisions, as described In more

detaill on page 74

Shareholding Requirements

In-employment
sharehokding
reguirement.

To create greater
alignment between
executive Directors
and shareholders.

Executive directors are required
to buld a shareholding of 100%
of base salary Shares subject
to unvested or vested but
unexercised awards under the

DBP and vested but unexercised

LTIP awards rmay be included, n
all cases on a net of tax basis

Executive directors will be
requred 1o retan all of the
shares (net of tax) that vest
under the DBP and the LTIP until
the shareholkding requirerment

1S met

The Commitiee shall retain
a discretion to wanwve the

requirements. IN whole or in part,

n exceptional crcumstances
such as critical iliness or
personal inancial hardshi
including divorce)
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The usual maximum award
opportunity in respect of

a financial year 15 100% of
base salary

However, n circumstances that
the Cormmittec considers to
be exceptional, awards of up
to 200% of base salary may
be made

Not applicable.

Mo matenal
changes

Vesting 1€ based on the
achievernent of performance
targets set in respect of key
performance measures alignecd
to the strategy and shareholder
value {currently underiying
eamings per share)

Up to 25% vests for threshold
performance

The Committee retans
discretion to set alternative
measures and weightings
for awards over the life of
the Polcy

Targets for performance
measures are set and
assessed by the Committee
N its discretion

Not applicable No material change
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Shareholding Requirements continued

Post-semployment Fxeeutive directors ae reguined Mol applicable Not applcalske Clarfied the

shareholding to maintan a sharehotding introduction date for

requirement. equivalent to the n-employment this policy from the
shareholding requirement 2020 AGM.

To ensure

mmadiately pnor 1o departure
{or the actual share and award
holding on departure. if lower)
for two years post-cessation
Shares subject 10 unvested
awards under the DBP and
vested but unexercised LTIP
awards may be included. in both
cases on a net of tax pasis.

continued
alignment of the
long-term interests
of executive
Directors and
sharehokders post-
cessatioln.

The requrement will only apply
to shares vesting under DBP
and LTIP awards made from the
2020 AGM onwards and wil not
apply to shares acaured ether
from awards granted before this
date or from shares purchased
directly by the executive director

Discretions retained by the Committee in operating the incentive plans

The Committee operates the Company's various incentive plans according to their respective rules and in accordance with HMRC
rules where relevant To ensure the efficient administration of these plans, the Committee may apply certain operational discretions
nchuding those described below

Awards under any of the Company's share plans referred to in this Report may.

- be granted (f at all) at such times and within the Imits of the plans and policy as conditional share awards or nil-cost options or
in such other form that the Committee determines has broadly the same economic effect,

- have any performance canditions applicable to them amended or substituted by the Committee if an event occurs which
causes the Committee to determine an amended or substituted performance condition would be more appropriate and not
maternally less difficult to satisfy. Any such changes to performance conditions would be explaned in the subseqguent Directors'
Remuneration Report and, if appropnate, be the subject of consultation with the Company’s major shareholders This abiity to
amend or substitute performance conditions will alse apply to the annual bonus plan;

- Incorporate the nght to receve an amount (in cash or additional shares) equal to the value of dividends which would have
been paid on the shares under an award that vests up to the time of vesting (or where the award is subject to a holding period,
release). This amount may be calculated assuming that the dividends have been reinvested in the Company’s shares on a
cumulative basts;

- be settled in cash at the Commetteg’s discretion and in exceptional cases {for example where there are tax or regulatory issues
which make it impracticable to settle in shares, to enable the Cornpany to cash settle part of the award to cover any tax
withholding requircments or on a change of control at the requeslt of the acquirer), and

- be adjusted in the event of any vanation of the Company’s share capital or any demerger, delisting. special dividend or other
event that may affect the Company's share price

Furthermore. operational discretions are aiso retaned as described in the policy table above and in respect of

- determining the extent of vesting on the assessment of performance,

- determining “good leaver” status, the extent of vesting and related deterrminations in the case of share-based plans or the
annual bonus;

- determining the extent of vesting and/or exchanges under share-based plans in the event of a change of control and other
materal corporate events,

- approving arrangements 10 meet tax withholding obligations and In respect of exercise periods and processes,

- welghting of performance measures and setting targets for the annual bonus and LTIP from year to year, and

- inthe case of DBP awards only (other than the CSOP element) the redesignation of conditional awards to nil-cost options and
vice versa
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Bonus deferral

A porticn of the annual bonus will be deferred into shares under the DBP, the latest plan rules for which were approved by the
Company's shareholders at the 2021 AGM Such awards will vest, unless the Committee determines otherwise, after three years
from the date of grant, subject to continued employment with the Group

For executive directors, the Company’s policy is to defer 10% of annual bonus cutcomes each year under the DBP.

The Committee may determine that DBP awards are made in conjunction with the Company Share Option Plan (‘*CSCP"} to enable
UK tax resident individuals to benefit from the growth in value of the shares subject to the awards in a tax-efficient manner. In such
crcumstances, when DBP awards are granted, a corresponding market value option will be granted under the terms of the CSOP,
the maximum, aggregate face value of which may be up to £60000. The options will vest on the same terms as and on the same
date as the corresponding DBP awards Under the terms of a CSCP, no income tax or employee’s or employer’'s National Insurance
contributions will be payable, on exercise, on the growth in value of the shares The number of shares in respect of which the

DBP awards will vest will be reduced to take account of the gan in value. as at exercise, of the corresponding CSOP options

CSOP awards would anly be made in conjunction with the DBP as described akove, and not on a stand-alone basis

Clawback

Under the DBP and the LTIP, the Committee may reduce the number of shares subject to unvested awards and/or impaose further
conditions on unvested awards (effectively “malus” and/or require payments in cash or shares be made in certan circumstances
which include

— a matenal misstatement or restaterment of any financial results of the Company,

- a matenal falure of risk management by the Company or a relevant business unit;

- serious reputational or financial damage to the Company or a relevant business unit as a result of the participant’'s misconduct
or failure of supervision;

- the discovery of facts that could have led to the dismissal of the participant prior to the vesting of the award;

-~ an error of calculation,

- the Company suffering corporate failure, or

- such other exceptional circumstances as the Committee considers relevant

These terms may also apply In the case of the cash elerment of the annual bonus

The relevant recovery periods are until the time of vesting of the refevant award in the case of DBP awards and at any time prior
to the second anniversary of vesting or payment of the award (as relevant} in the case of awards made under the LTIP and in the
case of the cash element of an annual bonus

Performance measures and target setting

As set out In the pdlicy table, the Brokers' Bonus is non-contractual and 1s currently calcuiated as a percentage of profits
from either perscnal and/or desk revenues depending on the role fulfilled. A portion may also be subject te non-financial or
personal metrics.

The annual bonus where executive directors do nct particpate in the Brokers’ Bonus 1s typically based largely on the financial
performance of the Group during the year. When setfting the financial performance targets each year, the Committee considers
a number of factors Including the board's business plan. Targets will be appropriately stretching and aligned to delivery of the
Group's business plan and strategy

Performance measures and targets for the LTIP are determined by the Committee to reflect the Group's strategy and to align
executive directors with long-term value creation for shareholders The Cormmittee sets long-term performance targets that require
appropriately stretching levels of performance, taking into account internal and external expectations

Existing remuneration arrangements

The Committee reserves the nght to make any remuneration payments and/or payments for loss of office (iIncluding exercising
any discretion avallable to it In connection with such payments) notwithstanding that they are not in ine with the Policy where
the terms of the payment were agreed either (i) before this new Policy comes into effect. provided that the terms of the payment
were congistent with the sharsholder-approved Directors’ Remuneration Policy in force at the time they were agreed, or (1) at a
tme when the relevant individual was not a drrector of the Company and, In the opinion of the Committee, the payment was not
in consideration for the individual becorming a director of the Company For these purposes, “payments” includes the Committee
satisfying awards of vanable remuneration and, in relation to an award over shares, the terms of the payment are “agreed” at the
tme the award is granted
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lllustration of the Remuneration Policy
An ilustration of the application of the remuneration policy for 2023 is set out below The charts below give an indication of the
level of rermuneration that would be received by the executive director in accordance with the Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Minimum performance

Performance in line
with expectations

Maximum performance

Maximum performance plus
50% share price growth

£5260
£5,000
£4.750
£4500
£4250
£4,000
£3,760
£3500
£3,250
£3,000
£2750
L r2500
£2,250
£2000
E1750
£1,500
£1260
£1000
E750
£500
£250

£0O

Minemum  On-target

CEO

W =xed] . Araual Boarus . Pong-terre ncent e

Fixed elernents of rermuneration
only (being FY24 salanes,

5% employer pension
contrbutions, plus an

estimate for 2023/24 benefits)

Max with
growth

Mirnmurm
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On-target  Maximum

Gr e Pres Growth

No annual bonus award

for participants N Brokers'
Bonuses, the average of
the last 2 year's bonuses

For the CFO, 50% of base salary

For participants in Brokers’ Bonuses.

the in ine with expectation bonus
plus 50%

For the CFQ, 100% of salary

Mas with -
growth

co0

Minimum

Financial Statements

No vesting

256% of maamum award vesting
{equivalent to 256% of salary) for
achieving expected perfarmance

100% of maxmum award vesting
{equivalent to 100% of salary) for
achieving maxirmum performance

100% of rmaximum award vesting
{equivalent to 100% of salary) for
achieving maximum performance
plus hypothetical share price growth
of 60%

On-target  Maximum

Max with
growth

CFO
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External appointments

The Committee recognises that executive directors may be invited to become non-executive directors in other companies
{including at the request of the Company) Such additional external appointments should not be undertaken without the prior
approval of the board The Commitiee will consider whether a Director should be permitted to retain any fees paid for such service
on a case-by-case basis

Policy table for the Chairman and Non-executive Directors

. N . ) o . . o S
P o e R o, PRI

To provide market- The rermuneration of the Chairman is determined by the While there 1s no maximum fee No material changes
appropriate fees to Committee and the remuneration of the non-executive level, fees are set considenng
recruit and retain drectors 1s determined by the board {excluding the non-

- market practice for
comparative roles,

Fecs are normally reviewed on an annual basis - the tme commitment and

duties involved, and

the requirernent 1o attract and

retan the gualty of ndvicduals

reqguired by the Company

individuals of the executive Directors)

calibre required to

deliver the strategy.
Where the Charrman 1s a non-executive Charrman, they will
receve a single fee encompassing all duties Where the
Company has an Executive Chairman, they may be eligible
for addtional elerments in Ine with the executive director
policy table

Non-executive directors receive a basic fee and may also
recenve addiional fees for Committee or other board duties

Fees are payable in cash, although the Company may retain
the nght to make payment in shares.

Expenses reasonably ncurred in the performance of the role
may be rembursed or paid for directly by the Company. as
approprate, including any tax due on the benefits

A non-executive Charman and non-executive drectors do
not participate in any of the Group's bonus arrangements,
share plans or pension schemes.

Approach to recruitment remuneration

In respect of the appointment of a new executive director, the overall approach of the Committee would be to provide
remuneration arrangements sufficient to facilitate the appointment of individuals of sufficient calbre to lead the business and
delver the strategy, whilst seeking to pay no more than it considers necessary to secure the reguired talent

The Committee would normally seek, as far as practicable, to align the remuneration package with that set out in the polcy table
for executive directors. Base salary would be set at an appropriately competitive level to reflect skills and experience and, where
considered appropriate, may be set at a level which allows future above-average salary progression to reflect performance in role
If the individual was UK based, pension contricutions or a cash allowance in leu of pension would be payable at a rate not greater
than that available to the maonty of the UK workforce. Currently this is 5% of salary. Participation in the apnual boris and the LTIP
would be In line with the structure and maximum opportunities set out in the policy table, other than as referred to below.

Where an individual forfeits remuneration arrangements with a previous employer as a result of appointment to the Company,
the Committee may offer compensatory payrments or awards to buy-out the awards forfeted and so facilitate recrutment. Such
payments or awards could Include cash as well as performance and non-performance related share awards, and would be in
such form as the Committee considers appropriate considering all relevant factors such as the form, expected value, anticipated
vesting and tming of the forfeited remuneration. There 1 no limit on the value of such buy-cut awards, but the Committeg’s
intention is that the value awarded would be no higher than the estimated value forfeited Such awards may be made under the
Company's existing annual bonus, DBP and LTIP plans or under arrangements established under 94 2(2) of the Listing Rules

Where an executive director 1s apponted from within the Group. any legacy arrangements may be honoured in Ine with the original
terms and conditions Similarly. if an executive Director is appointed following an acquisition of or merger with ancther company,
the Committee may determine that legacy terms and conditions are honoured

The remuneration package for a newly appointed Charrman or non-executive director would be inline with the structure set out in
the policy table for the Chairman and non-executive directors

Braemar Plc Annual Repont and Accounts 2023



77

Strategic Report Financial Statements

Service contracts and letters of appeintment

The policy for executive directors is for them to have roling service contracts that provide for a notice periocd by either party.

The notice pericd may range between six and twelve months The Company may terminate the exscutive director's contract by
making a payment in lieu of nctice of the unexpired notice penod equivalent to a value comprising salary. pension and contractual
benefits There 15 no provision in any of the service contracts of the executive directers for any ex-gratia payments

A non-executive Charrman and non-executive directors are appomnted pursuant to a letter of appointment The policy is that non-
executive directors are appointed for an initial term of three years which may be extended for further three-year periods on the
recommendation of the Nominaticn Committee and with the board’s agreement, subject to annual re-election at the AGM. The
non-executive directors’ letters of appointment are to be terminable on one month’s notice from either party.

Executive
Grant Foley
James Gundy
Tris Simmaonds

Non-executive
Elizabeth Gooch
Joanne Lake
Nigel Payne

Cat Valentine

Appointment date Notice period

1 August 2023 & months

10 November 2020 8 months
21 July 2021 & months

21 July 2021 1 month

2 February 2022 1 month

G April 2021 1 month

16 May 2023 1 month

Loss of office payment policy
In the event that the employment of an executive drector is terminated, any compensation payable will be determined in
accordance with the terms of the service contract as well as the rules of any share or incentive plans

In the event of termination, the following will nermally apply

Payment in lieu of notice

Annual bonus

DBEP awards

LTIP awards

As sct out above In the previous section, the Cormpany may terminate employrnent by making a payment in
lew of notice of the unexpired notice pericd which shall comprise base salary, pension entitierments and other
contractual entitlements {or an amount in leu of them)

There 13 no autormatic entitlernent in respect of the year of cessation, although the Committee retains the
discretion to make an award for goed leavers, taking Inito account the crreumstances of departure Any such
award would rermain subject to performance and the maximum opportunity would normally be reduced pro-
rata to reflect the peniod of the year worked

If cessation of employment 15 by reason of death, l-health, inury or disability (certified to the satsfaction of the
Comrittee). retrerment, redundancy or the employing entity no longer being part of the Group, unvested DBP

awards shall vest in full {subject to the normal reduction f the corresponding CSCP option 1s exercised) on the
ongnal vesting date, unless the Cornmittee decides to accelerate vesting

If cessation of employment 1s for any other reason. then the Committee retans discretion to apply good leaver
treatrment To the extent the Committee does not exercise this discretion, urvested and vested but unexercised
DBP awards will lapse in full

If cessation of employment I1s by reason of death, imury, disability or il-health {certified to the satisfaction of
the Committee), the employing entity no longer being part of the Group or at the discretion of the Committee
any other reason unvested awards will continue and vest on the normal vesting date, unless the Cormmittee
decides to accelerate vesting

For all other reasons, unvested awards will lapse on cessation The extent 1o which unvested awards vest in
these crcumstances will be determined by the Committee, taking Into account the extent to which the oniginal
perfarmance condtions are satsfed and, unless the Committee determines othenwise, the penod of tme that
has clapsced since the award was granted until the date of cessation

Vested but unexercised awards held on cessaton ordinarly remam exercisable for a lmtted period

For LTIP awards which have vested at time of cessation but have not yet been released from a holding penod,
the vested awards will continue and ordinarily be released on the onginal release date

In the event that a buy-out award 1s made on recruitrnent, then the relevant leaver provisions would be deterrmined at the time of

the award,
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Remuneration Policy continued

The Committee reserves the nght to make any other paymenits in connection with a director’s cessation of office or employment
where the payments are made in good faith, In discharge of an existing legal obligation (or by way of damages for breach of such
an obligation) or by way of settlement of any claim ansing in connection with the cessation of a drrector’s office or employment.
Any such payments may include, but are not limited to, paying any fees for outplacement assistance and/or the director’s legal
and/or professional advice fees in connection with their cessation of office or employment

Remuneration arrangements across the Group

The Group operates In a number of different sectors and geographies and therefore remuneration practices vary widely across
the employee populabon. Differences in remuneration practices for executive directors, senior management and other employees
in the Group generally reflect differences In market practice taking nto account role, senionty and geographical location. The
Committee i1s also mindful of the importance of executive remuneration being alkgned and proportionate with wider remuneration
prachces and polices at all levels across the Group

Remuneration arrangements must be capable of attracting, retaning and engaging the calibre of talent needed to defiver the
strategy In the specific talent markets n which the Group competes. The involverment of employees in the Greup's performance
is encouraged through particpation In Incentive plans, apprepriate for the markets In which the Group operates In particular, our
shipbrokers, Including any relevant executive directors, may participate in commission-based profit-sharing arrangements which
reflect market practice In industry peers Alignment with shareholders through share ownership is widely encouraged through
participation In share-based incentive schemes

When making decisions in respect of the executive director remuneration arrangements, the Committee takes into consideration
the pay and conditions for employees throughout the Group, including tevels of salary increase and the operation of key
incentive plans

Engagement with shareholders

The Committee remains committed 1o and encourages open and constructive dialogue drrectly with shareholders. The Committee
monitors Investors’ views, best practice developments and market trends on executive remuneration The Company encourages
shareholders to contact the Committee Chair with any guestions regarding the Policy Shareholders alsc have the opportunity to
engage with the Committee at the Company’s Annual General Meetings
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Implementation of the Policy for FY24
This part of the Report sets out details of how the Remuneration Committee intends to apply the Directors’ Remuneration Pohcy

{the “Policy”) to the current Directors in Fy24

The hase salaries frar the riirrent everiitve cirectnre are shman heleay

FY23 FY24

£000 £000 Change
Grant Foley N/A 326 N/A
James Gundy 475 475 0%
Tris Simmonds 375 375 0%

{

James Gundy, Grant Foley and Tris Simmonds receive benefits and pension N line with the Policy

In Iine with the Palicy, as James Gundy and Tris Simmonds continue to undertake broking activities, they continue to be eligible to
participate in the Brokers' Bonus arrangements This bonus 1s non-contractual and is based on profits generated through broking
activities as described in the Policy.

The annual bonus for Tris Simmonds will additionally have an element subject to the attainment of non-financial metrics,
depending on the needs of the business which can reflect the Group’s strategy and cperational objectives for the year, including
driving efficiencies and growth across the Group.

The annual bonus for Grant Foley is based on a combination of performance measures IIinked to Group financial performance and
the achievernent of the Group's strategy and operational chjectives for the year. In FY24, Grant Foley's participation will be on a
pro-rata basis

A portion of the annual bonus awarded to the CEQ, CFC and COO will be deferred into shares under the Deferred Bonus Plan, and
the deferral level will be at 10% of bonus cutcome,

The board beleves annual bonus targets to be commercially sensitive and, consequently, does not publish detalls of them on a
prospective basis However, it will consider a fuller disclosure on a retrospective basis when # reports on the performance agamst

them in the following year's Annual Report

The Cormmittee proposes to grant LTIP awards to our executive directors for FY24 at normal policy levels of 100% of salary
(although on a pro-rata basis for Grant Foley) All awards will take the form of nil cost options to acguire ordinary shares of 10 pence
each In the Company following a three-year vesting percd subject to meeting the perfarmance criteria set by the Committee and
the rules of the LTIP More detail on the performance metrics and targets will be disclosed in the related announcement when the
awards are made Any vested awards will be subject to a further two-year holding pericd

During the year, the Committee reviewed the Chairman's fee and this was increased to E125000 with effect from 1 March 2023

A summary of NED Tees 1s set out In the table below.

FyZ3 FY24

£000 £'000
Charman fee 108 136
Non-executive drector fee 50 50
Audit & Risk Committee Charr fee 10 10
Remuneration Committee Chair fee 10 10
Committee membership fee’ N/A 6

1 Catvalentne receves an adaitional fae of £5,000 for ner membersnip on the Rernurcrauon ard 4udit & Risk Committces
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Implementation of the Policy in FY23
This section sets out detaills of the remuneration cutcomes in respect of the year ended 28 February 2023 Those sections that
have been audited have been identfied below.

t e - P |

The remuneration of the executive Directors in respect of FY23 is shown in the table below (with the pricr year comparative).

Jarnes Gundy Nicholas Stone Tris Smmonds’
FY23 FY22 FY23 FY22 FY23 Fy22
£°000 £000 £000 £7000 £000 £000
Base salary® 450.0 4260 260.0 2500 333.3 1458
Benefits® 26 36 1.6 22 2.7 21
Pension® 22.9 213 12,5 125 16.7 73
Annual bonus® 2,950 19480 0.0 440 1,250.0 250.0
LTIP® 6781 47920 484.4 1060 - -
SAYE 7.9 - 4.6 - - -
Total 4115 28770 75341 4140 1,602.7 4062
Total Fixed 475.5 4499 2641 2647 352.7 1552
Total Varable 3,636.0 24270 489.0 1500 1,250.0 2500

1 Tns was appointed as Group Chief Operat ng Officer on 1 August 2021 and his aata for 202122 represents his remuneration [or the year as a director and does
not nclude his -emuneralion as an employee for his role pror to his promotion  His bonus for FY22in that penod was the £250,000 amount shown above This
corrects a disclosure of £145 000 made in this table last year in error {which had further pro-rated an already pro-rated number;

Jares' base salary was ncreased from £428 000 10 £4756 000 1n September 2022 Trig’ base salary was increased from £250,000 to £375.000 in July 2022
Benefits include pr vate healthcare

Persion ncludes the value of pensior contributions to the Company's defined contribution scheme (or an equivalent cash allowance) in response of the
retevant year

Anngal ponas represents the full value of the annual bonus awarded in respect ot the relevant financial year, ncluaing the portior that 1s deferred Into shares
pursuant to the DBP

6 LTIF represents the value of the LTIP award that vests in respect of a pertormance period ending In the relevant inancial year

7 SAYE represents the gain on the exercise o* shares purchaseo througn the save as you earn scheme

Mo M

o

The fees of the non-~executive Directors are shown in the table below

Fixed fee

FY23 FY22

£°000 £'000

Lesley Watkins 3.5 525
Stephen Kunzer 40 425
Elizabeth Gooch 60 -
Nigel Payne 108 90
Joanne Lake 80 _

In FY23, Elizabeth Gooch and Joanne Lake each received a fee of £60C0 for additional work on behalf of the board in the
management and resclution of reporting issues which delayed the publication of the FY22 accounts. This work irnwolved a
significant number of additional meetings in Summer 2022, This £5000 fee was In addition to ther base NED fees and fees for
chainng the Remuneration Committee and Audit & Risk Committee respectively

T

There were No payments to past drectors in the year A summary of Nicholas Stone’s leaving arrangements 1s set out delow

- A payment In leu of notice, totaling £5163050, was paid In his final salary, inclusive of basic salary and pension
contribution entittement

~ No bonus was pad in respect of FY23 or FY24.

- With respect to outstanding LTIP awards. Nicholas Stone receved a payment of £5163080 in leu of 36653 vested 2012 LTIP
awards and retained all 156,250 vested 2020 LTIP awards, subyject to the terms of the LTIP including continued holding perods
All 2021 LTIP awards (88 495} were lapsed in full.

- All outstanding DBP awards and linked CSOP options (55180 in total), which were granted in 2020, 2021 and 2023 were lapsed
in full.
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The following bonus payments have been provided for

- James continues to participate in the Brokers' Bonus, which delivered an outturn of £2 950000 from a successful year This
represented a percentage of profits derved from personal broking revenues and a percentage of other revenues generated
across the business based on his involverment and leadership across all desks The relevant revenues were then reduced for
agreed ceots and an agrecd profit share percertays was applicd.

- Tns" bonus delivered an ocutturn of £1,260000 from a successful year. The annual bonus for Tris Simmonds in FY23 was
determined with reference to the successful acquisitions made durng the year and revenues of the broking desks across the
Group with a portion of this revenue allocated to Tnis for the purposes of bonus calculation An agreed profit share percentage
was then applied to this calculation

As disclosed, Nicholas Stone did not recewve a bonus for FY23, accordingly we have not disclosed the onginal profit metrics that
were set for this tem

The Committee granted LTIP awards to James Gundy during the period at a level of 100% of salary and an exceptional 200%
of salary award for Tris Simmonds in his first year as COO. The awards have performance criteria based on the Company’s
growth in Earnings per Share "EPS”" measured over a three-year performance period ending on 28 February 2025

The underlying EPS measure will be agjusted to eliminate 50% of the estimated impact of changes n foreign exchange
rates cver the perfermance period

The performance targets require a 3-year CAGR growth of 25% or mare for full vesting (100% of the award}, with threshold vesting (25%
vesting of the award) at 15% CAGR. For attaining 3-year growth between these points, vesting will be pro-rata on a straght-lne basis

. R | vl i at . - .

- The 2020 LTIP awards were granted in July 2020 and were based on performance over a three-year performance penod
ending 28 February 2023 against the following adjusted EPS targets set when the award was granted 25% vesting for
underlying EPS of 30 pence in FY23 (the final year of the performance period for the award), rising on a straight-Ine basis for
100% vesting for adjusted EPS of 42 pence.

As James Gundy's award was granted prior to his becoming Group Chief Executive Officer, his award also included a performance
condition inked to the underlying cperating profit achieved by the previous Shipbroking Division, with 35% of the award vesting

by reference to underlying EPS (with the same thresholds as Nicholas Stone's award) and 85% vesting by reference to the
components making up the previously reported Shipbroking Division's underlying operating profit achieved in FY23 (the final year
of the performance pencd for the award) with 25% of this portion vesting for underlying cperating profit of £13.8 miilion rising on a
straight-ine basis for 100% vesting for underlying operating profit of £18 milfion.

With an underlying EPS cutturn of 4319 pence and a Shipbroking Division underlying operating profit cutturn of £2567 milion, the
vesting outturn for each of Nicholas and James was 100%. The awards that vested are now subject to a two-year holaing period,
following which they will be released and become exercisable

Under the shareholding guidelnes, executive Directors are required to builld and retain a shareholding in the Group at least
equivalent to 100% of their base salary

Non-executive directors are nct subject to a shareholding guideline The following table sets out the shareholdings {including by
connected persons) of the directors in the Company as at 28 February 2023 This shows that James Gundy and Tris Simmonds
have meat the sharehniding guiceine.

Numkeer of shares Sharcholding

beneficially held at asa ¥

28 February 2023 of salary Guigelne met
Executive directors
James Gundy 772185 515% Yes
Nicholas Stone 14500 17% No
Tris Sirmmonds 348447 279% Yes
Non-executive directors
Stephen Kunzer 10,000
Nigel Payne 8268

Elzaketh Gooch -
Joanne Lake -

1 Shareniolding as a percentage of salary 15 caloulated usng the base salary/fee and the clos ng share price on 28 February 2023
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

The table below provides details of the interests of the executive directors in incentive awards dunng the year

Awards Awards
Feld at Share pnce Exercised/ held at 28 Exercise Exercisable Exercisable

1Mar 2022 Grant date  on grant £' Granted released Lapsed Feb 2023 price £ from to
James Gundy
2018 LTIP 33,294 28 0cl18 230 - - 117243 33.204« - 286 MayZ3 290ct 28
2019 DBP 194000 17 Jun 19 210 - 194,000 - 194,000 - 30 Aug 22 30 Aug 22
2019 LTIP 184 210 1ul 19 1855 - - 18,010 166,200 - 1Jul 24 1Jul 29
2019 SAYE 5625 5 Jul 12 180 - 562b - - 160 tAug 22  1Feb 23
2020 DBP 3858106 9 Jul 20 121 - - - 388,126 122 9l 23 9 Jul 23
2020 LTIP 218750 24 Jul 20 123 - - - 218.75C - 24 il 25 24 jul 30
2021 DBP 169,926 g Jun 21 266 - - - 168,925 266 Slun24 8lun24
2021 LTIP 300884 14 Jun21 291 - - - 300,884 - 14 Jun26 14 Jun 31
2023 LTIP - 18 Feb 23 314 164,360 - - 164,360 - 15 Feb 26 16Febk 33
Nicholas Stone®
2019 LTIP 105,263 1Jul19 1855 - - 68.610 36,653 - 1Jul 24 1Jul 29
2019 SAYE 4500 5 Jul1g 1.8C - - - 45600 160 1Aug?22 1Feb 23
2020 DBP 28245 9 Jul 20 121 - - - 28,245 122° 9 Jul 23 9l 23
2020 LTIP 156,250 24 Jul20 123 - - - 156,250 - 24 Jul25 24 Jul 3¢
2021 DBP - 8 Jun 21 266 - - - 25,398 2606 8lun24 8 Jun?24
2021LTIP - 14 jun2A 2N - - - 88,495 - MMJunZ6 14 Jun 31
Tris Simmonds
2019 DBP 50,000 17 Jul19 2.03b - - - 20,000 200 30Aug2? 13ep?22
2020 DBP 3451 9 Jul 20 122 - - - 34 511 - 9 Jul 23 9 Jul 23
2021 DBP - 8l 266 26,315 - - 26,315 - 8lun24 8lun24
2023 LTIP - 18 Feb23 314 259,516 - - 269 516 - 15 Feb26 16Feb 33

faSRe]

Share price Incluaed 1s the market price or the date of granl When calculating the number of awards to be made, the Company uses the middie market quotations
for te three trading days prior to grant

James Gundy s 2018 LT|P award vosted in regard 0 33,294 shares on 26 May 2021, with the rermainaer lapsing Trie award tiat vesteo was now subject to a two-
year holding penod whick ended on 26 May 2023

Detalls of Nicholas Stone's leaving arrangements are sel out earler in this reporl

James Gunidy and Nickolas Stone were also g ven corresponding oplions under the Company Share Option Pian ("CSOP ) over 24,6560 shares, which will vest on the
same date as the DBP award Tiis Simmaonds was given corresponding oplions ander the CSOP over 15,000 shares. whicn will vest on the same dale as tre DBP
award The number of shares in respect of wnich the DBP award will vest will be reduced to take accourt of any gair in value, as at exercise, of tne CSOP options

The performance conditions attached to the outstanding LTIP awards are as follows:

— 2019 LTIP: Nichclas Stone's 2019 LTIP award s tested sclely on adjusted EPS in FY22 (the final year of the performance period

for the award) with 25% vesting for adjusted EPS of 35 pence rising on a straight-line basis for 100% vesting for adusted EPS
of 46 pence. As lames Gundy's award was granted prior to his becoming Group Chief Executive Officer, his award included

a performance condition linked to the underlying operating profit achieved by the previous Shipbroking Division with 15% of

the award vesting by reference to adjusted EPS (with the sarne thresholds as Nichclas Stone's award) and 85% vesting by
reference to the previous Shipbroking Division's underlying operating profit achieved in FY22 (the final year of the performance
period for the award) with 25% of this portion vesung for underlying operating profit of £1125 millon nsing on a straight-line
basis for 100% vesting for underlying operating profit of £15 millon. Detall on the cutturn of these awards 1S set out In the 2022
Directers’ Remuneration Report forming part of the Group's Annual Report and Accounts 2022

2020 LTIP. Nicholas Stone's 2020 LTIP award 1S tested solely on underlying EPS in FY23 (the final year of the performance pernod
for the award) with 25% vesting for underlying EPS of 30 pence tising on a straight-ine basis for 100% vesting for underlying EPS
of 42 pence. As James Gundy's award wag granted prior to his becoming Group Chief Executive Officer, his award again ncluded
a performance condition inked to the underlying operating proft achieved by the previous Shipbroking Division with 35% of the
award vesting by reference to underlying EPS {with the same threshiolds as Nicholas Stone’s award) and 65% vesting by reference
to the previous Shipbroking Division's undertying operating profit achieved in FY23 {the final year of the performance pernod for the
award) with 25% of this portion vesting for underlying operating profit of £138 milllon nsing on a straight-line basis for 100% vesting
for underlying operating profit of £18 milicn Detail on the outturn of these awards is set out above

2021 LTIP. Both Jarnes Gundy's and Nicholas Stone’s 2021 LTIP awards had performance critena based on the Company’s
growth in absolute TSR measured over a three—year performance period ending on 12 June 2024, as follows. the masimum
possible opportunity will vest f growth in TSR s equivalent to & CAGR of 22% or more per annum over the three-year
performance periad. If CAGR over the performance penod 1s less than 12% per annum, none of the awards will vest. if CAGR

15 12% per annum, 25% of the award will vest, and f CAGR 1s between 12% and 22% per annurm, the vesting cutcome will be
calculated on a straight-line basis between 25% and 100%
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- 2022/23 LTIP Both James Gundy's and Tris Simmonds 2022/23 LTIP awards had performance criteria based on the Company’s
growth in EPS measured over a three-year performance perod ending on 28 February 2025 as follows the maximum possible
opportunity will vest If growth in EPS 15 equivalent to a CAGR of 256% or more per annurn over the three-year performance
penod; if CAGR over the performance period s less than 16% per annum, none of the awards will vest; If CAGR is 16% per
annum, 256% of the award will vest. and f CAGR is between 16% and 25% per annum, the vesting outcome will be calculated
on a straight-line basis between 26% and 100%

The following table shows the year-on-year percentage change in the salary, benefits and annual borus of the directors and the
ermployees of the Company for FY23 The table also includes a companson against the average for the Group's UK employees for
FY23 compared to FY22 The Company considers that the Group’'s UK employees is the more representative comparater group, as
the majority of the Group's employees are not employed by the Company itself, and as the Group Chief Executive Officer and the
rmajority of the Group's workforce are UK-based

% Change in base salary % Change in benefits % Change in annual bonus
FY22 to FY21te FY22 to FY2tte FY22 to FyZ21to
FY23 Fy22 FY23 Fy2z FY23 Fy22
All UK employees 12% 6% 0% 0% 104% 13%
All Plc ermmployees 7% 10% 0% -20% 66% 1o%
Executive directors
Jarmes Gundy’ 6% N/A 0% N/A 51% N/A
Nicholas Stone 0% 3% 0% 22% - -78%
Tns Sirmmonds? 50% N/A 0% N/A 194% N/A
Non-executive directors
Joanne Lake’® N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Lesley Watking® 0% 0% N/A N/A N/A N/A
Stephen Kunzer 0% 0% N/A N/A N/A N/A
Migel Payne® 0% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Elzabeth Gooch® 18% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

1 James Gundy joined the board on 1 Januaty 2021 so there 13 no bRor year comparison in respect of FY20 and FY21

2 Tns Simmonds was appointed as Group Chief Operating Otticer on 1 August 2021, so there is no prior year comparnson
3 Joanre Lake joined the boara on 1 March 2022 so there 12 no prior year comparnscn

4 Lesley Watkins resigned on 31 March 2022

5 Nigel Payne joined the board on 1 May 2021, 0 there 15 no prior year compariscn

& Elzabetr Gooch joined the board on 1 August 2021, 50 there 1S no prior year Ccomparson

The table below shows how the Group Chief Executive Officer’s single-figure remuneration for FY23 compares to the equivalent
single-figure remuncration for the Grou's UK employees ranked at the 26th, 50th and 75th percentle.

Phth 75th

percentle Median porcentile

Your Methog pav ratio pay ratio pay rato
2023 Option A 74:1 404 18:1
2022 Option A 801 541 211
202 Cption A 2141 131 51
256th 76th

percentile Median percentile

pay pay pay

2023 £ £ [
Total pay and benefits 65,600 102,000 230,000
Salary element of total pay and benefits 48,600 78,462 120,000
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The Company has agan selected Option A as the method for calculating the CEO pay ratio Option A calculates a single figure

for every UK-based employee In the year to 28 February 2023 and identfies the employees that fall at the 25th, 50th and 75th
percenties This method was chosen as it 1s considered the most accurate way of identifying the relevant employees and aligns to
how the single figure table 1s calculated

The Company has included the following elements of pay in its calculation: annual basic salary, allowances, bonuses share
awards, employel s pension conlribulions, and PIIL benehts | hese pay elements were separated inte recurring and non-recurring
components The recurnng components were scaled relative to the proportion of the financial year worked by each individual
employee before being added to the non-recurnng elements such as bonus and share awards

This resulted N a single figure for each employee, from which the individuals at the 25th, 50th and 75th percentles could
be identihed

The chart below shows total employee remuneration and distributions to shareholders paid during FY23 and FY22 (and the
difference between the two)

FY23 F22 Changes

£ millon L milton (%)

Total ermmployee remuneration 98.3 720 365%
Distributions to shareholders 2 2 0%

The chart below shows the Total Shareholder Return of the Company against the FTSE All-Share Index over the last ten years.
The Committee believes the FTSE All-Share Index 1s the most appropnate index against which the Total Shareholder Return of the
Company should be measured

2000

160.0

100.0

Indexed Total Return

500

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
e B et 11 Ple w = = FTSE All-Share

Source Datastrenm (o Rehnitry product)
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The table below provides remuneration data for the role of the CEO far the current and each of the last ten financial years over the

equivalent period

Fy2i Fv20
Ronald James
FY23 Fy22 Series/ Kidwell/ Fy1o
Jamas, James James Ronald Jarnes
Guhdy Gundy Gundy Series Kidwell
CEQ 'E;Q.OO . £000 £000 £'000 £000
Single total figure
of remuneration 2,830 714 324 404
Annual bonus
(% of maximum) 49% 34% 10% 0%
LTIP vesting
(% of raxirnum) 100% Q0% 18 0% 0%

Statement of voting at AGM

FY18 FY17 FY15 Fyis FYi4
James James Jlames James James
Hichwell Kichwell Kictwel Kichwell Kicdtwelt

£'000 £'000 £°000 £°000 £000

579 404 577 549 438

50% 0% 60% 56% 22%
0% 0% N/A® 0% 0%

The following tabie sets out the votes cast (Including those cast by proxy) at the 2022 AGM In respect of the Committee’s Report
for the year ending 28 February 2022 and at the 2020 AGM in respect of the prior Directors’ Remuneration Policy (which was the
last general meeting of the Company at which a resolution was moved by the Company In respect of the Policy)

Votes
for
Resolution # Yo
Approval of Remuneration Report for
vear ending 28 February 2022 4348717 7124
Approval of Remuneration Policy 7623464 9750

Voles
agamst
Total voles Votes
# e cast wathbeld
17565702 2876 6,104,419 1143182
195,386 260 7818850 1540245

The Committee noted and considered the voting outcomes for the resolution to approve the Remuneration Report at our 2022
AGM However, as the Company disclosed in the announcement regarding the results of the 2022 AGM, the board considers that
the operation of its remuneration practices are very clearly in the best interests of all stakeholders of the business and that the

Remuneration Committee has discharged its duties properly

The board further notes that some of the votes against the Directors’ Remuneration Report were cast as a result of “vote aganst”
recommendations being received from certain proxy shareholder advisory services. From the Company’s perspective, these
recommendations did not take account of the Company's specific business model and governance structures and were not

nformed by any direct engagement with the Company

The board and the Remuneration Committee encourage an open and constructive dialogue directly with its shareholders and
continue to be wiling to engage with any shareholder on any relevant topics should they so wish, ncluding all remuneration topics

within the Committeg’s remit.
Elizabeth Gooch

On behalf of the Remuneration Committee
15 Novernber 2023
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Directors’ Report

for the year ended 28 February 2023

Rebecca-Joy Wekwete
Company Secretary

This section contans additienal mformation that the directers are required to incluce
within the Annual Report Together with the Strategic Report on pages 2 1o b3, it
forms the Management Report for the purposes of DTR 416R Other information that
Is relevant to this Directors’ Report, and which is incorporated by reference into this
Directors’ Report. can be found elsewhere in this Annual Report, as follows

- Results and decisions relating to dividends on pages b to 6.

- Important everts during the year ended 28 February 2023 and likely future
developments In the business of the Company or its subsidiaries on pages 5 to 7
and 14 to 1b

— Going concern on page 30.

- Greenhouse gas emissions on page 38.

- Employee engagement and diversity on page 43

— Engagement with clients and other key stakeholders on pages 32 to 33

—~ Corporate Governance Report on pages 54 to 89

-~ Section 172 Staterment on pages 32 t0 33

- Risk and compliance framework review on pages 47 to 53.

— Principal decisions taken during the year on pages 2,14 to 15 and 32 to 33.

— EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45

— Non-Financial Infformation Statement on page 46.

Principal activity

Braemar Pic (registered number 02286034) is the uttimate holding Company for
the Braemar Group, a global provider of expert investrnent, chartering, and risk
rmanagement advice to the shipping and energy markets.

Review of the business
A more detailed review of the business for the year 1s included in the Charman’s
Statement, the Group Chief Executive Officer’'s Statement and the Financial Review

Amendment of Articles of Association
The Company’s sharehclders may amend the Company's Articles of Association by
special resolution

Branches outside the United Kingdom
The Group has branches and/or representative offices in China, Switzerland and Greece.

Change of control — significant agreements

No person heolds securities in the Company carrying special rights wath regard to
control of the Company. The Company I1s not aware of any agreements between
holders of secunties that may result in restrictions In the transfer of securities or
voting nghts

The Convertible Loan Netes that are summarnised below carry certain accelerated
conversion rights in the event of default on financial commitments associated with
the Instruments or business distress within the Group. The Convertible Loan Notes
shall autormatically convert or be redeemed in the event that ary perscn or persons
acting in concert holds more than 50% of the issued share capital of the Group or
an mparrment charge in excess of €50 millon is reflected in the audited Financial
Statements of the Group.

There are a number of ordinary course of business agreements that take effect,
alter or terminate following a change of control of the Company, but none of these
are considered to have a significant potential impact on the business of the Group
as a whole.

Convertible Loan Note Instruments

On 26 Septernber 2017, the Company completed the acquisition of Braemar Naves

A new class of convertible loan note instruments (the “Convertible Loan Notes”)
formed a core part of the consideration for this transaction The Company has issued
all of the Convertible Loan Notes to be 1ssued in connection with this acquisiion, of
which €4,448 956 worth remain outstanding
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These Convertible Loan Nates are unsecured and uniisted The Convertible Loan Notes are dencminated in euros and. as part of
the restructunng, it was agreed that they would carry a $% per annum coupon frem September 2025, ncreasing from 3% The
conversion prices were fixed at 3203 pence for mamagement note holders and 450 3 pence for non-management note holders
For more information on the Convertible Loan Notes, please see Note 27 to the Financial Statements

Palitiral nontrihutions
There were no political contributions during the vear ended 28 February 2023 (2022 £nil)

Share capital and voting rights

As at 28 February 2023, the Company’s total Issued ordinary share capital was 32,924.877 shares of 10 pence each (28 February
2022, 32200,272 shares). All of the Company’s shares are fully paid up and quoted on the London Stock Exchange pic's Official
List. The nghts and obligations attaching to the Company’s ordinary shares {as well as the powers of the Company’s directors and
any rules relating to their appointrment and replacement) are set out In the Company's Articles of Asscciation, coples of which can
be found online at Companies House, or by writing 1o the Company Secretary. There are no restrictions ¢n the voting nghts or the
transfer restrictions attaching to the Company’s issued ordinary shares

At the AGM held on © August 2023, shareholders passed a resolution to renew the directors’ authoernty to allot shares in the
Cornpany Further detalls are prowded In the Notice of the AGM

Share schemes
Detalls of long-term incentive schemes are provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 72

Purchase of own ordinary shares

The Company 1s autherised to make market purchases of the Company's ordinary shares pursuant to the authonty granted by its
shareholders at the AGM held on @ August 2023 This authority will expire at the end of the 2024 AGM The Company did not use
this authority in either the year ended 28 February 2022 or the year ended 28 February 2023,

The directors proposed that this authonty be renewed at the 2023 AGM in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association
and this resolution was passed In accordance with the ABI Investor Protection Guidelines, the maximum number of ordinary
shares which may be acquired under such authority 1s 10% of the Company’s issued ordinary shares The directors will only make
a purchase of shares using this authonty If 1t is expected to result in an increase in earnings per shbare and will take into account
other avallable Investrment opportunities, appropriate gearng levels and the overall position of the Company Any shares purchased
in accordance with this authority will subsequently be cancelled

Options and ESOP Trust
The total number of options to subscribe for shares in the Company that were outstanding as at 28 February 2023 was 2,754,003,

being 8 36% of the 1ssued share capital.

During the year ended 28 February 2023, 2,795,000 of the Company’s ordinary shares were purchased by SG Kleinwort Hambros
Trust Company (Cl) Ltd, as Trustee of the Company’'s ESOP Trust (2022:2740164). The Trustee had absolute discretion and
independence In respect of any trading decisions it made in respect of these purchases. As at 28 February 2023, the ESOP heid
3579630 shares

Directors and their interests

The directors of the Company as at the date of this Directors’ Report are shown con pages 58 to 59 Lesley Watkins served as
a director of the Company during the year ended 28 February 2023 and until 31 March 2022 Stephen Kunzer aiso served

as a director of the Company during the year ended 28 February 2023 and until 31 January 2023 Nicholas Stone also

corvod ac a director of the Company until 31 July 2023,

The drrectors’ beneficial Interests in the ordinary shares and share options of the Company as at 28 February 2023 are disclosed
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 81, There have not been any changes In such interests between 28 February 2023
and 31 Cctober 2023

As at 28 February 2023, the executive directors, n common with cther employees of the Group. also have an interest in 3579630
(2022 2669,.837) ordnary 10 pence shares held by SG Kleinwort Hambios Trust Company {Cl} Ltd on behalf of the Employee Share
Ownership Plan and in 2,220 (2022 §2,230) ordinary 10 pence shares held by Computershare Trustees (lersey) Limited on behalf
of the ACM Shipping Limited Employee Trust

The directors held no materal interest in any contract of signficance entered by the Company or its subsidianes dunng the year
ended 28 February 2023

During the year, the Company maintained cover for its directors and officers and those of its subsidiary companies under a
drectors’ and officers’ hability Insurance policy, as permitted by the Companies Act 2006
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Significant shareholdings

As at 28 February 2023, the Company was aware of approximately 334% of its ordinary shares being held by Group employees
and the ESOP Trust. The working vendors of Braermar Naves Corporate Finance GmbH currently hold €4.448956's worth of
Conwvertible Loan Notes

As at 28 February 2023, the Company was aware of the following significant direct or indirect shareholdings of 3% or more:;

Percentage

of issued

Number of ordinary

Name shares share capital
SG Kleinwort Hambros Trust Company (Cl) Lmited as Trustee of the Braemar Shipping Services Plc ESOP 3641920 11.06%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management 2871688 8.72%
Interactive Investor 2357228 716%
Quentin Scanes 1,288,890 3.91%
Barclays Wealth 1185,036 360%
National Financial Services 1127806 3.43%
Magnus Halvorsen 1.000.000 304%

1 Percentages are shown as a percentage of the Company's total voting nights as at 28 February 2023

Financial instruments
The Group's financial sk management objectives and policies are set out n the Corporate Governance Report on pages 56 to 57
and in the Strategic Report on pages 47 to 53,

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for prepanng this Annual Repert and the Group and Company Financial Statements in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations

Company law requires the drrectors to prepare Group and Company Financial Statements for each financial year Under such law,
they are required to prepare the Group Financial Statements in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity
with the Companies Act 2006 Under the Financial Conduct Authority's Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules, Group Financial
Statements are required 1o be prepared n accordance with UK adopted IAS and the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Under company law, the directars must not approve the Group Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and farr view of the state of affars of the Group and the Compary and of the profit or loss of the Group and the Company for that
pencd

In prepanng these Financial Staterments, the directors are required to

- select sutable accounting policies In accordance with |IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors and then apply them consistently,

- make Judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- present nformation, INcluding accounting policies, In a manner that provides relevant, relable, comparable and
understandanle information,

- priwide additicnal riscins ires when compliance wirh the specifie renirements in IFRSs 1s insufficient 1o pnable vsers
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group's financial position and
financial performance.

- inrespect of the Group Financial Staterments, state whether UK adopted IAS and the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006
have been followed, subject to any rmatenal departures disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements:

- inrespect of the Parent Company Financial Statements, state whether UK adopted IAS in conformity with the Companies Act
have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explaned in the Financial Statements; and

- prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s appropriate to presume that the Company and the
Group will nct continue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting recoerds that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
and Group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable
them to ensure that the Company and the Group Financial Statements comply with Section 403 of the Companies Act 2006
They are responsible for such nternal controls as they determine 1 necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements
that are free from matenal misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error. and have general responsibility for taking such steps as
are reasonably open to therm to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other iregulariies
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Under applicable law and regutations, the drectors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report, Drrectors’ Report,
Directors’ Remuneration Report and corporate governance statement that comples with that law and those regulations

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corperate and financial information included on the
Company’s website. Legislaton in the UK governing the preparation and dissermination of Financial Statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions

Responsibility statement of the directors in respect of the annual Financial Report
Each of the directors, whose detalls can be found on pages 58 to 59, to the best of therr knowledge confirm that the

- consolidated Financial Staternents, prepared in accordance with UK adopted 1AS and the regurements of the Companies Act
2006 give a true and far view of the assets, labilities, financial position and profit of the Parent Company and undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole,

- Annual Report, ncluding the Strategic Report and the Directorg’ Report, together includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company and undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the principal nsks and uncertainties that they face,

- Annual Report and accounts, taken as a whole, 1s far, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's position and performance, business model and strategy.

Disclosure of information to the auditors
In accordance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2008, each person who 1s a Director at the date of approval of this Annual
Report confirms that:

- so far as the drector 1s aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor I1s unaware, and
- the director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information

Forward-looking statements

Where this Annual Report contains forward-looking statements, these are based on current expectations and assumptions

and only relate to the date on which they are made. These staterments should be treated with caution due to the Inherent risks,
uncertanties and assumptions underlying any such forward-looking information. The Group cautions Investors that a number of
factors, including matters referred to in this Annual Repaort, could cause actual results to differ matenally from those expressed or
imphed in any forward-looking statement. Such factors include, but are not imited to, those discussed on pages 47 to 53 of this
Annual Report.

Forward-looking statements in this Annual Report inchide statemenits regarding the intentions, beliefs or current expectations of
our directors, officers and employees concerning, among other things, the Group's results, financial condition, Iquidity, prospects,
growth, strategies and the business Neither the Group, nor any of the Directors, officers or employees, provides any representation,
assurance or guarantee that the occurrence of the events expressed or implied in any forward-looking staterments in this Annual
Report will actually occur Undue rellance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements Other than in accordance
with cur legal and regulatory obligations, the Group undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking
statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or ctherwise

Appointment of the auditors
In accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 2008, a resolution for the reappointrnent of BDO LLP as auditor of the
Company was proposed and pasced at the AGM heid on © August 2023

Annual General Meeting

The 2023 AGM of the Company was held on 9 August 2023 at the Company’s offices; only those resolutions that did not relate
to the 2023 Annual Report and accounts were dealt with and the meeting was adourned to a later date The reconvened AGM
will be held at 10 am on 18 December 2023 at the Company's offices at One Strand, Trafalgar Sguare, London, WC2N BHR

The reconvened meeting will deal with resolutions 110 4 (inclusive). as set out in the Notice of Meeting that was sent to
shareholders on 17 July 2023

By order of the board
Rebecca-Joy Wekwete

Company Secretary
15 Novermnber 2023
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Braemar Plc

Opinion on the Financial Statements
I Cur opinion:

- the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at
28 February 2022 and of the Grou's profit for the year then ended:

- the Group Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international
accounting standards;

- the Parent Company Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; and

- the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008,

We have audited the financial statements of Braemar Plc {the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) for the year
ended 28 February 2023 which comprise.

Composition Financial reporting framework

Group - Consolidated Incorme Staternent Applicable law and UK adopted international
- Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income  accounting standards.
- Consohdated Balance Sheet
- Consoldated Staternent of Changes in Total Equity
+ Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
+ Notes to the financial statermnents, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Parent Company - Company Balance Sheet Applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
+ Company Statement of Changes in Total Equity Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard
- Notes to the financial statements, including a 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework {United Kingdom
summary of signficant accounting policies Generally Acceptled Accounting Practice)

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accerdance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK} and applicable law, Qur
respeonsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained 1s sufficient and appropriate 10 provide a basis for our
opinion. Qur audt opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit & Risk Committee.

Independence

Foliowing the recommendation of the Audit & Risk Committee, we were appointed by the board of directors on 2 Qctober 2018
to audit the financial staternents for the year ended 28 February 2018 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement is five years, covering the years ended 28 February 2019 to 28 February 2023, We rermain independent
of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to iisted public interest entities, and we have fullilled our
other ethical responsitilities i accordance with these reguirements. The non-audit services prohibited by that standard were not
provided to the Group or the Parent Company

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financia! statements, we have concluded that the drrectors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the

preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Qur evaluation of the directors” assessment of the Group and the Parent

Company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting includea:

- Evaluating the directors’ going concern assessment and forecasts, including assessing the underlying base case cash flow
forecasts by obtaining supporting documents, including current forward order book and considering other impacts such as:
- geo-poitical conflict on the business and the shipping industry,
= current economic matters;

- Climate-change; and

- the impact of the legally privileged independent internal investigation {led by independent external legal counsel and
supported by independent forensic accountants) (the "Internal Investigation™) and associated share suspension, both of
which were announced by the directors on 26 June 2023;

- Evaluating the stress tests performed by the directors, (including additional stress tests and sensitivities identified by the
directors following the Internal Investigation and impact of the matter disclosed in Note 28 1o the financial statements) to
determine whether they are appropnate based on our knowledge of the business and industry and whether further stress tests
should be performed,

- Reviewing the reverse stress test forecast 1o assess the point al which covenants would be breached or a liquidity
event triggered,

- Considerng the directors’ conclusion that the fikekhood of the reverse stress case scenano matenalising is remote and the
ability of the directors to undertake further mitigating actions that are within their control should this be requred,
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- Assessing the Group's covenant compliance calculabons (actual at year-end and forecast post year-end) with the terms of the
facility agreement;

- Assessing the post year end covenant walvers received from the provider of the banking facllities following the delay in approval
of the financial statements,

- Assessing the impact on the banking facilities as a result of the findings of the Internal Investigation and observing covenant
WANET COrresnnniipnee,

- Assessing the impact of prior penod adjustments on retrospective covenant complance submissions; and

- Assessing the financial statement disclosures regarding going concern to determing whether they are complete and accurate

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group and the Parent Company’s abiity to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue

In relation to the Parent Company's reporting on how it has applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing
material to add or draw attention to N relation to the directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether the directors
considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting

Qur responsibilites and the responsibilites of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of
this report

Overview
Coverage 23% {2022 98%) of Group revenue and 28% (2022 95%) of Group total assets
Key audit 2023 2022
matters 1 Acquisition of Southport Maritime Inc v
2 Disposal of Cory Brothers Division™ v
3 Cut-off on revenue recognition and compliance with the requirement v
of IFRS 12 revenue recognition™™
4 Imparment of goodwill in respect of the Corporate Finance Division v
(Naves) Cash Generating Unit (“CGL")
5 Accounting treatment of certain legacy transactions subject to Internal v
Investigation
The accourting treatment for the disposal of Cory Brothers Division 1 no longer considered 1o be a key audt matter for the 2023
audit on the basis that the transact on completea n 2022
* Cut-off an revenue recognition s no longer considered to be a key audit matter due to reduced assessed nskin the current year
Materiality Group financial statements as a whole

£O01000 (2022 £450000) based on 5% (2022, 5%) of underlying profit before tax

An overview of the scope of our audit

The Group has diverse International operations Our Group audit was scoped by obtaning an understanding of the Group and
its environment. Including the Group's systern of internal control, and assessing the risks of matenal misstaterment in the Financial
Statements We also addiessed he sk ol imanagement override of internal controls, including assessing whether there was
evidence of bias by the Directors that may have represented a risk of matenal misstaterment

We designed an audit strategy to ensure we have obtaned the required audit assurance for each component for the purposes of

our Group audit opinion Components were scoped in to address aggregation risk and to ensure sufficient coverage was olbtained
of group balances on which to base our audit ocpinion
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Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Braemar Plc

O L . R
For the work performed by component auditors. we determined the level of involvernent needed in order to be able to conclude
whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the Group financial statements as a
whole Our involvement with component auditors included the foliowing:

Significant components + We focussed auw Group audil scope primarily on the audit work at tour signihcant components
including the Parent Company, which were subject to full scope audit procedures.

The significant components compnse 79% of Group Revenue and 77% of Group assets.

The Group audit team audited two significant components with the Singapore and Australia
components being audited by local BDO member firms in the respective countries

The Group audit team ssued the Group Instructions, oversaw the risk assessment process and
the overal audit approach and strategy with the component auditars at the planming stage The
Group audit tearm performed remote reviews of the significant components working papers The
Group audit team attended several virtual conference meetings with the compenent auditors
throughout the planning, fieldwork and completion stages of the audit

Other full scope audits and - There were three components for which full scope audits were carred out in order to provide
Specified audit procedures additicnal audt coverage
- There were two further components which were considered for specified audit procedures
- Specified audt procedures were performed to address the risk of matenal misstaternent mited
to the significant risk in refation to revenue recognition and certain other financial statement areas
within these components All other balances were scoped in for analytical review procedures
+ The additional full scope audts and specific scope audit testing was performed on components
that contribute an aggregate of 14% of the Group revenue and 21% of Group assets
- These procedures were performed by a component team within BDO LLP, a BDC member firm
in Germany and a UK non-BOO Member firm. The Group audtt team directed the work for the
specified procedures through the issuance of detaled instructions, briefings and performing a
review of selected working papers.

Remaining components + The remaning 17 components were scoped in for analytical review procedures to confirm our
conclusion that there were no significant risks of material misstatement in the aggregated

financial Information.
+ Certain financial statement areas of the 17 components were subject to unpredictabilty testing
+ Al of the analytical reviews were completed by the Group audit team or BDG member frms

Cur work on the assessment of potential impacts on cimate-related nsks on the Group's operations and financial
statements included

- Engurries and challenge of management to understand the actions they have taken to identify clmate-related nsks and therr
potental impacts on the financial statements and adeguately disclose clmate-related nsks within the Annual Report,

- Our own gualtative risk assessment taking into consideration the shipping secter in which the Group operates and how climate
change affects this particular sector;

- Review of the minutes of board ang Audit and Risk Committee meeting and other papers related to climate change, and

- We challenged the extent to which climate-related considerations, Including the expected cash flows, where appropriate, n the
directors’ going concern assessment and viabllity assessment.

We also assessed the congistency of management’s disclosures included as “Statutory other information” within the Annual
Repert (including the disclosures in the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures ("TCFD”) section) within the financial
staterments and with our knowledge obtained from the audit Our responsiility over other information is further described in the
Reporting on other informaton section of our report

Based on our risk assessiment procedures, we did not identify there to be any Key Audit Matters materially impacted by
climate-related nsks
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most signihcance n our audit of the Financial
Staterments of the current penod and include the most significant assessed nsks of matenal misstatement (whether or not due
to fraud) that we identfied, ncluding those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of rescurces
in the audit, and directing the efforts of the engagement team These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

Koy audit matter
Acquisition

of Southport
Maritime Inc.

(See Note 14 and the
accounting policy in
Note 3a}

Impairment of
goodwill in respect
of the Corporate
Finance Division
{Naves) Cash
Generating Unit
{“caGu~}

(See Note 15 and the
accounting policy in
Note 3k)

On 16 of December 2022, the Group acauired
the entire share caprtal of Southport Maritime Inc
{(“Southport™) The purchase price amounted

to £66 millen in up-front cash (subject

to claw backs) and £25 mition in deferred
consideration in the form of shares of Braemar
Ple. Al consideration is subject to future
employment conditions.

In ine with IFRS 3 Business Combinations the
Group 1s required to record identifiable assets
and labilities at fair value.

The purchase price allocation performed
requires significant judgement and estimates,
specificaly in relaticn to the valuation of
acquired ntangible assets. Changes in these
assumptions may have a maternal impact on
the farr values Due to all consideration being
contingent on future service, and therefore
treated as remuneration, the farr value of
consideration was £nil resultting in a gain

on bargain purchase being recorded in the
consolidated income statement of £30 million

Key assumptions were particularly noted in the
cash flow farecast and discount rate.

There 15 alse a sk that the disclosures are not
complete and accurate.

Due to the matters described, we considered
this business combination and i particular the
purchase price allocation as a key audit matter

Due to the reduction In revenue and profit,
management icdentified a potential imparment
of the corporate finance CGU

Management have assessed impairment
using a value in use model which requires a
number ot assumptions and estimates

The imparment review icdentified an
mparment of £21 milion

Key assumptions In the impairment review
nclude short term revenue growth rates,
earnings margins, long term growth rates and
discount rates,

For these reasons we considered this area as
a key audit matter
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How the scope of our audit addressed the key audit matter
Our procedures included.

- Review of the share purchase agreement and
confirmation of key terms including confirmation that
all consideration was subject to future employment
condrions,

- With the support of our Internal valuation experts
and through interacticns with the management
team of Southport, we assessed the completeness
of intangible assets identfied, appropriateness of
valuation metnodologies utiised and assessed the key
assumptions including revenue growth rate and discount
rate applied;

- Recalculating the gain on bargam purchase recorded
n the consclidated income statement based on the
consideration and net assets acquired;

+ Cbtaning supporting evidence for all other material
acquired assets and liabilties, on a sample basis, other
than for cash which was tested In total, and

+ We have also assessed the note disclosure (Note 14)
under the requirements of IFRS 3 for completeness and
accuracy

Key observations:

Based on the procedures performed, we are satished
that the acquisiticn accounting fer Scuthport meets the
requirements of IFRS 3 and that the disclosures comply
with the requirements of the accounting framework

Qur precedures included

- Challenging management’s assumptions in respect of
the cash flow forecasts including cbtaining supporting
docurnents for reveriue growth such as current pipeline,
considenng historic forecasting accuracy, analysing
Industry trends and using our knowledge of the business.

- Challenging management on any significant changes in

assumptions from prior year, including changes to short

term revenue growth rates. earnings margins, long term
growth rates and discount rates.

Utlsing our own internal valuabon experts to assess

the adequacy of the discounts rates and long-term

growth rates applied, and to assess the mechanics and

mathematical accuracy of the value In use models; and

« Considenng managerment's sensitivities and perforrning
our own sensitivities where considered neceassary in
respect of the key assumptions.

Key observations:

Based on the procedures performed. we are satsfied that
the assumptions made by management in the impairment
review are appropriate and therefore also that the
imparrment recognised 1s within an acceptable range
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Independent auditor’s report continued
to the members of Braeimar Plc

Key audit matter How the scope of our audit addressed the key audit matter

Accounting Cur procedures included:
treatment of

certain legacy

As announced by the directors on 26 June
2023, with further updates announced on

« With the su rt of X | fi ialist
22 September 2023 and 26 October 2023, PPOTL OF OUF NLErnal IOTENSIC Specia IS1s.

assessing the nature, scope and objectives of the Internal

tran_sactlons the directors engaged external fore_nsm Investigation to ensure that it was appropriately designed

subjetft to |nternat accountants and cxternai Iegal adwsers 1o to address the potential issues raised,

Investigation unrdertake the internal Investigation, which . reading the output from the Internal Investigation
uttimately encompassed review of several including and consilerng management’s assessment

(See Note 28, legacy transactions

of the associated impact on the financial statements
in terms of the appropriate accounting treatment and
disclosures;

+ assessing associated documents, including minutes of
meetings held by the Group's Investigation Cormmittee,
and holding discussions with the firms undertaking the
Internal Investigation;

- discussing the accounting treatment and guantum of
the provision with managerment and the Group's external
legal agvisers; and

- assessing the completeness and accuracy of the
disclosures included in Note 28

Chairman's Staternent
pages 5 to 7, Financial
Review pages 28 to 30,
Corporate Governance
Report pages 54 to

89 and the Report

of the Audit & Risk
Committee pages

B0 to 64)

The 26 June 2023 announcement stated that
the Internal Investigation related to "a particular
transaction of circa 33 millon, which ornginated
N 2013, and involves payments being made
through to 2017

Following the completion of the Intemal
investigation which was announced by the
directors on 26 October 2023, a provision of
£20 milion was recorded on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as set out in Note 28 The

£2 0 millon provision results from a £1.7 million
reclassihcation from trade payables where
the balance was recorded in the prior year
financial statements, and an additional charge
of £03 million to the Consclidated Income
Statement charge.

Key observations:

Based on the procedures performed, we are satisfied that
the accounting adopted in respect of the transactons 1S in
compliance with the accounting framework adopted, and

that the disclosures are complete and accurate based on

There is a nsk that the accountingis notinline  the requirerents of the accounting frarmework adopted.
wirth the results of the Internal Investigation,

that further accounting entries are required

such that the provision is not cormplete and/or

accurate, and that disclosures are not complete

and/or accurate.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of matenality both in planning and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements We
consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissions, could influence the economic decisions of
reasonable users that are taken on the basis of the financial statements.

In order to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that any misstatements exceed materalty, we use a lower matenaity
level, performance materality, 1o determine the extent of testing needed Importantly, misstaternents below these levels will not
necessarly be evaluated as immaterial as we also take accouryt of the nature of identified misstaterments, and the particular
creumstances of therr occurrence. when evaluating ther effect on the inancial statements as a whole.

Based on cur professional judgement, we determmned matenality for the financial statements as a whole and performance
materality as follows

Group Parent Company
Madteriality £801000 (2022 £450000) E£810000 (2022 £405000)
Basis 5% (2022 5%) of underlying profit before tax Based on 90% (2022 90%) of Group materialty
Rationale Underlying profit before tax 1s considered the most Capped materialty at 80% (2022 90%) of Group given the

appropriate benchmark based on the nature of
the trading business where 1IN our jJudgement the
stakehaclders would be most interested in the
performance of the busness and underlying profit
beng a key performance rmeasure In this regard
We also consider this to be consistent wath market
practice and investor expectations.
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Further materiality measures applied in the conduct of the audit include
Measure Application

Performance Croup £585000 (2022 £283000) Performance materality was set at 65% (2022- 63%) based

materiality Parent £526000 (2022 £252000) on the history of misstatements identified in the pricr years
’ ' and the number of accounts subyect to high degrees of

estiration and judgement

Component The range of materiality used for components Cur audit work at each component has been executed
materiality ranged from £430,000 to £810000 at levels of materalty applicable to each individual entity
(2022 £120000 to £405000) based on its size and risk as approved by the Group
audit tearm and N each case, lower than that applied to
the Group

We set materalty for each component of the Group based
on a percentage of between 48% and 90% (2022 27%

and 90%,) of Group materiality dependent on the size and
our assessment of the risk of material misstaterment of that
component In the audit of each component, we further
applied performance rmaterality levels of 65% (2022 62% to
70%) of the component materiality to our testing to ensure
that the risk of errors exceecding component materiality was
approprately mitigated.

Reporting Group: £18000 (2022 £8000) All audit differences in excess of the reporting threshold’
threshold are reported to the Audit and Risk Cormmittee, as well as

: - £8,000 y
Parent: £16,000 (2022 £8000) differences below that threshold that, in our view, warrarted
reporting on gualtative grounds.

Quantitative We also report 1o the Audit and Risk Commiittee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the
& qualitative overall presentation of the financial staternents
disclosures

Other information

The directars are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information INcluded in the Annual
Report other than the hnancial statements and our auditor’s report thereon Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other Information and, except to the extent atherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion therean Our respensibility is 1o read the other information and, in doing so, consicier whether the other information is
matenally inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears

to be materially misstated. If we dentify such material Inconsistencies or apparent matenal misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to a matenal misstaternent In the financial statements themsetves If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact

We have nothing to repert in this regard

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the directors’ statement in relation to going cencern, longer-term viability and that part of
the: Comarate Governance Statement relating to the Parenil Colnparny’s compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for our review

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate
Governance Statement 1s materially consistent with the financal statements or our knowledge obtained dunng the audt

Going concern and The directors statement with regards to the apprepriateness of adopting the going concern basis of
longer-term viability accounting and any material uncertanties identified set out on page 52, and
+ The directors’ explanation as to therr assessment of the Group's prospects, the pencd this
assessment covers and why the period 1s appropriate set out on page 105

Other Code provisions - Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 88;
« Board's confirmation that it has carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and principal rsks

set out on page 49,
«+ The section of the Annual Report that describes the review of effectiveness of nsk management and

internal control systerms set out on page 64; and
« The section describing the work of the Audit & Risk Commitlee set out on page 60
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Independent auditor’s report continued

to the memibers of Braemar Plc

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting
Based on the responsibilities described below and our work performed dunng the course of the audit, we are required by the
Companies Act 2006 and I1SAs (UK) to report on certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report and In cur opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit
Directors’ report - the Intormaton given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which
the financial staterments are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements, and
- the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

In the hght of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Parent Company and its
environment obtaned in the course of the audit, we have not identihed material misstatements in the
strategic report or the Directors’ report

Directors’ remuneration  In our opinion, the part of the Directors” Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly
prepared n accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Matters on which we We have nothing to report inrespect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
are required to report 20086 requires Us to report to you If, In our opINioN;
by exception - adeqguate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for

our audit have not been receved from branches not visited by us; o

+ the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audted are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns. or

» certan disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained mare fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities. the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepanng the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company’s abiiity to
continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to gong concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, of have no
realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion Reasonable assurance 1s a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an aucit conducted in accordance with ISAs {UK) will always detect a matenial
misstatermnent when it exists Misstaternents can arse from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregulanties. including fraud, are instances of non-complance with laws and regulations We design procedures in Iine with our
responsibilitios, outlined above, to delecl miatenal misstaterments n respact of iregulanties, ncluding fraud The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, inciuding fraud 1s detaited below:

- We gained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the Group and the industry in which it
operates, through discussion with management and the Audtt and Risk Committee and our knowledge of the industry,

- We focused on signihcant faws and regulations that could give rise to a material misstaterment in the financial statements,
including, but not limited to, the Companies Act 2006, the UK Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority, UK adopted
International accounting standards for the Group and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice for the Parent
Company. Health and Safety legislations, the Bricery Act 2010 and tax legislations,

- We considered compliance with these laws and regulations through discussions with management, and in-house legal counsel,
reviewing internal audit reports and discussing with the Audit and Risk Committee Our procedures also included reviewing
minutes from board meetings of those charged with governance to identify any instances of non-complance with laws and
regulatons as wel as attending Audit and Risk Commitiee meetings,

- With support from cur internal forensic speaialists, and pursuant to agreeing an appropriate imited waver of legal professional
priviege, we read and assessed the report in respect of the Internal investigation and associated cocuments, ncluding minutes
from the Investigation Committee, and held discussions with the firms undertaking the Internal Investigation — our Key Audit
Matter “Accounting treatment of certan legacy transactions subject to internal Investigation” above, contains further details:
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— With the support of our internal tax specialists, we reviewed the Group's tax computations aganst the requirements of the
relevant tax legislation and where applicable, reviewed correspondences with relevant taxation authorities;

- We reviewed the financial statements disclosures aganst the requirements of the applicable accounting framework, and

- We reviewed documentaton in relation to the Capital Reduction process that was completed 1o address the payment of
unlawful dividends tustoncally. and increase the Group's capacity to pay future dvidends. as disclosed in Note 12.

- With the support of cur forensic specialists we assessed the susceptibility of the Group's financial statements to material
misstaternent, including how fraud might occur. We considered the fraud risk areas to be management overmnde of controls and
revenue recognition, as well ag certain matters arising from the Internal Investigation. We performed a robust risk assessment and
obtained an understanding of the design and implermentation of relevant controls surrounding the revenue recognition process for
each revenue stream and the relevant controls over the financial reporting close process (FRCP) such as controls over the posting
of journals and the consolidation process and obtaned an understanding of the segregation of duties in these processes;

- In addressing the nisk of fraud Inciuding managernent override of controls we tested the appropriateness of jourhal entries
made throughout the year by applying specific criteria to select a sample. verified to supporting decuments and obtained an
understanding of the business rationale for each of the journal entries;

- Inrelation to the Improper revenue recognition fraud risk, on a sample basis, we tested revenue recognised In relation 1o new
buld and second-hand ship sales by obtaning evidence to support the satisfaction of the performance obligation and that
revenue was recorded in the correct period. We also tested material manual journals that impacted all revenue streams Ly
obtaining supporting docurments and assessing the business rationaie and validity of the journals,

- We performed a detalled review of the Group's year end adjusting and consolidation entries and investigated any that appeared
unusual as to nature or amount through Inguiry with management on the nature of the adjustrnent and verificaton ¢ supporting
evidence; assessed whether the judgements made and accounting estimates were indicative of a potential bias particularly on
one-off transactions such as the acquisition of Southport Marntime Inc which involved Judgemenits and estimates {refer to the
key audit matter section above), Specifically, we considered the facts and circumstances in respect of the Internal iInvestigation
and accounting referred to in Note 28,

—~ We also communicated relevant identfied laws and regulations and potential fraud nsks to all engagement team members
and component auditors, who were deemed to have the appropriate competence and capabilities, and remained alert te any
indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations througnout the audit;

- The component teams also considered the susceptibity of the financial statements due to fraud in respect of the relevant
components Testing of management overnige was completed by the component teams through testing the appropriateness of
a sample of journal entries in ine with the journal testing procedures as detailed above and assessrment of nsk of management
bias on the significant judgements and estimates as detaled in Note 2;

- We applied professional scepticism in our audit procedures and performed randomised procedures to nclude a level of
unpredictability, and

- We performed an assessment of the Group's IT and the wider control environment and as part of this work obtained an
understanding of the design and implermentation of [T access controls.

Qur audrt procedures were designed to respond to risks of materal misstatement in the financial statemenits, recognising that the
nsk of not detecting a materal misstatement due to fraud is higher than the nsk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud
may mvolve delberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or through collusion. There are inherent limitations
In the audit procedures performed and the further rermoved non-compliance with laws and regulations 1s from the events and
transactions reflected in the financial stalements, the less likely we are to become aware of It.

A further description of our responsibilities 1s avalable on the Financial Reporting Council's website at. wwwifrc.orguk/
auditorsrespongbilities. This descnipbion forms part of our auditor's report

Use of our report

Thus report Is made sclely to the Parent Company's members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006, Cur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent Company's members as a body,
for cur audit work, for this report. or for the opimions we have formed.

Oliver Chinneck (Senior Statutory Auditor}
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London, UK

16 November 2023

BDO LLP 1s a Iimited liability partnership registered n England and Wales (with registered number OC306127)
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the yvear ended 28 February 2023

Continuing operations

Revenue

Uther operating Income

Operating expense.
Operating costs
Acquisition-refated expenditure
Impairment of financial assets’
Imparment of goodwill

Total operating expense

Operating profit

Share of associate loss for the year
Finance income
Finance costs

Profit before tax from continuing
operations

Taxation

Profit from continuing operations

Profit net of tax from discontinued
operations

Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

Total

Earnings per ordinary share
Basic

Diluted

Continuing operations

Earnings per ordinary share
Basic
Dikuted

Naotes

10

5,10

5,10
10

20
8,10
8,10

10, 11

13
13

28 Fab 2023
5pef:iflc
Underlying tems Total
£°000 £'000 £000
162,91 162,911
- 3,846
{132,598) {(355) (132,953)
- (1,999} (1,999)
(238) (848} (1,0886)
- (9,050) (9,050)
(132,83€) (12,252} (145,088)
20,075 {8,406) 11,669
(23) - (23)
19 83 202
(2,131) (266) {2,397)
18,040 {8,689) 9,451
{4.641) {214) {4,855)
13,399 (8,803) 4,596
13,399 (8,803) 4,596
Underlying Total
46.22p 15.85p
38.52p 13.25p
46.22p 15.86p
38.52p 13.26p

Underlying
£'000

101.310

(90,503)

(747)

(91,260}
10,060
{19)

81
(1.237)

8885

(1,839)
7046

1483

8,539

Undertying

2755p
2278p

2308p
18 79p

28 Feb 2022

Specific
tems
£000

(392}
(122)

(514)
&14)

172

(342}

(342)

5,722

5,380

Total
£'000

101.310

(90,895)
(122)
(747)

(£1,764)
2546
(9

253
(1,237}

8,543
(1.829)
6,704

7215

13,919

Total

45 56p
3713p

21.94p
17.88p

1 The 2022 operating cocts have beon restated 1o show Impairmert of finarcdl assets separately on the mcome statement Imparmeent of Tnancial assets was

previously within Operating costs

The accompanying notes on pages 104 to 165 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 28 February 2023

Profit for the year

Othet comprehensive income/{expense)

e vis that will 1ot bie reclassified (o prohit ur fuss

- Actuanal gain on employee benefit schemes — net of tax

tems that may be reclassified to profit or loss:

- Foreign exchange differences on retranstation of foreign operations
- Investment hedge

- Cash flow hedges — net of tax

Othet comprehensive income/{expense) from continuing operations

Discontinued operations:
— Share of other comprehensive income/{expense) of asscciates
- Recyciing of foreign exchange reserve

Other comprehensive income from discontinued operations

Total comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

The accompanying notes on pages 104 to 185 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Braemar Plc Anval Reponl and Accounts 2023

MNotes

29

32

1,20

28 Feb 2023
£'000

4,696

2,361

2,522
(124)
291

5,060

9,646

28 Feb 2022
£'000

13,918

1,318
538
(1,968)

{112)

52
408

460

14,267
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 28 February 2023

Assets

Non-current assets
Gioodwil

Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Other investments

Investment in associate
Derivative financial instrurments
Deferred tax assets

Fension surplus

Other long-term recejvables

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Financial assets

Denvative financial mstruments
Current tax recevaile

Cash and cash equivalents
Assets held for sale

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Dernvative financial nstruments

Trade and other payables

Current tax payable

Provisions

Convertible loan notes

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities
Derwvative financial instruments
Trade and other payabies
Provisions

Convertible loan notes
Deferred consideration
Pension deficit

Total liabilities

Total assets less total liabilities
Equity

Share capital

Share premium

ESQOP reserve

Other reserves

Retaned earnings/(dsficit)

Total equity

Note

15
16
17
19
20
24

29
21

22
24
24

25

24
26

28
27

27

24
24
28
27

29

30
30

31
32

As at 28 Feb
2023
£'000

71,407
3,980
5,320

1,780
701
30
4,794
1,120
8,554

97,686
43,323

1,224
973
34,735

80,255
177,941

1,122
57,310
4141
2,575
699

65,847

20,019
344
1,022
542
734
2,862

36,413
101,260
__78881

3,292
53,796
{10,607)

28,819
1,381

76,681

Restateu

As gt 28 Feb
2022

£000

79,891
097
7078
1,780
724

5
3,713

5,636
99,827

35,792

54

13,264

48810
149637

6588
39,183
1608
486
1416

43,381

28331

335
797
2755
496
2,062
34,765
78146
71491

3z

53.030
6,771
26130
419)

7149

Restated

As &t 1 March
20A

£'000

83,955
2129
9,841
1,962
3763

200
2,900

1888
106,638

22416
746
1673
14.m
436

50,282
166,820

47833
1318
307
4,461
126

54,044

31634
174
5163

690
2,681
882
3,819

39,936
93,980
62940

3174
52510
(1.362)
27100
(18.482)

562,940

The Balance Sheets as at 1 March 2021 and 28 February 2022 have been restated for a prior period adjustment, see Note 35 for

maore detail.

The Finarcial Staternents on pages 104 to 165 were approved by the board of directors on 15 Novernber 2023 and were signed on its

behalf by
James Gundy Grant Foley
Group Chief Executive Officer Group Chief Financial Officer

Braemar Plc Arn..al Keport and Accourts 20228

Registered number. 022386034



101 Strategic Report Governance

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 28 February 2023

Restated

28 Feb 2023 28 Feb 2022

Notes £'000 £'000

Profit before tax from continuing operations 8,451 8,543

Profit before tax from discontinued operations 1 - 8,081
At istment for

Depreciation and amortisation charges 16,17 3,364 3483

Loss on disposal of intangible assets 87 -

Net loss on disposal of PPE 20 i0

Share scheme charges 4,620 2,894

Net foreign exchange gains with no cash impact (1,157) -

Gain on acquisttion of Southport 14 (3,643) -

Gain on disposal of shares n AqualisBraemar 10, 1 - (3.379)

Gain relating to disposal of Cory Brothers 10, 11 (203) (4134)

Gan on digposal of Wavespec 10, 11 - (524,

Loss on impairment of Wavespec receivable 1C, 11 - 2,381

Imparrmenit of Naves goodwill 9,060 -

tmpairment of property, plant and equipment 10 160 392

Impairment of intangible assets 60 -

Imparment of financial asset 10 848 -

Reversal of diapidations provision (124) -
Adiustrent for non-operating transactions mcluded in profit before tax.

Net finance cost 8 2,196 284

Share of loss/(profit) In asscciate from continuing and discontnued cperations 20 23 (56)
Aaustrent for cash items In other comprehensive Ncome/expense:

Contribution to defined benefit scherne 29 (450) (450)
Operating cash flow before changes in working capital 24,191 18,159
Increase n recevables (14,857) (7577)
Increase N payables 16,836 12,671
Increase N provisions 2,081 285
Cash flows from operating activities 28,261 23438
Interest receved 18 12
Interest paid {1,925) (921)
Tax pad, net of refunds (4,381) {2161
Net cash generated from operating activities 22 0R4 20 4RR

Braemar Plc Ann.al Report and Accounts 2023
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement continued
For the year ended 28 February 2023

Restated
28 Feb 2023 28 Fely 2022
Note: £'000 £000
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of praperty, plant and eguipment 17 {6985) (B52}
Purchase of other intangible assets 16 (90) {615}
Investment in associate 20 - (320}
Acgusition of business (cash acquired) 14 349 -
Disposal of Cory Brothers, net of cash disposed T 8,500 (12.363)
Disposal of Wavespec, net of cash disposed il - (53}
Proceeds from disposal of invesyment in associate 20 - 7232
Principal received on finance lkease recewvables 18 607 799
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 6.671 (5,868)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from RCF loan facility’ 7,694 8,292
Repayment of RCF loan facility' (3,000) {8,000)
Repayment of principal under lease habilities 18 {3,865) (3,621
Cash proceeds on 1ssue of new shares 30 694 -
Cash proceeds on exercise of share awards settied by release of shares from ESOP a7 -
Dividends paid 12 (3,190) (2109
Purchase of own shares 31 {(7.963) (7.043)
Settlerment of convertible loan notes 27 (1,448) (2.696)
Net cash used in financing activities {10,601) (15,077}
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18,134 477}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 25 13,264 14,164
Foreign exchange differences 2,637 277
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 25 34,735 13,964

1 The 2022 cash procecds ard repayment fram the RCT facility have been restated as they were previously reportea as £282,000 on a net basis

The accompanying notes on pages 104 to 185 form an integral part of these Financial Staterments.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Total Equity
For the year ended 28 February 2023

Retaned
Share Share ESOP Other (deficity/ Total
capital premium reserve reserves earnings equity
Group Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
At 1March 2021 3,174 52,510 {1.362) 28,004 (16,908) 686,510
Prior penod adjustment 35 - - (294) (2.576) (3,570}
At 1 March 2021 (restated) 3174 52 510 (1362} 27100 {18,482) 62.940
Profit for the year - - - - 13,919 13,919
Actuaral gain on employee benefits
schemes - net of tax - - - - 1,318 1.318
Foreign exchange differences - - - 538 - 538
Cash flow hedges — net of tax - - - 1,968) - (1,968)
Other comprehensive income from
discontinued cperations - - - 480 - 460
Other comprehensive INcome - - - (970) 1318 348
Total comprehensive income - - - (G70) 15,237 14,267
Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners,
Dvidends 12 - - - - (2108 (2109}
Shares issued 27,30, 3 47 520 (25) - - K42
Acquisttion of own shares - - {7043} - - (7043}
ESOP shares allocated - - 1,659 - (1.659) -
Share-based payments 30 - - - - 2.894 2,894
47 520 {5,408} - {(874) {5,716)
At 28 February 2022 (restated) 3.2 53,030 (6,771} 26,130 {4,119} 71,491
Profit for the year - - - - 4,596 4,696
Actuanal gain on employee benefits
schemes - net of tax - - - - 2,361 2,361
Foreign exchange differences - - - 2,622 - 2,522
Cash flow hedges - net of tax - - - 291 - 291
Net investrment hecge - - - (124) - (124)
Other comprehensive income - - - 2,689 2,361 5,050
Total comprehensive income - - - 2,689 6,957 9,646
Transactions with owners in therr
capacity as owners
Deferred tax Income on share awards - - - - 863 863
Dividends 1z - - - - (3,190) {3,190)
Shares issued 27 30 Fal 766 - - - 837
Acquisition of own shares - - (7,963) - - {(7,963)
ESCP shares allocated - - 4,127 - {3,650) 477
Share-based payments 30 - - - - 4,520 4,620
71 766 (3,836) - (1,475) {4,456)
At 28 February 2023 3,292 53,796 {10,607) 28,819 1,381 76,681

The accompanying notes on pages 104 to 165 form an integral part of these Financia) Staterments
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Notes to the Financial Statements

General information

Braemar plc {the “Company”, previously Braemar Shipping Services plc) 1s & public company imited by shares incorporated in the
United Kingdom under the Companies Act The Company is registered in England and Wales and its registered address is ! Strand,
Trafalgar Square, London, United Kingdom, WC2N 5HR. The consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as at and for the
year ended 28 February 2023 comprise the Company and its subsidianies (together referred to as the “"Group’).

Thie. Growo Tiar el Slalerenls of Bragnar PIo for 1he year ended Y8 February 2023 were authonsed for 1ssue In accordance with
a resolution of the directors on 15 Novernber 2023,

1 Basis of preparation

The Consoldated Financial Staternents have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards
and with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008 as applicable to companies reporting under those standards.

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention except for items measured at far value as set
out In the accounting policies below.

Certan statements in this Annual Report are forward-lcoking Although the Group believes that the expectations reflected in these
forward-looking statements are reasonable. 1t gives no assurance that these expectations will prove to have been correct These
forward-looking statements invalve risks and uncertanties, so actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied
by these forward-looking statements

The Group Financial Statements are presented in sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand sterling (£'000)
except where otherwise indicated.

There were no new standards or amendments (including the amendments o IFRS 3, IAS 1and the Annual frmprovements to IFRS
Accounting Standards 2018-202C Cycle) that were adopted in the annual Financial Staterments for the year ended 28 February
2023 which had a significant effect on the Group

There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and Interpretations which have been issued by the |ASE that are
effective in future accounting periads that the Group has decided not tc adopt early

The following amendments are effective in future periods and have not been early adopted by the Group:

- Insurance Contracts {IFRS 17 insurance Contracts and amendments to IFRS 17);

— Sale or Contribution of Assets Getween an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28}
— Classification of Labiities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to |AS 1);

- Disclosure of Accounting Policies {Amendments to I1AS 1and IFRS Practice Statement 2);

- Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to 1AS 8},

- Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabllities ansing from a Single Transaction (Amendments to 1AS 12); and

- International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules - Amendments to IAS 12

The adoption of these standards and amendments 15 not expected 1o have a matenal Impact on the Financial Statements of the
Group in future periods

In January 2U20. the 1ASE issued amendments to 1AS 1, which clanfy the criteria used to determing whether habilities are classified
as current or non-current These armendiments clarily that current or non-current classincation 1s based on whether an entity

has a nght at the end of the reporting pericd to defer settlement of the llabllity for at least 12 months after the reporting period
The amendments alsc clanfy that “settlement” ncludes the transfer of cash. goods, services, or equity instruments unless the
obligabon to transfer equity Instruments anses friom a conversion feature classified as an equity instrument separately from

the lability component of a compound iinancial instrument Following concerns rarsed by stakeholders, the 1ASB issued further
amendments in October 2022 to specify that only those covenants which an entity must cemply with on or before the reporting
period should affect classification of the corresponding hiabilty as current or non-current The October 2022 amendments defer
the effective date of the January 2020 amendments by one year In order that both sets of amendments are effective for annual
reporting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 with eariier application permitted

Under the Group's current accounting policy, a financial liability with an equity conversion feature is classified as current or non-
current disregarding the impact ¢f the corversion option The amendments to IAS 1 will result in the eguity corwersion feature
relating to certan of the Group's financial habities, impacting the classification of those labilies. While the Group's assessment
of the impact Is ongoing. the Group expects that amounts included as non-current In relaticn to “Convertible Loan Notes” will be
reclassfed to current babilities

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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The Company has elected te prepare its Parent Company Financial Statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
101 Reduced Disclosure Framework ("FRS 1017)

The Group and Company Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis Inreaching this conclusion
regarding the going cancern assumption, the directors considered cash flow forecasts to 28 February 2025 which 1s more than
15 monilhis Truner the dale uf sighing of these Financial statements

A set of cash flow forecasts ("the base case”) have been prepared by management and reviewed by the directors based on
revenue and cost forecasts considered reasonable in the Ight of work done on budgets for the current year and the current
shipping markets In putting together these forecasts particular attention was paid to the following factors:

- The Group's comphance with sanctions put i place as a result of the conflict In the Ukraine has meant additional work
reviewing compliance obligations on a regular basis as the laws have been amended but cid not have a material effect on
trading in FY23, nor is 1t expect to have an mpact in FY23/24.

- The levei of likely cost inflation, particularly around salaries and energy costs.

- The Group's Investment In a new office in Madrid, an acguistion in the US and new trading desks In the Securties business
have started well and there is no indication that integration risks are going to be a threat to the forecasts for FY23/24

- Geopolitical tensions can cause volatility in shipping markets, but if anything, that uncertainty can give nse to additional
opportunities for the business to support the Industry and clients further. There 1s therefore no expectation that the current
global political tensions will have an adverse impact on trading in FY23/24

- The mpact of cimate change 1s not expected to have any material impact on the business in the short term and indeed could
lead to additional opportunities.

- The impact that the investigation and resulting delay In publishing the annual report and accounts could have on the
performance and reputation of the business.

The directors have considered trading performance durng the current year and have concluded that none of these factors are
currently likely to have a significantly adverse impact on the Group's future cash flows

The Group's balance sheet has been strengthened significantly due to the strong trading and disposals of non-core assets durng
the prior year. As at 28 February 2023 the Group held net bank cash of £6.9 milion {2022: net bank debt £33 millon} As at 30
September 2023 the Group had net bank cash of £53 million, following the payrment of year end broker bonuses

30 Sept 2023 28 Feb 2023 28 Feb 2022

Note Em £m £m
Secured revolving credit faciiies 27 (26.1) (27.8) {23.3)
Cash 25 30.49 34.7 14.0
Net cash/{debt) 5.3 8.9 {9.3)

During the perod, the Group has extended its revolving credit facility ("RCF”} with its main bankers, HSBC The RCF 1s for £300
million plus an accordion Imit of £10.0 millon and has an initial termination date of Novernber 2026 with two options, subject to
lender approval. to extend the term of the facility by 12 and 24 months respectively Drawdown of the accordion facility is subject
to additional credit approval It has an EBITDA leverage covenant of 25x and a minimum interest cover of 4x. At 21 May 2022, 31
August 2022, 30 November 2022 and 28 February 2023 the Group met all financial covenant tests. In addition. there 1s a further
requirernent to provide HSBC with the Group's audited Financial Staterments within 8 months of the year-end Due to the delay In
completing the audted Financial Statemients the Group obtaned waners for this requircment

Ihe cash flow forscasts In the base case assessed the ability of the Group to operate both within the banking covenants and
the facity headrogm. and included a number of downside sensitivities on the budgeted revenue, Including a reverse stress test
scenarno The directors consider revenue as the key assumption in the Group's budget. The cost base s largely fixed or made up
of discretionary bonuses, which are directly inked to profitability. Based on two flex scenarios, a revenue decrease of 76% and a
revenue decrease of 15% from the base case, anly very minor miigations were necessary to meet banking covenants

A reverse stress test was alse parformed to ascertan the point at which the covenants would be breached In respect of the key
assurnption of budgeted revenue decline This test incicated that the business, alongside certain mitigating actions which are

fully in contral of the directors, would be capable of withstanding a reduction of approximately 35% in budgeted revenue from

the base case assumptions from September 2023 through to February 2025 In light of current trading, forecasts and the Groud's
performance over FY23, the directors assessed this downturn in revenue and concluded the ikehhood of such a reduction remote,
especially N lght of the forward order hook of $65 milion at the end of September 2023 (£38 million of which 1s for the financial
year ending February 2024 and 2025}, such that it does not impact the basis of preparation of the Financial Staterments and there
is no materal uncertanty in this regard
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 Basis of preparation ¢ ontirued
The consclidated Financial Statements incorporate the Financial Statements of Braemar Ple (previously Braemar Shipping Services
plc) and all its subsidianies made Up to 28 February each year or 29 February In a leap year

Subsidiaries are entities that are controlled by the Group Control exists when the Group has the rights to vanable returns from its
nwvolvernenl willt an entity and has the abiity to attect those returns through its power over the entity The results of subsidiaries
sold or acquired during the year are included in the accounts up to, or from, the date that control exists All intercompany balances
and transactions have been elminated in full

2 Use of estimates and critical judgements

The preparation of the Group's Financial Statements requires managerment to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting
date. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future, actual expenence may differ from these
estimates and assumptions

The following are the key estimates and assumphons that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have a significant nsk of resuliing in matenal adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and

labilities within the next financial year

Goodwil 1s tested for mparment on an annual basis, and the Group will also test for impairment at other tmes if there 1s an
indication that an impairment may exist Determining whether goodwill 1s Imparred requires an estimation of the valug-in-use of
the cash-generating units to which these assets have been allocated. The value-in-use calculation estimates the present value
of future cash flows expected to anse for the cash-generating urits The key estmates are therefore the selection of suitable
discount rates and the estimation of future growth rates which vary between cash-generating units depending ¢n the specific
nsks and the anticipated economic and market conditions related to each cash-generating unit {see Note 15 for a description of
the approach used by management to determine these key values)

As part of determining the value In use of each CGU group, Management has censidered the potential Impact of cimate change
on the business performance over the next five years, and the terminal growth rates While there is considerable uncertainty
relating to the longer term and quantifying the impact on a range of outcornes, management considers that environmental-related
incremental costs are expectad to have a relatively low impact. Recognising that there are extremne but unlkely scenarios, the
Group considers that while exposed to physical risks associated with chimate change {such as flocding, heatwaves, sea level rises
and increased precipitation) the estimated impact of these on the Group 1s not deemed material.

In addition. the Group is exposed 1o transihonal risks which might arise, for example, from government policy, custorner
expectations. matenal costs and Increased stakeholder concern. The transitional nsks could result in financial Impacts such
as higher envircnmentally focused levies (e.g. carbon pricing). While the Group 15 exposed to the potential financial mpacts
assoociated with transitional risks, based on information currently available, these are not deemed to have a significant impact.

Business combinations are accounted for under the acquisition method, based on the far values of the consideratinn paid. Assets
and habilities, with imited exceptions, are measured at their farr value at the acquisition date. The Group estimates the provisional
fair values and useful ives of acquired assets and labilities at the date of acquisition The valuation of acguired intangibles 1s
subjoct to cstimation of future cash flows and the discount rate applied to them. The valuation of the customer-related intangible
assets is determined based on an excess earnings methodology while the valuation of the marketing-related intanaible Asset is
Based on a royalty savings method, For further details on the acquisition In the year, see Note 14 Business combunations

On 28 February 2022 the Group sold Cory Brothers to Vertom Agencies BY for maximum consideration of £155 milion. Initial cash
proceeds of £65 millon were receved on completion of the transaction, and three contractual “earn-out” payments will be made,
being an agreed percentage of the future gross profits of the combined VertomnCory business over three subsequent eam out
periods. Each of the three earn-out payments are subject to minmurm and maxirnum amounts which are specified in the share
purchase agreement.

The mimmum earnout consideration has been classified as deferred consideration recevable The minimum armount 1s specified
in the SPA and Is therefore not an estirmate, however an estimate of a discount rate 1s necessary to discount the deferred
consideration recevable A discount rate of 2 39% was used to calculate the net present value, this was based on the credit risk of
Vertorn Agencies BV following a credit check performed by management Deferred consideration recevable s inibally recogrised
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
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The balance of the earnout conaideration, up to the maximum specified N the SPA has been classified as contngent consideration
recevable because 1tis contingent on the future profitability of the combined business The fair value of the contingent consideration
receivable involves two Critical estimates the future profitability of the combined business and the discount rate used to calculate
the net present value The future profitability forecasts are based on a business plan prepared by the combined VertomCory
business Contingent congideration recevable 1s initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measures at fair value through
profit and loss.

See Note 23 for further detalls, including a sensitivity analysis of the contingent consideration receivable to the discount rate and
the assumptions of future profitability.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1 reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to alow ali or part of the asset to be recovered See Note 9

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settied share-based payments is typically expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of the number of equity instruments that will eventually vest. At each
reporting date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non-
market-based vesting conditions The impact of the revision of the original estimates. if any, is recogrised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a correspending adjustment 1o reserves. See Note 30

. N to-
Trade recevables and contract assets are amounts due from customers in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables and
contract assets are classified as current assets if collection 1 due within one year or less {or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current assets

The provision for imparrrment of trade receivables and contract assets represents management’s best estimate at the Balance
Sheet date. A number of judgements are made In the calculation of the provision, primarily the age of the invoice, the existence of
any disputes, recent historical payment patterns and the debtor's financial position.

When measuring expected credtt losses, the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking informaticn, which 1s based
on assurnptions for the future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other, Probability

of default constitutes a key input N measuring expected credit losses. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelhood of
default over a given time horizon, the calculation of which includes histoncal data, assurnptions and expectations of future market
conditions. See Note 22.

The Group uses an independent actuary 1o provide annual valuations of the defined benefit pension scheme. The actuary uses
a number of estimates In respect of the scheme membership, the valuation of assets and assumptions regarding discount rates,
inflation rates and mortality rates.

The membership detals are provided by an independent trustee while the valuation of assets 1s verfied by an Independent fund
manager. The discount rates, Inflatlion rates and mortality rates are reviewsd by management at each reporting date. See Note 29

In the year ended 28 February 2022, the sale of Wavespec, the Group's Engineering Division, completed for a maximum
consideration of £2.6 million. The far value of the consideration s a critical accounting judgement

The consideration was due to be salislied by lhe issuance of a promissory note with a matunty date of 31 March 2026, The farr
value of the consideration was based on the net present value of the promissory note (£2.4 millicn), A discount rate of 211% was
used to calculate the net present value The discourt rate was made up of two elemenits, the first being a b-year BBB+ bond yield
of 1561%, the second being a premium for lack of marketabufity at 060% A b-year BEB+ bond yield was used because it matches
the matunity of the promissory note and reflects the credit rating of the bank that was expected to provide the letter of credit

As at 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023, the buyer had not delivered on its obligations 1o secure the promisscry note and
therefore management have made a judgement that the premissory note is unlikely to be honoured and consequently the fair
value of the consideration 1s imparred and a credit loss of £2.4 millon was recogrised within discontinued operations In the year
ended 28 February 2022

As described further and set out in Note 28 - Prowisions, the directors have made signiicant judgements in relation to the
estimation of the amount of provision to be recognised in relation te uncertain commission chligations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2 Use of estimates and critical judgements continuec

Foe o, porioe st

The following are key judgements that the Group makes, apart from those nvolving estimations (which are dealt with above), that
the directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements

IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” requires judgerent to determine whether revenue is recognised at a “point in
time” or “over time” as well as determining the transfer of control for when performance obligations are satisfied

For Chartering, the Group has defined the performance obligation to be satisfied at the point in time where the negotiated contract
between counterparties has been successfully completed, being the discharge of cargoes, and therefore revenue is recognised at
this point in time This 1s a critical judgement since revenue recognition would differ if the performance obligations were deemed to
be satisfied over a time pericd, or at a different point in time

As a result of actuarial movements during the period, including an Increase in the discount rate from 265% at 28 February 2022 to
490% at 28 February 2023, the UK defined benefit scheme 1s In an actuarial surplus position at 28 February 2023 (measured on an
IAS 19 "Ernployee Benefits™ basis) of £11 million (28 February 2022 kability of £21 million) The surplus has been recognised on the
basis that the Group has an unconditional nght to a refund, assuming the gradual settlement of Scheme liabilibies over time unt)l

all members have left the Scheme. The surplus will be subject to a tax charge on its recovery which the Group does not believe
meets the definition of an income tax under |AS 12, and as a result, the surplus has been presented net of the expected taxes
payable of EQG milion, at a rate of 356%.

In reporting financial information, the Group presents Alternative Perforrmance Measures {("APMs”™) which are not defined or
specified under the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS™). The Group believes that these APMs,
which are not considered to be a substitute for or superior to IFRS measures, provide stakeholders with additional helpful
information and enable an alternative comparison of performance over time,

The Group excludes specific items from its underlying earnings measure. Management judgement is required as to what items
qualify for this classification There can also be judgement as to the point at which costs should be recognised and the armount
to record to ensure that the understanding of the underlying perfoermance is not distorted Specific items include the results from
discontinued operations See Note 10

Dunng the year, the Group acquired the entity Madnd Shipping Advisors S L. For a business combination to exist, the Group must
obtain control of a business To be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a mmimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs As part of the fransaction, no
assets were acquired {such as brand, order book, property, plant and eguipment), nor were any habiities assumed The entity holds
the service contracts for key employees and was a newly Incorporated company, set up specifically for the acquisition. The Group
has made the jJudgement that the acquisition did not meet the definition of a business combination as the acquired entity did not
meet the defiriticn of a business. The bansaction was treated as the recruitment of a broker team, which 1s consistent with the
substance of the arrangement

Chanss 2ot Gk 0wl oy iuiling.

Mariagernenl have cunsidered Lhe impacl of climate—related risks in respect of iImparrment of goodwil, recoverabiity of receivables
and the recoverability of deferred tax assets in particular and do not consider that climate-related nsks have a material Impact on
any key jJudgements, estimates or assumptions in the consolidated Financial Statements,

In the prior year, chmate change was assessed as part of ongoing discussions of key and emerging risks for the Group and

the shipping and energy sectors within which it operates Consideration of the potential short to mediurm-terrm impact of the
Ervironment and Climate Change nisk resulted in 1its inclusion as a Group Principal Risk
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3 Accounting policies

P B T CLUN O DF T LR P YR

The acquisition method of accounting 1s used to account for all business combinaticns, regardless of whether eguity iInstrurnents
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair valuos of the accots acquired;
— labibes incurred to the former owners of the acquired business,
— equity interests 1ssued by the Group,
- fair value of any asset or llabilty resuluing from a contingent consideration arrangement; and
- fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

ldentifiable assets acquired and labilties and contingent labilities assumed In a business combination are, with imited exceptions,
measured initially at their farr values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at far value or at the non-contrcling interest’s preportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifable assets

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transfemred, amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity; and acquisition-date
far value of any previcus equity interest in the acquired entity over the far value of the net identifiable assets acauired is recorded
as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a gain on purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used 1s the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar
borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions

Contingent consideration is classified ether as equity or a financial iiability. Amounts classihed as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages. the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's previcusly held equity
interest In the acquiree 1s remeasured to fair value at the accuisition date. Any gains or losses ansing from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss

Due to the nature of the Group's business, amounts paid or shares issued to sellers are often Inked to therr continued employment.
An assessment 1§ performed 1o determine whether the amounts are part of the exchange for the acquiree, or should be treated as a
transaction separate from the business combination. Transactions that are separate from the business combination are accounted for
In accordance the relevart IFRSs which generally results in the amounts being treated as a post-combination remuneration expense.

[ P R
Revenue 1s recognised in accordance with satisfaction of performance obligations Revenue of the Group consists of

i) Chartering desks — The Group acts as a broker for several types of shipping transactions, each of which gives rise to an
entitlement to commission
Deep sea tankers, specialised tankers and gas, dry cargo and offshore.
- for single voyage chartering, the contractual terms are governed by a standard charterparty contract in which the broker's
performance oblgation s satished when the cargo has been discharged according to the contractual terms; and
— for time charters, the commission i1s specified n the hire agreement and the performance obligation s spread over the term
of the charter at specihed intervals in accordance with the charter party terms
i} Risk Advisory desks
Securthes
- for ncome denved from commodity broking, the commission i1s recognised when a binding contractual arrangement 1s
entered intc between the two parties, at which point, the Group has fulhlled its perfermance obligation
i} Investment Advisory
Financial
— Income comprises retainer fees and success fees generated by corporate finance-related activities. Revenue s recegnised In
accordance with the terms agreed in individuai cllent terms of engagement Recurnng monthly retainers are recognised in the
month of invoice and success fees are recogrised at the point when the perforrmance obligations of the partcular engagement
are fulfiled
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3 Accounting policies continued
P obaae eny s it s continued
i} Inwvestment Advisory continued
Sale and purchase.
- inthe case of second-hand sale and purchase contracts, the broker's performance obligation 1s satisfied when the
principals in the transaction complete on the sale/purchase and the title of the vessel passes from the seller to the buyer;
- with regard to newbuilding contracts, the commission is recognised when contractual stage payments are made by the
purchaser of a vessel to a shipyard which in turn reflects the performance of services over the life of the contract; and
— for income derived from providing ship and fleet valuations, the Group recognises income when a valuation certiicate 1s
provided to the chent and the service is invoiced
) Logistics (@ dscontinued operation)
- the performance obligation for agency income 1s satishied at the point in time when the vessel sails from the port
For forwarding and logistics income the performance obligaton is satisfied when the goods depart from therr load location
Where the Group acts as a principal rather than as agent, the revenue and costs are shown gross

Dividend income from investments 1s recognised when the nght to receive payment is established.

[IE SYRTS IR TS FIRRST AR PUTA

Government grants are netted aganst the cost incurred by the Group When retention of a government grant is dependent on the
Group satisfying certan criteria, it 1s initially recogrised as deferred income and released 1o the Income Statement once the criteria
for retention have been satished See Note 5

Gy bord g s e e

Transactions in currencies other than sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Foreign exchange gains and fosses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and llabliities denominated in foreign currency are recognised in the Income Statement.

In order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters INtc derivabive financial Instrument contracts,
mainly forward foreign currency exchange contracts which are designated as cash flow hedges (see Note 3(m}} For a qualifying
hedge reiationship, the farr value gan or loss on the hedging instrurment is recognised as part of Revenue when the underlying
transacton is recognised in accordance with the Revenue recognition policy set out above.

The presentational currency of the Group is sterling. Assets and liabilities of overseas subsidianes, branches and associates are
translated from their functional currency into sterling at the exchange rates rulng at the Balance Sheet date Trading results are
translated at the average rates for the period Exchange differences arising on the consolidation of the net assets of overseas
subsidianes are recognised through other comprehensive Income In the foreign currency translation reserve (see Note 32)

On disposal of a business, the cumulative exchange differences previously recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve
relating to that business are transferred to the Income Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal The Group finances
overseas investments partly through the use of foreign currency borrowings in order to provide a net investment hedge over the
foreign currency nsk that anses on translation of its foreign currency subsidianes For effective hedge relationships, the gain or loss
on the hedging instrument is recognised In equity through other comprehensive iIncome

The taxation expense represents tho sum of the current and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable 15 based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Income
Staternent because it excludes iterns of ncome and expense that are taxable or deductible In other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible The Group and Company’s hability for current tax 1s calculated using rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date

Deferred ncome tax is provided in full using the liablity method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets
and labilties and ther carrying amourts in the consoldated Financial Staterments However, deferred tax llabilities are not recognised if
they anse from the initial recogriion of goodwil Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from intial recognition of an
asset or llability in a transaction other than a business combination that, at the time of the transaction. affects nether accounting nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or sucstantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred ncome tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax labilty I1s settied Deferred tax assets and
labilities are offset where there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax assets and habilties and where the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authonty Current tax assets and tax labilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends ether to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the llability simultaneously
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Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly In equity In this case, the tax I1s also recognised in other comprehensive ncome or directly
In equity, respectively.

[ :
v

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The goodwill recognised as an asset by the Group s
stated at cost less any accumulated iImparment losses.

Cn the acquisttion of a business, fair values are attributed to the net assets (including any identifiable intangible assets) acquired
The excess of the consideration transferred, any non-controling interest recognised and the fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity over the far value of net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill Acquisiion-related
costs are recognised in the Incorme Statement as incurred in accordance with IFRS 3

In relahion to acquisitions where the fair value of assets acquired exceeds the far value of the consideration, the excess far value 1s
recognised immediately in the Income Statement as a gan on purchase.

On the disposal of a business, goodwill relating to that business remaining on the Balance Sheet is included in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal As permitted by IFRS 1, goodwill on acqguistions ansing prior to 1 March 2004 has been retained at
prior amounts and 1s tested annually for impairment

VN TR PO ST SRR TR

The Group capitalises computer software at cost. It is amortised on a straight-line basis over Its estimated useful life of up to
four years

The Group capitalises INnternally generated development costs when it 1s able to demonstrate:

- the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it is subsequently available for use,

- that there 18 a clear intention that the intangible asset would be completed and then used.

- thatitis able to use the intangible asset;

- that future economic benefits are probable;

- that there are adequate technical inancial and other resources to complete the development and to use the asset, and
— the expenditure attributabie to the Intangible asset during its development can be reliably measured.

The Group amortises development on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful economic life of up to three years See Note 16.

Research costs are expensed as incurred.

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are stated in the Balance Sheet at their far value at the date

of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and any provision for impairment. The amortisation of the carrying value of the
capitalscd forward order book and custormer relalivsships is charged to the Income Statement over an estimated usetul life,
which is between four months to twelve years. The amortisation in respect of capralised brand assets 1s expensed to the Income
Staternent over an estimated useful Iife, which 1s between three and twelve years.

(R R ¥ oE A S SRR O SO R A

Property, plant and equipment are shown at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for imparment.

Depreciation 1s provided at rates caloulated to wite off the cost, less estimated residual value of each asset, on a straight-line basis
over its expected useful ife as follows {except for long and short leasehold interests which are witten off against the remaning
penod of the lease}.

Motor vehicles - three years
Computer equipment - four years
Fixtures and equipment — four years
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3 Accounting policies continued

The Group has various lease arrangements for properties, and other equipment At nception of a lease contract. the Group
assesses whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a certan period of time and whether
it obtains subslantally all e ecenormic benefils from the use of that asset, In exchange for consideration 1 he Group recognises a
lease lability and a corresponding nght-of-use asset with respect to all lease arrangements in which it 1s a lessee, except low-value
leases and short-term leases of 12 months or less, costs for which are recognised as an operating expense within the income
staternent on a straight-line basis.

A right-of-use asset s captalised on the Balance Sheet at cost, comprising the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability and lease payments mads at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred In addition to an
estimate of costs to remaove or restore the underlying asset Where a lease incentive 1s recevable, the amount 1s offset against
the right-of-use asset at inception. Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
estimated Ife of the asset or the lease term.

The lease labiiity 1s initially measured at the present value of future lease payments. Interest expense 1s charged to the
Consolidated Income Statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant perodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the hability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit In the lease If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s iIncremental borrowing rate 1s used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions, Generally. the
interest rate implcit In the lease is not readily determinable, as such the incremental borrowing rate is used to discount future
lease payments

For the Group, lease payments generally comprise the following

- Fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable,
- Vanable payments that are based on an index or rate, and
- Payments to be made under extension options which are reasonably certain to be exercised.

Lease payments made are apportioned between an interest charge and a capital repayment amount which are disclosed within
the financing activities and the operating activities sections of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows respectively When an
adjustment to lease payments based on an index takes effect, the liability 1s remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the
right-of-use asset.

Contracts entered into by the Group have a wide range of terms and conditions but generally do not impose any additional
covenants. Several of the Group's contracts include indexation adjustments to lease payments in future periods which are not
reflected 1IN the measurement of the lease liabilties at 28 February 2023 Many of the contracts entered into by the Group include
extension or termination options which provide the Group with additonal operational flexibility if the Group considers it reasonably
certain that an extensicn option will be exercised or a termination option not exercised, the additional period is included in the
lease term.

A modification to a lease which changes the lease payment amount {eg. due to a renegotiation or market rent review) or amends
the term of the lease, results in a reassessment of the lease liability with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset

The Croup classified lsases as either uperaling o linance leases based on the substance of the arrangement. At commencement
of a finance lease, a recevabie 1s recognised at an amount eqgual to the Group’'s net Investment in the lease Finance income is
recognised reflecting a constant pernodic rate of return on the net Investrent in the lease Lease payments from operating leases
are recognised as income on a straight-line basis

Investments in associates and joint ventures where the Group has joint control or significant Influence are accounted for under
the eguity method. Investments In asscoiates are initially recogrised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at cost. Subseqguently
assoclates are accounted for under the equity method, where the Group's share of post-acquisition profits and losses and other
comprehensive income 1s recognised n the Income Statement and Statement of Comprehensive Income

Profits and losses ansing on transactions between the Group and its associates are recognised only 1o the extent of unrelated
investors’ Interests in the associate The investor's share in the associate’s profits and losses ansing from these transactions is
elmnated against the carrying value of the associate.

Where the Group’s share of the asscciate’s identifiable net assets 1s greater than the cost of investment, a gain on purchase is
recognised in the Income Statement and the carrying value of the investrment In the Consolidated Balance Sheet Is iIncreased
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When the Group disposes of shares in associates or jont ventures the Group recognises a profit or loss on disposal based on
the net proceeds less the weighted average cost of the shares disposed of On disposal the Group reclassifies foreign exchange
amounts previously recognised n other comprehensive Income relating to that reduction in ownership interest If that gain or loss
would be required to be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilties

The most recent Financial Statements of an associate are used for accounting purposes unless it is impractical to do so Whera
the Group and an associate have non-coterminous reporting dates the associate’'s full-year accounts will be used for the purposes
of the Group’s reporting at 28 February with adjustments made for any significant transactions or events

Investments where the Group has no significant influence are held at fair value, with movements in farr value recorded in profit
and 10ss

P T

The carrying amount of the Group's assets, other than financial assets within the scope of IFRS 9 and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed for iImpairment as described below. If any indication of impairment exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
The recoverable amount 1s determined based on the higher of value-in-use calculations and fair value less costs to sell, which
requires the use of estimates An impairment loss I1s recognised in the Income Statement whenever the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds its recoverable amount

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at least annually Imparments are recognised immediately in the Income Statement. Geodwiill
is allocated to cash-generating units for the purposes of imparment testing

The carrying value of Intangible assets with a finite life 1s reviewed for mparment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The carrying values of other intangible assets are reviewed for impairment
at least annually or when there is an indication that they may be impaired

Right-of-use assets are reviewed for iImpairment to account for any loss when events or changes In crcumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be fully recoverable.

Where there 1s objective evidence that the nvestrent in an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of the nvestment (s
tested for iImpairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.

Where an imparmnent 1055 subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets, with the exception of goodwill, 15 increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount This cannot exceed the carrying amount prior to the mpairment charge
An imparrment recognised in the Income Statement In respect of goodwill Is not subsequently reversed

I T S U O S I POV N S PR SO Y
Contingent consideration recevabile is intially recognised at fair value and 1s subsequently remeasured at its fair vaiue at each
Balance Shest diate The resulting gain or loss is recognised immediately in the Income Statement Contingent consideration
recenvable is classified as level 3 in accordance with the farr value hierarchy specified by IFRS 12 Deferred consideration is initially
measured at its fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impairrment See Notes 23 and 24

LA S [ e T I R KR B T

Dervatives are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value at each Balance Sheet date
with gains and losses recognised immediately in the Income Statement unless hedge accounting is applied Recogniticn of the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative 1s designated as a hedging instrument and, f it is, the nature of the item
beinyg hedyed Changes In the fair value of derivatives that do not quality tor hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the
nuurme Staterment. The Group designates derivatives that quality for hedge accounting as a cash flow hedge where there is a high
probability of the forecast transactions ansing The effective portion of changes in the far value of these derivatives is recognised
in equity. The gain or loss on derivative instruments not designated in hedging relationships and relating to the ineffective portion of
dernvatives designated in hedging relationships 1s recognised immediately in the Income Staternent within finance costs or Incorme
Amounts accumulated in eguity are recycled to the Income Statemnent at the same time as the gains or losses on the hedged
items When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gains or losses that were reported in equity are
Immediately transferred to the Income Staterment.

To qualfy for hedge accounting, the terms of the hedge must be clearly documented at inception and there must be an
expectation that the dervative will be highly effective in offseting changes in the cash flow of the hedged risk. Hedge
effectiveness is tested throughout the life of the hedge and If at any point 1t 1s concluded that the relationshic can no longer be
expected to remain highly effective in achieving its objective, the hedge relationship Is terminated
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P S R S 4 L L

The crtical terms of the hedging nstruments match the hedged transachons r in relatien to currency, timing and amounts, meaning there
is a clear economic relationship between the hedging nstrument and hedged tem as required under IFRS © Thereby, management

qualitatively demonstrates that the hedging instrument and the hedged tems will move egually in the opposite direction

When a hedging instrument expires or I1s sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the hedge relationship
but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains In equity and 1s
recognised in accordance with the above policy when the transaction occurs.

The fair value of derivative contracts (s based either directly or indirectly on market prices at the Balance Sheet date

Financial assets and llabilities are classified in accordance with the far value hierarchy specified by IFRS 13 See Note 24

R S T O TR O R T P

Tradle receivabies and contract assets are inbally recognised at farr value {less transacton costs) and subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

At the Balance Sheet date, there may be amounts where invoices have not been raised but performance obligations have been
satisfied, and these are recognised as contract assets.

Specific provision 18 made where there 1s evidence that the balances will not be recovered in full A provision for expected credit
losses 1s made for trade receivables and contract assets using the simplfied apprcach A provision matrix 1s used to calculate an
expected credit loss as a percentage of carrying vaiue by age The percentages are determined based on historical credit loss
experience as well as forward-looking information Expected credit loss provisions are made for ather receivables based on lifetime
expected credit losses using a model that considers forward-looking information and significant increases in credit risk

Trade and cther recevables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms payable within 30 to 90 days.

L S PR S e A
Cash and cash equivalents included in the Balance Sheet comprise cash in-hand, short-term deposits with an ongnal maturity of
three months or less and restricted cash

Cash and cash equivaients included in the Cash Flow Statement include cash and short-term deposits. Bank overdrafis are
included in the Balance Sheet within short-term borrowings.

R S

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or otherwise) as a resuft of a past event and it s
probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a relable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. If material, the provisions are discounted using an appropriate current post-tax
nterest rate.

Short-term provisions for long service leave expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at
the amounts expected tc be paid when the liabilties are settled

The provision for long service leave not expected 1o be settled within 12 months of the reporting date is measured at the

present value of expected tuture payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.
Conaicleration s yiven tu expecled fulurg wage and salary [evels, experience of employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using market vields at the reporting date on corporate konds with terms to maturity and
currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows

The Group operates a number of equity-settled share-based payment schemes.

No awards may be granted under the schemes set out below which would result In the total number of shares 1ssued or remaining
1ssuable under all of the schemes {or any other Group share schemes), in the ten-year perod ending on the date of grant of the
option, exceeding 10% of the Company’s 1ssued share capital (calculated at the date of grant of the relevant option).

The Group may providle a net settlement feature, wherehy it withholds the number of eguity Instruments equal to the monetary
value of the employee’s tax obligation ansing from the exercise (or vesting) of the award if the total number of shares that
otherwise would have been issued to the employee. The Group has no contractual obligation to provide a net settlement option,
and therefore the award is stil accounted for as an equity settled award in full and the value of the shares foregone by the
employee is accounted for as a deduction from equity.
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The net cost of the shares acquired for the shares held by the ESOP and the EBT are a deduction from shareholders’ furds and
represent a reduction in distnbutable reserves Note 31 provides detall on the ESOP and the EBT and moverents in shares to be 1ssued

During the year the Company operated the Brasmar Shipping Services Plc Savings-Related Share Option Scheme 2014 {the “SAYE
Scheme”) and the Braemar Shipping Services Plc International Savings-Related Share Option Scheme 2019 (the “Internaticnal SAYE
Scheme™) Options are granted at up to a 20% discount to the prevailing market price and entitle employees to purchase shares n
the Company at a fixed price subject to continued employment The far value of share options granted under the SAYE schemes
is determined using a bincmuial pncing model. The number of awards which are expected to vest is estmated by managemeant
based on levels of expected forfeitures,

The Company adopted a Deferred Bonus Plan in May 2020 (the “2020 DBP"), pursuant to which future discretionary bonus awards
will be granted to staff including executive directors. Awards under the New DBP may be linked to an option granted under the new
Braemar Company Share Option Plan 2020, which was also adopted by the Company in May 2020 (the "2020 CSOF"). Where an
ernployee receives a inked award under the 2020 DBP, if the Company’s share price rises over the vesting pernod, the 2020 CSOP
award can be exercised with the value of shares delvered on the vesting of the 2020 DBP award being reduced by the exercise
gain on the 2020 CSOP award. Awards under the 2020 DBP and the 2020 CSOP may be settled by the 1ssue of new shares of by
way of transfer of shares from the ESOP Historic practice has been to settle via the transfer of shares from the ESOP and it is the
current intention 1o continue to operate in this manner

The number of awards granted under the Deferred Bonus Plan each year 1s related to the profits generated in the previcus year
The cost of the award is therefore expensed from the beginning of that profit period untl the vesting date which is usually three
years after the date of award and 1s subject to continued employment. Awards made to new joiners are expensed over the penod
from date of joining tG date of vesting. Therr fair value is estimated based on the share price at the time of grant iess the expected
dividend to be paid during the vesting penod The number of awards which are expected to vest is estimated by management
bhased on levels of expected forfetures.

During the year ended 28 February 2015, the Company established a Restricted Share Plan (‘RSP). This scheme was set up to
grant awards to certain key staff to try to retain them following the merger between Braemar and ACM Shipping Group Ple, but it
can also be used where the Rermuneration Committee considers it necessary to secure the recrutrment of a particular individual.
executive directors of the Company are not eligible to participate in the RSP. RSP awards are made in the form of a nil cost option
and there are no performance critena other than continued employment. Therr far value is estmated based on the share price at
the time of grant less the expected dividend to be paid during the vesting perod. The number of awards which are expected to
vest is estimated by management based on levels of expected forfeitures

The Cormpany also operates an LTIP, which was approved by shareholders and adopted in 2014 LTIP awards under this plan take
the form of a conditional right to receive shares at nil cost The awards normally vest over three years and are typically subject to a
performance condition such as earnings per share ("EPS”) or Total Shareholder Return ("TSR”), a market-based condition.

The fair value of awards with the EPS condition are hon-market conditions and their fair value is estimated based on the share
price at the time of grant fess the expected dividend to be paid during the vesting period The fair value of awards containing
market conditions 1s determined using Monte Carlo simulation models The number of awards which are expected to vest is
estimated by management based on levels of expected forfertures and the expected outcome of the EPS condition Far awarris
subject 1o market conditions, no adiustment is made 1o reflect the lkelhood of the market condition being met nor the actual
nurmber of awards whien lapse as a result of the condition not being met.

Commissions payable to co-brokers are recognised in trade payables due within one year on the earlier of the date of invorcing or
the date of receipt of cash.

The Group has the following long-term employee benefits,

The Group operates a number of defined contriizution schemes. Pension costs charged aganst profits in respect of these
schemes represent the amount of the contributions payable to the schemes in respect of the accounting perod. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group within independently administered funds. The Group has no further payment
abligations once the contributions have been paid
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3 Accounting policies continued
[ Pt : . P

The Group operates a defined berefit scheme, the ACM Staff Pension Scherne, with assets held separately from the Group. The cost
of providng benefits under the scheme 1s determined using the projected unit credit actuanal valuation method which measures
the liability based on service completed and allowing for projected future salary increases and discounted at an appropriate rate

The current service cost, which is the increase in the present value of the retirement benefit obligation resufting from employee
service In the current year, and gans and losses on settliements and curtalliments, are included within operating profit in the Income
Statement The unwinding of the discount rate on the scheme liabilties which is shown as a net finance cost and past service
costs are presented and recognised immediately in the Income Statement

The penston asset or kability recogrised on the Balance Sheet in respect of this scheme represents the difference between the
present value of the Group's obligations under the scheme and the far value of the scheme’s assets Actuarial gains or losses
and return on plan assets net of tax, excluding interest. are recogrised N the penod N which they arise within the Staterment of
Comprehensive Income.

When the defined benefit plan 1s in a surplus, the asset 15 recognised at the lower of the surplus and the asset ceiling, less any
associated costs, such as taxes payable

The current service cost of other long-term benehts resulting from employee services In the current year 1s iInciuded within the
Income Statermnent. The unwinding of any discounting on the labilities s shown in net finance costs.

Froeh gttt peralidl o, e dy

Arrangement costs for loan facilities are capitalised and amortised over the life of the debt at a constant rate

Finance costs are charged to the Income Statement, based on the effective interest rate of the associated external borrowings
and dept instruments.

The convertible loan notes are considered to be a financial liability host with an embedded denvative convertible feature which is
required to be separated from the host The Group has an accounting choice to record the instrument in its entirety at far value
through profit and loss but has not chosen to apply this treatment Instead, the financial liability host is recognised as a euro
liabilty intially recognised at fair value and prospectively accounted for applying the effective interest rate method The denvative
conversion feature is recognised at fair value through profit and loss Where there are conversion options that can be exercised
within one year the liability is recognised as current

When the terms of an existing financial lability are modified, management will consider both quantitative and gualitative factors
to assess whether the modification is substantial In the case that the modification of the terms of existing iinancial liakility

is considered to be substantial, the medfication shall be accounted for as an extinguishment of that financial lability and

the recognition of a new financial iability. If the modification 1s not considered substantial, then the existing financial liability 1s
remeasured In accordance with its original classication and any gan or loss 1s recognised immediately in the Income Statement

T
[

Spcoific tems are significant items considered malenal in size or nature, Including acguisition and disposal-related gains and
losses. These are disclosed separately to enable a full understanding of the Group's ongoing financial performance

A non-current asset or a group of assets, such as a disposal group, 1s classified as held for sale if its carrying amount will be
recovered principally through sale rather than through continuing use, it 1s available for immediate sale and sale is highly probable
within one year

Cnonitial classification as held for sale, non-current assets and disposal groups are measured at the lower of previous carrying
amount and farr value less costs 1o sell with any adjustments taken to profit or loss.

A discontinued operation 1s a compenent of the Group's business that represents a separate ine of business or geographical
area of operations that has been disposed of or is held for sale, or 1s a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view 1o resale:
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the critena to be classified as held
for sale. if earlier When an operation 1s classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative Income Statement is restated as if
the operation has been discontinued from the start of the comparative penod

Contingent assets are not recagnised but are disclosed where an inflow of economic cenefits s probable
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4 Segmental information and revenue

Following the simplification of the Group's actvities and the way in which information 1s now presented to the Group's Chief Operating
Decision Maker, the Group's operating segments are Chartering, Investment Advisory and Risk Advisory Previously the Group's
operating segments were based on a Divisional structure of Shipbroking, Financial, Logistics and Engineering Divisions The Logistics
and Engineering Divisions were sold in the prior year and are presented as discontinued operations in the comparative period

The Chief Operating Decision Maker is considered to be the Group's board of directors Each of Chartering, Investment Advisory
and Risk Adviscry are managed separately, and the nature of the services offered to clients 1s distinct between the segments
The Chartenng segment Includes the Group's shipbroking business, Risk Advisory includes the Group's reguiated securities
business and Investment Advisory focuses on transactional services.

The segmental analysis 1s consistent with the way the Group manages Itself and with the format of the Group's iInternal financial
reporting. The board considers the business from both service Iine and geographic perspectives A description of each of the lInes
of service Is provided in the Operatng and Financal Review. The Group's main geographic markets comprnse the UK, Singapore,
the US, Australa, Germany and the Rest of the World The Group's geographical markets are determined by the locaton of the
Group’s assets and operations

Central costs relate to board costs and other costs associated with the Group's listing on the London Stock Exchange.
All segments meet the guantitative thresholds required by IFRS 8 as reportable segments

Underlying operating profit 1s defined as operating profit for continuing activities before restructuring costs, gain on disposal
of Investrent and acquisition and disposal-related tems

.

The segmental Information provided to the board for reportable segments fo!"‘the—yeér ‘ended 28 February20;’2_3 is as follows

~ ‘Revenue Qpérating profit
2023 2022 > 2022
'000 FO00 - £000
Chartering 63,024 8,246
Investment Advisory 26,297 6,359
Risk Advisory 1,989 1,618
Trading segments revenue/results 101310 14,220
Central costs (4,160)
Underlying operating profit 10,060
Specffic items included in operating profit (514}
Operating profit 9544
Share of associate’s loss for the year {(23) (19}
Net finance expense (2,195) o84
Profit before taxation 9,451 8543

Prior year igures have been restated in Iine with the current segment definitions.

The Group manages Its business segments on a global basis The operation's main geographical area and also the home country
of the Company 1s the United Kingdom
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

4 Segmental information and revenue continue

(R

Geographical information determined by location of customers 1s set out below

Revenue

2023 2022

£'000 £000
United Kingdam 80,353 54 524
Singapore 26,674 19,423
Australa 16,599 12,565
Switzerland ",112 5435
United States 6,255 Q72
Germany 2,951 2,488
Rest of the World 8,967 5903
Continuing operations 152,911 101,310
Discontinued operations - 45,215
Total 162,911 148,525

t oo oty
The Group disaggregates revenue in line with the segmental information presented above and also by desk Revenue analysed by
desk is provided below

2022 2022

£'000 £000

Tankers 41,602 17837
Speciahsed Tankers 16,240 11,622
Dry Cargo 36,821 20789
Offshore 5,501 3,776
Chartering 99,164 63,024
Sales and purchase 32,060 19,646
Corporate finance 4,700 6,651
Investment Advisory 36,760 26,297
Securities 16,987 1,989
Risk Advisory 16,987 1,989
Total continuing operations 152,911 101,310

All revenue anses from the rendering of services. There 1s no single customer that contriputes greater than 10% of the Group’s revenue.

The Group enters nto some contracts, primarily in Chartenng, which are for a duration longer than 12 months and where the Groug
has cutstanding performance obligations on which revenue has not yet been recognised The amount of revenue that will be
recognised In future periods on these contracts when those remaining performance oblgations will be satisfied is sef nuit helra

Forward order book

Within 12 1-2 More than
maonths years 2 years Total
2023 £°000 £'000 £000 £'000
Chartering 19,209 3,040 9,860 32,109
Sale and purchase 3,332 4,988 6,168 14,488
Total 22,541 8,028 16,028 46,597
within 12 1-2 Mare than
months years 2 years Total
2022 E£0C0 £000 £'000 E'COC
Chartenng 15,724 3.21 9,057 27992
Sale and purchase 6,684 1,832 924 9,340
Total 22,308 5,043 9,981 37332
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5 Operating profit from continuing operations
Operating profit represents the results from operations before finance Income and costs, share of profit/(loss) in associate, taxation
and discontinued operations.

This is stated after charging/{crediting}:

2023 2077

Note £000 £000

Staff costs G 110,116 75,814
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 17 2,823 2,834
Arnortisation of intangibles 16 192 2672
Bad debt charge 22 238 747
Audrtor's remuneration 7 1,354 960
Other professional costs 3,410 2782
Office costs 1,596 1,600
IT and communication costs 3,264 2507
Insurance 1,068 875
Net foreign exchange gains {1,465) (432)
Specific items included In cperating profit (see Note 10) 8,406 (514)

Staff costs for the pnor year are stated after netting off grants totaling £01 million against staff costs for continuing operations
detalled in Note 6; no grants were receved In the current year. The grants were received from both the Singaporean Government
and the Australian Government as a result of the impact of COVID. All cnteria for the retention of both grants have been satisfied
and therefore the full amount has been recognised in the Incomne Statement.

6 Staff costs

P PR e N S N ST LTI L R P SR P UL TR (LRI TR A FRCI

2023 2022

Note £000 £'000

Salanes, wages and short-term employee benefits 100,039 68,043
Other pension costs 25 1,811 1,613
Social secunty costs 3,786 3,347
Share-based payments 30 4,520 2,951
Continuing operations 110,116 75,954
Discontinued opeérations - 8,344
Total 10,116 84,298

The nurmbers above include remuneration and pension entitlements for each director. Detals are included in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 66 to 85

| ST N TR RYRTIRTSTUEEE L B S DY SV TE Sy

2023 2022

number numbear

Chartering 263 243
Risk Adwiscry 32 18
Investment Adwvisory 63 57
Central 38 44
Continuing cperations 384 362
Discontnued operations - 190
Total 384 bbh2

The directors’ remuneration 1s borne by Braemar Plc,
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6 Staff costs continued

‘

The remuneration of key rmanagement, which the Group considers to be the directors, 18 set out below. Further information about

the remuneration of indvidual directors s provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 66 to 85

2023

£000

Salaries. short-term employee benefits and fees 5,879
Other pension costs 62
Share-based payments 1,226
Total 7,157

Pension costs relate to contributions macie to a defined contribution pension scheme on behalf of three (2022 three)
key management

7 Auditor's remuneration
A more detailed analysis of the auditor's services 1s given below:

2023
£'000
Audit services:
- Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audt of the Compary’s Financial Staterments 740
Fees payable to the Group’s auditor and its associates for cther services.
- The audit of the Groups subsidanes pursuant 1o legislation 457
- Other gervice — Interm review 157
1,354
All fees paid 10 the auditor were charged to operating profit in both years
8 Finance income and costs
2023
Note £000
Finance income:
- Gain on modification of deferred consideration 10 -
- Interest on bank deposits 84
- Interest on lease recevables 35
- Interest on of Cory earmout deferred consideration receivable 83
Total finance income 202
Finance costs
- Interest payable on revolving credit and overdraft facilities (1,151)
- Interest payable on defined benefit liabllity {54)
- Foreign exchange loss on dervative instruments not eligible for hedge accounting (292)
- Foreign exchange loss on non-GBP denominated credtt facilities (49)
- Foreign exchange and dervative (jossi/gan on Naves hability (250)
- Interest payable on convertible loan notes (42e)
Subtotal finance costs before Interest on lease liabilties (2,222)
- Interest on lease habilties (1756)
Total finance costs (2,397)
Finance costs - net {(continuing operations only) (2,195)
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2022
£'000

3,484
4l
521

4046

members of

2022
£000

540
334

86
960

2022
£000

172

72

253

(930)
(73

225
(130}

(908}
(329

(1,237)
{©84)
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9 Taxation

Current tax

UK canpuialion lax charged 10 the Income Statement
UK adjustment in respect of previous years

Overseas tax on profits in the year

Overseas adjustment in respect of previous years

Total current tax

Deferred tax

UK current year origination and reversal of termporary differences

Due to change in rate of tax

UK adjustment in respect of previcus years

QOverseas current year cngination and reversal of temporary differences
Overseas adjustment in respect of previous years

Total deferred tax

Taxation

Taxation on continuing operations
Taxation on discontinued operations

Taxation

Reconclliation between expected and actual tax charge

Profit before tax from continuing operations

Profit before tax at standard rate of UK corporation tax of 192% (2022, 18%,)
Utiisation of deferred tax asset at lower effective tax rate

Net expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Utihlsation of previously unrecognised losses

Tax on overseas branch

Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable to profits In overseas subsidianes
Other differences leading to a (decrease}/increase In tax

Share scheme movements™

Unrecognised deferred tax on losses”

Prior year adjustments*™*

Total tax charge for the year

Governance

2023
£°000

1,194

4,659
394

6,147

(120)

(242)
(712)
(148)

1,292)
4,866

4,856

4,866

2023
£'000

9,451

1,786
22
1,580

{104)
672
768

(13)
316

(17¢)
4

4,855

2022
£000

335
3.432
{517)

3,250

377
(473)
@n
(©5)
(313)

(545)
2,705

1,839
8606

2,705

2022
£'000

8,643

1623
62
843
(478)
234
392
4
228
(135)
(©41)

1,838

I the prior year, a single net amount of £83.000 was disclosed n respect of share scheme movernents and unrecognised deferred tax on losses To provide
further Information, the comparative informatior has been updated 1o spht out the £228,000 1r relation to share scheme rrovernents and £(135,000; 0 relation

to unrecognised deferred tax on losses

* Included within prior year adjustments in 2022 s tne release of overprovided corporation tax creditor of £0 8 milion ir respect of Singapore following a tax rate

change from 170% to 10 5%

Included within the total tax charge is £0.2 milion {2022 £05 millon) In respect of specific tems disclosed separately on the face

of the Income Statement See Note 10.

A tax charge of £nil (2022 £03 milion) 1s Included in the results for discontinued cperations as a result of the trading loss

containec therein {(see Note 1) This tax charge arose mainly as a result of the trading profits of Cory Brothers.
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g Taxation continuec

The Group's future tax charge wil be sensitive to the geographic mix of profits earned, the tax rates in force and changes to the
tax rules in junsdictions that the Group operates in The UK Main rate is to increase to 25% from 1 Apnl 2023 The impact of UK rate
changes on deferred tax were taken intc account in the prior year

2023 2022
Reconciliation between expected and actual tax charge £'000 £000
Profit before tax from discontinued operations - 8,081
Profit before tax at standard rate of UK corporation tax of 19% (2022 19%) - 1635
Due to change In rate of tax - 51
Net gains not taxable for tax purposes - (1.088)
Utdisation of losses - 74
Other differences leading to increase In tax - 3
Temporary differences - 88
Other prior year adjustments - 406
Total tax charge for the year - 866

2023 2022

£'000 £000
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuanal gain in respect of defined benefit pension scheme 2,775 1,34
Deferred tax charge on defined benefit pension scheme (414) (348)
Movement in opening balance due to change In rate of tax - 275
Sub-total (414) {73
Total 2,361 1,318
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Cash flow hedge 388 (2.482)
Deferred tax charge on cash flow hedge {97} 620
Movemenit in opening balance of tax duc to change in rate of tax - (10G)
Sub-total {97} 514
Total 291 (1,968
Total tax recognised in OCI {511} 441
Total amounts recognised in OCI 2,662 (650)

Includad within the UK current year origination and reversal of temporary differences is a debit of £414000 (2022: £348000 credit)
in respect of deferred tax on the actuarial gain on the Group's defined benefit pension scheme
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Deferred Tax Asset

At 1 March 2021

(Charge)/aredt o Slalement of Tolal
Comprehensive Income

Credit to equity

At 28 February 2022

{Charge}/crediit to Incorme Staternent
Charge to Other Comprehensive Income
Credit to equity

Balance at end of year
The movement in the net deferred tax asset
Balance at begnning of year

Movement to Income Statement.
Adustrents in respect of prior years

Strategic Report

Accelerated
capital
allowances

80

(128}

(48)
48

Trading
losses

748

(498)

248
(248)

Movement in opening balance due to change in rate of tax 26%/19%

Ansing cn pension costs
Arising on bonuses
Arnising on other

Total movement to Income Statement

Balance arising on business combinations
Movemnent to other comprehensive Income:

Movement in opening balance due to change in rate of tax 25%/19%

Related deferred tax asset
Movement to equity

Total movement to equity and other comprehensive income

Balance at end of year

Governance

Bonuses

713

713
790

1,423

Other
DrovISIons

756

(285
442

913
219
{(61)

¥4

Employee
benefits

1,318

569

1,887

863
2,760
2023
£'000
3,713

390

99
632
170

1,291
(9086)

(611)
863

362

4,450

Total

2200

an
442

3,713
729
(511)
863

4,794

2022
£000

2,900

169
273

442

3,713

A deterred tax asset of £4 8 milion (2022 £37 millon) has been recognised as the directors believe that it 1s probable that there

will be sufficient taxable profits in the future to recover the asset in full

e Ldodepreadt b B biai

Analysis of the deferred tax fiabilities

Temporary differences

Balance at end of year

The movement in the deferred tax liabllity

Balance at beginning of year

Balance arising on business combinations

Adustment in respect of previous years

Current year ongination and reversal of temporary differences

Balance at end of year
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As at
28 Feb 2023
£000

(344)
(344)

As at
28 Feb 2023
£'000

(906)

662
(344)

As at
28 Feb 2022
£:000

As at
28 Feb 2022
£°000

(174}

174
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9 Taxation continued

No deferred tax has been provided In respect of temporary differences associated with Investments in subsidiaries and interests in
oIt ventures where the Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it 1s probable
that such differences will not reverse In the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences assccoiated with

investments in subsidiaries, for which a deferred tax lability has not been recognised. is approximately £nil {2022 £01 millon).

10 Specific items
The following is a summary of specific items incurred Each item meets the defintion of specific items detaled in Note 3 (u) and
has an impact on the reported results for the year that 1s considered matenal either by size or nature and s not expected to be

incurred on an ongoing basis and, as such, will not form part of the underlying profit in future years

2023 2022
£'000 £:000
Other cperating income,
- Gain on purchase of Southport 3,643 -
— Gain on revaluation of Cory contingent consideration recevable 203 -
3,846 -
Operating costs
- Commission obligation (257) -
— Impairment of financial assets (848) -
— Imparment of goodwill (9,050) -
— Other operating costs (98) {392)
(10,263) {392)
Acqusition-related ftems:
- Consideration for Southport treated as an employment expense {1,325) -
- Madrd transaction costs (264) -
- Acquisition of Naves Corporate Finance GmibH {(60) (122}
— Amortisation of acquired intangble assets {350) -
(1,999) (122)
Discontinued operations.
- Wavespec - (1.787)
- Cory Brothers - 4134
- AqualsBraemar - 3,375
- 5722
Other items.
— Finance income -~ credit on modification of deferred consideration - 172
- Finance income - Cory Brothers earnout deferred consideration recevable 83 -
- Finance expense - foreign exchange and dorvative loss on Naves hability (266) -
Total (8,589) 5,380

A gain on purchase in relaben to the acquisition of Southport was recognised dunng the year, with further details prowvided in Note 14.
The Group does not consider this gain 1o reflect the performance of the business N the year, and s¢ 18 treated as a specific item

Revaluation of the contingent recevable due in respect of the Cory Brothers disposal resutted in a gain of £EG2 millon {see Note 23)
The tax charge on specific tems included within other operating income was £nil (2022 £nil)
As set out In Note 28 Provisions, the Group has recognised a provision In relation to an uncertain commission obiigation Dunng the

petiod, and amount of £03 million was recognised to increase the provision Due to the nature of the prowision being an historical
transachion and not refated to current trading, the Group has treated the cost in the year as a specific item
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During the year. an imparment charge of £08 millon was recognised i relation to a disputed staff loan with an ex-employee

of our Incian cperations Since no significant progress had been made with the ongoing legal case it is now the opinion of the
directors that recovery of this debt is unlikely. Due to the size of the impairment and the fact that the originat debt arose several
years previously and 1s not related te trading, this impairment charge is not deemed to relates to the performance of the business
in the year and as such is treated as a specific item.

In addition, the Nl bansacbon costs of EU I millon related 1o disposals in the prior year were receved In the prior year, a loss of
£04 millon was recognised In other operating costs ansing from the imparment to a nght-of-use asset in respect of a London
office which was vacated by AgqualisBrasmar LOC ASA (see Note 17 for more details).

Dunng the year an impairment of goodwili of £31 mifion was recognised in rejlation to the goadwill allocated to the Corporate
Finance business. Further detalls are provided in Note 15, The Group does not believe that this imparrment reflects the performance
of the business during the year, and as such, is treated as a specific item

The tax Income on specific items Included within operating costs was £01 milion (F01 milion charge)

(RS L RS TS TR VO A

As set out in Note 14, as a result of the acauisition of Southport, due te the requirement for ongoing employee service, the upfront
cash payment of £60 millon and working capital adjustrment of £06 milllon are treated as a post-combination remuneration expense
In addtion to the IFRS 2 charge related to share awards made to the sellers and existing employees of Southport. The total expense
related to armounts inked to ongoing employee service in connection with the acquisttion of Southport was £13 milion in the year.
The period of required emplayee service 15 three years from the acquisition date As a result, this specific tem will exist in future
periods. In addition, as explained further in Note 14. the Group recognised a gain on acauistion of Southport Consistent with the
Group's policy on specific items, this cost does not reflect the performance of the business and so 1s treated as a specific item

As a resuft of the recrutment of a team of brokers based in Madrid, service agreements were entered into with employees
The recruitment of the broker team in Madrid included the following key elements

- The Group assumed a lability of £FO.3 mifion for a post-contractual payment to the employees, which was fully vested on
signing the contracts.

- An upfront cash payment of £13 millon with a further payment of £13 millon due in December 2023

— Share awards to a total value of £08 millon which vest evenly in one, two and three years from December 2022

The upfront payments and share awards have a clawback mechanism which is inked to the continued employment of the
brokers over a three-year period from December 2022 The costs associated with the upfront payments and share awards are
not considered by the Group to be specific items But the cost related to the post-contractual payment obligation 1s treated as a
specific item because It 15 akin to a transaction cost with no reguirement to provide service

Costs of £04 million {2022 £01 milllion) are directly finked to the acquisition of Naves Corporate Finance GrnbH. In the current

year £03 millon relates to foreign currency translation losses on the euro liabilities linked to the acquisition of Naves Corporate
Finance GmbH and £01 milllon in relation to an IAS 19 service cost. The prior year expenditure included £01 million related to foreign
exchange translation of euro labilites inked to the acquisttion of Naves Corporate Finance GmbH

An arnount of £04 millon relates to the amortisation of acqguired intangible assets, primarily in refation to intangible assets
recognised as a result of the acquisition of Southport.

The tax charge on acquisition-related items was £01 million (2022, £nil}

T
In the prior year, the Group recegnised a net gain of £57 millon on the disposal of discontinued operations. Gains arose on the
disposal of Cory Brothers, AquaiisBraemar and Wavespec of £41 milicn, £34 milion and £C6 millon respectively, which were offset
by an impairment charge of £24 milkon on the consideration due In respect of Wavespec See Note 11

The unwinding of the discounting of the deferred receivable due in respect of the Cory Brothers dispesal contributed interest
income of £01 milicn (see Note 23) This ncome is not related to the trading of the business in the period but 1s related to the
disposal of the kogistics business In the prior year As a resutt. it is treated as specific item

The foreign exchange loss and far value loss on the Naves-related labilites and derivative of £03 milion is included as a specific
itern as it relates to the acquisition of Naves and is not related to trading In the prior year, on 3 June 2021 the Group completed a
restructuring of the deferred consideration amounts in relation to the acquisition of Naves. This resulted In a gain on modffication
of £02 milien, which 1s classified as specific fnance INncome {see Note 27) The Naves-related gains and losses do not relate to the
trading performance of the businesses durng the vear. and as a result are classified as specfic items. The tax charge on specific
Items included within other tems was £02 milion (2022 £nil).
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11 Discontinued operations
Durng the year ended 28 February 2022, the Group has sold its Engineering Dwvision, Wavespec, its Logistics Division, Cory
Brothers, and its entre shareholding in AqualisBraemar

P

2023 PO22
Undoerlying Specific Total Underlying Specific Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Wavespec - - - (146) (1,787} (1,933)
Cory Brothers - - - 1663 4134 5,697
AqualisBraemar - - - 76 3375 3,451
- 1,493 5722 7215

Profit - -

On 31 March 2021, the Group compieted the sale of Wavespec, which was classified as held for sale at 28 February 2021. A gain
of £08 millon was recognised on disposal. The sale was for maximum consideration of £26 milion which was expected to

be satisfied by the issuance of a promissory note with a maturity date of 31 March 2026, The disposal agreement contained

an obligation for the buyer to secure the note by providing a standby ietter of credit 1Issued by an international bank with an
acceptable credit rating Should they fail to deliver such a letter of credit, the Group could elect to receive a sum of cash of

£056 millon from the buyer with the balance of the note of £21 millon remaining unsecured. The fair value of the consideration
was £2.4 milion. At 28 February 2022, the buyer had not delivered a secured letter of credit nor had the cash sum of £05 millon
been received. The letter of credit and cash dues continue to be outstanding at 28 February 2023, Management believe that the
consideration (fair value of £2.4 milion) is unlikely to be received and the amount was provided for in full (charge of £2.4 millon) in
the year ended 28 February 2022,

Year ended
28 Feb 2022
£000
Underlying
Revenue 15
Costs {161
Trading loss before tax {146}
Taxation -
Underlying loss for the year from Wavespec (146)
Specific tems
Imparment to far value and other disposat costs (73
Galn on disposal 594
Credt imparment charge (2,374)
Loss from specific items (1.787)
Lass for the year frorn Wavespec (1.933)
No taxation arises in relation to this discontinued operation as Wavespec was loss making
A reconciiation of the derecogrition of the Wavespec assets held for sale to gain on disposal is as follows:
£'000

Intangibles 9G
Property plant and eguipment 1
Cash 53
Trade and other recenvables 292
Trade and other payables (271)
Net assets held for sale disposed of 165
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£000
Disposal proceeds 2374
Net assets disposed of (185H)
Loan waiver {1.008)
Disposal related costs (809
Gain on disposal of Wavespec 504

Intercompany loans totaling £10 millon were owed to the Group from Wavespec were waived on disposal

There were no cash proceeds from disposal in the period

[N

on 28 February 2022 the Company sold Cory Brathers to Vertorn Agencies BV for a maximum consideration of E15.5 millon

Initial cash proceeds were £85 million, N addition, three further cash payments are due based on a percentage of the gross
profit of the combined VertomCory business. Each of the three earncut payments 1s subject to a minmum and a maximum The
mininmum aggregate earnout payment 1s £375 millon and the maxmum aggregate earncut payment is £90 millon. The intial
estimate of the farr value of the deferred and contingent consideration was £4.8 millon. presented within recelivables (more detail
on the calculation of the deferred consideration is included in Note 23}

The profit on disposal ncluding foreign exchange recycing totalled £4 2 million for the year ended 28 February 2022

Year ended
28 Feby 2022
£'000
Underlying:
Revenue 46,216
Costs (42,759}
Trading profit before tax 2456
Finance income o]
Finance expense (36}
Profit before taxation 2429
Taxation (8606}
Underlying profit from Cery Brothers 1563
Specific items-
Gain on dispoesal 4134
Total profit from Cory Brothers 5,697
A reconcilation of the derecognition of the Cory Brothers assets held for sale to gain on disposal is as follows.
£'000

Goodwill 3,645
Intangibles 1180
Property, plant and equipment 1220
Investments e
Cash 12,353
Trade and cther recevables 15,10
Trade and other payables (27042)
Net assets held for sale disposed of 6,595
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11 Discontinued operations continued
LOEE I A TR

£'000

Disposal proceeds — completion payment 85,500
Mispnsal proceede — earm-out payments {(doforrod) L0

Net assets disposed of (6,595)
Disposal-related costs 492)
FX recycling 37)
Gan on disposal of Cory Brothers for the year ended 28 February 2022 4134

Note 22 describes the vaiuation of the deferred receivabie arising from the earn-out payments.

A sensitivity analysis of the contingent consideration to changes in the gross profits and discount rate is provided in Note 23

R FTEPR I A RIS

The Group recognised its minority shareholding in AgqualsBraermar as an investment in associate until its disposal on 18 May 2021

In the prior year, the Group's share of profit of associate and the profit on disposal including foreign exchange recycling totalled
£35 million {see Note 20}

Year ended
28 Feb 2022
£000
Underfying
Share of associate profit for the penod — trading 76
Specific items:

Profit on disposal 3,375
Proft from specinc items 3,378
Total profit for the period from AqualisBraemar 3,451

The basic and diuted earnings per share in respect of discontinued operations were as fellows
Year ended
28 Feb 2022
Basic earnings per share 2362p
19.24p

Diluted earnings per share

< . [ [ - T B

During the year there were net cash inflows of £65 millon relating to investing activities concerning discontinued operations,
beny the cash proceeds on completion of the Cory Brothers disposal. In the prior year, the cash flows relating to discontinued
vperaliuns were el uperaling cashy nflows of £7.3 millon, net cash outflows relating te nvesting activites ot £4./ milhon, which
includes the £72 millon proceeds from the sale of AqualisBraemar shares less the combined cash of £124 million held within
Wavespec and Cory Brothers at the time of ther disposal
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12 Dividends
Arnounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year

2023 2022
£'000 £000

Crdinary shares of 10 pence each
Final dividend of /U pence per share tor the year ended 28 February 2022 (2022 50 pence per share) 2.018 1,499
Intenm dividend of 40 pence per share (2022. 20 pence per share) 1,172 610
3,190 2,109

The dividends paid by the Group during the year ended 28 February 2023 totalled £3.2 millon (110 pence per share) which
comprised a final dividend in respect of the year ended 28 February 2022 of £20 millon {70 pence per share) paid on 14 Cctober
2022 and an interim dividend for the year ended 28 February 2023 of £1.2 milion (40 pence per share) paid on 4 January 2023.

The rnight to receive dvidends on the shares held in the ESOP has been waived {see Note 31). The dividend saving through the
waiver 1s FO4 milon (2022 £01 million).

During the year ended 28 February 2022, the Group paid dividends totaling £21 million {70 pence per share), being a final dividend
In respect of the year ended 28 February 2022 of £15 milion (50 pence per share) paid on 21 September 2021 and an interim
dividend for the year ended 28 February 2022 of £06 milion (20 pence per share) paid on 16 December 2021

In December 2022 the Company commenced a project to research various options for increasing the distributable reserves
available to the Company In order to support the stated progressive dividend policy After the payment of an interim dividend in
January 2023, the outcome of the research identified an accounting practice of the Company used since IFRS 2 was introduced in
2005, which carried realised gains which could only be used in very limited crcurnstances with the consequence that a significant
balance within retained earnings {that was not previously identified as created by unrealised gains) was incorrectly used by the
Company in the calculation of distributable reserves.

Dividends pald between 2016 and 2023 were therefore paid by the Company without having sufficient districutable reserves
frorm which to lawfully pay them Having identified these issues, to rectify the gap in retained earnings and the uniawful payment
of dividends, after the Balance Sheet date, the Company reduced its share premium account and capital redemption reserve
and caprtalised and reduced £128 millon of the merger reserve ("Capital Reduction™ and entered inte releases from lability for
the benefit of shareholders and directors {to ensure that no person was disadvantaged as a conseguence of the payment of
unlawful dvidends).

On 15 February 2023 the Company entered into deeds of release in favour of shareholders recewving the unlawful dividends and
the directors of the Company at the time the unlawful dividends were paid These releases were conditional on vanous conditions,
including shareholder approval for the Capital Reduction, the Capital Reduction becoming effective, and the terms of the deeds of
release for sharehclders and directors At a General Meeting of the Company on 14 April 2023, shareholders approved the Capital
Reduction and the deeds of release for shareholders and directors which allowed the Company to proceed with the process for
the Capital Reduction by seeking approval from the High Court of Justice. On @ May 2023 the High Court approved and confirmed
the Capital Reduction and on & June 2023 the Capital Reduction became effective providing the Company with £739 millon of
distributable reserves at that time

For the year ended 28 February 2023, a final ordinary dividend of 8C pence per share has been proposed totalling £26 milion
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13 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary sharehoiders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, excluding ordinary shares neld by the Employee Share Ownershi Plan
and ordinary shares held by the ACM Employee Benefit Trust which are not treated as outstanding

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all
dilutive patentiat ordinary shares The Granp has dilutive urdndry shares, beiny those options granted ta employees where the
expected consideration 1s less than the average market price of the Company’s ardinary shares during the period that they are
outstanding, and convertible loan notes issued In respect of the acquisition of Naves,

2023 2022

Total operations £7000 £000
Profit for the year attnbutable to shareholders 4,596 13.919
pence pence

Basic eamings per share 16.85 4556
Effect of dilutive share options (2.60) (8.43)
Diluted earnings per share 13.26 3713
2023 2022

Underlying operations £'000 £'000
Underlying profit for the year attrbutable to sharehclders 13,399 8,639
pence perce

Basic earmings per share 46.22 2795
Effect of dilutive share options (7.70} (517)
Diluted earnings per share 38.62 2278

A reconciliation by class of instrument in relation to potential diutve ordinary shares and their impact on earmings is set out below:

2023 - 2022
Weighted Weighted
average Underlying average Undertying Statutory
number of earnings nurmber of earnings earnmgs
shares £000 shares £000 £000
Used in basic earnings per
share 28,990,886 13,399 30,562,532 8539 13,219
REP, DBP and LTIP 6,428,816 - 6,790,255 - -
Options (SAYE) 216,764 - - 147998 - -
Convertile loan notes 201,118 20 20 - - -
Used in diluted earnings per
share 34,837,682 13,419 4,616 37490,785% 8,539 13,919

14 Business combinations — acquisition of Southport Maritime Inc.
On 16 December 2022, Braesmar Plc acquired 100% of the 1ssued capital of Scuthport Martume inc ("Southport”). Southport 1s a
tanker broker based in North America, and ther addition 1s a key part of the Group's strategic global growth plan.

Southport strongly corplerments our existing Tanker desks in London, Singapore, Houston, and Geneva, and provides the ideal
platform for the Group to penetrate new markets and add further scale and reach to our global shipbroking activities.

Consideration for the acquisition was made up of,

1} EB80 milion ($73 milllon) cash paid on completion:
iy £08 milion ($07 milllon) estimated working capital adjustment. and
i} £25 milion {$30 million) relating to 1018121 shares in Braerar Plc

The cash amount of £60 milion 1s subject to a clawback linked to continued service under the terms of the Sale and Purchase
agreerment with one third of the amount vesting to the sellers each year following completion The working capital adjustment 1s
also subject to an ermployment service condition up 1o the date that it is agreed The cash payments are treated as prepayments
for service with the cost recagnised over the vesting period
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The Braemar Plc shares are subject to an employment condition and will be 1ssued on the third anniversary of completion, provided
the sellers are employees of the Group {or the seller is a Good Leaver). The share consideration which i1s inked to employment is
accounted for as a share-based payment under IFRS 2 with the accounting charge recognised on a straight-line basis over the
three years frorm acquisition date to the vesting date In addition to the grant of share awards to the sellers, other awards were
granted to key employees and are accounted for in the same way as the awards made to the sellers

The acqusition date balance sheet of Scouthport, is suimmarised below:

£000
Intangible assets 3,645
Property. plant and equipment 166
Trade and other receivables 2125
Cash 349
Lease labifties (86)
Trade and other payables (1,347)
Corporation tax (203}
Deferred tax liabilty (2006)
Net asset acquired 3,643
Fair value of consideration -
Gain on acquisition 3,643

The gress contractual value and fair value of acquired recevables was £21 million As at the acauistion date, the full amount
of recevables was expected to be collected Intangible assets include Customer-related {relationships and order backlog) of
£30 million, along with an intangible asset in relation to the Southport trade narme of £05 milion

The accounting gain on acquisition of £3.6 millon arises due to the requirernents of IFRS 3 which result in all consideration with an
empioyment service condition being treated as a post-combination remuneration expense, rather than the economic reality that
they aiso represent the commercial consideration for the acquired business Because there 1s no consideration under IFRS 3, the
cash in the acquired business is reflected as a cash inflow for the Group in the Cash Flow Statement.

The revenue and loss of Southport Included In the Group's annual results are £3.7 milion and {£0 2 milion) respectively. Had the
acquisition taken place at the beginning of the financial year, the Group's revenue would have been £10.2 million higher than
reported, and 1ts profit would have been lower by £20 milion.

15 Goodwilt

£000
Cost
At 28 February 2021 91,614
Disposal of Cory Brothers (3,84b)
Exchange agustments {A19)
At 28 February 2022 875650
Cxehange adjusinienls alalat
At 28 February 2023 88,116
Accumulated impairment
At 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2021 7668
Impairment charge recognised In the year 9,050
At 28 February 2023 16,709
Net book value at 28 February 2023 71,407
Net book value at 28 February 2022 79,8H
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15 Goodwill contnued
All goodwill 1s allocated to cash-generating units. The allccation of goodwil to groups of cash-generating units 1s as follows:

2023 2022

£'000 £000

Chartering 68,696 68,696
Corporate MNnance {part uf hvestnent Advisary segment) 2,71 1195
71,407 79,801

These groups of cash-generating units represent the lowest leve! within the Group at which goodwili 1s monitored for internal
management purposes

Following the simplification of the Groug's activities and the way in which information is now presented to the Group's Chief
Cperating Decision Maker, the Group's operating segments are Chartering, Investment Advisory and Risk Advisory The Chief
Operating Decision Maker 1s considered tc be the Group’s board of directors These three segments are managed separately on
the basis of the nature of the services offered to clients and differences In the regulatory envircnment applicable to each segment
Previously the Group’s operating segments were based on a Divigional structure of Shipbroking and Financial The goodwill
allocated to Shipbroking in 2022 15 now allocated to Chartering on the basis that the goodwill arose and benefited the same CGUs
which were Included in the Shipbroking segment and now included in the Chartering segment. Goodwill allocated to Corporate
Financial in 2022 continues to be allocated to Corporate Finance within the Investment Advisory segment in 2023,

The table below illustrates the change in segment structure.

2023 2022
Segment Chartering Shipbroking
Component Deep Sea Tankers Deep Sea Tankers
Specialised Tankers Specialised Tankers
Offshore Offshore
Dry Cargo Dry Cargo
Sale and Purchase
Secunties
Segment Investment Advisory Financial
Component Corporate Finance Corporate Finance

Sale and Purchase

Segment Risk Advisory
Cormpoenent Securities

All goodwill is denominated in the Group's reporting currency, with the exception of the Cerporate Finance Division which
1s denominated in euros. Goodwill denominated in foreign currencies is revalued at the Balance Sheet date. The exchange
adjustment at 28 February 2023 was a gain of £566,000 (2022: loss of £412000).

The Logistics Divigion, Cory Brothers, was disposed of on 28 February 2022, the goodwill previously held n respect of this cash-
generating unit was therefore disposed of See Note 11

The Group is required to test, on an annual basis, whether goodwill has suffered any impairment The recoverable amount is
determined based on value-in-use calculations The use of this method requires the estimation of future cash flows and the
determination of a discount rate in order to calculate the present value of the cash flows

The key assumptions on which the value-In-use calculations are based relate to (1) business performance over the next five years,
(I long-term growth rates beyond 2027 and (i) discount rates applied.

i) Business performance over the next five years — The estimated cash flows were based on the approved annual budget for
the next inancial year and projections for the following four years which are based on management’s estmates of revenue
growth and ¢ost inflation which reflect past experience and management’s expectation of future events given the specihc nsks
and economic and market conditions of each cash-generating unit. Cash flows have been used over a penod of five years as
management believes this reflects a reasonable time honzon for managernent to monitor the trends in the business.

1 Long-term growth rates - this 1s the average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget penod The rate 1s
consistent with forecasts mcluded in industry reports

my Discount rates — The pre-tax discount rate was determined based on a weighted average cost of captal ("WACC™) and
adjusted for CGU-specific risk factors specific to the CGU group
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The results of the imparrment tests are as follows:

(I T T

The key assumptions and resulting net present values are as follows.

Chartering 2023 2022
Post-tax discount rate 13.04% 10.87%
Equivalent pre-tax discount rate 16.47% 1319%
Average revenue growth rate 3.5% 50%
Operating profit margin years 2-5 16.0 — 16.4% 125 -161%
Long-term growth rate 1.7% 17%

At 28 February 2023, the net present value of the Chartering segment 1s significantly higher than the carrying value of the goodwil
in respect of this cash-generating unit At the Balance Sheet date, management concluded that there were no reasonably possible
changes in the key assumptions used in the impairment review that would reduce headroom to nil or result in an imparment

RS IR NI VI B ISt

Revenues for the Corporate Finance Division are challenging to forecast because of the highly variable nature of success fees.
Management forecasts over the period of two to five years consider recent perfoermance and reflect management’s best estimate
of success fee taken Into account of volatlity of the success fee Growth rates used in the value-in-use test reflect this vanability
and were based on the best estimate of the Management.

Gorporate Finance 2023 2022
Post-tax discount rate 14.82% 12.37%
Equivalent pre-tax discount rate 20.66% 15.01%
Average revenue growth rate 5.0% B80%
Operating profit margin years 2-5 11.6% —14.4% 345% - 458%
Long-term growth rate 1.7% 17%

The goodwil Included in the Corporate Finance Division arose from the acquisttion of Naves Corporate Finance GmbH in 2017
At 28 February 2023, the recoverable amount of the Corporate Finance Division 1s based on a value-in-use of £2835000, which
s lower than the carrying value of its assets This is as a result of market conditions and trading below expectations in the year
to 28 February 2023 and an increase in discount rate from 156M% in 2022 to 2066% in 2023 as wel as a reduction in forecast
revenues compared 10 management view in the prior year As a resuft, Management recognised an impaiment of £81 million at
28 February 2023

M T O S P S R I R N T T T AN I

To test the sensitivity of the results of the imparment review, the calculations have been re-performed, flexing the three
key assumptions:

- revenue growth rate;
- post-tax discount rate, and
- revenue outperforms or underperforms forecast

Change In post-tax Revenue outperforms or
Change In revenue growth discount rate underperforms forecast
+1% -1% +2% -2% +15% -15%
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Corporate Finance 372 {363) {383} 523 1,702 (1,702)

The effect on cash flows of cimate change was considered but assessed to have no matenal impact at this time Management
does not believe that climate-related nsks nor the potential impact of clmate change on the Group's operations would materially
affect the recoverability of goodwil in either of the cash-generating units (see Note 2}
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16 Other intangible assets

Other
Computer iNntangible
software assets Total

Note £'C00 £:000 £000
Cost
At 28 February 2021 6.420 1,008 17425
Additions 5715 - 515
Disposal of Cory Brothers (1.344) (1,480) {2.824)
Exchange rate adjustments {5} - (8)
At 28 February 2022 5586 9,526 15,111
Addttions 90 - 20
Business combination 14 - 3,646 3,645
Disposals (87) - 87)
Exchange rate adjustments s} 33 38
At 28 February 2023 5,594 13,103 18,697
Amortisation
At 28 February 2021 4775 10,521 15,296
Charge for the year 346 167 453
Reclassified as held for sale (279) 1,359 {1.634)
Exchange adjustments ) - )
At 28 February 2022 4845 9.262 14,114
Charge for the year 192 349 54
Imparment (5]0] - 50
Exchange adjustments 1 1 2
At 28 February 2023 5,098 9,619 14,717
Net book value at 28 February 2023 496 3,484 3,280
Net book value at 28 February 2022 74 256 997

Other intangible assets brought forward from the prior year relate to forward books of income acquired in acquisitions which are
being amortised over the period that the Income is being recognised; customer relationships which are amortised over a period
of up to twelve years; and brand which is being amortised over a period of up to ten years

The addition of £35 millon relates to the acquisiion of Southport, which gives nise to custormer-ielaled intanaible assets of
£33 million (ncluding custome elatiunships of £2.8 millon and order backlog of £0.3 millon) and an asset of £0.4 milion in
rolation tn the tradenarme. The amortisation penod Tur cuslomern relatnonships 1s twelve years, order backlog 1s four months,
and tradename 1s five years,

The customer relationships and order backleg have been valued using an excess earnings method Under the excess earnngs
method, a stream of revenue and expenses are identfied as those associated with a particular group of assets This group

of assets ncludes the subject Intangible asset as well as other assets {contributory assets) that are necessary to support the
earnings associated with the subject INtangible asset By identifying and subtracting contributory assets, the residual earnings are
estimated to be atinbutable to the subject intangible asset and are discounted to present value at an appropriate discount rate
(estimated at 18%} The tradenarme has been valued using a royalty savings method The royalty savings method is a dervation
of the Income approach often used to value ntangible property that may be licensed to third parties Under this method, it s
assumned that a company, without a similar asset, would license the nght to use this intangible asset and pay a royalty related to
turnover achieved The value of the asset is established by calculating the present value of the royalty stream (estimated at 4%)
that the business is saving by owning the asset

At 28 February 2023, the Group had no contractual commitrnents for the acquisttion of computer software or other iIntangible
assets (2022. £nil).
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17 Property, plant and equipment

Note

Cost
A 22 Tetaruary 2021 - us roporled
Restaterment!

At 28 February 2021 — restated
Addtions at cost

Disposals

Disposal of Cory Brothers
Exchange differences

At 20 Feloruary 2022

Additions at cost

Business combination 14
Disposals

Exchange differences

At 28 February 2023

Accumulated depreciation
At 28 February 2021 — as reported
Restatement’

At 28 February 2021 — restated
Charge for the year

Disposals

Imparment

Disposal of Cory Brothers
Exchange differences

At 28 February 2022 (restated)
Charge for the year

Disposals

Impairment

Exchange differences

At 28 February 2023

Net book value at 28 February 2023

Net bock value at 28 February 2022

Governance L. 'f"é-,_..
Land and Fixtures and
buldings Computers SquIBMeHT

£000 £000 £'000
14,308 869 2384
475 835 224
14,783 1684 2608
1,087 312 337
(244) - (B31)
(1.224) (418} (478}
75 6 42
14,407 1,509 1878
757 374 334
86 - 80
(2,445} &) (369)
427 4 88
13,232 2,010 2,01
5378 362 1,980
565 836 134
5,943 1187 2114
2,663 148 220
(244) - {620)
392 - -
{4e0) (300 (178)
(65) 28 10
8199 1061 15486
2477 171 175
(1,852} (1 (313)
- 150 -
234 25 61
92,058 1,406 1,469
4,174 604 642
6,208 538 332

Total
E'OO0

17,651
1534

19,086

1739
(875)
(2188)

123

17884
1465
166
(2,818)
556

17,253

72710
1534

9,244
3,031
(864
382
(968)
(29)

10,806
2,823
(2166)

150
320

11,9233

6,320

7,078

1 Al 28 February 2021, both cos: ard accumulated depreciation have been ircreased by £15 millor (Computers marease of £0 8 mill on, Fixtures and equipment
ncrease of £0 2 milkon, Land ard buldings decrease of £05 milion) This priranly refates 1o a correction of grossed up digpesals in prior years relatirg
to business combinatons whera the addition of the asset was based on its farr value at the point of acquisition, but the eventual disposal being based

on original cost

On 28 March 2022. the Group assigned the lease for its Bevis Marks premises 1o Beat Capital The impairment charge of £392,000
recognised in the year ended 28 February 2022 is equal to the subsequent oss on assignment of this lease, being the lease

assignment prermium paid pius the net book value of the ROU asset disposed of less the outstanding lease liabillty At 28 February
2023, the Group had no contractual commitments for the acquisition of property. plant and eqguipment (2022 £nil)
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18 Leases
o

The Group leasas a number of properties in the junsaictions from which it operates In some junsdictions it 1s customary for lease
contracts to provice for payments to increase each year by inflation and in other property leases the pericdic rent Is fixed over
the lease term The Group also leases certain tems of plant and equipment which are typically motor vehicles These contracts

normally comprise only fixed payments over the lease terms

At 28 February 2021
Additions

Armortisabon

Impairment

Disposals

Disposal of Cory Brothers
Exchange differences

At 28 February 2022
Additions

Business combination
Depreciation
Disposals

Exchange differences

At 28 February 2023

At 28 February 2021
Additions

Interest expense

Lease payments
Disposal of Cory Brothers
Exchange differences

At 28 February 2022
Additions

Business combination
Disposal

Interest expense
Lease payments
Crehange dfferences

At 28 February 2023

Land and
buldings

Note £000

7307
1,036
(2,079)
{302)

(856)
166

5182

Al

14 86
(2,079)

481

166

3,686

Ficures and
squipment
£'000

138

il

{76}

o)

{51)

12
59

(8
{10)

54

Note

14

Total
£'000
7445
1,047
{2155)
(392)
a0
(207}

166

5194
770
86

12.087)
49
167

3,639

Total
£000
12,554
814
329
(3,.950)
(1,243)
2

8,506
770
86
{632)
175
(4,038)
161

5,027

Right-of-use assets and lease labilites ansing on business combinations represents lease on property of £86.000. For further

detalls refer to Note 14 Business combmations

Total cash outfiow for leases 1s £4,039000, of which £175000 represents payment of mterest
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At 28 February 2021
Disposal

Interest ncorme

Lease payments
Disposal of Cory Brothers
Movement In provision
Exchange differences

At 28 February 2022
Disposal

mterest mcume

Lease payments
Movement in provision
Exchange differences

At 28 February 2023

Short-term lease expense
Short-term lease Nncome

boeoae

Strategic Report

Contractual payments by maturity are provided in Note 24e

1

Contractual receipts by maturity are provided In the table below

Within 1to?2 2105
1year Years years
£000 £000 £000
At 28 February 2023 642 24 -
At 28 February 2022 6842 842 284

More than
5 years
£'000

Governance

Unearned

interest

£'000
a7

(56)

Total
£000

883
1668

Frovision
£000

(12)

2023
£000

(217)
N

Provision

£000
{12)
(18)

Net
£000
2827
{236)
72
(870}
(272}
{18}
(9
1,494
(29)
35
(642)

854

2022
£'000

(234)
73

Net
recewvable
£°000

8564
1494

During the year, the financial effect of revising lease terms ansing from the effect of exercising extension and termination options
was an increase of 98000 in the recognised lease labilties. As at 28 February 2023, potential future cash outfliows of £38 million
{undiscounted) have not been included In the lease labilty because it 1s not reasonably certain that the leases will be extended

{or not terminated).

19 Investments

Unlisted investments

The Group recognises uniisted investmenits at far value through profit or loss

Movement in unlisted investments

At 1 March 2021
Disposal

At 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023

Braemar Plc Arnviual Report and Accourts 2023

2023
£000

1,780

2022
£000

178C

Total
£:000

1,962
(182

1,780
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19 Investments continued
A list of subsidiary undertakings is included in Note 34.

The Financial Statements of the principal subsidiary undertakings are prepared to 28 February 2023

The Group's unlisted investments Include 1,000 (2022 1000} ordinary £1 shares in London Tanker's Broker Panel Limited The
investment is carned at fair value of £18 millon, being the value of the most recent comparable transaction, which occurred dunng
the year ended 28 February 2018 There have been no transactions or events in the current or pnior year which would result in a
material adustrment to the far value at 28 February 2023.

20 Investment in associate
Tt oo b Do o

On 29 Cctober 2020 the Group subscribed for 1000 ordinary shares in Zuma Labs Limited. Zuma Labs Limited 1s a private
company incorporated in England and Wales and its registered address 1s Kemp House, 128 City Read, London, United Kingdom,

EC1V 2NX. Zuma Labs Limted has one share class and each share carries one vote.

During the period. n accordance with the shareholders’ agreement, four further subscriptions for shares were made totaling of
$08 milion (£0.3 million), increasing Braemar's shareholding by 1500 shares

At 28 February 2023 the Group's shareholding was 2500 shares, which equates to 200% of Zuma Labs Limited's share capital and
200% of voting rights {2022 2500 shares, 20% of share capital and 20% of voting nghts) The Group has representation on the
board of Zuma Labs Limited, and as a result, the Group considers that it has the power to exercise significant influence in Zuma
Labs Limited and the Investment In 1t hag been accounted for using the equity method

A purchase price allocation exercise was undertaken to measure the fair value of the net assets on the date at which Zuma Labs
Limited became an associate, and also at each date at which further shares were subscribed for. Based on the purchase price
allocation exercise, the difference between the cost of the investment and Braemar's share of the net far value of Zuma Labs
Limited’s Identifable assets and labilities will be accounted for as goodwill. Amortisation of that goodwill is not permitted.

IAS 28 requires the most recent Financial Staternents of an associate are used for accounting purposes, and that coterrminous
information should be used unless 1t 15 impractical to do so. Zuma Labs Limited has a year end of 31 March and accounts up to

31 December 2022 have been made available, so for practical reasons Zuma Labs Limited’s management accounts for the nine
months ended 31 December 2022 will be used for the purposes of the Groug's full-year reporting at 28 February with adjustments
made for any significant transactions and events. Zuma Labs Limited wilt prepare its next set of Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023, At 28 February 2023 Zuma Labs Lirmited had no contingent llabilities.

The summarnsed financial Information of Zuma Labs Limited for the penod ended 28 February 2023 1s as follows. These figures
are taken from the management accounts of Zuma Labs Limited, adjusted for any far value adustments but before any
intercompany eliminations.

28 Feb 2023
£'000
Balance Sheet
Current assets 177
Non - current assets 223
Current kanhlies (68)
Net assets (100%) 332
Group share of net assets (20%) 66
Income Statement
Revenues -
Post-tax loss {116)
The Group's share of the loss (23)

Management have reviewed the carrying value of the Investment in Zuma Labs Limited at 28 February 2023 and do not consider
this to be impaired
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On 21 lune 2019 the Group recognised an investrment in associate as a result of the divestrnent of the Offshore, Marine and
Adusting product ines in return for a significant shareholding in AqualisBraemar LOC ASA AquabsBraemar LOC ASA 1s listed on the
Oslo Bars, ts principal place of business is Oslo and its registered address 1s Olav Vs gate 8, 0161, Oslo, Norway AqualisBrasmar
LOC ASA has cne share ciass and each share carries cne vote

un 28 January 202 the Group soid 9800000 shares and on 18 May 2021 the Group sold its entire remaining shareholding in
AqualisBraemar LOC ASA, see Note 11 The Group was entitled to representation on the board of AqualisBraemar LOC ASA for as
long as the Group's shareholding remains more than 100% Based on this the Group considers that it had the power to exercise
signimcant nfluence for the year ended 28 February 2022, and until it sold its shareholding on 18 May 2021 At that pont significant
infiuence was lost, the Group ceased to equity account for AqualisBraemar and the Group’s interest in AgualisBraemar was limited
to its holding of 6523977 performance-based warrants which were accounted for as a financial asset at far value.

On 20 August 2021, 1000000 of the 6523877 warrants vested with the remainder lagsing. A loss on vesting of £2.000 was
recagnised In specific items. The shares receved were subsequently sold on 31 August 2021 crystalising a further loss of £4,000.

At 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023 the Group's shareholding was nil which equates to 0% of AqualisBraemar’s share
capital and 0% of voting nghts

The results of AgualisBraesmar are presented within discontinued operations

The movernents in the investment in associates are provided below

Zuma AquahsBraemar Total

£'000 £'000 £000
Af1March 2021 418 3345 3,763
Book value of 420 shares acquired 326 - 326
Share of profit in associate (20) 76 56
Share of associate’s cther comprehensive ncome - 52 a2
Bock value of 9640621 shares disposed - {3473) {3,473)
At 28 February 2022 724 _ 724
Share of loss In associate — underlying (23) - (23)
At 28 February 2023 701 - 701

A reconciliation of the book value of the AqualisBraemar shares disposed of to the profit on disposal in Note 1115 as follows:

18 May 2021

Number of shares sold 9,640,621
Share price NOK 200
NOK’000

Gross disposal proceeds 86,776
Broker's commission at 15%/2% (1,301
Net disposal proceeds 85,475
£000

Net disposal proceeds 7,232
Book value of shares sold (3.473)
Legal costs (13
Recycle of amounts In other comprehensive Income (371
Profit on disposal 3.375
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21 Other long-term receivables

2023 2022

£'000 £000

Deferred consideration 2,540 3482
Contingent congideration 1,004 1276
Secunly deposils 16 17
Finance lease receivables 228 861
Prepayments 4,766 -
8,554 5,636

Deferred consideration of £25 millon and contingent consideration of £10 million refates to the earn-out payments recevable in
respect of the disposal of Cory Brothers, further detail 1s provided in Note 23. Prepayments includes an asset of £4.8 milion {2022:
£nil) which is the non-current element of the clawback provision on joinng INncentives paid to certan employees This includes an
amount of £3.8 million added in the year in relation to the acquisiton of Scuthport and £0.2 milhon i relation to the broker team in
Madnd. The recevable is amortised over the clawback pericd.

See Note 18 for a maturity analysis which reconciles the long-term finance lease recevables (o the undiscounted lease receipts
and unearned finance Nncome.

22 Trade and other receivables

Restated

2023 2022

£'000 £°000

Trade receivables 31,989 24270
Provision for impairment of trade recewables (3,725) (3159
Net trade receivabies 28,264 21,811
Deferred consideration 1,097 -
Contingent consideration 403 -
Other receivables 4,148 7822
Finance lease recevables 626 633
Contract assets 3,388 1,965
Prepayments 5,397 3,212
Total 43,323 35,792

Deferred consideration of £11 milion and contingent consideration of £0.4 million relate to the earn-out payments recevable in
respect of the disposal of Cory Brothers; further detail 1s provided in Note 23

Included in other receivables at 28 February 2022 1s £65 millon of completion proceeds relating to the disposal of Cory Brothers.
The cash was received on 2 March 2022, Also included in other receivables in both years are secunty deposits, VAT and other
sales tax recevables and employee loans.

Prepayments includes an assct of £40 milion (2022 £21 rilliun) in respect of the current porton of the clawback provision on
[OiNNg e entives paid o certain omployoos which are baing chiaged o e uorte Stalement in ascordance with the clawback
provisions of the underlying contracts. This includes an amount of £20 milion added in the year in relation to the acquisition of
Southport and £09 million In relation to the broker team in Madnd The receivable 1s amortised over the clawback perod.

The movement In the asset between years is due to the Invoicing of all prior year assets and the accrual of armounts relating tc the
current year

The total receivables balance is denominated in the following currencies

Restated

2023 2022

£°000 £000

US dollars 35,888 20083
Steriing 6,114 14,451
Other 1,321 1268
Total 43,323 35,792
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The drrectors consider that the carrying amounts of trade recevables approximate to ther far value

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally an terms payable within 30-80 days, terms associated with the
settlement of the Group’s trade receivables vary across the Group Specific debts are provided for where recovery is deemed
uncertain, which will be assessed on a case-by-case basis whenever debts are older than the due date, but always when debts
are older than usual for the Industry in which each business in the Group cperates

As at 28 February 2023, trade recewables of £3003,000 (2022 £2,008000) which were over 12 months old were treated as credit
impaired and have been provided for. No provision (2022: £396000} has been made for specific trade recewvables which are less
than 12 months overdue

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplfied approach to measuring expected credit losses using a Ifetime expected credit loss
provision for trade receivables and contract assets. To measure expected credit losses on a collective basis, trade receivables and
contract assets are grouped based on similar credit nsk and ageng. The contract assets have similar risk characteristics 1o the
trade receivables for similar types of contracts.

The expected loss rates are based on the Groug’s historical credit losses and rates are then adjusted for current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the Group's custormers

The ageing profile of trade receivables and the lifetime expected credit loss for provisions and contract assets is as follows:

Total

provision for

impairment

Trade Expected Group ECL of trade

receivables loss rate provision provision receivables

2023 £000 % £'000 £°000 £7000
Up to 3 months 23,656 0.015 - 333 333
3 to 8 months 3,185 0.020 - 71 71
5 to 12 months 2,078 0.051 - 149 149
Over 12 months 3,170 0.591 3,033 99 3,132
Trade receivables 31,989 0.096 3,033 652 3,685
Contract assets 3,388 0.012 - 40 40
Total 35,377 0.020 3,033 692 3,725
Total

provision for

Imparrment

Trade Expected Group ECL of trade

recevables loss rate prowvision Provisicrn recelvables

2022 E£'C00 Yo £000 £000 £000
Up to 3 months 14,562 0015 100 210 310
3to 6 months 3,062 0.020 100 77 177
& to 12 months 4036 Q05 196 126 302
Qver 12 months 2,420 0 591 2,008 243 2,251
Trade receivables 24970 0096 2,404 726 33130
Contract assets 1.265 0.015 - 29 29
Total 26,935 c028 2404 755 3189
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22 Trade and other recejvables continued
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables and contract assets were as follows

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

At 1 March 3,169 2,858
Bad debt rhamye 238 747
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible - (204}
Reclassihication of other provisions 328 -
Transferred on disposal - {242)
At 28 February 3,725 3159

fee g

The Group’s contract assets related to accrued income which has not yet been invoiced at the Balance Sheet date. Significant
changes in contract assets during the pencd are analysed as follows:

£'000
At 1 March 2022 1,965
Changes due to business combinations 647
Contract assets converted to recenvables cn completion {2,049)
Contract assets ansing on new contracts in-year 2,825
At 28 February 2023 3,388

Contract assets increased by £06 millon due to the acqusition of Southport in December 2022 all other movements in contract
assets anse from normal underlying operations

23 Deferred and contingent consideration receivable
On 28 February 2022 the Company sold Cory Brothers to Vertorn Agencies BV for maximum consideration of £166 million. initial

cash proceeds of £65 milion were received on completion of the transaction and three further cash payments are due contingent
on an agreed percentage of future gross profit of the combined VertomCory business These “earnout” payments are subject tc a

combined minimum of £3 7% milion and a combined maxaimum of £90 million

Each agreed minimum earnout payment 1s presented as deferred consideration recognised at amortised cost, using a discount
rate of 239% determined on initial measurement. The uncertain element of each sarnout payments is recognised at fair value
through profit or loss and presented as contingent consideration,

The far value of the contingent consideraton 1s calculated using the forecast gross profit for the combined VertomCory business
for each earnout period, applying the agreed percentage, deducting the minmum payment and discounting the forecast
contingent cashflow using the discount rate of 529% (2022 2 39%)

Deferred and contingent consideration are included in other long-term receivables (see Note 21 and current other recevables
{see Note 22} The armortised cost of the deferred consideration 1z £28 million {2022 £35 milion) The fair value of the contingent
consideration is 014 milion (2022 £1.3 millon)

The valuation of the contingent consideration involves two critical estimates the future profitability of the combined business

and the discount rate used to calculate the net present value. The future profitability forecasts are based on a business plan
prepared by the combined VertomCory business and was reviewed by management as part of the financral due diligence process
A discount rate of 529% was used to calculate the net present value; this was based on the credit nsk of Vertom Agencies BV
following a credit check performed by management.

The contingent consideration relating to the first eamout payment s resclved as it is based on the performance of the VertomCory

business to December 2022 The recevable held on the Balance Sheet at 28 February 2023 in relation to the first earnout payment
is £15 millon (£11 milien deferred consideration and £04 millon contingent consideration)
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Management have considered the sensitivity of the contingent consideration recevable ansing from the second and third
earnout payments to both changes in the estimate of future profitability of the VertomCory agency business, and the ciscount

rate selected

Carrying

value as at

28 Feb 2023

£'000s

Payment due on 31 May 2023 403
Payrnent due on 31 May 2024 515
Payment due on 31 May 2025 489
Total 1,407

Sensilvity Lo the estimate of future
gross profits of the VertormCory
agency business

Undiscounted
valué as at Decrease Increase
28 Feb 2023 oy 10% by 10%
£'000s £°000s E'000s
408 n/a n/a
550 (176) 176
S5le; (167} 167
1,608 {(343) 343

Sensitivity to change In the
discount rate selected

Decrease Increase
by 1% pa by 1% pa
£'000s £'000s
nfa n/a

s} (6}

1 {10}

17 (1e)

The 10% increase/decrease In future gross prefits of the VertomCory agency business considered in the sensitivity analysis is
selected to reflect a reasonably likely varation in cutcomes, which lie within range covered by the minimum and maximum earnout
thresholds. The change in discount rate considered reflects the observed range of three-year GBP corporate bond rates with

simillar credrt risk.

24 financial instruments and risk management
The Group is exposed through its operations to the following financial risks.

- Currency risk
- Interest rate risk
- Credit nsk

- Liquidity nsk

In common with all other businesses, the Group 1s exposed to risks that anse from its use of financial instruments This note
describes the Group's cbjectives. pelicies and processes for managing those risks and the methods used to measure them.
Further quantitative information In respect of these risks Is presented throughout the Financial Statements

There have been no substantive changes in the Group's exposure to financial Instrument nsks, its objectives, policies, and other

processes for managing those nsks or the methods used to measure them from previous penods

i o [P

.

The principal financial Instruments used by the Group, from which financial nsks arnse, are as follows'

— Trade and other recevables

- Cash and cash equivalents

- Deferred consideration receivable
Contingent consideration recevable

- Unlsted investments

- Trade and other payables

- Revolving credt facility

— lLease liabilties

— Dernvative inancial nstruments

- Deferred consideration payable
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24 Financial instruments and risk management continuec

N

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group's financial assets and kabilities measured at far value through profit and loss, including therr far value hierarchy, are as
follows Far value 1s the amount at which a financial instrumesnt could be cxchanged i an arm’s length transaclion, other than ina
lorced or lquidated sale.

As at
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 28 Feb 2023
£000 £°000 £'000 £000
Financial assets
Unlisted investment - 1,780 - 1,780
Contingent consideration recenvable - - 1,407 1,407
Derivative contracts™ - 1,254 - 1,254
Total - 3,034 1,407 4,44
Financial iabiities
Derivative contracts™ - 1,760 - 1,760
Embeddead dervative - - 384 384
Total - 1,760 384 2,144
As at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 28 Feb 2022
£000 £000 £000 £:000
Financial assets:
Unlisted investment - 1,780 - 1780
Contingent consideration recevable - - 1,276 1276
Derwative contracts® - 62 - 62
Total - 1,842 1,276 318
Financial fiabiities:
Dervative contracts® - 772 - 772
Embedded derivative - - 251 251
Total - 772 251 1,023

* Currency forwards with a far value of £1,224,000 (2022 £54.000) maturng with n 12 months have been shown as current assels Currency forwards with a
far value of £30,000 (2022 £8.C00) maturing within 12 to 24 months of the Balance Sheet date have been shown as non-current assets Liabilines include
currency forwards with & farr value of £1108 000 (2022 £688,000) matunng within 12 months shown as current llabitties and currency forwards with a fair value
of £652 000 (2022 FEADD0) matunng within 12 to 24 months of the Balance Sheet date shown as non-current hapilines

The level i Lhe fair value hierarchy within which the financial asset or lability 1s categorised s determined on the basis of the lowest
level input that 1s signifcant to the far value measurement.

Financial assets and labilities are classified in ther entirety Into oneg of three levels

- Levell Quoted prices (unadjusted) n active markets for identical assets or lablites

- level 2. Inputs other than quoted pnces included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or lability, either directly
or Indirectly.

- level 3 Inputs for the asset or labiity that are not based on observable market data

Unlisted investment

The unlisted investrment relates to the Group's INvestment in the London Tanker’s Broker Panel, see Note 12 The nvestrment is
carned at far value, being the value of the most recent comparable transaction and s therefore classified as Level 2 in the fau
value hierarchy

There was no movement In the far value of the unlisted investrment
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Contingent consideration receivable

The farr value of the contingent consideration recevable includes unobservable Inputs and are therefore classified as Level 3.
The contingent consideration receivable relates to the disposal of the Logistics Division whereby the Group is entitled to three
future cash payments The SPA provides for a minmurm guaranteed amount in each of the three years, this amount has been
classified as deferred consideration The balance of the earnout consideration 1s contingent on the future performance of the
combined business up te a maxmum specified In the SPA, this has been classified as contingent consideration The fair valug

of the contingent consideration has heen calculated by reference to management’s expectation of the future profitability of the
combined business and discounted to present value using a discount rate of 520% The discount rate 1s based on the credit risk
of Vertom Agencies BV assessed by a third party credit agency See Note 23 for further detalls and a sensitivity analysis on the
contingent element

Derivative contracts

Contracts with derivative counterparties are based on ISDA Master Agreements Under the terms of these arrangements, only in
certan situations will the net amounts owing/receivable to a single counterparty be considered outstanding The Group does not
have the present legal ability to set-off these amounts and so they are not offset In the Balance Sheet Of the derivative assets
and dernvative liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet, an amount of £01 milion (2022 £01 million) would be set-off under
enforceable master netting agreements.

The fair value of the forward currency contracts are based on prices quoted by the counterparty within these centracts versus the
market rate at the Balance Sheet date and have therefore been classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. See the currency risk
section for further details

The farr value of the currency options are based on prices quoted by the counterparty within these contracts versus the market
rate at the Balance Sheet date and have therefore been classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy

Embedded derivative

The convertible loan nete nstruments issued on the acquisition of Naves contain an embedded detivative, being a euro liabiity

of principal and interest. The equity value of the underlying derivative is not considered closely related to the debt host, therefore
the loan ncte is considered to be a financial liakility host with an embedded derivative convertible feature which is reguired to be
separated from the host, The far value of the embedded derivative includes unobservable inputs and is therefore classified as
Level 3 They key assurmptions underpinning the fair value of the embedded denvative relate to the expected future share price of
the Group and the GBPEUR exchange rate. The farr value has been determined using a Black-Scholes valuation rmodel

A loss of £18000 (2022 gan of £97000) has been recognised in the Income Staternent In respect of the fair value movement of
the embedded derivative from 1 March 2022 to 28 February 2023

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
The Group's inancial assets and labilites that are not measured at far value are held at amortised cost. Due 1o their short-term
nature, the carrying value of these financial instruments approximates their fair value. Their carrying values are as follows

2023 2022
Financial assets £000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 34,735 13,964
Defarred consideration receivable 3,637 3482
Trade and other receables 41,448 38601
Total 79,820 56,047

2023 2022
Financial Habilities £000 £000
Trade and other payables 6,446 2779
Convertible loan notes 3,651 4666
Long term borrowings 27,815 23264
Total 37,812 35,699
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24 Financial instruments and risk management contunued

Deferred consideration receivable

The intial faur value of the deferred consideration receivable was determmned by discounting the guaranteed minimum amounts
as per the SPA to present value using a discount rate of 239% and 1t 1s subsequently measured at amortised cost

: R Ly
Corrency nale ancos when Grou enbilies erilet inito transactions denominated in a currency other than ther functional currency
The Group's policy 1s. where possible, te allow Group entities to settle liabilities denominated in their functional currency with the
cash generated from cperations In that currency The Group’'s currency risk exposure arises mamnly as a result of the majority of

Its Shiphroking earnings being denominated in US dellars while the majority of its costs are dencminated In sterling There is also
sOMme currency exposure related 1o convertible loan notes and deferred consideration denorminated in euros and from the carrying
values of Its overseas subsidiaries being denominated in foreign currencies

The Group manages its transactional exposures to foreign currency risks using forward exchange contracts and currency options
The Group 15 primarly exposed to fluctuations in US dolar to sterling exchange rates on foreign currency sales and hedges a
proportion of those expected cash flows out to 21 months. The principal source of hedge ineffectiveness is the nisk of changes

ir tirming of the forecast transachon or that they do not occur, which s addressed by only hedging a proportion of future foreign
currency sales. There were no hedged transactions forecast in the current year which did not occur (2022: ril)

The Group's results, which are reported in sterling, are exposed to changes in foreign currency exchange rates across a number
of different currencies with the most significant exposures relating to the US dollar The Group 1s exposed to the underlying
translational movements which remain outside the control of the Group. The Group's translational exposures to foreign currency
risks relate to both the translation of income and expenses and net assets of overseas subsidianes which are converted into
sterling on consoldation The Group finances overseas investments partly through the use of foreign currency borrowings in order
to provide a net investment hedge over the foreign currency risk that anses on translation of its foreign currency subsidiaries

The Group continues 1o apply hedge accounting to hedging instruments that meet the criteria set out n IFRS &

Cash flow hedges are used to hedge the vanability in cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions caused by changes in
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates Where a denvative financial instrument is designated in a cash flow hedge
relationship with a highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part of any change in fair value arising 1s deferred in the
cash flow hedging reserve within equity, via the Staterment of Comprehensive Income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
part is recognised in the Income Staternent within net finance expense Amounts deferred in the cash flow hedging reserve are
reclassified to the Income Statement in the periods when the hedged item is recognised In the Income Statement

If a hedging nstrument expires or is sold but the hedged forecast transaction is stll expected to ocouwr, the cumulative gan or
loss at that point remains In equity and is recognised in accordance with the above policy when the transaction occurs. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised
irnmediately in the Income Statement. If a dervative inancial instrument 1s not formally designated in a cash flow hedge
relationship, any change In far value 1s recognised in the Income Statement.

The critical terms of the hedging nstrurments match the hedged transactions in relation to currency, timing and amounts,
meaning there 1s a clear econamic relationship between the hedyng instrument and hedged tem as required under [FRS &
Thereby, management qualitatively demonstrates that the hedging instrument and the hedged items will move egually In the
opposite direchon

Aloss of £4.826000 (2022 £1613000 gain) has been recognised in the Incume Statement in respect of dernvative contracts which
have matured in the period

The Group entered into currency options featunng a “cap and floor” feature The intrinsic value of the options 1s designated In
cashflow hedge relationships The time value of the options 1s deferred in equity as a cost of hedging and reclassified to the
Income Staternent N the perod that the hedged cash flow affects the Income Statement,

The Group also enterad Into a currency option which 1s not designated in a cash flow hedge relationship with & fan value of a

£0.2 millton frabiity (28 February 2022 £nil hability} The £0.2 mithon mavement int far value in the pernod was charged to the Income
Staternent (2022, £nil) and 1s included within Finance costs

Braemar Plc Annual Keport and Accounts 2072



147

Strategic Report

Governance 4

The effects of the foreign currency-related hedging instruments on the Group's financial position and performance are as follows

Currency options 2023 7022
Carrying amount of (lability)/asset {£28,000) £14000
Total notional amount $1,500,000 $5000000

March 2023 to Apni 2021 to
Maturty dates April 2023 August 2022
Hedge ratio 11 11
Change in far value of outstanding hedging nstruments since inception of the hedge (£23,000) £14,000
Change In value of hedged item used to determine hedge ineffectiveness £23,000 (£14.000}
Weighted average strike rate for outstanding hedging instruments 123 t01.29 138
Forward currency contracts 2023 2022
Carrying amount of asset £1,254,000 £62000
Carrying amount of hability (£1,547,000) (F771,000)
Total notional amount US $123,048,000  US $49300000

March 2023 to March 2022 to
Matunty dates November 2024 August 2023
Hedge ratio 11 11
Change in fair value of outstanding hedging instruments since Inception of the hedge {£218,000) (E723,000}
Change in value of hedged item used to determine hedge Ineffectiveness £218,000 £723000
Weighted average strke rate for outstanding hedging instruments 122 137

The Group uses its US dollar denominated borrowings as a hedge against the translation exposure on the Group's net investrnent
In overseas companies The Group designates the spot rate of the loans as the hedging instrument There was no ineffectiveness
to be recognised on hedges of net iInvestmenits in foreign operations Where the hedge s fully effective at hedging the variabilty in
the net assets of such companies caused by changes in exchange rates, the changes in value of the borrowings are recognised
In the translation reserve within equity, via the Staterment of Comprehensive Income The ineffective part of any change in value
caused by changes In exchange rates 1s recognised in the Income Staterment. The effective portion will be recycled into the
income Staternent on the sale cf the foreign cperation.

The table beiow provides further information on the Group's net Investment hedging relationships:

2023 2022

£'000 £000

Hedge ratio 1 n/a
Change n value of hedging instrurments due to foreign currency movements since 1 March 124 n/a
Change in value of the hedged itern used to determine hedge effectiveness (124) n/a

The balances and movemnents inta and cut of the foreign currency translation reserve are shown in the Consolidated Staternent
of Comprehensive Incorme and the Consnlidated Statement of Changea in Cquity réspeclively The amount in the foreign currency
transiation reserve in relation to hedge accounting 1s a loss of £01 million (2022 £nil) and 1s spht as follows

- contnung net Investrment hedges loss of £01 milion (2022 £nil); and
- hedging relationships for which hedge accounting 1s no longer apphed, £l (2022 £nil)
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24 Financial instruments and risk management contirued

The effect on equity and profit before tax if the US dollar or the suro strengthened/(weakened) by 10% agamst stering, with all
cother vanables being equal, 1s as follows

Profit or loss Equity, nel of tax
+10% strengthening —10% weakening +10% strengthening ~10% weakening
£000 £000 £'000 £000

28 February 2023
US doliars 874 1,220} {4,529) 3,656
Euros (36) 36 (36) 36
Total 838 (1,184) (4,565) 3,692
28 February 2022
US dollars 2697 (2887} 2185 (2,185}
Euros {1 il (Q0) 90
Total 2586 (2.686) 2,095 (2,095)

! )

The Group s exposed to interest rate nsk from borrowings at floating rates The Group minimises its short-term exposure to
interest rate rnisk on its cash and cash equivalents by pooling cash balances across the Group's hubs

The Group has not entered into any financial Instruments to fix or hedge the interest rates applied to 1ts bank borrowings
and overdrafts.

The following table sets out the carrying amount, by maturity, of the Group's financial instruments which are exposed to interest
rate risk

2023 2022
Notes £'000 £000
Fleating rate
Within one year
Cash and cash equivalents 25 34,735 13,964
Long-term borrowings 27 {27,815) (23,254)
6,920 (9,290}

Cash palances are generally held on overnight deposits at floating rates depending on cash requirements and the prevailing
market rates for the amount of funds deposited The other financial instrurments of the Group are non-interest bearing

The effect on equty and prafit hefore tax of a 1% increase/(Uecease) in the interest rate, all cther vanables being equal, 1s as fallows:

Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
+1% increase  —1% decrease  +1% ncrease —1% decrease
£°000 £000 £000 £000

28 February 2023
Cash and cash equivalents 187 (187} 187 (187)
Long-term borrowings (195) 195 (195) 195
Total (8) 8 (8) 8
28 February 2022
Cash and cash eguivalents 83 63) 51 {51)
Long-term borrowings (104) 104 84 24
Total {41} 4 (33} 33
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The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the end of the reporting period 1s the carrying amount of each class of financial assets
Concentrations of credit nek with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the diversity of the Group’s customer base.
The directors believe there 1s no further credit nsk provision required In excess of normal provisions for doubtful recevables,
estimated by management based on prior experience and ther assessment of the current economic environment The Group
seeks to trade only with creditworthy parties and carries out crecit checks where appropriate The maximum exposure Is the
Ll iy arnounl as disclosed in Note z4

Liquidity risk anses from the Group's management of warking capital and the finance charges and principal repayments on its
debt instruments [t 1s the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they falt due.

The Group's policy 1s to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet 1ts liabilities when they become due.
Management receive roling 13-week cash flow projections on a weekly basis to ensure the Group has sufficient guidity.

The board recewves roling 12-month cash flow projections on a monthly basis as well as information regarding cash balances.
At the end of the financial year, these projections indicated that the Group expected to have sufficient iquid resources to meet its
obligations under all reasonably expected circumstances.

The following table sets out the undiscounted contractual amounts due, N relation to the Group's financial Tiabilities which exposes
the Group to lguidity nisk. '

Between B I%tal
Upto3 3and 12 Between1  Between 2 Over cohtractual: carrying -
months months and2years andb years Syears ’a.‘n'f@yg\t amount
At 28 February 2023 £'000 €000 £'000 £000 £°000 B0 £000
Trade and other payables 4,971 1,388 87 - :
Loans and borrowings 422 1,266 1,688 29,242
Lease labiities 757 2.27‘! 1,375 799
Deferrad consideration 66 764 109 3,726 36612
Total 6,218 6,689 3,259 33,767 23 48,964 42,839
Forward currency contracts 1,547
Gross outflows 14,749 48,926 29,414 - - 93,088
Gross inflows (14,663) (48,866) (28,621) - - (91,940}
Currency options 213
Gross outflows 3,107 5,603 1,864 - - 10,564
Gross nflows (3,084) {5,593) (1,864) - - (10,541)
Net outflow from denvative contracts 219 59 893 - - 1,174
Between Total Total
Upto 3 3and 12 Between 1 Between 2 Cver contractual cartymg
months months and 2 years and b years 5 years amount amount
At 28 February 2022 £000 £000 E000 £°000 £000 £000 £000
Irade and other payables 5,640 2120 - - - 777G 7779
Lerans el sy ngs - 23.2b4 - - 43204 23204
Lease liabiities 864 2567 3197 2131 16 8775 8506
Deferied consideration - 1450 1,654 1662 - 4666 4666
Total 8,513 6147 28,105 3.693 16 44,474 44205
Forward currency contracts 772
Gross cutflows 11204 18,748 6,498 - - 36,450
Gross Inflows (11.034) (18,231} (6,414) - -~ (35.679)
Net outflow from forward currency
contract 170 517 84 - - 771

Total -

Loans and borrowings have been representad to show the expected interest payments payable on the revolving credit facility in

addition to the repayment of the loan.
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24 Financial instruments and risk management contirued

The Group manages s capital structure so as to maintain investor and market confidence and to provide returns to shareholders
that will support the future development of the business The Group makes adjustments to the capital structure if required in
response to changes in econemic conditions. The Group considers its capital as consisting of ordinary shares and rétained
earnings To maintan or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return caprtal to
shareholdors or saue new shares.

The Group has a policy of mantainng positive cash balances and also has a revolving credit facility which it draws down as
required to provide cover against the cyclical nature of the shipping Industry.

The board monitors underlying business performance to determine the ongoing use of capttal, namely executive and staff
ncentive schemes (and whether to fund this through cash or share incentives), acquisition appraisals ahead of potential business
combinations; INvestment in property, plant and equipment; and the fevel of dividends.

No changes wete made in the abjectives, policies or processes dunng the years ended 28 February 2023 and 28 February 2022

Lease
liabilities Total
£'000 £'000

At 1 March 2022
Cash flows
Non-cash flows:

8,506 36,426
(4,039) (1,.287)

— Shares 1ssued - {11
- Denvatives issued - )
- Accrual of service cost - 69
- Interest accrung in the pencd 175 615
- New leases - - 770 770
- Business combinations - - 88 86
- Lease terminations - - (632) {632)
- Amounts reclassified from deferred consideration to loans 815 (616) - -
— Effects of foreign exchange 317 61 161 539
At 28 February 2023 31,367 - 5,027 36,394
Current portion 699 - 2,923 3,622
Loans and Deferrad Lease
borrowings  consideration rabiltios Total
E£CO0 £000 £000 £000
At 1 March 2021 207142 882 12,554 43578
Cash flows (2,955) - (3.950) (6,905)
Non-cash flows:
- Shares issued {(H41} - - (541
— Derwvatives issued {203) - - (293}
- Interest accruing in the penod 671 238 329 1,238
- New leases - - 814 814
- Amounts reclassified from deferred consideration to loans 625 {625) - -
- Cory Brothers disposal - - (1,243) 1.243)
- Effects of foreign exchange (224) - 2 (222)
At 28 February 2022 27425 495 8,606 36,426
Current portion 1416 - 3429 4,845
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2023 2022

£'000 £000

Cash at bank and cash on hand 34,735 13,964
Total 34,7356 13,964

Cash and cash equivalents largely comprise bank balances dencrminated in sterling. US dellars, euros and other currencies for the

purpose of settling current habiltes

Cash includes an amount of £40 million (2022 £29 milllon) held In the bank accounts of regulated entities where there 1s a
requirement to hold a certain amount of cash at any cne time N order to cover future obligations No charge or other restriction

of use is held over this cash.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of these assets approximate to therr far vaiue.

26 Trade and other payables

Restated

2023 2022

Current liabllities £°000 £000
Trade payables 1,809 3,397
|.ease labilties 2,923 3,429
Other taxation and social security 1,869 721
Other payables 767 400
Contract labilties 329 154
Accruals 49,613 31,082
Total 57,310 39183

Accruals includes accrued bonuses and other general accruals

The average credit penod taken for trade payables is 33 days (2022 102 days) The directors consider that the carrying amounts of

trade payables approximate to ther fair value,

27 Borrowings

2023 2022
£°000 £'000

Long-term borrowings
Secured revolving credit facilities 27,816 23,254
Lease liabilities 2,104 5077
Total 29,919 28,331

During the period, the Group extended its revolving credit facility ("RCF”) with its main bankers, HSBC. The RCF is for £300 million
plus an accordion Imit of £100 millon and has an inbal termination date of November 2026 with two options, subject to lender
approval. to extend the term of the facility by 12 and 24 months respectively Drawdown of the accordion facility is subject to
additional credit approval The RCF agreement has an EBITDA leverage covenant of 2 5x and a minmum interest cover of 4x At
31 May 2022, 31 August 2022, 31 November 2022 and 28 February 2023 the Group met all financial covenant tests Amounts can
be rolled on a monthly basis until the faciity expires subject to certan conditions, and on that basis the borrowings have been
classified as non-current. The amounts drawn under the RCF bear interest based on SONIA, SOFR and EURIBOR from amounts
drawn in sterling, US dollars and euros respectively, plus a credit margin dependent on the Group's leverage ratio.

All revolving credit facikties are drawn by Braemar Ple and appear n the accounts of the Company See Note 25 for details of the
Group's cash pooling arrangements and the net overdraft avalable 1o the Group.

The directors consider that the farr value of the revolving credit facility laboiity 1s equivalent to its carrying amount
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27 Borrowings cortinued

In September 2017, the Group acquired the entire share capital of Naves Corporate Finance GmbH ("Naves”) Naves 1s an
establshed and successful business, headquartered in Hamburg, Germany, which advises national and international clents
on corporate finance related to the maritime Industry including restructuring advisory. corporate finance advisory, M&A, asset
brokerage Interim/pre-insolvency managerment and financial asset management including lean servicing

The acquisition agreement provided for consideration of £16.0 million (€18 4 million) payable as follows:

}  at completion In cash of £7.3 millon (£8.3 milkon}, in shares of £1.3 million (€15 millon) and in convertible Joan notes of
£64 milhon (€74 million}); and

1) deferred consideration in cash of £05 millon (€06 millen) and convertible loan notes of £05 millen (€06 millon). payable in
instalments over the three years after the acquisition

No consideration was contingent consideration. As at 28 February 2023, there 1s £nil outstanding deferred consideration
{2022 £nil) to non-management seliers.

The acquisition agreement also provided deferred amounts that would be payable to management sellers, conditicnal on their
ongoing service In the business, IFRS 3 states that amounts paid to former owners which are conditional on ongoing service are
for the benefit of the acquirer and not for the benefit of former owners Consideration linked to the ongoing service of former
owners Is treated as rermuneration for post-combination services and classified as acquisition-related expenditure under specific
items in the iIncome Statement

The deferred amounts payable to managerment sellers comprised

i) deferred cash of £13 millon (€15 milion) and deferred convertible loan notes of £4.3 million (€48 milion} conditional only on
the individual management seller's continued service payable in instalments over the five years after the acquisition, and

iy deferred convertible loan notes of up to £24 milion (€110 million) conditional on the Individual management seller's continued
service and the post-acquisition Naves’ EBIT in the three years post-acquisition By February 2021, there was no contingency
remaining and the total amount paid was £4 6 milion (€5.2 million)

In 2022 the amount of service accrual of £05 millon 1s presented within deferred consideration. Following the issuance of new
convertible loan notes in relation to this amount during the year, at February 2023 £nil (2022 £05 million) due to management
sellers was subject to future service conditions. Note 27 sets out the outstanding amounts In relation to the Naves acquisition.

Post-acquisition remuneration of £01 millon associated with the acguisition were incurred dunng the year ended 28 February 2023
(2022. £0.2 millior) and have been classiied as acquisition-related expenditure under speciic items In the Income Staterment.
See Note 10

The Group issued convertible loan notes IN connection with its acquisition of Naves in September 2017,

These convertible loan note instruments are Unsecured, unlisted and non-transferable The notes are euro denominated and carry
a 3% per annurm coupon Each tranche is redesmabie on or after two years from the date of issue by the Group or by the Individual
holder. The corwversion prices were fixed at 3903 pence for management sellers and 4503 pence for non-management sellers

'he convertible loan note nstruments carry certan accelerated conversion nghts in the event of default on financial commitments
associated with the instruments or business distress within the Group. The lcan notes shall automatically convert or be redeemed
in the event that any person or persons acting in concert hold more than 50% of the issued share capital of the Group or an
Impairment charge N excess of £439 millon (€500 millon) 1s retlected In the audted Financial Statements of the Group.

The embedded dervatives within the convertible loan notes are valued using level 3 hierarchy techniques under IFRS 13 See Note 24,

The total value of convertible loan note liabilties, ncluding inked derivatives, 1s £39 mithon (2022 £49 million) The foliowing table
shows amounts N the Group balance sheet relating to the convertible loan notes 1ssued on the acquisition of Naves

2023 2022
Represented in the Group Balance Sheet £'000 £000
Current kabitities

Convertible loan notes 699 1,416
Non-current liabilities.

Convertible loan notes 2,852 2755

Accrued employee costs - 495

Dervatives 384 251

3,236 3,501

3,835 4917
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The movement In the Naves-related balances in the Group Balance Sheet during the year 1s explaned by the items below

2023 2022
£000 E£'000
Total Naves-related balances at start of year 4,917 8,080
Fingnice expense 426 130
Post-acquisition remuneration 1] 238
Foreign exchange maovements 250 (225)
Renegotization gan - (172)
Cash pad {1,6086) {2,593)
Equity 1ssued (1) (541)
Total movements (982) (3163}
Total Naves-related balances at year end 3,935 4917
The current year cash paid includes interest of £F15800C
The loan notes have the following maturities:
Accounting value Norminal value
2023 2022 2023 2022
£°000 £000 €000 €000
Due at the reporting date
30-Sep22 - 1184 - 1399
31-Dec-22 - 215 - -
30-8ep-23 606 592 899 699
not yet
30-Sep-24 550 earned 699 B9
30-Sep-25 2,395 2180 2,929 2,928
3,551 4171 4,327 5726
Derivatives thereon 384 251
Accrual for notes subject to future service - 405
Total labilties on loan notes 3,935 4917

Note that current labilities in respect of the loan notes differs from the amounts shown above maturing within one year due to
interest payatle within one year on non-current loans and the cutstanding current kability to deliver cash and shares in respect
of matured loan notes

Where loan notes are subject to future service conditions. they are accrued as an employee expense over the relevant service
penod. At the ond of the service period they are revouynised gs Iinancial instruments. The nominal value ot loan notes subject to
Milure senaca ic INcluded n tho matunty analysis above Lul s oot nluded in the Group's Mnanclal lapiites | he accrual N respect
of these items was £l at 28 February 2023 (2022: £05 million).

On 3 June 2021 the Group reached an agreement with two of Braemar Naves’ managing directors, Axel Sieprnann and Mark
Kuchenbecker, and ther connected parties, 1o restructure certain convertiole loan notes owed by the Group. These loan
notes arose on varable consideration for post-acquisition services ansing from the 2017 Naves acquisition At the time of the
renegohation there were no contingencies or further service obligations outstanding in respect of any of these amounts

Actotal of £25 milhon (€2 8 milion) which was previously due to mature before the end of December 2022 was deferred to mature
no earlier than September 2025 In addition, a further amount of £07 rmillon (€075 millon) was agreed to be satished by the

1ssue of Braermar shares in three tranches The first two tranches, totaling £06 millon (€06 milion) were 1ssued in September and
December 2021 with the remaning tranche of £01 millon (€01 millcn} issued In December 2022 As part of the madification the
Group also agreed to Increase the interest rate on certain convertible loan notes, to the extent that they are still outstanding, to 5%
per annum from September 2025 from the 3% payable until that date.

In the prior year & credit of £02 milion was recognised in respect of the accounting for the modification and classified in finance
Income under specific items N the Income Staterment See Note 10
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28 Provisions

Uncertain

CoMMISSIon
Dilapidations oblgation Cther Total
EQ00 E'C00 £000 £000
At 28 February 2021 f75 - 302 Q07
Frovided in the year 7 - 279 286
At 28 February 2022 682 - 601 1,283
Reclassihcation 18 1707 {346) 1379
Provided in the year - 257 462 718
Utlsed in the year - - 15) (15
Reversal of provision in the year (124} - - {(124)
Exchange differences 18 - 51 87
At 28 February 2023 592 1,964 753 3,309
Current 122 1964 489 2575
Non-current 470 - 264 734
At 28 February 2023 592 1,964 753 3,309

Dilapidations relate to future obligations to make good certain office premises upon expiration of the lease term. The pravision I1s
calculated with reference to the location and square footage of the office

Employee entitliements of £05 million is included in other, which relate to statutory long service leave in Braesmar ACM Shipbroking
Pty Limited. This is based on the principle that each Australian employee 1s entitied to eight weeks of leave over and above

any annual leave on completion of ten years’ continuous service The provision 1s calculated with reference to the number of
employees who have at least seven years of continuous service

In June 2023 the board commissioned an independent internal investigation into an historical transaction cnginating in 2013, The
nvestigation was overseen by an Investigation Committee chaired by the Groug's non-executve Charman and was conducted by
an independent specialist forensic accounting firm, and independent extermnal counsel. The investigation was comprehensive and
complex and ultimately encompassed several transactions between 2006 and 2013 which required further investigation

As a result of the mvestigation, the Group has recognised a provision of £2.0 million in relation to the uncertan obligations
connected to a numicer of the transactions and commission cbligations identified as part of the investigation Of the £20 milion,
£17 millicn refates to an historical unsettled commission payable which was recorded in 2017 upon completion of the relevant
contracts which originated in 2013, This balance has been reclassified from trade payables to provisions during the vear. While
the board cannot forecast with certainty final outcomes N respect of these obligations, based on the Group’s current information,
the amount recognised s the current best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligaticns at the balance sheet date,
taking into account the nsks and uncertainties surrcunding the obligations, including interpretation of specific laws and likelhood
of settlement

As the ultmale polential obligatcns and outcomes arc uncertain in relation to the ransactions subject to the internal iInvestigation.
there remains a nok that the final cutearmies could materially impact the recogrised balative within Lhe next or in tuture hinancial
years It s impracticable lo provide sensitivity estimates of potential downside variances at this time.

29 Retirement benefit schemes
The Group operates a defined benefit scherne in the UK A full actuanal valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2020 and
updated by the |AS 19 valuation as at 28 February 2023 All valuations have been carned out by a gualihed independent actuary

The Group's obiigations in respect of the funded defined benefit scheme at 28 February 2023 were as follows

2023 2077

£'000 £°000

Present value of funded obligations 10,668 15,156
Far value of scheme assets, net of tax (11,678) (13104)
Total surplus)/deficit of defined benefit pension scheme {1,120) 2052
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The Group sponsors a funded defined benefit scheme {the ACM Staff Pension Scheme) for qualfying UK employees The
Scheme s administered by a separate board of Trustees which i1s legally separate from the Group The Trustees are composed
of representatives of both the employer and employees The Trustees are required by law to act In the interest of all relevant
beneficianes and are responsible for the investment policy with regard to the trust assets and the day-to-day administration

of benefits

Under the Scheme, employees are entitled to annual pensions on retirement at age 60 of 1/80th of final pensionable salary for
each year of service. Pensicnable salary s defined as basic salary plus the average of the previcus three years’ bonuses {(capped
at three times basic salary) Pensionable salares for members who joined after 1 June 1982 are also subject to an earnings cap
Other benefits are payable, for example those provided on death

The scheme is closed to future accrual and from 1 February 2018, post-retirerment benefits are provided to these employees
through a separate defined contribution arrangement

The defined benefit abligation includes benefits for current employees, former employees, and current pensioners Broadily,
around 1% of the liabilities are attributable to deferred pensions for current and former employees, with the remaining 49% to
current pensioners

The Scheme duration is an indicator of the weighted average time until benefit payments are made For the Scheme as a whole,
the duration 1s arcund 15 3 years

UK legislation reguires that pension schemes are funded prudently The mast recent funding valuation of the Scheme was
carried out by a qualified actuary as at 31 March 2020 and showed a deficit of £15 millon As a result, the Company has made
contrnbutions of £450,000 p.a between April 2020 and March 2023. Contributions to the Scheme have ceased since March 2023

'

The Scheme exposes the Group to a number of nsks, the most significant of which are:

The habilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yelds, it assets underperform this yield, this
will create a deficit The Scheme holds a significant proportion of growth assets which, though expected to outperform corporate
bonds in the long term, create volatilty and risk in the short term The allocation to growth assets is monitored to ensure it remains

appropriate given the Scheme's long-term objectives

An Increase in corporate bond yields will decrease the value placed on the Scheme’s liabilibes for accounting purposes, although
this will be partially offset by a Decrease in the value of the Scheme’s bond holdings

A proportion of the Scheme’s benefit obligaticns are inked to inflation and higher nflaton will lead to higher liabilities (although, in
most cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are In place to protect aganst extreme inflation). The majonty of the assets
are either unaffected by or only loosely correlated with inflation, meaning that an increase in Inflation will also ncrease the deficit

The majotity of lhe Scheme's cbligations are to provide benefits for the Iife of the member. sc Increases in Iife expectancy will result

N an increase N scheme liabiities

The Company and Trustees have agreed a long-term strategy for reducing investrment risk as and when appropriate. This ncludes
moving assets to match pensioner llabilities when members reach retirement

The Trustees insure certan benefits payable on death before retirement,
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29 Retirement benefit schemes continuead

P R

The principal assumptions used for updating the latest valuation of the Scheme were

2023 2022
(% pa) (% pa)
Discount rate 490 265
CPlinflation 3.0 31
Pension Increases
CPl capped at 25% pa 20 21
CPl capped at 50% pa 3.0 32
Deferred pension increases:
CPlcapped at 256% pa. 2.0 21
CPl capped at 50% pa 3.0 32
2023 2022
Years Years
Life expectancy from age 80 for,
Current 80-year-old male 251 275
Current 80-year-old female 27.7 287
Pre-retirement mortality - -
Post-retirement mortality S2 PXA, CMI 2021 {min 125%)
Earfy retrement 33% of members retire at age 55, with the remainder retiring at age 60
Withdrawals from active service No allowance
Cash commutation 25% of the member’s pension I1s commuted

Under early retirement it is assumed that 33% of members will retire at age 55, with the remainder retinng at age 60

The Scheme's assets are split by type of asset In the following table

2023 2022
Scheme assets £'000 £000
Scheme assets are comprised as follows:
UK eguities 434 366
Overseas eqguiies 4,374 4,391
Unguoted equities 78 57
Absolute return - 315
High yield detst 1,019 326
Caslh 707 322
Inflation-linked bonds 1,022 4354
Corporate bonds 1,883 1547
Government bonds 1,303 234
Other 1,462 1183
Total 12,282 13,104

The Pension Scheme assets do not Include any ordinary shares issued by the Company Al assets are held through pooled
investment vehicles
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Expense recognised in the Income Statement (included in operating costs}

Current service cost
Curtailment credit
interest cusl o nct asact/lobility

Expense recognised in Income Statement

Remeasurements in other comprehensive expense:
Loss/{gain) on assets in excess of that recognised in net interest
Actuanial gains due to ¢hanges in financial assumptions
Actuanal gains due to changes in demographic assumptions
Actuanal losses due to lability expenence

Deferred tax charge

Expected tax charge on recovery of assets

(Gany/loss recognised N other comprehensive income

Governance

Total amount recognised in Income Statement and other comprehensive expense

Changes to the present value of the defined benefit obligation are analysed as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation

Interest expense

Actuanal iosses due to changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial losses due to changes In demographic assumptions
Actuarial gains due to lability experience

Net benefit payments from scheme

Closing value at 28 February

Changes in the farr value of plan assets are analysed as follows:

Opening far value at 1 March

Interest ncome

Far value (losses)/gains on assets
Contributions by employers

Net benefit payrnents from scheme
Expected tax charge on recovery of assets

Closing value at 28 February

The Group does not expect to make any contributions to the scheme in the next 12 months (2022 £412500)

Actual return on Scheme asséts

Interest Income on plan assets
Remeasurement {(oss)/gain on assets

Actual return on assets

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounty 2023

2023
£000

54
64

1,061
(4,594)
(220)

374

414

604
(2,361)

(2,307)

2023
£°000
15,156
402
{4,694)
(220)
374
(560)

10,558

2023
£'000
13,104
348
(1,081)
450
(559)
{604)

11,678

2023
£'000

348
{1,081)

(713)

2022
£000

73
73

(316}

{2174

(268)
1368
72

(1,318}

(1.245)

2022
£000
16,174
307
(2174}
(268}
1368
(251

15,156

2627
£000
12,355
239
316
4t
(252)

13104

2022
£000

235
316

551
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29 Retirement benefit schemes continued

P e L AT i

The table below lllustrates the sensitivity of the Scheme liabilities at 28 February 2023 to changes in the principal assumptions. The
sensitivities assurmne that all other assumptions remain unchanged and the calculations are approximate (full calculations could lead
lo & diferent result)

Approximate  Approximate

mcrease 1IN nNcrease in

labilities labities

Change in assumption % £000
Interest rate reduced by 05% pa 12 1180
inflation assumption increased by 05% pa” 72 760
Increase in Iife expectancy of one year for all members reaching 60 22 230

* The intlation assumption sensitiv ty apphes to both the assumed rate of Increase Inthe CPl and the RPI, and includes the iImpact on the rate of ncreases to
pensions, both before and after retirement

There are a nurmber of defined contribution schemes in the Group, the prncipal scheme being the Braemar Pension Scheme,
which is open to all UK employees Cash contributions paid into the defined contribution schemes are accounted for as an Income
Statement expense as they are incurred. The total charge for the year in respect of this and other defined contribution schemes
amounted to £1811,000 (2022 £1,613000] of which £1811000 (2022 £915000) was in respect of continuing operations

No contributions were due to these schemes at 28 February 2023 (2022 £92,000)

The assets of these schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of the Trustees.

30 Share capital

Ordinary shares Ordinary shares
2023 2022 2023 2022
Number Numiser £000 £000
Ordinary shares of 10 pence each 34,903,000 34,903,000 3,490 3,490
Ordinary shares Ordinary shares Share premium
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Number Nurmber £000 £°000 £'000 £000
Pooboen
Fully paid ordinary shares of 10 pence
each
As al slart of year 32,200,279 31,731,218 3,221 3174 53,030 52,610
Shares isanie and filly pair (see helow) 7?24 59R 4/9 N1 " 47 766 520
As at end of year 32,924,877 32.20027¢ 3,292 3229 63,796 53,030

During the year, In connection with seting up a broker team i Madrnd, 253434 shares were 1ssued to certain employees as a
Joinmg incentive, and 37636 shares were issued to settle part of the deferred consideration payable in respect of the acquisition
of Naves

During the year ended 28 February 2023. no shares were issued as part of the restricted share plan scheme, nor the long-term
incentive programme (2022 no shares were 1ssued at nil cost) 433528 shares were issuad in the year as part of the Save As You
Earn { SAYE™ Scheme (2022: no shares were 1ssued), for which cash totaling £694,000 was received on exercise

No shares remaned unpaid at 28 Febrvary 2023 or 28 February 2022

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no nght to fixed income
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The Company operates a variety of share-based payment schemes which are hsted below

Detalls of the share options i 1Issue and the movements in the year are given below

Number at
Year option Number at 1 28 February Exercise poce Exercisable
Share scheme granted March 2022 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2023 {pence} between
SAYE 2019 437422 - (433.,528) (3.804) - B00 2022-2023

The weighted average share price on exercise for awards exercised during the year was £2 82 (2022 n/a).

These opticns are valued using a binomial pricing model The value of the awards was expensed over the perod from the date of
grant to the vesting date

The number of outstanding share options as at 1 March 2022 has been updated from the previcusly reported figure at 28 February
2022 of 413771 During the year, 433528 options were exercised (2022 no options exercised).

Detatls of the share awards in issue and the movements in the year are given below

Number at \Nﬁm‘ber at
1March ’ r Exercise price

Share scheme 2022 Granted Excraised Forferted (pence) Exercisable
Jun-18 1,512,351 -~ (1422155) {90,196) alll Jun-22
Jul-20 3,030,763 - (18160) (179.536) § . nil Jul-23
Nov-20 341,205 - {15,000) (10,930) nil Nov-23
Jun-21 1,212,193 - - (40.142) 1,172,051 nil Jun-24
Nowv-21 239415 - - - 239,415 nil Nov-24
Sep-22 - 967737 - {33.043) 934,694 nil Jun-2%
Jan-23 - 400679 - - 400,679 nil Jun-25
Feb-23 - 137132 - - 137,132 nil Jun-25
Deferred Bonus Plan 6,336,627 1505548 (1455,315) (363.847) 6,033,013

The weighted average share price on exercise for awards exercised during the year was £3.32 (2022 £277) The weighted average
share price at grant date for awards granted dunng the year was £298 (2022 £303). The far value of the award s estmated
based on the share price at the ime of grant less the expected dividend te be paid during the vesting period

Under both the Plan and the New DBP, sufficient shares to satisfy each award are bought over the course of the vesting

period. and held in an employee trust ("ESOP”) unti vesting As at 28 February 2023, the ESOP held 3587130 ordinary shares
(2022 2669603) The ESOP holding is in line with expectations of how many shares will be needed to satisfy the current awards
under this scheme This amount 1s net of expected lapses IN the scheme and the fact that recipients typically forego sufficient
shares i orcler to satisfy the associated tax liabiity that aricoc on thair vosting

The number of cutstanding share awards at 1 March 2022 has been updated from the previously reported hgures at 28 February
2022 of 33387 for Jun-18 (to nil}, 1806.422 for Jun-19, 3167.855 for 1ul-20, 315,975 for Nov-20 13285636 for Jun-21 and nil for Nov-21.
During the year ended 28 February 2015 the Company 1ssued 1409000 RSP awards, of which B0% will vest after three years and

25% after each of the fourth and fifth years provided the individuals rermain employed by the Group.

During the year ended 29 February 2018 a further 315000 RSP awards were granted, of which 50% will vest after three years and
256% after each of the fourth and fifth years provided the individuals rernam empiloyed by the Group.

During the year ended 28 February 2012 a further 144,000 RSP awards were granted, of which 100% will vest after three years
provided the indmduals remain employed by the Group

During the year ended 28 February 2022 a further 13000 RSP awards were granted, of which 100% will vest after seven moenths
provided the individuals remain employed by the Group
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30 Share capital contnued

Details of the RSP share awards in issue and the movements In the year are gven below.

Mumber at Number at

1 March 28 February
Share scheme 2022 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2023  Exercisable between
July 2014 13,750 - - - 13,750 7 — Jal 24
August 2015 12,500 - - - 12,5800 Aug 18 - Aug 25
November 2020 144,000 - (144,000} - - Feb 22 - Feb 29
Navember 2021 13,000 - (13,000) - - Feb 22 — Feb 29

Restricted Share Plan 183,250 - {1572000) - 26,250

The number of cutstanding share awards at 1 March 2022 has been updated from the previously reported figures at 28 February 2022
of 36,320 for July 2018 {to nil} and nil for November 2021

The weighted average share price on exercise for awards exercised dunng the year was £332 (2022 £2 81).

The fair value of the nil cost options is approximated to the share price at the time of grant less the expected dvidend to be paid
during the vesting period

The value of the awards are expensed over the period from the date of grant to the vesting date or If used as a recrutment

incentive, from the date of joining to the vesting date. The awards are satisfied by the issue of new shares

The Company also has LTIP awards, which aliow for the forrn of a conditional nght to receive shares at nil cost The awards
normally vest over three years and are subject to various performance conditions based on earnings per share ("EPS™} or
segmental operating profit

In June 2018, awards of 527464 shares were made to cne executive director and three senior members of management.
In June 2012, awards of 394,735 shares were made to one executive director and three senior members of management

In June 2020, awards of 508,250 shares were made to one executive director and three senicr members of managerment
In June 2021, awards of 437116 shares were made to two executive directors and one senior member of management

In February 2023, awards of 624174 shares were made to two executive directors and four senior members of management

Detalls of the LTIP share awards in 1ssue and the moverments in the year are given below.

Number at Number at
1 March 28 February
Share scheme 2022 Granted Exercised Lapsed Forfeted 2023 Exercisable between
LTIP 2018 33,294 - - - - 33,204 May 23 - Oct 28
LTIP 2012 331678 - - (86,620} (42105} 202,853 Jul 24 - Jul 29
LTiP 2020 431,250 - - - (566,250) 375,000 Jul25 — Jul 30
LTIP 2021 437166 - - - 47787} 389,379 Jun 286 - Jun 31
LTIP 2023 - 624174 - - - 624,174 27 = Jul 32
Long-Term Incentive
Plan 1,233,288 624174 - (86,620) (146,142) 1,624,700

The weighted average share prnice at grant date for awards granted dunng the year was £314

The far value of the LTIP 2021 award which has a TSR based vesting condition has been calculated using a Mente Carlo simulation
The fair value of the other LTIPs 1s determined based on the share price at the time of grant less the expected dividend to be paid
during the vesting penod calculated using the market consensus dividend yield

The value of the awards I1s recognised as an expense over the penod from the date of grant to the vesting date The awards are
satisfied by the issue of new shares
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On & December 2022, 253,434 shares were awarded as a joining incentive to certain empioyees of Madnd Shipping Advisors SL
and on 18 December 2022, 1016121 shares were issued to the former owners of Southport. as part of the acquisition. In addition,

on the acquisition of Southport, a further 872 821 shares were awarded to key employees of Southport. The fair value of the awards
is determined based on the share price at the tme of grant less the expected dividend to be paid dunng the three-year vesting
penod calculated using the rmarket consensus dividend yield. [or further details, see Note 14 Business combinations

The value of the awards I1s recogrised as an expense over the penod from the date of grant to the vesting date The awards will be
satished by the 1ssue of new shares

Numier at Number at
1March 28 February
Share award 2022 Granted Exercised Lapsed Forfetted 2023 Vesting
Southport Maritime Inc - 1,888,942 - - - 1,888,942 Dec 25
Madrid Shipping
Advisors SL - 253,434 - - - 263,434 Dec 23 -Dec2b

31 ESOP reserve

An Employee Share Ownership Plan (‘ESOP”) was established on 23 January 1995. The ESOP has been set up to purchase
shares in the Company These shares, once purchased, are held in trust by the Trustee of the ESOP, SG Kleinwort Hambros Trust
Company (Cl) Limited, for the benefit of the emnployees. Additicnally, an Employee Benefit Trust ("EBT™) previously run by ACM
Shipping Group plc also holds shares in the Company. The ESOP and EBT are accounted for within the Company accounts.

The ESOP reserve represents a deduction frem shareholders’ funds and a reduction in distributable reserves The deduction equals
the net purchase cost of the shares held in trust by the ESOP Shares allocated by the ESOP to satisfy share awards 1ssued by the
Group are released at cost on a First in First Out basis

Group and Company £°000
At 29 February 2021 1,362
New shares fully paid up and issued to the ESOP 25
Shares acquired by the ESOP 7043
ESOP shares allocated (1659)
At 28 February 2022 671
Shares acquired by the ESOP 7963
ESOP shares allocated (4.127)
At 28 February 2023 10,607

As at 28 February 2023, the ESOP held 3572630 (2022 2 662,837) ordinary shares of 10 pence each. The funding of the purchase
has been provided by the Company in the torm of a gift and the Trustees have contracted with the Company to waive the ESOP's
right to receve dividends. The fees charged by the Trustees for the operation of the ESOP are pad by the Company and charged
to the incorne Staternent as they fall dus

As part of the acquisition of ACM Shipping Group plc n July 2014, the Company issued 125621 shares into an Employee Bensht
Trust ("EBT™) previously run by ACM Shipping Group plc. As at 28 February 2023, the EBT held 62,260 (2022; 62,290) ordinary
shares of 10 pence each,

The total cost to the Company of shares and cash held in the ESOP and EBT at 28 February 2023 was £10806000 (2022 £6771.000)
including stamp duty associated with the purchase The shares owned by the ESCP and EBT had a market value at 28 February 2023
of £10948000 (2022 £6420395) The distribution of these shares is determined by the Remuneration Cormmittee

1877473 shares {2022 596,398} have been released to employees during the year The shares acqurred by the ESCP had an
aggregate cost of £80 millon
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32 Other reserves

Foreign
Capital currency
redernption Meryger translation Hedging
rescrve reserve resenve reserve Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
At 1 March 2021 396 2464 1622 1,435 28,094
Prior perod adjustment (994) (2994)
3296 24641 628 1435 27100
Cash flow hedges
- Transfer to income statement - - - (1.613) (1.613)
~ Far value Insses in the period - - - (869) (869)
Exchange differences - - 298 - 208
Deferred tax on items taken to equity - - - 514 514
At 28 February 2022 396 24,641 1,628 (533} 26,130
Cash flow hedges
- Transfer to income staterment - - - 4,826 4,826
- Fair value gamn/losses in the penod - - - (4,438) (4,438}
Investment hecdge - - (124} - (124)
Exchange dfferences - - 2,522 - 2,522
Deferred tax on items taken to equity - - - 97} 97}
At 28 February 2023 396 24,641 4,024 (242) 28,819

The capital redemption reserve arose on previous share buy-backs by the Company.

The merger reserve anses on transactions where the Company 1ssues shares pursuant to an arrangerent to acquire more than

a 90% interest in another company and no share premium 1s recorded. The merger reserve arose principally in 20071 in relation to
the acquisitions of Braemar Shipbrokers Limited and Braermar Tankers Limited. Further additions have arisen in respect of Naves
and Atlantic Brokers The amounts In the merger reserve are unrealised profits relating to the carresponding assets acquired by the
Company on the issue of shares These profits may become realised on the disposal or wnte down of these assets

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in far value of cash flow hedging instrumenits
relating to hedged transactions that have not yet cccurred of £321000 tability (2022° £710000 lability) A decrease of £87000 in
the deferred tax asset (2022 £514000 increase) is attributable to these transactions

The Group defers the time value of option contracts in the costs of hedging reserve

33 Contingent liabilities
The Group has contingent liabilities In respect of guarantees entered into in the normal course of business given as follows:

2023 2022
€000 £'000

Bank guarantees given to:
Third parties (non-cash collateralised) 324 237
Total 324 837

The Company and certain of its subsidianies have provided cross guarantees and fixed and floating rate charges over therr assets
to secure their porrowing facilities and other financial nstruments {see Note 24)

From time to time the Group may be engaged in litigation in the ordinary course of business The Group carries professional

indemnity insurance There are currently no fiabilities expected to have a matenal adverse financial Impact on the Group's
consolidated results or net assets
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34 Related party transactions
During the period the Group entered into the following transactions with joint ventures and investments

2023 2022
Recharges Balance due Recharges Balance due
to/f{from) Dividends {to)/ from to/{tram) Dividends (to)/ from
Group £'000 £°000 £000 £'000 £'000 £°000
AquaiisBraemar LOC ASA n/a n/a n/a 221 . 282

5

AgualisBraemar LOC ASA was a related party until the Group sold its significant sharehclaing in the entity and lost its
representation on the board, on 18 May 2022 All transactions with Agualis Braemar LOC ASA in the prior year have been included
as related party transactions. Recharges to AqualisBraemar LOC ASA consisted primarily of rent, IT services and HR services in

accordance with a transitional services agreement. In the pnor year, the net recharge to AqualisBraermar LOC ASA included a fee

payable to the Group's former Charman, Ronald Senes of £3750.

The balance due from AqualisBraemar LOC ASA is unsecured, nterest-free and immediiately repayable

Key management compensation is disclosed in Note 6.

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been elminated on consolidation and are

not disclosed in this Note.

Alist of the Group's subsidiary undertakings is on pages 163 to 165 Unless otherwise indicated, all shareholdings owned directly or
indirectly by the Company represent 100% of the issued share capital of the subsidiary and the share capital comprises ordinary

shares All entities primarily operate in therr country of incorporation.

Incorporated in England & Wales
One Strand, Trafalgar Square, London WC2N 6HR

Braegmar Shipping Group Limnited*
Braemar Securities Holdings Limited™
Braernar Financial Holdings Limited*
Brasmar Shipbrokers Limited*
Seascope Capital Services Limited*
Braemar Shipping Services Limited
Braemar Developments Limitec!*
Braemar Tankers bLimited

Incarporated in the US
2800 North Loep West, Suite 900, Houston, Taxas 77092, US

Braemar Holdings (USA) Inc

2401 PGA Boulevard, Suite 236, Palm Beach Qardens, Florida 33410 US
Southport Maritime Inc

Incorporated in Spain
Madrid, ctra. Humera 43, 6, Spain

Madnd Shipping Advisors SL
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Principal activity

Helding company
Holding company
Holding cormpany
Shipbroking
Non-trading
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant

Principal activity
Holding company
Principal activity

Shipbroking

Principal activity
Shipbroking

Registration number
05900315
10010085
10217096
674710
03682796
02360525
02186790
02001027

Registration number
FEIN 81-1568938

Registration number
55-0342500

Registration number
B10866028
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34 Related party transactions conunued

Incorporated in England & Wales
One Strand, Trafalgar Squars, London WC2N GHR

Braemar Shipbroking Group Limited*
Braemar Shiplbroking Limited
Braemar Shipbroking (Dry Cargo} Limited*
ACM Shipping USA Limited*
Braemar Valuations Limited*
Braemar Securites Limited

Braemar Corporate Finance Limited®
ACM Shipping CIS Limited

Braemar Marttime Limited*

Braermar Burmness Martime Limited*
Burness Marine {Gas) Limited*
Braermar Pension Trustees Limited

Incorporated in Germany
Domstrasse 17, 20095 Hamburg, Germany

Braemar Corporate Finance GmibH
Braernar Financial Holdings Gerrnany GrmbH

Incorporated in United Arab Emirates
One JLT 06-55 One JLT, Plot No. Dmcc-Ezi-1ab, Jumeirah Lakes Towers,
Dubai, UAE

Braemar ACM Shiptoroking DMCC

Incorporated in the US
2800 North Loop West, Suite 800, Houston, Texas 77092, US

Braemar ACM Shipbroking (USA} Inc
Braermar Technical Services (USA) Inc

24 Grassy Plain Street — Ste 4, Bethel, CT 06801-1700 US
Braermar ACM Shipbroking LLP

Incorporated in Singapore
80 Robinson ftd, #21 01/02, Singapore DARAOK

Braermar Shipbroking Pte Limied
Braemar Corporate Finance Pte Limited

incorporated in Australia
Level 3, 70 City Road, South Bank, Melbourne, Victoria 3006, Austradia

Braemar ACM Shipbroking Pty Limited

Incorporated in other overseas countries
Piazza 2 Giugno No 14, 54033 Carrara, Italy

Braemar Seascope itala SRL
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Principal activity

Holding company
Shipbroking
Shipbroking
Shiphroking
Valuations
Futures broker
Corporate finance
Dormant
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Dormant

Principal activity

Corporate finance
Holding company

Principal activity
Shipbroking

Principal activity

Shipbroking
Energy loss adjuster

Principal activity
Shipbroking

Principal activity

Chiplrolang
Corporate finance

Principal activity

Shipbroking

Principal activity
Shipbroking

Registration number
0161096
0102099/
07223509
08391132
03438765
07899358
02710842
06934055
Q3321899
03674230
C1081837
05502209

Registration number

HRB 114161
HRB 14608%

Registration number
DMCC-749556

Registration number

46-2641420
76-0036958

Registration number
1099337

Registration number
20060725470
201834760K

Registration number
ACN 000862 993

ABN 35 000 862 993

Registration number

01268770458
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Suite 2009, Building € Luneng Intemational Center,
No.211, GuoYoa Road, Pudong District, Shanghai, 200128, China Principal activity Registration number

Braemar Seascope (Shanghal) Limited Shipbroking AI100005588064761

2nd Fioor, Bullding No. 22, Pushp Vihar, Commercial Complex,
Madangir, New Delhi — 110 062, India Principal activity Registration number

Braemar ACM Shipbroking India Private Limited (499% owned) Shipbroking UsZ0e0DL2003PTC 120247

Office No. 1004, 10th Floor, Dalamal House, 206-Jamanalal Bajaj Road, Nariman
Point, Mumbai-400021, India Principal activity Registration number

ACM Shipping India Limited Dormant U33020MH2006FLC164019

Subsidiares marked with an astensk (*) are exermnpt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of
ndividual accounts by virtue of section 479A of the Companies Act 2008 for the fimancial year ended 28 February 2023 The
Company has provided a guarantee of all outstanding habilities to which these subsidiaries were subject as at 28 February 2023
in accordance with section 472C of the Companies Act 2006

35 Prior period adjustment

During the preparation of the 2023 Financial Statements, errors in consolidation entnes from prior years were identffied. These
errors date back to before 2021 and were not fully corrected as part of the prior year adustments in the Financial Statements

for the year-ended 28 February 2022 Therefore, the Group has provided a restated Balance Sheet as at 28 February 2022 and 1
March 2021 in accordance with 1AS 8. Principally, there were two errors identified. 1) A consolidation error in relation to the sale of
the Group's Technical Division in 2019 resulted In the overstaterent of other recevables, and retaned earmings as at 1 March 2021
and 28 February 2022 of £11 millon; 1} An error In the elmination of ntercompany balances principally related to postings required
In respect of the Naves transaction and associated liabilities resuited in the overstatement of other receivables and understatement
of other payables. The effect of the restaternent on the 2022 Balance Sheet 15 to decrease trade and cther recewvables by

E19 million, iIncrease trade and other payables by £05 milion, decrease retaned earnings by £14 milicn and foregn exchange
reserve by £10 millon The effect of the restaterment at 1 March 2021 is to decrease trade and other recenvables by £0.2 million,
increase trade and other payables by £2.2 million and decrease retained earnings by £14 millen and foreign exchange reserve

by £10 rmillion

The overall effect of the restatement on the 2022 Balance Sheet is to decrease trade and other recewables by £30 million and
increase trade and payables by £06 million, with an overall reduction in retaned earnings of £26 millon and foreign exchange
reserve of £10 million The overal effect of the restatement at 1 March 2021 is to decrease trade and other receivables by

£14 millon and increase trade and other payables by £2.2 million, with an overall reduction in retained earnings of £26 millicn

and foreign exchange reserve of £10 million. The impact on the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year to February 2022
is to decrease the movermnent in recewvables by £18 milion with a corresponding decrease to the maovement in payables balances
and does not impact any actual cash moverments

36 Events after the reporting date

In June 2023 Braermar Plc completed a capital reduction in relation to its share premium and merger reserves For further details
see ‘Note 12 Dividends’ There were no other adjusting or significant non-adjusting events between the reporting date and the
date these Financial Statements were authornsen
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Company Balance Sheet
As gt 28 February 2023

Note

Assets
Mon-current ascets

Intangible assets 5
Property. piant and equipment &
Investrments 8
Deferred tax assets 10
Other long-term recenvables H

Current assets

Other receivables 12
Derivative financial iInstruments 16
Cash and cash equivalents 13
Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Other payables 14
Convertible loan notes 16
Dervative labilities 16

Non-current liabilities

Other payables 14
Long-term borrowings 15
Convertible loan notes 16
Dervative liabilities 16
Provisions 17
Total liabilities

Total assets less total liabilities

Equity

Share capital 18
Ghiare premiurn 18
ESCP reserve 19
Other reserves 20

Retaned (deficit)/earrings

Total equity

As at
28 Feb 2023
£°000

422
2,004
119,639
844
13,732

136,541

8,442
1,183
2,174

1,799
148,340

60,010
703
42

60,755

868
28,744
2,809
664
M7

33,482
94,237
54,103

3,292
63.796
(10,607)
23,762
{16,3140)

64,103

As at
28 Feb 2022
E'000

627
3,891
108,388
176
38,775

151,861

10,800

700
1,500
163,361

45,298
1,46

46,714

570
27305
3.2/
86

541

31,772
78,486
84.8/5

3,201

53,030
6771

23,762
1633

84,875

In accordance with the exemptions allowed by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2008, the Company has not presented its own
profit and loss account A loss of £25624.000 (2022 profit of £15220000) has been dealt with in the Financial Staterments of

the Company.

The accompanying notes on pages 188 to 172 form an integral part of these Financial Statements,

The Financial Statements of Braemar Plc on pages 166 to 179 were approved by the board of directors on 15 November 2023 and

were signed on its behalf by

James Gundy Grant Foley

Group Chief Executive Officer Group Chief Financial Officer Registered number 02286034
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Company Statement of Changes in Total Equity

Strategic Report

For the year ended 28 Febrruary 2023

At 1 March 2021

Profit for the year

Dividends paid

lssue of shares

Qwn shares acgured

issue of shares held by ESOP
Share-based payments

At 28 February 2022

Loss for the year

Dividends paid

Issue of shares

Own shares acguired

lssue of shares held by ESOP
Share-based payments

Deferred tax credrt on share awards

At 28 February 2023

Share

capital

MNote F'O00
31774

47

3,221

a4 _
18 71
19 -
1@ -
3,292

Share
Drermrm
£000

52,510

53,796

Governance

ESOP
reserve
£'000

(1.362)

(25)
{7043)
1669

B.771

(7.963)
4127

(10,607)

Cther
reserves
£000

23,762

23,762

The accompanying notes on pages 168 to 179 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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Retaned
earnings/
(dehcit)
£000
{2.713)
15,220

(2,109)

{1652
2,894

1,633

(25,694}
(31980}

(3,650
4520
241

{16,140)

Total
equity
£000

75,371
1,220
(2109)
542
(7.043)

2,894
84,875

(26,694)

(3120)
837

{7963)
477
4520
24

64,103
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

General information

The separate financial Staterments of Bragmar Plc {previously Braemar Shipping Services Pic) for the year ended 28 February 2023
were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 16 Novemibzer 2023 Braemar Ple is a public imited
company mcorporated in England and Wales, and its principal activity 1s a holding company for the shiplbroking business

The term “Company” reters to Braemar Plc.
1 Significant accounting policies

The Company Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Practice.
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice;). No Income Statement is presented for Braemar Plc as provided by Section 408 of the Comparies Act 2006

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historc cost convention except for items measured at far value as set
out In the accounting palicies below and have been prepared on & going corncern basis

The Company Financial Statements are presented in sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand sterlng (£°000)
except where ctherwise indicated

The Financial Staternents of the Company have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework The
Company has applied the exemptions avallable under FRS 101 1n respect of the following disclosures

— cash flow statement and related notes,

- comparative pericd reconcilations for share capital,

- disclosures inrespect of transactions with wholly ewned subsidiaries,

- disclosures in respect of capital management;

- the effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs, and

— discloswes in respect of the compensation of key management personnel.

As the Consoldated Financial Statements of the Group on pages 98 1o 185 include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has
also taken the exemptions under FRS 101 available in respect of the following disclosures.

- IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” In respect of Group-seéttled share-based payments,

- certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 “Farr Value Measurement” and the disclosures required by IFRS 7 “Financial Instrument
Disclosures”; and

— the requirements in IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures” to disclose related party transactions entered intc between two or more
members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is a party to the transaction is wholly owned by such a member, and
the exemption to disclose key management compensation.

The Company Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis In reaching this conclusicn regarding the going
concern assumpticn, the directors considered cash flow forecasts for a periocd of greater than 12 months from the date of signing
of these Financial Statements The going concern assumption for the Company is considered together with the going concern
assumption for the Grroup,; see Nute |0 the Consulidated MNnancial Statements for mare detad

The preparation of the Company's Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent labilities. at the
reporting date Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, Including
expectabhons of future events that are belleved to be reasonable under the crcumstances. In the future, actual experience may
differ from these estmates and assumptions.

The following are key areas where the Company makes significant estirmates and judgements

Estmates regarding (1} the far value of contingent consideration recewvable and (1) share option vesting are described In the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 104 to 165.

Preference share assets

The Company holds investments in preference shares 1ssued by a subsidiary at far value through profit and loss The preference
shares are not traded in any market and there are no similar assets in quoted markets. Therefore, the Company performs a
valuation based cn the present value of future cashflows using unobservable {“Level 37) Nputs

Braemar Plc Annual Repont and Accounts 2023



1 6 9 Strategic Report Governance

The Company develops uncbservable inputs using the best information available in the circumstances, which INclude the Group's
forecasts of cash flows for the underlying businesses of the halding company 1ssuing the preference shares using a nsk-adjusted
discount rate See also accounting policies Note 1(c)

The key estimates are therefore the selection of suitable discount rates and the estimation of future growth rates which vary
between cash-generating units depending oh the specific risks and the anticipated econnmic and market conditions related to
each cash-generating unit The far value was estimated based on discounted cashflow forecasts with an adjustrent for net debt
in relation to balances not forming part of working capital of the entity. The discount rates and growth rates are consistent with
those applied to the same business IN the Group's assessment of the imparment of goodwill {see Note 15 in the Consolidated
Financial Statements for a description of the approach used by management to determine these key values}

Investments in subsidiaries

The Company recognises provisions for imparrment of investments in subsidiaries based on managemesnt's jJudgement of whether
or not there is an indicaton of Impairment at the Balance Sheet date A Judgerment is made based on the net assets, cash balance
and future trading performance of the subsidary.

Provision for impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries

The provision for impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries represents management's best estimate at the Balance Sheet
date. A nurnber of jJudgements are made in the calculation of the provision. primarily based on the net assets, cash balance and
future trading performance of the subsidiary

The application of IFRS S “Financial Instruments” results in an additional provision for expected credit losses. When measuring
expected credit losses, the Company uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking Information, which is based on
assumptions for the future movernent of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other Probability
of default constitutes a key Input in Measuring expected credi losses. Probability of default is an estmate of the likelihood

of default over a given time horizon. the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future
market conditions

Classification of financia! assets

The Company holds investments in preference shares 1ssued by a subsidary The preference shares do not provide a contractual
nght to unpaid amounts In the event of a bankruptey of the 1ssuer and therefore, In the Judgement of the directors, the returns do
not meet the conditions of being solely payments of principal and interest and are reguired to be held at far value through profit
and loss. The valuation of these shares is considered in the use of estimates and critical jJudgements above. The preference shares
are recognised as amounts due from subsidianes recevable after more than one year.

3

The Company’s accounting policies are the same as the accounting policies of the consolidated Group described on pages 104 to
116 except for the policy descrnbed below

Investrments I subsidianes, associates and joint ventures are held at cost less accurmulated iImparment Where there 1s objective
evidence that the investment iIn subsidiaries, assoctates and joint ventures has been impared, the carrying amount of the
investment 15 tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets

For share awards granted to employees of subsidlary cuttiuaries, the IMNG 2 charge ic recognised as an nnrease of the
Company’s investment in the relevant subsidiaries

Investments where the Company has no significant iInfluence are held at far value, with movements in farr value recorded in profit
and loss.

The expected credit losses on amounts due from subsidiaries 1s assessed under the general approach with reference to changes
N credit quality since initial recogrition. An amount due from a subsidiary s considered to be In default and credit imparred when
there is evidence that the subsidiary 1s In significant financial difficulty such that it will have insufficient liguid assets to repay the
loan The assessment of a significant Increase in credit risk s performed qualitatively by reference to the borrower's expected cash
flows, lquid asset position and considers the impact of the wider Groug's support.

The merger reserve anses on transactions where the Company Issues shares pursuant to an arrangement to acguire more than an
90% nterest i another company and no share premium is recorded. The amounts n merger reserve are unrealised profits relating
to the corresponding assets acquired by the Company on the issue of shares. These profits may become realised on the disposal

or write down of these assets
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

2 Loss/profit for the year

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own statement of
comprehensive income {including the profit and loss account) for the year

The auditor’'s remuneration for audit services to the Company 1s disclosed in Note 7 to the Consoldated Financial Statements

All fees paid to the auditor were charged to operating loss/profit in both years

3 Staff costs

Staff coste for the Company during the year (including directors) are provided in the table below

Salaries, wages and short-term employee benefits

Other pension costs
Social security costs
Share-based payments

The numbers above include remuneration and pension entitiements for each director Details are included in the Directors’

Rernuneration Report on pages 66 1o 85

The average number of full-time employees of the Company was 16 (2022 16).

4 Dividends

2023
£'000
2,391
46
764
1,264

4,465

2022
£'000
1776
51
214
56

2,097

Armnounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year are detailed in Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Certain dividends paid between 2016 and 2023 were paid by the Company without having sufficient distributable reserves

frorn which to lawfully pay them. The Company has rectihed its position with respect to these dividends; refer to Note 12 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for further details

5 Intangible assets

Cost
At 28 February 2021
Additons

Al 28 February 2022

Additions
Disposal

At 28 February 2023

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 28 February 2021
Charge for the year

At 28 Felruary 2022

Charge for the year
Impairment
At 28 February 2023

Net book value at 28 February 2023

Net book value at 28 February 2022

At 28 February 2023. the Company had no contractual commitments for the acquisiion of computer software (2022 £l
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Computer
software
E'00C

782
272

1,054

74
(87)

1,041

243
184

427
132

60
619

422

627

Total
£000

782
272

1,064

74
(87)

1,041

243
184

427
132

60
619

422

627
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6 Property, plant and equipment

Cost

At 28 February 2021
Additions at cost
Disposals

At 28 February 2022
Additions at cost
Disposals'

At 28 February 2023

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 28 February 201

Charge for the year

Imparment

Disposals

At 28 February 2022
Charge for the year
Disposals!

At 28 February 2023

Net book value at 28 February 2023

Net book value at 28 February 2022

Governance
Land and

bulldings Cornputers
£000 £000
9142 6
- 214
(154} -
8,988 220
- 7
(2161 -
6,827 227
3,504 3
1547 27
392 -
(194) -
5,289 30
1,244 55
(1,568) -
4,965 85
1,862 142
3699 190

Fitures and
cquiprnent
£000

2227

(205)
17

17

193
27

(205)
15

2

Total
£000
Y370
214
(359)

9,225

{2,167
7,01

3,700
1,601
392
(359)

5334
1,301
{1568}

5,067

2,004

3.891

1 Ihe disposal In the year primarly relates to the Bevis Marks premises assigned to Beat Capital by the Company As part of the arrangement, a payment of
£0 9 millon was made in relation to the outstanding lease liability The disposal resulted in the derecognitor of land and bulldings ot £0 b mitlion net book
value and the transfer of £0 5 mithon of the lease lability resulting in no gair or loss 11 the year

The leasehoids category includes land and buildings held under leases and leasehold improvements At 28 February 2023, the
Company had no contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and eguipment (2022 £nil)

The imparrmont charge 10 the prinr yaar arnse following the assignment of a lease. On 28 March 2022, the Group assigned

the lease for its Bevis Marks premises to Beat Capital The impairment charge of £392.000 s equal to the subsequent Joss on
assignment of this lease, being the lease assignment premium paid plus the net book value of the right-of-use asset disposed of

less lhe vulslarding lease lability on that lease

7 Leases

At 28 February 2024
Amgrtisation
Impairment

At 28 February 2022
Amortisation
Disposal

At 28 February 2023

Braemar Ple Arnnual Repor! and Accourt, 2023

Land and
buldings
£000
5.2/
{1,436)
(382)

3443
(1168)
(527)

1,748

Fixtures and
cquipment
£'000

23

(23)

Total

£000

5294
(1,459}
(392)

3,443
(1168)
(527)

1,748
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

7 Leases continued

i L P

Land and Fixtures and
buildings equipment
£7000 £'000
At 28 February 2021 8926 il
Interest expense 226 15
Lease payments (2,517 (126)
Exchange differences )] -
At 28 February 2022 5,631 -
Interest expense 125 -
Lease payments (3,080 -
Disposal BEM -
At 28 February 2023 3,026 -
1 Reter to Note 8 Property, plant and equipment for the detalls of the disposal
Gross Provision
£000 £000
At 28 February 2021 2105 -
Interest receved 55 -
Lease payments (642) -
Moverment in provision - (15}
Exchange differences (6) -
At 28 February 2022 1,512 (15)
Interest received 35 -
Lease payrments (642) -
Movernent in provision - s}
Disposal @8 -
At 28 February 2023 867 (9)

Total
£000
9037
241
(2.643)
4

B3
125
(3.080)
{650

3,026

Net
£'0C0
2106

55

(642)

(16)

(6}

1.4¢7
36
{642)
38
858

There was no short-term lease expense, no short-term lease Income and no low-value lease expense in the year (2022 £nil)

At 28 February 2023
At 28 February 2022

At 28 February 2023
Al 28 February 2022

LIt 3

rnonthe

£00U

539

854

Between

Upte3 3and 12
months months
£000 £'000
160 482
180 481
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Between
3 Aand 1
months
£ UL

1,615
1,963

Between
1and 2
years
£000

245
642

Between
Tand 2

934
2618

Between
2and b
years
E'Q00

285

Between
2and &
years
r'oco

1,669

Over b
Years
£'000

Over 5 Unearned
vears Total nterest
oo [N NN0
- 3,088 (62)
- 8,904 {(273)
Unearncd
Total interest Prowvision
£000 £000 £000
887 {20}
1668 (68} {(15)

Net
payable
FINN)

3,026
6,631

Net

receivable

£:000
858
1,497
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8 Investments

Unlsted
Subsidiaries Investments Total
£000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 March 2021 115,31 1,500 15,811
Capital contribution to Cory Brothers 3.664 - 3,664
Disposal (4,462) - {4,462)
Share-based payments 2959 - 2,959
At 28 February 2022 17472 1,500 18,972
Additions 7894 - 7894
Share-based payments 3,258 - 3,266
At 28 February 2023 128,822 1,500 130,122
Impairment
At 1 March 2021, 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023 10,683 - 10,583
Net book value at 28 February 2023 118,039 1,600 119,539
Net book value at 28 February 2022 106,889 1,500 108,388

The Company recognises nvestments in subsidiaries at cost less impairment

Additions for the year represent an investment made on the acguisition of Southport Marttime Inc. of £65 miflion and an investiment
made in respect of Madrid Shipping Advisors SL. of £14 millon. Both payments are subject to claw-back condttions linked to
continuous employment within the Grougp which are treated as a cost of Investrnent by the Company, but treated as prepayrments
for future service IN the Group. For further details cn the acquisition of Southport refer 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 14 Business combinations

The Company invested £33 milion (2022. £30 milion) in the subsichanes of the Group N respect of share-based payment charges
Incurred In the year.

The carrying value of the Company’s investments in subsidiary undertakings are reviewed for indicators of impairment on an
annual basis In the event impairment indicators are identified, the recoverable amount is determined based on a value-in-use
calculation which requires the determination of appropriate assumptions in relation to cash flows over a forecast period, the long-
term growth rate to be applied beyond this period and the nsk-adjusted discount rate used to discount the estimated cash flows
to present value. There is no indicator of impairment in relation to the Company's investments measured at cost If any impairment
Indicators arise, the investments would be tested for imparment

The Company’s principal nvestrment in Bragmar Financial Holdings Limited 1s held as preference shares: see Note 11 for
further information.

On 28 February 2022 the Company sold its investment in Cory Brothers Shipping Agency Limned A reconciliation of the
derecognition of the investment to the gain on disposal is as follows:

£'000
Disposai proceeds 9,897
Carrying value of Investrment (44408}
Disposal-related costs 1485)
Gain on disposal of Cory Brothers 4963

For the year ended 28 February 2022, the disposal proceeds attrbutable to the Company is an 88% share of the Grou's £113 million
disposal proceeds for the sale of the entire Cory Brothers group The disposal proceeds had not been received at year end;

other receivables INcludes a £65 miillon completion payment which was not receved until 2 March 2022 (see Note 12}, long-term
recevables includes £32 milion deferred and contingent consideration (2022 £4.8 million) (see Nate 11) The 12% share of digposal
proceeds due to Braemar Holdings (USA) Inc on a pass-through basis is Included in amounts due to subsidianes (see Note 14)
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

8 Investments continued
Investments with a carrying value of 13000 reiating to Wavespec were also disposed of during the year ended 28 February 2022,

A list of subsidiary undertakings i1s included in Note 34 of the Consolidated Financial Staterments.
Tre Hinancial Statemnents of tho principal subsidiary undertakings are prepared to 28 February 2023

R LS

The Group's uniisted investments include 1,000 (2022 1000) ordinary £1 shares in London Tanker Broker Panel The investrment
15 camed at fair value, being the value of the most recent cormparable transaction, which occurred during the vear ended

28 February 2019. There have been no transactions or events in the current or prior year which would result in an adjustment
to the fair value at 28 February 2023

9 |nvestment in associate
The Company recognises Its nvestment in AqualsBraemar LOC ASA at cost less mpairment AgualisBraemar LOC ASA s listed on
the Cslo Bers, its principal place of business 1s Oslo and its registered address 1s Olav Vs gate 6, 0161, Oslo, Norway

£000
At 28 February 2021 3.047
Disposal (3.247)
Cost at 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023 -
On 19 May 2021 the Company fully disposed of its minorty shareholding In AqualisBraemar LOC ASA for cash proceeds of
£7232000 A reconciliation of the derecognition of the investment to the gain on disposal 1s as follows.
£000
Disposal proceeds 7232
Carrying value of Investment (3.247}
Gan on disposal of AqualisBraemar 3985

At 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023 the Group's sharehclding was il which eqguates to 0% of AqualisBraermar’s share
capital and 0% of voting nghts (2021: market value of £6.3 milion, being 1042% of share capital and 1042% of voting nghts).

10 Deferred tax

Total
The movement in the deferred tax asset £000
Bailance at 1 March 2022 17
Credit for the year to profit or loss 424
Credit for the year 10 reserves 241
Balance at 28 February 2023 844

A deferred tax asset of £0.8 milion (2022 £0.2 milion) has been recognised as the directors believe that it 15 probable that there
will be suficient taxable profits In the future to recover the asset in full

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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11 Other long-term receivables

2023 2022
Note £'000 £000

Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings
Preferenre shares measired at farr valiie 3,676 26,01
Other amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 6,638 7,399
Provision for impairmert of other arnounts due from sulbsidiary undertakings {258) (257)
Net amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 9,966 33153
Deferred consideration 2,540 3482
Contingent consideration 1,004 1,276

Finance lease

Finance lease receivables 7 24 879
ECL provision for impairment of finance lease receivables (®) {15)
Net finance lease receivables 232 864
Other long-term receivables 13,732 38,775

The Company holds an investment in preference shares 1ssued by a subsidiary, Bragmar Financial Holdings Limited, which holds
the Company’s Investment in the Naves entities, at far value through profit and loss and recognised as amounts due from
subsidiaries receivable after more than one year. The preference shares are not traded in any market and there are no similar
assets In quoted markets The Company performs a valuation based on the present value of future cashflows using unobservable
{("Level 3") inputs

The Company develops unobservable INputs using the best information avallable In the circumstances, which include the Group's
forecasts of cash flows for the underlying Finance businesses of the holding company Issuing the preference shares using a risk-
adjusted discount rate.

The key estimates are therefore the selection of suitable discount rates and the estmation of future growth rates which vary
between cash-generating units depending on the specific risks and the anticipated economic and market conditions related to
each cash-generating unt The discount rates and growth rates are consistent with those applied to the same business In the
Group's assessment of the impairment of goodwill. See Note 15 In the Consclidated Financial Statements for a description of the
approach used by management to determine these key values and the sensitivity analysis on the impairment.

The fair vaiue of the investment In preference shares 1s based on the value-in-use of the Corporate Finance Division of £2 8 milion
(see Note 15 In the Consolidated Financial Statements), with adjustments to determine a fair value, principally an adjustment for
net debt in relation to balances not forming part of working capital of the entity of £C7 million. The reduction in fair value during
the current year 1s as a result of market conditions and trading below expectations in the year to February 2023, an increase in
discount rate in 2023 as well as a reduction In forecast revenues compared to Management's view In the pror year As a result, a
farr value loss of £247 millon has been recognised in the profit and 1055 account in the year

Deferred consideration of £25 millen and contingent consideration of £10 million relates to the non-current element of the earn-
out pavrments receivable In respect of the disposal of Cory Brothers The deferred consideration relates to the minimum earnout
payments accounted for on an amortised cost basis The contingent consideration represents the variable element of the earnout
payments which are contingent on the future gross profit of the newly formed VertomCory agency business, which are recognised
at fair value through profit or loss Note 23 in the Consoldated Financial Statements provides further detall

See Note 7 for a maturity analysis which reconciles the long-term finance lease recevables to the undiscounted lease recepts and
unearmed finance INncome
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

12 Other receivables

2023 2022

£'000 £'000
Amounts due frorm subsidiary undertakings 4,881 2294
Deferred consideration 1,087 -
Contingent consideration 403 _
Other receivables im 7625
Finance lease recevables 626 633
Prepayments 324 248
Total 8,442 10,800

Deferred consideration of £11 million and contingent consideration of £04 millon relates to the current element of the earm-out
payments recevable in respect of the disposal of Cery Brothers. Other receivables as at 28 February 2022 ncludes the completion
payment of £65 million for the disposal of Cory Brothers which completed on 28 February 2022, atthough the cash was not
received untl 2 March 2022

The total receivables balance (including long-term receivables) 1s denominated in the following currencies.

2023 2022

£000 £°000

Sterling 18,598 21563
Furo 3,576 28,012
Total 22174 49 575

The Company has no trade receivables (2022 £nil) Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings are interest-free, unsecured and
repayable on demand. The Company provides for impairment using a Iifetime expected credit loss provision for amounts due from
subsidiary undertakings.

13 Cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022
£°000 £000
Cash at bank 2,174 700

Cash and cash equivalents largely comprise bark balances denominated In sterling, US dollars, euros and other currencies for the
purpose of settling current habilites

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of these assets approximate to therr fair value

14 Other payables

2023 2022
Current liabilities £’000 £°000
Lease llabilties 2,097 2580
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings payable within one year 56,334 40,780
Other payables’ 751 779
Accruals 828 11659
Total 60,010 45,298

1 Inzluded in other payables. s a payable of EBA7000 10 relation to the working capital adjustment on the acquisition of Soutrport

Amounts owed 10 subsidiary undertakings payable within one year are interest-free and unsecured and repayable on demand

2023 2022
Non-current labilities £'000 £000
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings payable after more than one year 426 570
Cther long-term payables 443 -
Total 868 570
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15 Borrowings

2023 2022
Long-term borrowings £°000 £000
Lease labilties 929 4,051
Secured e volving credit faciliies 27,816 23,254
Total 28,744 27,305

Buring the period, the Group extended its revomng credit facility {("RCF") with its main bankers, HSBC For further detals see ‘Note
27 Borrowings’ In the Group's Financial Statements. Amounts can be rolled on a monithly basis until the facility expires subject to
certan conditions. and on that basis the borrowings have been classified as non-current The armounts drawn under the RCF
bear interest based on SONIA, SOFR and EURIBOR from armounts drawn in sterling, US dollar and euros respectively, plus a credit
margn dependent on the Group's leverage ratio

16 Convertible loan notes and derivative financial instruments

The Company has issued convertible loan notes as part of the acguisition of Naves Corporate Finance GmbH (further details of
the acguisition are provided in Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Corwertible loan notes have been vaiued at
amortised cost with a derivative lability recogrised in respect of the conversion feature

2023 2022
£000 £000
Assets
Denvative assets maturing within one year® 1,183 —
Liabilities
Issued corvertible loan notes maturing within one year 703 1,416
Issued convertible loan notes maturing after more than one year 2,899 3,271
Dervative labilites due within one year 42 _
Derivative labilities due after more than one year 564 B85
Total liabilities 4,198 4772

* Currency forwards with a far value of £1,183 000 (2022 nill matunng within 12 months have been shown as current assets

I A T

The following table shows amounts in the Company balance sheet relating to the convertible loan notes issued on the acquisition
of Naves The amounts shown in the table below differ from the similar armounts disclosed in Note 27 to the Group's Consolidated
Financial Statements primarily due to the difference in accounting ansing from the employment concition relating to certain of the
instruments issued, which results in different effective interest rates applying at the Group and Company level At 28 February 2023,
there are no unsatisfied ongomng employment conditions.

2023 2022
E£'000 £:000
Current liabilities
Convertble loan nules 703 1416
Dernvatives 14 _
Non-current liabilities
Convertible ioan notes 2,899 3.2M1
Denvatives 370 85
3,269 3,356
3,988 4772
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

17 Provisions

Dilapidations Total

£'000 £000

At 28 February 2021 and 28 February 2022 541 541
Reversal of provision in e yea {124) (124)
At 28 February 2023 a7 a17

The Company holds a dilapidations provision of £04 million (2022: £05 million) which is classified as a non-current liability
Dilapidations relate to future obligations to make good certain office premises upon expiration of the lease term The provision 1s
calculated with reference to the lccation and square foctage of the office.

18 Share capital and share premium
The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed incorme. Note 30 to the Conscohdated Financial
Statements provides detall on authonsed share capital and movernents in Issued share capital,

19 ESOP reserve

An Employee Share Ownership Plan (‘ESOP") was established on 23 January 1995 The ESOP has been set up to purchase
shares in the Company These shares, once purchased, are held in trust by the Trustee of the ESOP, SG Kleinwort Hambros Trust
Company (Cl) Lirmited, for the benefit of the employees. Additionally, an Employee Benefit Trust ("EBT”) previcusly run by ACM
Shipping Group ple asc holds shares in the Company The ESOP and EBT are accounted for within the Company accounts

The net cost of the shares acquired for the shares held by the ESOP and the EBT are a deduction from shareholders’ funds and
represent a reduction N distnbutable reserves. Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial Statements provides detail on the ESOP and
the EBT and movements in shares 1o be issued

20 Other reserves

Capital
redemption Morger
reserve reserve I91al
£000 £000 000
At 28 February 2021 (restated), 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023 396 23,366 23,762

The capital redemption reserve arose on previous share buy-backs by the Company.

The merger reserve arises on transactions where the Company issues shares pursuant to an arrangsment to acquire more than
an 90% interest In ancther cormpany and no share premium is recorded The merger reserve arose principally in 2001 In relation to
the acquisitions of Braemar Shipbrokers Limited and Braemar Tankers Limited. Further additons have ansen in respect of Naves
and Atlantic Brokers included in the prior pericd adjustment (£1.3 million and £2.0 million respectively) Following a transfer to
retained earnings 1N the prior year in relation to fair value losses on the Company’s investment in the preference shares issued by
Braemar Financial Holdings Lirmited, there 1s no remaining balance relating to the Naves acquisition The amounts in merger reserve
are unrealsed profits relating to the corresponding assets acquired by the Company on the issue of shares. These profits may
become realised on the disposal or write down of these assets,
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21 Contingent liabilities
The Company has contingent liabilities in respect of guarartees entered nto on behalf of its subsidiaries I the normal course of
business given as follows

2023 2022
£'000 £000

Bank guarantees given to:
Third parties {(non-cash collateralised) 232 710
Total 232 710

The Cormpany and certain of its subsidiaries have provided cross guarantees and fixed and floating rate charges over their assets
to secure their borrowing facilties and other financial instruments

From time to time the Company may be engaged in ligation in the ordinary course of business. The Company carries professional
indemnity Insurance. There are currently no liabilities expected 1o have a matenal adverse financial mpact on the Company's
results or net assets.

The Company has issued guarantees to certain subsidiaries in order to exempt them from audit for the year ended 28 February
2023 See Note 34 of the Consoldated Firancial Statements

22 Related party transactions
The Company has applied the disclesure exernption of FRS 101 1N respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidianes.

During the pericd the Group entered into the following transactions with joint ventures and investments.

2022/23 2021/22
Recharges Balance Recharges Balance
to/{from) Dividends due(to)/ from tof{from) Driadends due{te)/ from
E'000 €000 E£'000 £°000 EQO0 £000
AqualsBraemar LOC ASA ) - - - 22 - 282

On 18 May 2021 the Company fully disposed of its minority shareholding in AqualisBraemar LOC ASA, see Note 11in the
Consoldated Financial Statements for details

In pror year, recharges to AgualisBraemar LOC ASA consisted primarily of rent. IT services and HR services In accordance with a
transitional services agreement Included in the net recharge to AqualisBraemar LOC ASA is a fee payable to the Group's former
Charman, Ronald Series of £3750

A list of the Company's subsidiary undertakings 1s provided in Note 34 in the Consolidated Financial Staternents.
23 Events after the reporting date
In June 2023 the Company completed a Capital Reduction relating to its share premium and merger reserve For further detalls, see

‘Note 12 Dividends’ in the Group's Financial Statermments There were no other adjusting or significant non-adjusting events between
the reporting date and the date of authonsation
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Five-year financial summary (unaudited)

Consolidated Income Statement

Continuing operations

Group revenue

Other operating expenses
Specific items {(net)
Total operating expenses

Operating profit/(loss)

Gain on revaluation of investment

Net interest expense

Share of gssociate profit for the pencd

Profit hefore taxation
Taxation
Gain/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) after taxation

Oividends
Interirn
Final proposed

Farnings per ordinary share - pence
Basic - underlying from continuing operations

Diluted - underlying from continuing operations

Braemar Ple Ansaal Report and Acoourt, 2023

(8,4086)
(141,242)

1,669

{2,195)
(23)

9,451
(4,855)

4,596

1,172
2,634

3,806

46.22p
38.52p

12 months to

- 28Feb 2022

£000
101,310

(81,250)
{514}
(91./64)

9,546
172
(1156)
{19

8,543
(1.839)
7215

13,819

610
2,254

2864

23.06p
18.79p

12 months to
28 Feb 2021
£:000

83895

(75.976)
(1097}
(77073)

8622

(1.485)

5136
(1,574
970

4,632

1,406
1425

1580p
12.91p

12 months to
29 Feb 2020
£000

17655

(106.925)
(3.244)
(109,269)

7686

(1,853)
436

6,269
46
(2,299)

4,016

1564

1664

2045p
26.62p

12 months to
28 Feb 2019
£'000

1178563

(108.787)
{1,719)
(120,606}

(2,653}
500
(287}

(314Q)
{1,525}
(22,700}

(27365}

1,501
2,951

4452

2332
21.36p
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Five-year financial summary (unaudited)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Assets

Non-current assets
Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Other INvestments

Investment In associate
Financlal assets

Denvative financial instruments
Deferred tax assets

Pension surplus

Other long-term recevables

Current assets

Trade and other recewables
Financial assets

Dervative financial instruments
Current tax recewable

Assets held for sale

Cash and cash eguivailents

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Dervative financial instruments
Trade and other payables
Short-term borrowings
Current tax payable

Provisions

Convertible loan notes
Deferred consideration
Liakilties directly associated with assets classified as held for sale

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Deferred tax labilities
Derivative financial instruments
Provisions

Corvertible lcan notes
Deferred consideration
Pension deficit

Total liabilities

Total assets less total liabilities
Equity

Share capial

Share premium

ESQOP reserve

Cther reserves

Retaned earnings

Total equity

Braemar Plc Anacal Report and Accounts 2023

As at
28 Feb 2023
£'000

71,40
3,980
5,320

1,780
701

30
4,794
1,120
8,554

97,686

43,323

1,224
973
34,735
80,255
177,941

1,122
57,852

4,140
2,575
699

66,388

29,919
344
1,022

101,268
76,686

3,292
53,796
{10,607)
28,819
1,381

76,686

As at

28 Feb 2022
£000
(restatod)

78.8N
Q97
7078
1,780
724

8
3,713

5636
99,827

356792

54

13,864
49,810
149637

688
39,183

1608
486
1,418

43,381

2833

335
797
2,765
495
2.062

34,765
78146
71.4¢1

3221

53,030
6.771)
26,130
(4.119)

71,491

Az at

28 Fel 2021
£000
(restated)

83,950
2129
9,841
1,962
3.763

200
2,800

1888
106,838

33416
746
15673

436
1411

50,282
166,020

47,833

1318
307
4,461

125
54.044

31634
174

590
2681
882
3.819

30,936
832980
62.940

3174
52510
(1.362)
27100
(18,482}

62940

As at
29 Feb 2020
£000

83,812
241
11,928
1862
7,315
1184

3,620

2467
14,699

39,54

28,749
88,200
182,980

437
47,209
25116
1334
201
4444
177

78,918

34,585
903
765

2,603
2,293
3672
44,861
123,779
59,210

3167
52,610
(2.498)

25,862
19,831

59,210

As at
78 Feb 2019
£000

83.812
2228
1,978
1.773

1,840

264
91,683

37128

10,611
241

71,850
163,643

49

44 887
356,844
1,408
90
6,339
800
2,797

92,014

930

324
4,579
5,367

1.986

13176
106100
58,363

3144
55,805
(3,446)
22,857
(20,007)

58,353
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Contact information

Registered office

Braemar Plc

Cne Strand

Trafalgar Sguare

I nndan

WC2ZN BHR

Company number 02286034

Telephone +44 ()20 3142 4100

Web address:
wwiwy braemar.com

Principal offices

- ,

One Strand
Trafalgar Square
London

WC2ZN 5HR

80 Robinson Road
#24-01/02
Singapore
068898

Level 3, 70 City Road
South Bank
Melbourne

Victona 3006
Austraha

Domstraie 17
20095 Harmburg
Germany

One Strand
Trafalgar Square

London
WICZN 5HR

www.braemar.com
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